DOCKETED USNRC May 30, 2001

01 JUN -4 P3:01

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

OFFICE OF SECRETARY RULEMAKINGS AND

ADJUDICATIONS

Before the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board

In the Matter of)
PRIVATE FUEL STORAGE L.L.C.) Docket No. 72-22
(Private Fuel Storage Facility)) ASLBP No. 97-732-02-ISFSI

APPLICANT'S RESPONSE TO STATE OF UTAH'S REQUEST FOR ADMISSION OF LATE-FILED CONTENTION UTAH QQ

I. INTRODUCTION

Applicant Private Fuel Storage L.L.C. ("Applicant" or "PFS") hereby responds to the State of Utah's ("State") "Request for Admission of Late-Filed Contention Utah QQ (Seismic Stability)," filed May 16, 2001 ("Request"). The State asserts that proposed Contention Utah QQ ("Proposed Utah QQ") arises from newly revised design basis ground motions developed by the Applicant to incorporate soils data collected at the PFS site.¹ The proposed contention, however, does not challenge the revised seismic analyses performed by Applicant, or the design earthquake ground motions resulting from those analyses. Instead, Proposed Utah QQ alleges that the newly revised design basis ground motions have not been correctly and consistently applied to the analyses of the Canister Transfer Building ("CTB"), the spent fuel cask storage pads, and their soil cement foundations. Request at 8-11. The proposed contention further asserts that PFS has failed to prove the adequacy of the use of soil cement in the design of the CTB and the storage pads to help withstand the revised seismic loads, <u>id.</u> at 11-14, and also claims that PFS has not fully taken into account the properties of the underlying soils at the PFS site in determining whether the safety-related structures at the site can withstand the revised seismic loads. <u>Id.</u> at 14-15.

PFS letter, Parkyn to U.S. NRC, License Application Amendment No. 22, dated March 30, 2001 ("LA 22").

As more fully discussed below, many of the claims raised by the State relate to the methodology used by PFS to predict the performance of the CTB and the spent fuel cask storage pads under seismic conditions. In the areas of concern raised by the State, that methodology has not changed since the analyses were first performed. The balance of the State's claims challenge the use of soil cement in the design. However, soil cement has been part of the PFS design since December 1999. Thus, the issues the State seeks to litigate in Proposed Utah QQ could and should have been raised either at the time that Contention Utah L was filed in 1997 or, at the latest, when the PFS seismic designs and analyses were modified in 1999 and 2000.²

Proposed Utah QQ also repeats claims that have been previously rejected in this proceeding and raises claims that are speculative or otherwise flawed. Thus, the proposed contention fails to meet the standards for admissibility in NRC proceedings.

II. BACKGROUND

A. RELEVANT FACTS

On November 23, 1997, the State filed Contention Utah L, which challenged aspects of the seismic design of the PFS facility. A month later, on December 23, 1997, the State filed a "Request for Consideration of Late-Filed Contentions EE and FF" (hereinafter "EE Request"). The State's late-filed EE Request sought to challenge the seismic analyses of the spent fuel storage casks, their pads and foundations. On April 22, 1998, the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board ("Licensing Board" or "Board") admitted Utah L into this proceeding and rejected Utah EE as impermissibly late. <u>Private Fuel Storage, L.L.C.</u> (Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation), LBP-98-7, 47 NRC 142, 191, 253 (1998).

On December 16, 1999, Applicant filed License Amendment No. 8 ("LA 8"). This amendment incorporated soil cement into the design of the PFS facility, to be used beneath the

² Exhibit A hereto is a table listing the claims raised in Proposed Utah QQ and the date on which the design or analysis features challenged in each claim were first identified by PFS. The Exhibit demonstrates that the claims raised in Proposed Utah QQ address design or analysis features of which the State had knowledge a year or more prior to the filing of Proposed Utah QQ.

spent fuel cask storage pads. The documentation filed with LA 8 included specifications for the soil cement, including the use of American Concrete Institute ("ACI") standards to govern the procedures for placement and treatment of the soil cement.³ The calculations for the sliding stability of the cask storage pads under seismic loads were also revised to incorporate the effects of the use of soil cement. (License Amendment No. 9, submitted on February 2, 2000.)⁴ Apart from the use of soil cement, the cask storage pad sliding stability calculations utilized the same methodology and assumptions as those in the initial calculation package dated July 14, 1997.⁵

On June 23, 2000, Applicant submitted License Amendment No. 13 ("LA 13"), which revised additional seismic design calculations to take into account the effects of soil cement in relation to the stability and function of soil cement as a "dynamic buttress."⁶ This amendment also incorporated into the CTB design the use of a "shear key" (a circular structure intended to minimize the potential sliding of the CTB in the event of an earthquake).⁷ In terms of methodology relevant to Proposed Utah QQ, the revised calculations submitted with LA 13 continued to apply the same assumptions and methods as the previous versions of the calculations. Also, the calculations for the CTB were based on the same general methodology used for the pads.⁸

On December 30, 2000, PFS moved for summary disposition of Utah L. The State filed a response in opposition to the motion on January 31, 2001. State of Utah's Response to Applicant's Motion for Summary Disposition of Utah Contention L ("Utah L Summary Disposition Response.") In its response, the State sought to broaden the scope of Utah L by raising many of

³ SAR at 2.6-91 (Rev. 8). See Exhibit A, item 15 for further details.

⁴ See Exhibit A, item 1.

⁵ PFS letter, Parkyn to NRC, Submittal of Calculation Package, dated July 14, 1997, Exhibit A, item 3.

⁶ PFS letter, Donnell to NRC, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter No. 3 Information," dated June 19, 2000. Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-4, Rev. 6, which was part of the package, incorporated the "buttress" effect of soil cement. See Exhibit A, item 12.

⁷ SAR Sections 2.6.1.11.2 and 2.6.1.12.2, Rev. 13. See Exhibit A, item 25.

⁸ For example, SWEC Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-4 examines the stability of the storage pads, whereas SWEC Calculation No. 059906.02-G(B)-13 examines the stability of the CTB. The two calculations employ the same methodology in areas (e.g., rigidity of the basemat or storage pad) that are being challenged by the State in Proposed Utah QQ. See Attachments 1 and 2 to Exhibit A.

the same issues which it has now included in Proposed Utah QQ, including for example attacks on the seismic stability calculations for the CTB and the cask storage pads.⁹ The State's response to the motion for summary disposition of Utah L also raised issues about the adequacy, integrity and durability of soil cement, the effectiveness of the CTB shear key, and a variety of other arguments identical to those now asserted in Proposed Utah QQ.¹⁰ While raising these issues was inappropriate in the context of Utah L because they were outside the scope of the admitted contention, by seeking to raise these arguments in January 2001 the State demonstrated that the claims are independent of the modifications incorporating the revised design basis ground motion, which were to be filed by PFS several months later.

On March 30, 2001, PFS filed LA Amendment 22 which provided revised design basis ground motions, derived from the use of additional soils data.¹¹ On April 26, 2001, the Board issued an order setting May 16, 2001, as the due date for a State submission of a proposed contention regarding "[CTB] design changes, including use of soil cement, or revisions to storage pad analyses, soils analyses, soil-cement design calculations/analyses, and Holtec site-specific cask analyses."¹² On May 16, 2001, the State filed its request to admit Proposed Utah QQ.

B. OVERVIEW OF CLAIMS RAISED IN PROPOSED UTAH QQ

In Proposed Utah QQ, the State has asserted three general types of challenges to the PFS seismic design. As noted earlier, these general challenges are: i) that the calculations used to determine the behavior of the CTB and the storage casks and pads in the presence of seismic forces are oversimplified, incomplete or inaccurate; ii) that the soil cement whose use is proposed for both the CTB and the cask storage pads has unknown properties, and may not behave

⁹ Utah L Summary Disposition Response at 20-23; State of Utah's Statement of Disputed and Relevant Material Facts ("Utah L Statement of Facts"), ¶¶90-98.

¹⁰ Utah L Summary Disposition Response at 15-17; Utah L Statement of Facts ¶¶43-51, 62-64, 72-73, 76-77.

¹¹ PFS letter, Parkyn to NRC dated March 30, 2001 and attachments thereto.

¹² Memorandum and Order (Schedule for Late-Filed Submissions Regarding License Application Amendment and Page Limit Extension) (April 26, 2001) ("April 26, 2001 Order"). The April 26, 2001 Order also authorized the State to submit by May 7, 2001 any late-filed issue statements with regard to the changes to the probabilistic seismic hazard analyses arising from LA 22. The State failed to submit any such issues.

in the way that the PFS analyses and designs assume;¹³ and iii) that the properties of the soils at the site have not been properly taken into account in the design analyses and calculations.

1. Design Calculations Incorporating Ground Motions

The State challenges as oversimplified and non-conservative the methodology applied by PFS in its revised calculations that incorporate the new design ground motions. Request at 8-11. The State views as oversimplified certain assumptions made in the calculations, such as the rigidity of the CTB mat and storage pads, the behavior of structures when subjected to ground motions, and the characteristics of those ground motions. Id. at 8-9. The State argues that PFS has failed to properly take into account out-of-phase ground motions, the potential multiplicity of seismic wave patterns that will arrive at the site, and the need to utilize multiple time histories in both the CTB and storage pad/cask response calculations. Id. at 9-11. As discussed below, these issues are not being raised for the first time in Proposed Utah QQ, nor do they result from the revisions to the design ground motions. Rather, the same issues were propounded over three years ago in Proposed Contention EE. The State also raised the same issues early this year, in its attempt to defeat the Applicant's motion for summary disposition of Utah L (a matter currently pending before the Board). Thus, the inclusion of these issues in Proposed Utah QQ represents the State's third attempt to find a way to litigate them.¹⁴

¹³ The State, and its witness James Mitchell, seek to draw a distinction between "soil cement" and "cement treated soil." See Request at 3, n.2; Declaration of Dr. James K. Mitchell ("Mitchell Dec.") ¶ 12. However, to the extent such a distinction exists, the State has failed to raise a litigable contention relating to it. All that Dr. Mitchell alleges is that if the mixture of soil and cement to be used by PFS "is not a true soil-cement, then the durability of the cement-treated soil may be an issue, because the wet-dry, freeze-thaw exposure may be significant for this site." Mitchell Dec. ¶12, emphasis added. Such a hypothetical, speculative concern does not give rise to a litigable contention in a Commission proceeding. LBP-98-7, 47 NRC at 180.

¹⁴ In its April 26, 2001 Order, the Board requested that in their filings the parties discuss the impact, if any, of the admission of any late-filed contention on the matters currently pending before the Board in connection with the PFS dispositive motion on contention Utah L. The answer is that there should be no impact of Proposed Utah QQ on the summary disposition of Utah L because the common issues between the two sets of contentions are certain claims, not part of Utah L as admitted by the Board, that the State raised in its Utah L Summary Disposition Response an attempt to defeat summary disposition. These additional claims, which relate only to Basis 3 or Utah L and which are subject to a pending motion to strike by Applicant, should be excluded from Utah L as improperly raised, and from Proposed Utah QQ because of untimeliness. The fact that Holtec's methodology has not changed since 1997 is evidenced by Exhibit A, Attachment 3.

2. Soil Cement

The State asserts that the proposed use of soil cement by the Applicant may not achieve its intended purpose with respect to the seismic performance of the CTB and the storage casks and their pads. Request at 11. In support of this assertion, the State provides a laundry list of reasons why this may be so. These assertions fall into two categories, those that attack the properties of the soil cement (e.g., that it will not provide as much resistance against sliding as attributed in the seismic calculations), and those that suggest that, even if the soil cement has the properties intended, the material will degrade over time, losing its beneficial effects.

The first category of challenges – that the soil cement will not have the properties intended – asserts that there are not "sufficient evaluations, testing, calculations and design to demonstrate that the cement-treated soil will perform its intended functions, both under seismic loading and long-term operational conditions." Request at 6. This line of attack is speculative, since it presumes that PFS will be unable to demonstrate that the soil cement to be used will meet its required design function. In addition, as further discussed below, the State's challenge to the use of soil cement is untimely, since the State has been on notice since at least December 1999 of PFS's intention to use the material, and has also been aware since that time of the manner in which the soil cement will be designed and applied.¹⁵

The second category of challenges asserts that the soil cement will not behave as intended due to environmental factors such as the effects of out-of-phase earthquake motions, the settling of the CTB and the storage pads, the weight of equipment, weather (including freeze/thaw cycles and wet/dry conditions), drying and curing, delamination or debonding along the soil cement lift interfaces, chemical effects of salts and sulfates that may be present in the soil that is mixed with the cement, and the long-term performance of the soil cement material. Request at 11-14. All of these concerns, as more fully discussed below, are intrinsic to the use of soil cement, and as such should have been raised a year and a half ago, when PFS first announced its plans to use soil ce-

¹⁵ See Exhibit A, item 15.

ment at the site. In addition, a number of these postulated problems are mere speculation and as such do not provide the basis for an admissible contention.

3. Soil Properties

The State asserts that there are a number of characteristics of the soils underlying the PFS site that should have been taken into account in the design analyses, but were inadequately considered or ignored altogether. Request at 14-15. For example, the State claims that PFS has potentially overestimated the sliding resistance provided by the clayey-silt and silty-clay soils underlying the CTB and storage pads, because it has not considered the effects of: adhesion and potential water content changes during cement-treated soil placement, and other long-term moisture content changes; seismically generated pore pressures on the soil's shear strength during earthquake loading; and partial mobilization of undrained shear strength free-field ground motion. Id. Likewise, the State claims that PFS has not demonstrated that the applied design shear strength value is representative of actual conditions. Id. As discussed below, these claims are belated and speculative, and raise no issues that need to be considered.

III. LEGAL STANDARDS

A. STANDARDS FOR ADMISSION OF LATE-FILED CONTENTIONS

Pursuant to 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(b)(1), late-filed contentions are admissible only if a balancing of five factors listed in 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(a)(1) supports admission of the contention. Those five factors are: (i) good cause, if any, for the failure to file on time, (ii) the availability of other means to protect the petitioner's interest, (iii) the extent to which petitioner will assist in the development of a sound record, (iv) the extent to which the petitioner's interest will be represented by other parties, and (v) the extent to which admitting the contention will broaden the issues or delay the proceeding. 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(a)(1). Although the balancing test must take into account all of the factors, there is no requirement that the same weight be given to each factor. <u>Houston Lighting and Power Company</u> (South Texas Project, Units 1 and 2), LBP-82-91, 16 NRC 1364, 1367 (1982), citing South Carolina Electric and Gas Company (Virgil C. Summer Nuclear Station, Unit 1), ALAB-642, 13 NRC 881, 895 (1981).

The Board has already ruled in this proceeding (when it dismissed Proposed Contention Utah EE, in which the State sought belatedly to introduce some of the same issues raised in Proposed Utah QQ) that, where a petitioner fails to show good cause for its untimely submission of a contention, it must make a compelling showing on the other four criteria of 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(a). LBP-98-7, 47 NRC at 208. In the present case, the State fails to show good cause for its extreme lateness and has not made a compelling showing on the other four four factors. Therefore, Proposed Utah QQ fails to satisfy the admissibility standards of 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(a)(1).

B. SUBSTANTIVE STANDARDS FOR ADMISSION OF CONTEN-TIONS IN COMMISSION ADJUDICATORY PROCEEDING

In order to be admissible, a proposed contention raised by an intervenor in an NRC proceeding must include: a specific statement of the issue of law or fact to be raised or controverted; a brief explanation of the bases of the contention; and sufficient information to show a genuine dispute with the applicant on a material issue of law or fact. 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(b)(2); Georgia Institute of Technology (Georgia Tech Research Reactor), CLI-95-12, 42 NRC 111, 117-18 (1995). Many of the issues raised by the State, even if they met the requirements for consideration of late-filed contentions (which they do not), would not be admissible because they lack the requisite specificity. In addition, some of the State's claims assume that the Applicant would not comply with licensing commitments or Commission regulations, which this Board has already indicated is not an acceptable basis for a contention. Private Fuel Storage, L.L.C. (Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation), LBP-00-35, 52 NRC 364 (2000), rev. denied, CLI-01-09 (2001). Likewise, the Commission has reiterated that "the NRC does not presume that a licensee will violate regulations whenever the opportunity arises." Private Fuel Storage, L.L.C. (Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation), CLI-01-09, 2001 NRC LEXIS 41, at *5 (March 12, 2001) (citation omitted). For these reasons, Proposed Utah QQ also fails to satisfy the admissibility standards.

8

IV. APPLICATION OF LEGAL STANDARDS TO CLAIMS RAISED IN UTAH QQ SHOWS THAT THE CONTENTION IS NOT ADMISSIBLE

In filing Proposed Utah QQ, the State belatedly tries to raise issues of which it was (or should have been) aware long ago, and seeks to resurrect issues that the Board has already dismissed. The State should not be allowed to remedy its past failures to provide an admissible contention by seizing upon PFS's amendments to its License Application. Despite trying to couch its claims in terms of LA 22 changes, the allegations the State makes in Proposed Utah QQ do not arise from, nor are they dependent upon, the amendment submitted by PFS. The State has failed to satisfy the crucial good cause requirement for admissibility of belated, new contentions, and has provided nothing relating to the other factors in 10 CFR § 2.714(a) that would overcome its failure to satisfy the good cause requirement.

A. THE CLAIMS RAISED IN PROPOSED UTAH QQ ARE UNJUSTI-FIABLY LATE

1. Design Calculations Incorporating New Ground Motions

a. General Methodological Concerns Applicable to the CTB, Storage Casks, and Pads

The State attacks PFS's seismic design calculations for the CTB (Calc. G(B)-13, Rev. 4) and the storage pads (*Multi Cask Response at PFS ISFSI from 2000-yr Seismic Event*, Rev. 2; G(B)-04, Rev. 7) for oversimplifying or failing to take into account certain site features. Request at 8-11. Each of these alleged oversimplifications or omissions has been part of the calculations for over a year and a half, and the State's attempts to raise them now cannot be justified.¹⁶

For example, the State argues that the assumption that the storage pads and the CTB mat will remain rigid during an earthquake is erroneous. Request at 6-8. This assumption was part

¹⁶ In its "good cause" explanation of the failure to raise issues with regards to the design calculations, the State actually concedes that "[i]n its revised calculation, Holtec uses many of the same incorrect assumptions as it did in its original analyses (e.g., assume the casks will slide in a controlled manner during an earthquake) as does Stone & Webster in its dynamic analyses of the CTB and storage pads." Request at 16. The State's attempt at an explanation for the failure to raise the issues earlier is that "the issues enumerated in Utah QQ relate to the increase in design basis ground motion, Amendment 22 and related calculations." Id. at 17. However, as Exhibit A clearly shows, that is not the case.

of the calculation package submitted for the storage pads in July 1997,¹⁷ and for the CTB in September 1999.¹⁸ The calculations treated the storage pads and the Canister Transfer Building base mat as rigid bodies, both before and after soil cement became part of the design. Thus, this assumption is independent of the revised design basis ground motion, and could have been challenged by the State one and a half to three years ago.

Similarly, the State alleges that the seismic calculations for the CTB and the storage casks and pads are not conservative because they do not consider different patterns of seismic waves (such as inclined waves), and are based on only a single time history. Request at 6-10. However, the methodology of the calculations has remained the same with respect to the assumed pattern of seismic waves and the use of a single time history since the calculations for the stability of the storage pads and the CTB were submitted in 1997 and 1999 respectively.¹⁹ The State likewise alleges deficiencies in the modeling of possible interactions between the pads and the foundations, including failure to take into account possible out-of-phase motions of the structures with respect to their foundations. Request at 9-10. This feature of the analyses, however, has been part of the seismic calculations since 1997.²⁰

These criticisms are all directed at the methodologies used by PFS, and could have been raised when the calculations were first provided to the State. The original calculations did not include a consideration of the matters identified by the State (because they did not need to be considered), nor were these matters included in the calculations submitted when soil cement was

¹⁷ Holtec Report HI-2012640 submitted by letter from Parkyn to NRC, "Submittal of Calculation Package", dated July 14, 1997. See Exhibit A, item 3.

¹⁸ SWEC Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 1, "Stability Analyses of the Canister Transfer Building Supported on a Mat Foundation" submitted by letter from John Donnell to the U.S. NRC dated September 8, 1999. See Exhibit A, item 7.

¹⁹ LA 13, June 23, 2000; SAR Section 8.2.1.2, Rev. 13 (Holtec Report No. HI-992277, Multi-Cask Seismic Response at the PFS ISFSI, From 2000-Year Seismic Event, Rev. 0, Aug. 20, 1999). See Exhibit A, items 4,5. The calculations were submitted in two letters. Holtec Report No. H1-992277 was submitted in a letter to the NRC from J. Donnell on August 27, 1999. The cask stability analysis calculation was submitted in a letter to the NRC from J. Donnell on September 9, 1999.

²⁰ See Exhibit A, item 6.

added to the design of the storage pads. It was not until now, however, that the State chose to submit a contention regarding the methodologies used in these seismic design calculations. The State should not be permitted at this late date to raise issues of which it had notice for years.

b. Storage Cask and Pad Specific Concerns

In addition to concerns that are generally applicable to the methodology of the analyses of both the CTB and the cask storage pads, the State raises claims that are specific to the methodology used in the analyses of the storage casks and pads. Most of these were previously raised, and rejected by the Board, in Proposed Contention EE; they are discussed in Section IV.B below. One claim, however, is being raised for the first time in Proposed Utah QQ: the failure of the Holtec calculation to take into account the natural frequency of the cask-pad-soil-cernent system. Request at 10. Again, this allegation does not arise from design changes made to accommodate the revised seismic ground motions and is independent of those design changes, but is instead an attack on a Holtec cask tipover calculation that the State has had since June, 2000.²¹ That calculation's methodology has not changed in its treatment of the natural frequency of the cask-pad-soil cement system. If the State disagreed with this assumption, the appropriate time to raise a claim would have been when it first received the calculation.

c. CTB Specific Claim²²

Another claim in Proposed Utah QQ involves the alleged ineffectiveness of the CTB shear key in preventing sliding.²³ The shear key has have been part of the CTB design since June 2000.²⁴ Therefore, the adequacy of the CTB shear key should be rejected as untimely.

²¹ <u>Id.</u>, item 14.

²² Most of the claims raised in Proposed Utah QQ against the design of the CTB raise the same issues as claims involving the cask storage pads, and are dealt with in the discussion in subsection IV.1.a above.

²³ Bartlett Dec. ¶22.

²⁴ SAR Rev. 13, Sections 2.6.1.11.12 and 2.6.1.12.2; License Application Amendment No. 13, dated June 13, 2000; Calculation G(B)-4, Rev. 6, submitted June 19, 2000. See Exhibit A, item 25.

2. Soil Cement Issues

The State seeks to raise in Proposed Utah QQ a number of issues relating to the use of soil cement at PFS.²⁵ The issues relating to soil cement should have been raised when the State became aware of the use of soil cement as part of the PFS design on December 16, 1999.²⁶ There can be no good cause for the State's delay in filing contentions focusing on the intrinsic adequacy and durability of soil cement.

The State's raises the following issues regarding the use of soil cement:

- 1. The behavior of the soil cement under tensile and bending stresses and out-ofphase motion (Request at 12);
- 2. The possibility and effect of cracks forming in soil cement due to settling of the CTB or storage pads (Request at 9, 12);²⁷
- 3. The propagation of cracks in the soil cement away from the CTB or pads as a result of differential settling (Request at 9, 10);
- 4. Delaminating or debonding along a soil cement lift interface (Request at 12-13);
- 5. Cracking or degrading of soil cement due to weight of equipment (Request at 13);
- 6. Long term degradation of the performance of the soil cement due to weather effects such as freeze/thaw cycles or wet/dry conditions (Request at 13-14); and
- 7. Cracking or degrading due to curing and drying (Request at 13).

Each of these issues could have been raised in response to the SAR Revisions (LA 8, 9

and 13) in which the use of soil cement was introduced.. For example, the State's claims re-

garding the long-term behavior of soil cement under the pads and the CTB are identical to those

²⁵ The State does not claim, however, that the use of soil cement has given rise to new problems or issues. Rather, the soil cement concerns raised in Proposed Utah QQ address the adequacy of the soil cement treatment to solve existing design problems. In addition, the alleged soil cement problems raised by the State do not relate to the new design ground motions, and would have existed whether or not the seismic ground motions were modified. In fact, the alleged problems were raised by the State last January its opposition to summary disposition of Utah L. See, e.g. Utah L Statement of Facts ¶¶47-51, 62-64.

²⁶ PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, License Application Amendment No. 8, dated December 16, 1999, SAR, Rev. 8 at 2.6-84 to 2.6-91 (see Exhibit A, item 15). As the State's own witnesses admit, the use of soil cement around the CTB invokes exactly the same concerns as the use of soil cement around the storage pads. See, e.g., Bartlett Dec.¶12; Mitchell Dec. ¶9.

²⁷ Factors the State raises as possible causes of such cracking include delamination or debonding (Response at 12-13), drying and curing (id. at 13), vehicle loads (id.), weather and other long-term wear (id. at 13-14), and soil chemistry (id. at 14); Bartlett Dec. ¶¶14-15, 18. As noted above, these issues were also raised in the State's opposition to the dismissal of Utah L.

raised in the State's opposition to the dismissal by summary disposition of Utah L, focusing on mechanisms that could theoretically cause cracks in soil cement, such curing, shrinkage, moisture, freeze/thaw and wet/dry cycles and the weight of the structures (i.e., the CTB and pads themselves) or equipment (e.g., the canister transport vehicle and the casks).

The State's attacks on the use of soil cement around the CTB closely parallel the State's contentions regarding the cask pads. For example, the State attacks Holtec's calculations for casks and pads as well as the calculations for the CTB based on an alleged failure to account for "tensile and bending stresses, and . . . cracked conditions, and separation of cement-treated soil" from the pads or the CTB. Request at 9-11 (pads); <u>id.</u> at 8-9 (CTB); <u>id.</u> at11-14 (both). Thus, the State raises no new issues regarding the behavior of soil cement in relation to the CTB. Instead, the State repeats the same claims it previously asserted in Utah EE with respect to the storage pads. Therefore, since the State lacks good cause for failing to raise these issues with respect to the storage pads when it was made aware of the use of soil cement in the storage pad designs, it also lacks good cause for raising these issues now with respect to the CTB.²⁸

3. Soil Properties

Proposed Utah QQ raises a number of issues relating to the properties of the underlying soils at the PFS site as they relate to the assumptions in the seismic design calculations. The State asserts that: (i) PFS may have overestimated the sliding resistance of the soil underlying the CTB and the storage pads (Request at 14-15); (ii) PFS's seismic design calculations may be affected by adhesion and water content in the underlying soil during the placement of soil cement (id. at 15); (iii) the subsurface soils have not been properly characterized (id. at 14); and (iv) the chemical properties of the soil may undermine the intended function of the soil cement (id.) The soils under the PFS site have not changed since the PFS license application was filed in 1997,

²⁸ The State's "good cause" argument for its belated raising of soil cement issues is that, previously, soil cement was used as a construction cost-saving measure, whereas now it is a structural design element. Request at 16. This is patently incorrect. Starting with License Amendment 9, soil cement has been credited in the sliding stability calculations as providing a factor of safety against sliding. See Exhibit A, item 1.

and these issues could have been raised then or, to the extent they refer to interactions between the site soils and the soil cement, when the latter was introduced into the design in 1999.²⁹ Likewise, the calculations that the State criticizes for not taking into account these effects have not changed in this regard since they were originally submitted.³⁰ Likewise, the chemical properties of the soil and their possible interaction with soil cement should have been raised when the use of soil cement was proposed.

The State also questions the validity of PFS's assumptions regarding the sliding resistance provided by the soil underlying the CTB and the storage pads. Request at 14-15. These assumptions are contained in calculations that were made available to the State in December 1999.³¹ As such, these issues could have been raised eighteen months ago.

B. THE STATE IMPROPERLY SEEKS TO RAISE CONTENTIONS THAT HAVE BEEN PREVIOUSLY REJECTED BY THE BOARD

As noted above, the claims that the State makes in Proposed Utah QQ could have been raised many months – or years – ago. This, however, is only half the story. The State also raises arguments that have already been rejected by the Board. The State's attacks on the seismic stability of the storage casks and the underlying pads were rejected by the Board more than three years ago when first raised by the State; ³² the State's challenges to the seismic analyses of the CTB are aimed at the same methodological aspects of the analyses as those rejected in relation to the casks and pads.³³

The State filed its EE Request") on December 23, 1997. Proposed Contention EE focused on the stability of the storage casks and the concrete pads underlying them. In it, the State asserted that the "Holtec analysis is inadequate to support the safety of the Applicant's proposed

²⁹ See Exhibit A, items 29-33. The State does not even attempt to make a "good cause" argument for its failure to raise before now issues relating to the site soil properties.

³⁰ See Exhibit A, items 32, 33.

³¹ SAR 2.5.2; Rev. 3; License Application Amendment No. 8. See Exhibit A, item 29.

³² LBP-98-7, 47 NRC at 207-09.

³³ The State's own witnesses admit this. See Bartlett ¶12; Mitchell ¶9.

design during a seismic event at the PFS facility.³³⁴ The State went on to allege a series of deficiencies in Holtec's seismic analysis of the casks and pads, including among others the following: (i) the assumption that the pad will remain rigid in an earthquake (item 3d); (ii) the use of one, rather than three time histories in the analysis (item 2); (iii) the failure to consider the potential interaction between adjacent pads (item 3b); (iv) the failure to consider the effects of the pads' embedment in the soil (item 3e); and (v) the failure to consider the impact of dynamic seismic loads on the structural integrity of the pads (item 5).³⁵ The Board rejected as untimely the State's request to introduce proposed Contention EE.³⁶ The State now tries to re-raise these very same issues as part of its proposed "new" contention.³⁷ Thus, Proposed Utah QQ alleges a variety of concerns regarding Holtec Report No. HI-2012640, *Multi Cask Response at the PFS ISFSI from 2000-yr Seismic Event*, Rev. 2,³⁸ that parallel those raised and rejected by the Board with respect to Utah EE.³⁹ Indeed, they are the same concerns raised in proposed Utah Contention EE, and are even worded in much the same manner.⁴⁰ The State does not provide any justification for its attempt to reintroduce these dismissed contentions.

³⁴ LBP 98-7, 47 NRC at 206.

³⁵ Id. at 206-07.

³⁶ <u>Id.</u> at 207-09. While not needing to rule on the merits of Contention EE because of its untimeliness, the Board noted that at least some of the issues raised in Contention EE (which are essentially the same as those raised in the Response with respect to the Holtec analysis) would have been inadmissible on the merits, had they been timely raised. <u>Id.</u> at 209, n. 25.

³⁷ Compare, e.g., LBP-98-7, 47 NRC at 206-07 with Request at 11-12. Likewise, large sections of the declarations of State witnesses in support of Proposed Utah QQ merely repeat their declarations in support of the State's opposition to summary dismissal of Utah L, especially in relation to cask and pad interaction and concerns over cask tipover analysis.

³⁸ This calculation contained the same exact methodology as Holtec Report No. HI-992277, Multi-Cask Seismic Research at the PFS ISFSI, From 2000 Year Seismic Event, Rev. 0, dated August 20, 1999.

³⁹ Proposed Utah QQ attacks this calculation's methodology for: (i) not adequately addressing the natural frequency of the cask-pad-soil-cement mass, (ii) assuming the storage pad to be rigid, (iii) not modeling the effects of inclined waves, (iv) using only one time history, (v) assuming that the casks will slide in a controlled manner (i.e., no cold bonding, pad deformation, etc.), (vi) not taking into account actual load paths (i.e., possible pad-to-pad interaction); and (vii) not modeling differences between the static and dynamic modulus of the soil cement under the pad. Request at 9-11.

⁴⁰ For example, in Proposed Contention EE the State asserted that "[a]nother unreasonable and oversimplified assumption by Holtec is that . . . [the] concrete pad will remain rigid" (EE Request at 8). This argument is raised in Proposed Utah QQ where Dr. Ostadan asserts as a problem with the calculation that "Holtec has assumed the pads to be rigid." Ostadan Dec. ¶116.) Similarly, the State attacks Holtec's non-linear analysis, which "is sensi-Footnote continued on next page

The State also seeks to raise with respect to the CTB some of the same arguments that were rejected in 1997 when raised in Proposed Contention EE. For example, the State claims that cracking and separation may occur around the foundations of the CTB due to seismic motions, which is the same argument raised in proposed Contention EE with respect to pad structural integrity.⁴¹ Likewise, Proposed Utah QQ challenges the assumption that the CTB mat is rigid, which is the same claim raised against the storage cask pads.⁴² More generally, the State contends that the calculations for the CTB contain "potentially unconservative assumptions" that create "unacceptable uncertainty in the estimation of the seismic loadings and their potential impacts to the foundations."⁴³ This is the same argument that was previously raised in Proposed Contention EE with regard to the storage casks and pads.⁴⁴

Thus, the State is clearly trying to raise issues that have already been rejected, without any justification for doing so. For that reason, Proposed Utah QQ should not be admitted.

C. THE STATE HAS MADE NO COMPELLING SHOWING ON THE OTHER LATE FILING FACTORS

"Lacking good cause for the one-month delay in filing [a late-filed contention], the State must make a <u>compelling showing</u> on the other four factors" in 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(a)(1). LBP-98-7, 47 NRC at 208 (emphasis added). The four remaining factors are: (ii) the availability of other means to protect the petitioner's interest, (iii) the extent to which petitioner will assist in the development of a sound record, (iv) the extent to which the petitioner's interest will be represented by other parties, and (v) the extent to which admitting the contention will broaden the issues or

tive to phasing of the input motion and thus multiple time histories should be used." (Id. \P 11d.) This is a condensed version of Contention EE's basis that "one cannot tell from the Holtec Seismic Report whether the interaction of the three independent components of the seismic time histories has been properly and conservatively evaluated" (EE Request at 7). Again, a number of the bases asserted in Proposed Utah QQ are also State's identical to those that the State raised in its opposition to the dismissal of Contention Utah L.

⁴¹ EE Request at 10-11.

⁴² Compare, e.g., proposed Contention EE item 3.d with Proposed Utah QQ at 10.

 $^{^{43}}$ Request at 8, 9.

⁴⁴ See LBP-98-7, 47 NRC at 206, item 3.

delay the proceeding. Of those factors, the third and fifth are to be accorded more weight than the second and fourth. Id.

Factor five weighs against admitting the new contention, whose introduction would clearly broaden and delay the proceeding. Proposed Utah QQ encompasses a broad range of issues relating to soil cement and other seismic design issues that are not currently being litigated in this proceeding. Thus, Proposed Utah QQ would undeniably broaden the issues and cause delays. Of particular concern, in terms of potential delays, is the State's assertion that the actual soil cement must be demonstrated and tested before a design basis can be adequately established,⁴⁵ as it is not only an incorrect statement of applicable licensing requirements, <u>see</u>, <u>e.g.</u>, <u>Private Fuel Storage</u>, <u>L.L.C.</u> (Independent Fuel Storage Installation), CLI-00-13, 52 NRC 23, 33-34 (2000), but a proposition which, should it prevail, would dramatically delay this proceeding.

With respect to the third factor in 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(a)(1), the admission of the contention would do little to develop a sound record at this time, because the import of many of the issues raised in Proposed Utah QQ is an attack on commitments made by PFS to take certain actions (particularly with respect to the use of soil cement) which are to be taken after licensing is completed. Thus, admission and litigation of Proposed Utah QQ would not develop a sound record on which a licensing decision can be made at this time.

With respect to factor two, a number of concerns raised by the State relate to potential issues that may (or may not) become problems after the licensing of PFS.⁴⁶ For such issues, there is an adequate means of protecting the state's interest via a 10 CFR §2.206 petition for Staff action against PFS. And, even if there are not other means to protect the State's interest on this issue, and even if the State's position is not represented by another party (factor four), these factors carry less weight than the others. Thus, a balancing of the four remaining factors also militates

⁴⁵ Request at 6-7, 9, 11-12.

⁴⁶ For example, the State raises the possibility that "[i]f care is not taken during construction, the use of heavy equipment could cause significant remolding of the subbase soils, and such remolding could markedly affect the shear strength of the subbase at the interface with the cement treated soil." Mitchell Dec. at ¶14.

against admission of Proposed Utah QQ. The State has clearly failed to make the compelling showing required to overcome its lack of good cause.

D. PORTIONS OF PROPOSED UTAH QQ FAIL TO MEET THE RE-QUIREMENTS OF AN ADMISSIBLE CONTENTION

Portions of Proposed Utah QQ fail to meet the requirements for an admissible contention. NRC regulations require, inter alia, sufficient information to show that a genuine dispute exists on a material issue of law or fact. See 10 C.F.R. § 2.714(b)(2). The State's proffered bases for a number of claims raised in Proposed Utah QQ do not meet the Commission's requirements for specificity and materiality. Failure to comply with the requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 2.714 is grounds for dismissing those portions of Proposed Utah QQ. Private Fuel Storage, L.L.C. (Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation), LBP-98-13, 47 N.R.C. 360, 365 (1998).

1. The State's Concerns Over Soil Cement Are Not Specific and Violate the Commission's Basic Licensing Principles

As discussed above, many of the concerns raised by the State in Proposed Utah QQ allege in various ways that the soil cement will not have the properties attributed to it in the seismic calculations. This allegation is insufficient to form the basis of a contention for two reasons: first, it is not definite enough to give rise to a material dispute of fact; and second, it seeks to controvert commitments made by PFS in its design calculations and the SAR with respect to the properties of the soil cement, without alleging that such commitments are unachievable.

It is well established that a contention is inadmissible if it fails to contain sufficient information to show that a genuine dispute exists with the Applicant on a material issue of law or fact. <u>See</u> 10 C.F.R. §2.714(b)(2)(iii); <u>Texas Electric Utilities Co.</u> (Comanche Peak Steam Electric Station, Unit 2), LBP-92-37, 36 NRC 370, 384 (1992). The State fails to meet this requirement in its proffered bases relating to the performance and properties of soil cement. The State merely asserts that the soil cement <u>may</u> be subject to a variety of factors that <u>could</u> cause it to not have the properties the design basis provides. For example, the State suggests that cracking in the soil cement, caused by any number of postulated conditions, might result in the soil cement

18

no longer behaving as a single unit in the seismic calculations, (see Request at 11-14), but the State fails to assert that such postulated conditions <u>will</u> occur. On the other hand, the State does not challenge the proposition that the soil cement, if placed in accordance with the design specifications, will have the properties set forth in the seismic calculations. The State merely offers theoretical mechanisms by which the soil cement could, over time, fail to meet the design requirements. Such hypothetical allegations do not constitute a defined disagreement with PFS that would give rise to a litigable issue of fact. <u>See, e.g.</u>, <u>Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Corp</u>. (Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power Station), ALAB-919, 30 NRC 29 (1989).

The State contends that PFS has not shown "the strength, survivability and durability properties of the cement treated soil." (Request at 13-14.) PFS has specified the properties that the soil cement will have in order to assure that the facility meets NRC specifications. The State asserts that PFS will not meet those specifications, even though they are licensing commitments set forth in the SAR.⁴⁷ In order to operate, PFS will have to meet all the commitments set forth in the SAR. To assert that PFS will not abide by these commitments is not an admissible contention. "In the absence of evidence to the contrary, [the Board] will not presume that an applicant or licensee, and those who work for them, will not adhere to applicable regulations or standards." <u>Private Fuel Storage, L.L.C.</u> (Independent Spent Fuel Storage Facility), LBP-00-35, 52 NRC 364, 405 (2000); <u>Private Fuel Storage, L.L.C.</u> (Independent Spent Fuel Storage Facility), CLI-01-09, 53 NRC (2001).

2. The State's Issues Regarding Soil Properties Are Speculative and Do Not Satisfy the Commission's Specificity Requirements

In order to be admissible, a contention must include a reasonably specific articulation of its rationale. See Carolina Power & Light Co. and North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power

⁴⁷ To the extent that the State and its witnesses are implying that the design developed by PFS for its soil cement cannot achieve the strengths cited in the calculations and the SAR, that assertion is contrary to well-established industry practice. See Exhibit B, which is an excerpt from ACI Report ACI-230.1R-90 (1997), which shows in Fig. 4.2 that strengths of 500 pounds per square inch – well in excess of those required by the PFS design – can be readily achieved, at low cement concentrations, for all types of soils.

Agency (Shearon Harris Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2), LBP-82-119A, 16 NRC 2069, 2070-71 (1982). The State's allegations as to soil properties fail to meet the specificity test. The State raises issues, for example, as to the potential adhesion between the soil cement and the underlying soils, and asserts that there may be changes in the water content of the soil. Request at 14-15. Yet, the State does not allege that these effects will occur, or provide a basis for expecting that they will. Instead, the State demands that PFS explain what steps will be taken in construction to avoid such changes, without even describing the mechanisms through which the changes may occur. See Bartlett Dec. ¶22.

Likewise, the State's assertion that the soil chemistry will undermine the properties of the soil cement should be rejected as inadmissible for the same reasons. The soil chemistry argument posits that "[s] alts and sulfates, <u>if present</u> [in the soil], <u>could</u> interfere with the cement hydration, and thus affect the strength and durability of the cement-treated soils." Request at 14, emphasis added. Thus, the State is claiming that because of the (hypothetical) existence of contaminants in the soil at the site with certain salts, the soil cement could be unable to exhibit the properties committed to in the SAR. For the reasons discussed above, this is an improper basis for a contention. See LBP-00-35, 364, supra.

V. CONCLUSIONS

For the foregoing reasons, PFS submits that Proposed Contention Utah QQ fails to raise a litigable contention and its admission should be denied.

Respectfully submitted, ranger Vie

Jay E. Silberg Ernest L. Blake, Jr. Paul A. Gaukler Matias F. Travieso-Diaz SHAW PITTMAN 2300 N Street, N.W. Washington, DC 20037 Counsel for Private Fuel Storage L.L.C.

Dated: May 30, 2001

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

Before the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board

In the Matter of)	
)	
PRIVATE FUEL STORAGE L.L.C.)	Docket No. 72-22
)	
(Private Fuel Storage Facility))	ASLBP No. 97-732-02-ISFSI

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that copies of Applicant's Response to State of Utah's Request for Admission of Late-Filed Contention Utah QQ were served on the persons listed below (unless otherwise noted) by electronic mail with conforming copies by U.S. mail, first class postage prepaid, this 30th day of May 2001.

G. Paul Bollwerk III, Esq., Chairman Administrative Judge Atomic Safety and Licensing Board Panel U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555-0001 e-mail: <u>GPB@nrc.gov</u>

Dr. Peter S. Lam Administrative Judge Atomic Safety and Licensing Board Panel U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555-0001 e-mail: PSL@nrc.gov Dr. Jerry R. Kline Administrative Judge Atomic Safety and Licensing Board Panel U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555-0001 e-mail: JRK2@nrc.gov; kjerry@erols.com

 * Office of Commission Appellate Adjudication
 U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555-0001 Office of the Secretary U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555-0001 Attention: Rulemakings and Adjudications Staff e-mail: hearingdocket@nrc.gov (Original and two copies)

Catherine L. Marco, Esq. Sherwin E. Turk, Esq. Office of the General Counsel Mail Stop O-15 B18 U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555 e-mail: pfscase@nrc.gov

John Paul Kennedy, Sr., Esq. Confederated Tribes of the Goshute Reservation and David Pete 1385 Yale Avenue Salt Lake City, Utah 84105 e-mail: john@kennedys.org

Diane Curran, Esq. Harmon, Curran, Spielberg & Eisenberg, L.L.P. 1726 M Street, N.W., Suite 600 Washington, D.C. 20036 e-mail:DCurran.HCSE@zzapp.org

Richard E. Condit, Esq. Land and Water Fund of the Rockies 2260 Baseline Road, Suite 200 Boulder, CO 80302

* By U.S. mail only

 * Adjudicatory File Atomic Safety and Licensing Board Panel U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555-0001

Denise Chancellor, Esq. Assistant Attorney General Utah Attorney General's Office 160 East 300 South, 5th Floor P.O. Box 140873 Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-0873 e-mail: <u>dchancel@state.UT.US</u>

Joro Walker, Esq. Land and Water Fund of the Rockies 2056 East 3300 South, Suite 1 Salt Lake City, UT 84109 e-mail: joro61@inconnect.com

Danny Quintana; Esq. Skull Valley Band of Goshute Indians Danny Quintana & Associates, P.C. 68 South Main Street, Suite 600 Salt Lake City, Utah 84101 e-mail: quintana@xmission.com

Samuel E. Shepley, Esq. Steadman & Shepley, LC 550 South 300 West Payson, Utah 84651-2808 e-mail: <u>Steadman&Shepley@usa.com</u>

Matin F. Transmitha

Matias F. Travieso-Diaz

Document #: 1121276 v.1

Exhibit A

. ÷

EXHIBIT A Summary of Claims Raised in Proposed Contention Utah QQ And Dates in Which Information Relating to Each Claim Was Submitted to NRC

Item	Claim Sponsor	Claim	PFS Licensing Document	Document Issue
	Oponsol	SEISMIC CALCULATIONS		Date
1	Bartlett ¶12, Ostadan ¶13	PFS's calculation methodology (Calculation Nos. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 4, ¹ and 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 7 ²) oversimplifies model for the stability analyses of the CTB and the storage pads	PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, License Application Amendment No. 9, dated February 2, 2000. In SAR Rev. 9, submitted in LA Amendment No. 9, a subsection was added to SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1 entitled "Sliding Stability of the Cask Storage Pads Founded on and Within Soil Cement". This section takes credit for the beneficial effects of soil cement beneath and around the cask storage pads. The soil cement provides increased resistance to sliding and overturning of the pads due to the design basis ground motion. SAR page 2.6-60 (Rev. 9) stated: "The analysis of sliding stability of the cask storage pads embedded in soil cement is included in Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-04 (SWEC, 2000b [This is Calculation Rev. 5, dated January 26, 2000]) This analysis demonstrates that the soil cement can be designed to provide sufficient resistance, considering only the passive resistance of the soil cement, to provide a factor of safety against sliding that exceeds the minimum required value of 1.1 for the maximum loadings due to the PSHA 2,000-yr return period earthquake. Based on these conservative assumptions, the soil cement would need to have an unconfined compressive strength, f _c , of ~250 psi to provide sufficient thrust from passive resistance alone to obtain a factor of safety against sliding that is greater than the minimum required value of 1.1."	2/2/00
2	Ostadan ¶11.a	Holtec pad and cask stability calculations fail to take into account frequency dependency of soil spring and damping	Holtec's updated cask stability analysis was filed with LA Amendment 13, in June 2000. SAR Section 8.2.1.2 referenced Holtec Report No. HI-992277, ³ Multi-Cask Response at the PFS ISFSI, From 2000 Year Seismic Event, Revision 0, dated August 20, 1999, this report had been submitted to the NRC by PFS letter, Donnell to NRC, PFSF Site Specific Cask Stability Analysis, dated August 27, 1999. Calculation No. 05996.02-SC-4, Rev. 1, was submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell, dated September 9, 1999.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc SC-4, Rev 1, submitted 9/9/99
3	Ostadan ¶11.b	Holtec's cask stability calculation incorrectly assumes that storage pads are rigid.	Holtec's cask stability analysis, including the assumption of rigid pads, was included in original PFSF License Application submittal in June 1997. SAR	

 ¹ Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 3, filed in June 2000, is included as Attachment 2 to Exhibit A. The June 2000 revision is included to show that all methodological assumptions the State challenges, as referenced throughout Exhibit A, were in place by June 2000 or earlier as noted in the above table.
 ² Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 6, filed in June 2000, is included as Attachment 1 to Exhibit A. The June 2000 revision is included to show that all methodological assumptions the State challenges, as referenced throughout Exhibit A, were in place by June 2000 or earlier as noted in the above table.
 ³ A redacted excerpt of Holtec Report HI-2012640, *Multi-Cask Seismic Response at the PSF ISFSI, From 2000 Year Seismic Event*, is included as Attachment 3 to Exhibit A. The portion of Report HI-2012640 clarifies that the methodological assumptions of Holtec's cask stability analyses have remain unchanged since the initial Holtec Report HI-971631, Rev. 0, dated May 19, 1997, including in Report HI-992277.

			Section 8.2.1.2, Rev. 0, referred to Holtec Report No. HI-971631, Multi- Cask Seismic Response at the PSF ISFSI, Rev. 0, dated May 19, 1997. This report made the assumption that the storage pads were rigid, as did all following Holtec cask seismic stability analyses (Attachment 3). Holtec	7/14/97
			report HI-971631 was submitted in PFS letter, Parkyn to the NRC, Submittal of Calculation Package, dated July 14, 1997.	
4	Ostadan ¶11.c	Holtec's cask stability calculations do not model the effects of non-vertically propagating seismic waves.	Holtec's modeling of seismic waves arriving at the pad foundations was specifically set forth in the SAR LA Amendment 13, June 2000. SAR Section 2, Rev. 13, referenced Geomatrix Consultants, Inc., 1999b, Development of design ground motions for the Private Fuel Storage Facility. This report also assessed the impact of the PFSF being "close to major faults". SAR Section 8.2.1.2, Rev 13, referenced Holtec Report No. HI-992277, Multi-Cask Response at the PFS ISFSI, From 2000 Year Seismic Event, Rev. 0, dated August 20, 1999. This report had been submitted to the NRC by PFS letter, Donnell to NRC, PFSF Site Specific Cask Stability Analysis, dated August 27, 1999.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00
5	Ostadan ¶11.d	Holtec's cask stability calculation fails to use multiple time histories.	Holtec's cask stability analysis and the modeling of seismic time history contained in LA Amendment 13, in June 2000 (or earlier). SAR Section 8.2.1.2, Rev. 13, referenced Holtec Report No. HI-992277, Multi-Cask Response at the PFS ISFSI, From 2000 Year Seismic Event, Rev. 0, dated August 20, 1999. This report had been submitted to the NRC by PFS letter, Donnell to NRC, PFSF Site Specific Cask Stability Analysis, dated August 27, 1999. This cask stability analysis referenced Geomatrix Calculation 05996.02-(PO18)-3, Rev. 0, Development of Time Histories for 2,000-Year Return Period Design, dated August 24, 1999. This calculation had been submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell, dated September 9, 1999.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00
62	Ostadan ¶11.e	Holtec's cask stability calculation assumes that casks will slide on the pad in a controlled manner, ignoring the potential for cold bonding of cask to pad, which would prevent the cask from sliding on the pad or moving smoothly in an earthquake	Holtec's cask stability analysis and its assumptions regarding the movement of casks on the storage pad have been consistent since the original PFSF License Application submittal in June 1997. SAR Section 8.2.1.2, Rev. 0, referred to Holtec Report No. HI-971631, Multi-Cask Seismic Response at the PSF ISFSI, Revision 0, dated May 19, 1997. This report made the same assumptions regarding movement of the casks on a pad during a seismic event as the Holtec report currently referenced by SAR Section 8.2.1.2 (Holtec Report HI-2012640) as did all Holtec cask seismic stability analyses. Holtec report HI-971631 was submitted in PFS letter, Parkyn to the NRC, Submittal of Calculation Package, dated July 14, 1997.	7/14/97
7	Ostadan ¶12.a	SWEC Calculation No. 05996.02-SC-5, Rev. 2, seismic Analysis of Canister Transfer Building, erroneously assumes that the mat of the CTB is rigid.	LA Amendment 6 incorporated the assumption that the CTB mat would be rigid. This LA Amendment was submitted in PFS letter, Parkyn to the NRC, License Application Amendment No. 6, dated September 8, 1999. SAR page 4.7-8c (Rev 6) stated the following "The impedance functions were developed, using the Stone & Webster computer program REFUND (Reference 41), by considering the foundation mat as a rigid structure	LA Amendment 6 submitted 9/8/99; Calcs. SC-4, Rev 1, and SC-5, Rev 1, submitted

			located at the surface of the soil profile. These assumptions are appropriate since the building foundation is a five-foot thick concrete mat located at grade. Development of the impedance functions is documented in calculation SC-4 (Reference 42) The zero period accelerations (ZPA) at each point of the lumped mass model and response spectra at El. 170'-0", which is the bridge crane support location are presented in the dynamic analysis described in calculation SC-5 (Reference 44)." References 42 and 44 of SAR Rev. 6 were Calculations SC-4, Rev. 1, and SC-5, Rev. 1, respectively. These calculations were both submitted by PFS letter from J. Donnell to the NRC, dated September 9, 1999. Treatment of the foundation mat as a rigid structure for seismic analysis purposes is in accordance with Section 3.3.1.6 of ASCE-4, 1998.	9/9/99
8	Ostadan ¶12.b	Calculation No. 05996.02-SC-5, Rev. 2, and the supporting calculation (Calculation No. 05996.02-SC-4, Rev. 2, <i>Development of Soil</i> <i>Impedance Functions for Canister Transfer</i> <i>Building</i> , fail to consider the effect of soil cement around CTB on impedance functions, and the kinematic motion of the foundation.	Soil cement was first introduced around the Canister Transfer Building base mat in LA Amendment 22, dated March 30, 2001. Soil cement was introduced into the design of the storage pads in LA Amendment 8 in a letter dated December 16, 1999.	LA Amendment 22, dated 3/30/01; LA Amendment 8, dated 12/16/99.
9	Ostadan ¶12.c	Calculation Nos. 05996.02-SC-4 and 05996.02-SC-5 fail to model the effect of inclined seismic waves on CTB design	LA Amendment 6 referenced Calculation Nos. 05996.02-SC-4, Rev. 1, and 05996.02-SC-5, Rev. 1. The seismic analysis of the CTB did not consider the effect of inclined seismic waves. LA Amendment 6 was submitted in PFS letter, Parkyn to the NRC, LA Amendment 6, dated September 8, 1999. Calculation Nos. SC-4, Rev. 1, and SC-5, Rev. 1, were both submitted by PFS letter from J. Donnell to the NRC, dated September 9, 1999.	LA Amendment 6 submitted 9/8/99; Calcs. SC-4, Rev 1, and SC-5, Rev 1, submitted 9/9/99
10	Ostadan ¶14	Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 7 on the stability analysis of the pads fails to consider the natural frequency of the cask- pad-soil cement system, thus underestimating the seismic loads.	The storage pad stability analysis was specifically referenced in LA Amendment 13, in June 2000. SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1, Rev. 13, references Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 6, in discussions of storage pad stability analyses. This calculation was submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell dated June 19, 2000, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter #34 Information".	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
11	Ostadan ¶14	Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 7 fails to consider actual load path on pads from seismic loading and potential effect of pad-to- pad interaction.	Same as above.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
12	Mitchell ¶9	Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 7 treats CTB and the soil-cement as a rigid block, whereas there are expected to be differences in inertial loadings from one part of the building to another.	This contention focuses on the behavior of the CTB and pad foundations and surrounding soil cement. Stone & Webster Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 6, Stability Analyses of Storage Pad, was referenced in SAR Revision 13 (Submitted to the NRC by PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, License Application Amendment No. 13, dated June 23, 2000). The assumptions	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted

			for sliding of a rigid foundation within the cement-treated soil made in Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-04 have not changed between Rev. 6 and Rev. 7 of this calculation.	6/19/00
13	Mitchell ¶10	Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Revision 4 on stability analysis of the CTB incorrectly treats the building as rigid body in overturning analyses.	SAR Section 2.6.1.12.2, "Stability and Settlement Analyses—Canister Transfer Building", Rev. 13 (page 2.6-76), referenced Calculation 05996.02- G(B)-13, Rev. 3, Stability Analyses of the Canister Transfer Building Supported on a Mat Foundation, in regards to overturning stability of the CTB. This calculation was submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell dated June 19, 2000, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter #34 Information". Calculation No. 059996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 3 also assumed that the foundation mat of the CTB was rigid.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-13, Rev. 3 submitted 6/19/00
14	Ostadan ¶11.f	Holtec's drop/tipover analysis of the casks models only the static modulus of the soil cement, not the dynamic modulus, failing to take into account possible changes in bearing pressure acting on the soil/cement.	SAR Section 8.2.6.2, Rev. 21, references Holtec Report HI-2012653, which analyzes storage cask tipover and drop events onto a storage pad taking into account the soil cement beneath the pad. Soil cement was introduced into the design of the storage pads in LA Amendment 8 in a letter dated December 16, 1999.	LA Amendment 22, dated 3/30/01; LA Amendment 8, dated December 16, 1999.
15	Bartlett ¶9, Mitchell ¶13	SOIL CEMENT Failure to conduct site specific soil cement tests to determine its properties, reaction with native soils, constructability, and long term performance.	PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, LA Amendment 8, dated December 16, 1999, introduced the use of soil cement in the storage pad emplacement area to enhance pad stability under seismic conditions. SAR page 2.6-84 (Rev. 8) stated: "The required engineering characteristics of the soil cement can be easily engineered during detailed design to meet the necessary strength requirements." See also SAR page 2.6-26 (Rev. 8). SAR page 2.6-91 (Rev. 8) stated: "Procedures required for placement and treatment of the soil cement, lift surfaces, and foundation contact will be established in accordance with the recommendations of ACI (1998) during the mix design and testing process. Specific construction techniques and field quality control requirements will be identified in the construction specifications developed by PFS during this detailed design phase of the project."	LA Amendment 8, dated 12/16/99.
16	Bartlett ¶10	No precedent has been demonstrated for the use of soil cement to resist sliding in nuclear facilities.	PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, LA Amendment 8, dated December 16, 1999. SAR pages 2.6-85 and 86 (Rev. 8) stated: "Soil cement has been used extensively in the United States and around the world since the 1940's. It was first used in the United States in 1915 for constructing roads. It also has been used at nuclear power plants in the United States and in South Africa. The largest soil-cement project worldwide involved construction of soil-cement slope protection for a 7,000-acre cooling-water reservoir at the South Texas Nuclear Power Plant near Houston, TX. Soil cement also was used to replace an ~18-ft thick layer of potentially liquefiable sandy soils under the foundations of two 900-MW nuclear power plants in Koeberg, South Africa (Dupas and Pecker, 1979)."	LA Amendment 8, dated 12/16/99.
17	Bartlett ¶11	There has been a failure to demonstrate "proof of concept," for soil cement and to	Soil cement was introduced in Revision 8 of the SAR (PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, LA Amendment 8, dated December 16, 1999). SAR page 2.6-26d	

18	Bartlett ¶13	perform preliminary designs capable of independent review, verification and checking. Calculations No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 4 and No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 7 on the dynamic stability of the CTB improperly model the building's concrete foundation and the soil cement as rigid bodies, failing to take into account that earthquake stresses may crack the soil cement buttress and give rise to preferential slip planes for passive failure wedges.	 (Rev. 8) stated: "The engineering characteristics of the soil-cement can be easily engineered during detailed design to meet the necessary strength requirements." SAR page 2.6-84 (Rev. 8) stated: "The required engineering characteristics of the soil cement can be easily engineered during detailed design to meet the necessary strength requirements." This contention focuses on the behavior of the soil cement, which buttresses the pads and CTB, increasing their sliding stability under seismic conditions. Stone & Webster Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 6, Stability Analyses of Storage Pad, was referenced in SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1, Stability and Settlement Analyses-Cask Storage Pads, Revision 13 (Submitted to the NRC by PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, LA Amendment 13, dated June 23, 2000). This calculation was submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell dated June 19, 2000, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter #34 Information". 	LA Amendment 8, dated 12/16/99. LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
19	Bartlett ¶14	Soil cement may crack through a number of mechanisms.	At least by LA Amendment 13, soil cement was incorporated into the design of the facility and included in Calculation No. 05996.02 G(B)-04 for storage pad stability.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
20	Bartlett ¶15	PFS has failed to consider the bending, torsional and beam-shear and compressional stresses on soil cement due to the variety of complex waveforms associated with a seismic event will have on the CTB and pad foundations and underlying soil.	The assumptions regarding the seismic event have remained unchanged since at least License Amendment 13 and revision 6 of Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, which addressed storage pad stability. Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13 employs the same methodology for modeling seismic events.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
21	Bartlett ¶16	PFS has failed to consider the high stress and strain concentrations at the soil cement/CTB foundation interface during seismic events.	Calculation Nos. 05996.02-G(B)-04 and 05996.02-G(B)-13 have always treated the surface areas underlying the storage pads and the CTB as single units. This treatment remained unchanged with the incorporation of soil cement as part of License Amendment 13 and Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 6 for storage pad stability.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
22	Bartlett ¶17	PFS has failed to consider the potential debonding of soil cement along lift boundaries.	Same as above. In addition, SAR Section 2.6.4.11, submitted as part of LA Amendment 13, discussed techniques to improve bonding between lifts.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
23	Bartlett ¶¶18-20	PFS has failed to take into account the potential cracking of the soil cement due to: drying and curing; frost penetration and expansion cracking and vehicle loading cracking.	Calculation Nos. 05996.02-G(B)-04 and 05996.02-G(B)-13 have always treated the entire surface area underlying the storage pads and the CTB as a single unit. This included the incorporation of soil cement as part of LA Amendment 13 and revision 6 of Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04 for storage pad stability.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00

24	Bartlett ¶21	PFS has failed to study the long term performance of soil cement and its ability to resist earthquake forces for a 40-year service period.	LA Amendment 13 incorporated the use of soil cement into the seismic calculations.	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
25	Bartlett ¶22	The proposed use of a CTB shear key to resist sliding of the building will not be effective.	The shear key around the perimeter of the CTB foundation mat was first incorporated into the CTB design and discussed in SAR Sections 2.6.1.11.2 and 2.6.1.12.2, Rev. 13, (Submitted to the NRC by PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, License Application Amendment No. 13, dated June 23, 2000). SAR Section 2.6.1.12.2 (page 2.6-78, Rev. 13) stated "A 1-ft deep key will be constructed around the perimeter of the mat to ensure that the full shear strength of the clayey soils is engaged to resist sliding of the structure due to loads from the design basis ground motion." Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 3, incorporated the effects of this shear key. Revision 3 of Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13 was submitted by PFS letter, J. Donnell to the NRC, dated June 19, 2000, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter #34 Information". Page 4 of this Calculation, Rev. 3, stated: "Added a 1 -ft deep key around the perimeter of the Canister Transfer Building mat to permit use of the cohesive strength of the in situ silty clay/clayey silt in resisting sliding due to loads from the design basis ground motion."	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
26	Ostadan ¶13	Reliance on passive pressure from soil cement to resist seismic loads in Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 4 is potentially wrong due to possible settlement and cracking.	Argument attacks methodology established for use with storage pad and soil cement in LA Amendment 13. SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1, Rev. 13, "Stability and Settlement Analyses – Cask Storage Pads", stated "the actual bearing pressire for this case was about 1.9 ksf, and the estimated total settlement of the pad was determined to be about 3.3 inches."	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
27	Mitchell ¶11	Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 7 fails to calculate bending stresses on soil cement due to static loading, freeze-thaw and wet dry, shrinkage and dynamic loading and their consequences.	Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Rev. 6, Stability Analyses of Storage Pad, was referenced in SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1, Stability and Settlement Analyses-Cask Storage Pads, Rev. 13 (Submitted to the NRC by PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, License Application Amendment No. 13, dated June 23, 2000). This calculation was submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell dated June 19, 2000, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter #34 Information".	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted 6/19/00
28		Failure to take into account the potential for differential settlement between foundations and soil cement.	The specific settlement assumptions of PFS calculations have been available since LA Amendment 13, in June 2000. SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1, Rev. 13, "Stability and Settlement Analyses—Cask Storage Pads", stated "The actual bearing pressure for this case was about 1.9 ksf, and the estimated total settlement of the pad was determined to be about 3.3 inches."	LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00
	<u> </u>			
20	Bartlett	Seismic calculations fail to accurately model	PES Latter Parkup to NPC (Director Office of NMCC) License Application	
	¶23	the nature of subsurface soils after the	Amendment No. 3, dated May 19, 1999, discussed the characteristics of	3. submitted

30	Mitchell ¶12	addition of soil cement, such that a soft layer of soil is enclosed between two much stiffer layers, and the stress and strain concentrations imparted on the soft soil layer. The amounts of cement that PFS plans to use may not be sufficient to produce a true soil cement.	the soil foundation. SAR Section 2.5.2, Rev. 3, December 16, 1999, incorporated updated soil data. Section 2.5.2, Rev. 3 states, "based on boring data obtained at the site, the uppermost soil layer consists of interbedded silt, silty clay, and clayey silt with a thickness of approximately 30 ft. This layer is underlain by very dense fine sand and silt that extends to a depth of approximately 45 ft." LA Amendment 8 also incorporated the use of soil cement as the stiff, topmost layer. Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-04, Revision 6, Stability Analyses of Storage Pad, was referenced in SAR Section 2.6.1.12.1, Stability and Settlement Analyses-Cask Storage Pads, Revision 13 (Submitted to the NRC by PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, LA Amendment 13, dated June 23, 2000). This calculation was submitted to the NRC by PFS letter from J. Donnell dated	May 19, 1999 12/16/99 LA Amendment 13 submitted 6/23/00; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 6 submitted
	·		June 19, 2000, "Submittal of Commitment Resolution Letter #34 Information".	6/19/00
31	Mitchell ¶14	PFS has failed to account for potential effect of change in water content below pads over time from the use of soil cement and the effect of the use of heavy placement equipment on remolding of the subbase soils, affecting the shear strength of the subbase at the interface with the cement treated soil.	Soil cement's use was introduced in Revision 8 of the PFS SAR (PFS Letter, Parkyn to NRC, License Application Amendment No. 8, dated December 16, 1999). That License Amendment indicated that soil cement would be used under and around the storage pads.	12/16/99
32	Bartlett ¶24	PFS has failed to take into account possible partial reduction in undrained shear strength – due to pore pressure generation during earthquake cycling.	The original SAR filed as part of the initial PFS License Application and the supporting calculations used undrained shear strength. This assumption was further clarified by LA Amendment 6 (submitted in PFS letter, Parkyn to the NRC, "License Application Amendment No. 6", dated September 8, 1999). This amendment referenced Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 4, for storage pad stability analyses, and Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 1, for CTB stability analyses. Both these calculation revisions were submitted in PFS letter, John Donnell to the NRC, "Calculation Package Submittal, dated September 9, 1999.	Initial License Application; LA Amendment 6 submitted 9/8/99; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 4, and Calc G(B)- 13, Rev. 1, both submitted 9/9/99
33	Bartlett ¶25	PFS fails to consider the effect of potential moisture content changes in the foundation soils with time and their potential effect on undrained shear strength used in design of the foundation systems.	The original SAR and supporting calculations did not consider change sin moisture content. For example, 2.6.1.11.1, 2.6.1.11.2, et seq., which would be the place where such effects would be discussed, do not discuss the effect of water content changes in discussing soil strength. This assumption was further clarified by LA Amendment 6 (submitted in PFS letter, Parkyn to the NRC, "License Application Amendment No. 6", dated September 8, 1999). This amendment referenced Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04, Rev. 4, for storage pad stability analyses, and Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Rev. 1, for CTB stability analyses. Both these calculation revisions were submitted in PFS letter, John Donnell to the NRC, "Calculation Package Submittal, dated September 9, 1999.	Initial License Application; LA Amendment 6 submitted 9/8/99; Calc G(B)-04, Rev. 4, and Calc G(B)- 13, Rev. 1, both submitted 9/9/99
	1			1

Attachments to Exhibit A

.

Exhibit A

Attachment 1

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

CALCULATION TITLE PAGE

*SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE SIDE

A 5010.64 (FRONT)	• •						
CLIENT & PROJECT	STORAGE . LLC	- PRIVATE	FUEL STORAG	E FACILITY	PAGE 1 OF	87+1 1TTACH	A, IB, 5A
CALCULATION TIT	CALCULATION TITLE (Indicative of the Objective):					TEGORY	1
STABILITY	ANALYSES OF	Storage	Pads		I - NUC SAF	CLEAR ETY RE	
							HER
	CALCULATION IDE	INTIFICATION	NUMBER				
J. O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CURREN CALC. NO	Г ОР). ТАЗ	TIONAL SK CODE	OP WORK F	TIONAL	E NO.
05996.01	G(B)	04			L. L.	19	
* APPROVALS - SIG	NATURE & DATE			REV. NO.	SUPERSEDES	CONFIR	MATION
PREPARER(S)/DATE	(S) REVIEWER(S)/DAT	TE (S) INDEPE REVIEW	NDENT ER(S)/DATE(S) CALC NO.	* CALC. NO. OR REV. NO.	*REQU YES	NO
TESPONSELLER	PAUL J. TRUDE	EAU NUO:	T. GEORGE	0			
2.18-97	2-24-97		in an				
Von Aparalla	POT. 1.	0	-61-77				
- and the second	y bush f. marc	Mar Mar	F. Xamer		1		
PJTRUDEAU	TE SEDAKELI = R	, I san	in proper				
2-24-97	2-24-97		0				
Paul J. Dudes	n Jom Sponseller						
T.E. SPONSELLE	R PALLJ. TRUD	Esu Alan	F Brown	1	Ò		
4/30/97	4/30/97	5/	8/97				
Jom sponselle	2 Paul Jone	lean ala	B				
PAUL J. TRUDEA	W TECOMEN						
4/30/97	4/20/04	د.					1 :
Paul F. Lunches	un I om sponsell	les					
PAUL J. TRUDEA	W NURI T. GA	RGB Alan	F Brown	2	l		~
6/20/97	6/20/97		60/97		TJEN ON	5 IA	A
Baul F. Unde	Mary Score	sa alan	- fram by			F .	1
L		DISTRIE	BUTION *	7	L	L	<u>۹ میں</u>
GROUP	NAME & LOCATI	ON SENT	GROUP	> N	AME & LOCA	TION I	COPY SENT
RECORDS MGT. Files (or fire file if none)	SWEC-DENVER	ORIG					
	SWEC-BOSTON	×		ļ		1	
	SWEC-DENVER FIRE FILE	- X			0-	084	4 -
	, 					•	
I	I	<u> i </u>	L	. i			

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

. . .

· · · · -----

CALCULATION TITLE PAGE

*SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE SIDE

▲ 5010.64 (FRONT)								
PRIVATE FUEL	T Frankle LLC-PR	IVATE FUEL	STOR	RAGE FA	CUN	PAGE AOF	87	
CALCULATION TITLE (Indicative of the Objective):					QA CA	TEGORY	· (
STABILITY	ANALYSES OF	STORAGE	; PA	ds		I-NU	CLEAR	
						SAF	ETY RE	ELATED
							ш <u>о</u>	THER
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	CALCULATION IDE	ENTIFICATION	NUMB	ER				
J. O. OR W. O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CURRENT CALC. NO).	OPT TASI	CODE	OP WORK F	TIONAL PACKAG	E NO.
05996.01	G(B)	04-						
* APPROVALS - SIG	SNATURE & DATE				REV. NO.	SUPERSEDES	CONFIR	MATION
PREPARER(S)/DATE	(S) REVIEWER(S)/DAT	TE (S) INDEPE	NDEN1 Er(s),	DATE(S)	OR NEW CALC NO.	* CALC. NO. OR REV. NO.	*REQU YES	IRED (V) NO
C(SNTINUED	FROM	1 1	PAGE	1-			
PAUL J. TRUDGS	U LPSINGH	LPS	SINC	ાન	3	2		
6/27/97	H.A.	7 4	Å	4				
Poul J. Lundes	en 7-1-97	7-	1-47	1				
À L ALANGUE	S. Y BOAK	YE T. U	. cl	lang	4	3	~	·
DL 72043143	9/3/99	9	la k	ra r	·			
72 Acysius	Seyfoolig	e Tho	nao U	diana	<u>۶</u>			
S.Y BOAK	YE DLALOYSIU	5 74	1. C	kang				
847 0369	1) Thaloysing		7/3/	99				
		JKM.	aur	Chav	Ê .			
266	Price 3 FOR	TDENTIFI	CA7	ton o	e prepa	RED (REVIE	med (<u>3</u> Y
PJTRUDEAU	SYBOAKYE	. Tho	was	1. Chan	5	4		
1-26-2000	Tucfor		- 10-	- Ange	e.			
Hank Jude	and SY Book	pe non	0					
8.	1-26-2000	>		1				
	je zi	2						
· .		DISTRIB	UTIC	N *				
GROUP	I NAME & LOCATIO	DN SENT		GROUP		AME & LOCA	TION	COPY SENT
RECORDS MGT. FILES (OR FIRE FILE IF NONE)	SWEC-DENVER	ORIG				<i>,</i>		
	SWEC-BOSTON	i ×			i I			
	SWEC-DENVER	×			1	Δ	0.9.4	5-
	I FIRE FILE				i	-4	17 3 4	v
	1						i	
							1	

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

CALCULATION TITLE PAGE

*SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE SIDE

	A 5010.64 (FRONT)					DAGE 100E		
	PRIMATE FUEL	STORAGE LLC -	PRIVATE F	VEL STORAN	E FACILITY	PAGE INUF		
	CALCULATION TIT	LE (Indicative of the Obj	ective):			QA CA	TEGORY	()
	STABULTY	ANALYSES	of Stor.	ace Pads		PI-NUC SAF	LEAR ETY RE	LATED
							I 🗆	
							στ	HER
		CALCULATION IDE	CURREN	N NUMBER	TIONAL	- OP	TIONAL	
	J. O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALC.N	0. TA	SK CODE	WORK F	ACKAGI	E NO.
	05996.02	G(B)	04					
	* APPROVALS - SIG	NATURE & DATE			REV. NO.	SUPERSEDES	CONFIR	MATION
	PREPARER (S)/DATE	(S) REVIEWER(S)/DAT	TE (S) INDEPE REVIEN	NDENT Ver(s)/date(s	OR NEW 3) CALC NO.	* CALC. NO. OR REV. NO.	*REQU YES	NO
	PAUL J. TRUDG	AU THOMAS Y. CH	ANG THOM	ASY. CHANG	5 6	5		
	6-16-00	6-16-00	6	-16-00				
	Paul X De Job	n Thomas 4.C	barg Tha	neo y.Chai	g			
	- Com		U L		4			1
								1
				•				
.*								
					· ·	<u> </u>		
			DISTRI	BUTION *		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	GROUP	I NAME & LOCATI I	ON SENT	GROU		NAME & LOCA		COPY SENT (V)
	RECORDS MGT.	1			1		1	
	FILES (OR FIRE	5 	1		1		1	
		1	i		l		1	
		1	ļ		1		1 	
<i>`</i>		1					1	
		1					ĺ	
		1	Ì		1		1	
					ļ			
	1	1	i	1	i i			

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

.....

5010.65	0,11		•	
CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				
j.o. or w.o. no. 05996.02	DIVISION & GROUP G(B)	CALCULATION NO. 04 - 6	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE Z
TABLE OF CONTENTS				
TABLE OF CONTENTS				2
RECORD OF REVISIONS 4, 5,				4, 5, & 5A
OBJECTIVE OF CALCULATION				6
ASSUMPTIONS/DATA				6
GEOTECHNICAL PROPERTIES				7
METHOD OF ANALYSIS				8
DESCRIPTION OF LOAD CASES				8
OVERTURNING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS				9
SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS				10
Sliding Stability of the Pads Constructed On and Within Soil Cement Sliding Stability of the Pads Constructed Directly on Silty Clay (Clayer Silt				11
Active Earth Pressure				15
Dynamic Earth Pressure				15
Weights				17
Cask Earthquake Loadings				17
Foundation Pad Earthquake Loadings				17
Case III: 100% N-S, -100% Vertical, 0% E-W				18
Case IV: 100% N-S, 100% Vertical, 0% E-W Earthquake Forces Act Downw Evaluation of Sliding on Deep Slip Surface Beneath Pads				nward 18
Estimation of Horizontal Displacement using Newmark's Method				20
Maximum Ground Motions				21
Load Cases				22
Summary of Horizontal Displacements Calculated Based on Newmark's Meth				22 Tethod 24
ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS				26
Bearing Capacity Factors				26
Shape Factors (for L>B)				27
Depth Factors (for $\frac{D_r}{B} \le 1$)				27
Inclination Factors				27 .
Static Bearing Capacity of the Cask Storage Pads				27
Dynamic Bearing Capacity of the Cask Storage Pads				31
bused on Inerval Porces Based on Maximum Cask Dunamic Forces from the SSI Analysis				31 .
CONCLUSIONS				72
OVERTURNING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS				72
SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS				72
Allowable Bearing Capacity of the Cask Storage Pads				74
Static Bearing Capacity of the Cask Storage Pads				74
Dynamic Bea	aring Capacity of the	Cask Storage Pads		74
REFERENCES:				76
······································	CALCULATION IDENT	FIFICATION NUMBER		
--	--	---	--------------------------------------	----------
J.O. OR W.O. NO. 05996.02	DIVISION & GROUP G(B)	CALCULATION NO. 04 - 6	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	page 3
TABLES				78
FIGURES				82
ATTACHMENT A	Telcon 6-19-97 SMN	I to PJT Dynamic B	learing Capacity of Pad	1 page
ATTACHMENT B	Pages from Calc 059 maximum cask dyna	996.02-G(PO17)-2, I amic loads.	Rev 1 providing	11 pages
ATTACHMENT C	Pages from Calc 059 for undrained streng analyses.	996.02-G(B)-05-2 pi th used for dynami	roviding basis c bearing capacity	3 pages

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER		
J.O. OR W.O. NO. 05996 02	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO. 04 - 6	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 4
	RECO	ORD OF REVISIO	DNS	
REVISION 0				
Original Issue		<u> </u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
REVISION 1				
Revision 1 was pr	repared to incorporat	e the following:		
Revised cash	weights and dimens	sions		
 Revised eart 	hquake accelerations	\$		
	_			

REVISION 2

5010.65

To add determination of dynamic bearing capacity of the pad for the loads and loading cases being analyzed by the pad designer. These include the 2-cask, 4-cask, and 8-cask cases. See Attachment A for background information, as well as bearing pressures for the 2-cask loading.

REVISION 3

The bearing pressures and the horizontal forces due to the design earthquake for the 2cask case that are described in Attachment A are superseded by those included in Attachment B. Revision 3 also adds the calculation of the dynamic bearing capacity of the pad for the 4-cask and 8-cask cases and revises the cask weight to 356.5 K, which is based on Holtec HI-Storm Overpack with loaded MPC-32 (heaviest assembly weight shown on Table 3.2.1 of HI-Storm TSAR, Report HI-951312 Rev. 1 – p. C3, Calculation 05996.01-G(B)-05, Rev 0).

REVISION 4

Updated section on seismic sliding resistance of pads (pp 11-14F) using revised ground accelerations associated with the 2,000-yr return period design basis ground motion (horizontal = 0.528 g; vertical = 0.533 g) and revised soil parameters (c = 1,220 psf; ϕ = 24.9°, based on direct shear tests that are included in Attachments 7 and 8 of Appendix 2A of the SAR.). The horizontal driving forces used in this analysis (EQhc and EQhp) are based on the higher ground accelerations associated with the deterministic design basis ground motion (0.67g horizontal and 0.69g vertical). These forces were not revised for the lower ground accelerations associated with the 2,000-yr return period design basis ground motion (0.528g horizontal and 0.533g vertical) and, thus, this calculation will require confirmation at a later date.

Added a section on sliding resistance along a deeper slip plane (i.e., on cohesionless soils) beneath the pads.

Updated section on dynamic bearing capacity of pad for 8-cask case (pp 38-46). Inserted pp 46A and 46B. This case was examined because it previously yielded the lowest q_{all}

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER		F
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 5
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

among the three loading cases (i.e., 2-cask, 4-cask, and 8-cask). The updated section shows a calculation of q_{all} based on revised soil parameters (c and ϕ). Note: this analysis will require confirmation and may be updated using revised vertical soil bearing pressures and horizontal shear forces, based on the lower ground accelerations associated with the 2,000-yr return period design basis ground motion (0.528g horizontal, and 0.533g vertical).

Modified/updated conclusions.

NOTE: SYBoakye prepared/DLAloysius reviewed pp 14 through 14F.

Remaining pages prepared by DLAloysius and reviewed by SYBoakye.

REVISION 5

5010.65

Major re-write of the calculation.

- 1. Renumbered pages and figures to make the calculation easier to follow.
- 2. Incorporated dynamic loads due to revised design basis ground motion (PSHA 2,000-yr return period earthquake), as determined in CEC Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2, Rev 0, and removed "Requires Confirmation".
- 3. Added overturning analysis.
- 4. Added analysis of sliding stability of cask storage pads founded on and within soil cement.
- 5. Revised dynamic bearing capacity analyses to utilize only total-stress strength parameters because these partially saturated soils will not have time to drain fully during the rapid cycling associated with the design basis ground motion. See Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-05-1 (SWEC, 2000a) for additional details.
- 6. Added reference to foundation profiles through pad emplacement area presented in SAR Figures 2.6-5, Sheets 1 through 14.
- 7. Changed "Load Combinations" to "Load Cases" and defined these cases to be consistent throughout the various stability analyses included herein. These are the same cases as are used in the stability analyses of the Canister Transfer Building, Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-13-2 (SWEC, 2000b).
- 8. Revised conclusions to reflect results of these changes.

5010	0.65
------	------

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE DA
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

REVISION 6

- 1. Added "References" section.
- 2. Revised shear strength used in the sliding stability analyses of the soil cement/silty clay interface to be the strength measured in the direct shear tests performed on samples obtained from depths of ~5.8 ft in the pad emplacement area. The shear strength equaled that measured for stresses corresponding to the vertical stresses at the bottom of the fully loaded cask storage pads.
- 3. Removed static and dynamic bearing capacity analyses based on total-stress strengths and added dynamic bearing capacity analyses based on $c_u = 2.2$ ksf.
- 4. Revised method of calculating the inclination factor in the bearing capacity analyses to that presented by Vesic in Chapter 3 of Winterkorn and Fang (1975). Vesic's method expands upon the theory developed by Hansen for plane strain analyses of footings with inclined loads. Vesic's method permits a more rigorous analysis of inclined loads acting in two directions on rectangular footings, which more closely represents the conditions applicable for the cask storage pads.

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				D 107 C
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 6
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

OBJECTIVE OF CALCULATION

Evaluate the static & seismic stability of the cask storage pad foundations at the proposed site, including overturning, sliding, and bearing capacity for static loads & for dynamic loads due to the design basis ground motion (PSHA 2,000-yr return period earthquake).

ASSUMPTIONS/DATA

5010.65

The arrangement of the cask storage pads is shown on SWEC Drawing 0599601-EY-2-B. The spacing of the pads is such that each N-S row of pads may be treated as one long strip footing with $B/L \sim 0 \& B=30$ ft for the bearing capacity analyses.

The E-W spacing of the pads is great enough that adjacent pads will not significantly impact the bearing capacity of one another, as shown on Figure 1, "Foundation Plan & Profile."

The generalized soil profile, presented in Figure 1, indicates the soil profile consists of ~30 ft of silty clay/clayey silt with some sandy silt (Layer 1), overlying ~30 ft of very dense fine sand (Layer 2), overlying extremely dense silt (N \geq 100 blows/ft, Layer 3). SAR Figures 2.6-5 (Sheets 1 through 14 present foundation profiles showing the relationship of the cask storage pads with respect to the underlying soils. These profiles, located as shown in SAR Figure 2.6-19, provide more detailed stratigraphic information, especially within the upper ~30-ft thick layer at the site.

Figure 1 also illustrates the coordinate system used in these analyses. Note, the X-direction is N-S, the Y-direction is vertical, and the Z-direction is E-W. This is the same coordinate system that is used in the stability analyses of the Canister Transfer Building (Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-13-2, SWEC, 2000b).

The bearing capacity analyses assume that Layer 1, which consists of silty clay/clayey silt with some sandy silt, is of infinite thickness and has strength properties based on those measured at depths of ~10 ft for the clayey soils within the upper layer. These assumptions simplify the analyses and they are very conservative. With respect to bearing capacity, the strength of the sandy silt in the upper layer is greater than that of the clayey soils, based on the increases in Standard Penetration Test (SPT) blow counts (N-values) and the increased tip resistance (see SAR Figures 2.6-5) in the cone penetration testing (ConeTec, 1999) noted in these soils. The underlying soils are even stronger, based on their SPT N-values, which generally exceed 100 blows/ft.

Based on probabilistic seismic hazard analysis, the peak acceleration levels of 0.528g for horizontal ground motion and 0.533g for the vertical ground motion were determined as the design bases of the PFSF for a 2,000-yr return period earthquake (Geomatrix Consultants, Inc, 1999b).

CALCULATION SHEET

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				BAGE 7
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 7
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

GEOTECHNICAL PROPERTIES

Based on laboratory test results presented in Table 2 of Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (SWEC, 2000a),

 $\gamma_{\text{moist}} = 80$ pcf for the soils underlying the pad emplacement area.

The bearing capacity of the structures are dependent primarily on the strength of the soils in the upper ~25 to ~30-ft layer at the site. All of the borings drilled at the site indicate that the soils underlying this upper layer are very dense fine sands overlying silts with standard penetration test blow counts that exceed 100 blows/ft. The results of the cone penetration testing, presented in ConeTec(1999) and plotted in SAR Figure 2.6-5, Sheets 1 to 14, illustrate that the strength of the soils in the upper layer are much greater at depths below ~10 ft than in the range of ~5 ft to ~10 ft, where most of the triaxial tests were performed.

In practice, the average shear strength along the anticipated slip surface of the failure mode should be used in the bearing capacity analysis. This slip surface is normally confined to within a depth below the footing equal to the minimum width of the footing. In this case, the effective width of the footing is decreased because of the large eccentricity of the load on the pads due to the seismic loading. As indicated in Table 2.6-7, the minimum effective width occurs for Load Case IIIB, where B' = 16.3 ft. Figure 7 illustrates that the anticipated slip surface of the bearing capacity failure would be limited to the soils within the upper two-thirds of the upper layer. Therefore, in the bearing capacity analyses presented herein, the undrained strength measured in the UU triaxial tests was not increased to reflect the increase in strength observed for the deeper-lying soils in the cone penetration testing.

Table 6 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment C) summarizes the results of the triaxial tests that were performed within depths of ~10 ft. The undrained shear strengths measured in these tests are plotted vs confining pressure in Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment C). This figure is annotated to indicate the vertical stresses existing prior to construction and following completion of construction.

The undrained shear strengths measured in the triaxial tests are used for the dynamic bearing capacity analyses because the soils are partially saturated and they will not drain completely during the rapid cycling of loadings associated with the design basis ground motion. As indicated in Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment C), the undrained strength of the soils within ~10 ft of grade is assumed to be 2.2 ksf. This value is the lowest strength measured in the UU tests, which were performed at confining stresses of 1.3 ksf. This confining stress corresponds to the in situ vertical stress existing near the middle of the upper layer, prior to construction of these structures. It is much less than the final stresses that will exist under the cask storage pads and the Canister Transfer Building following completion of construction. Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment C) illustrates that the undrained strength of these soils increase as the loadings of the structures are applied; therefore, 2.2

50	1	D.	65	
----	---	----	----	--

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 8
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

ksf is a very conservative value for use in the dynamic bearing capacity analyses of these structures.

Direct shear tests were performed on undisturbed specimens of the silty clay/clayey silt obtained at a depth of 5.7 ft to 6 ft in Boring C-2. These tests were performed at normal stresses that were essentially equal to the normal stresses expected:

- 1. under the fully loaded pads before the earthquake.
- 2. with all of the vertical forces due to the earthquake acting upward, and
- 3. with all of the vertical forces due to the earthquake acting downward.

The results of these tests are presented in Attachment 7 of the Appendix 2A of the SAR and they are plotted in Figure 7 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment C). Because of the fine grained nature of these soils, they will not drain completely during the rapid cycling of loadings associated with the design basis ground motion. Therefore, sliding stability analyses included below of the cask storage pads constructed directly on the silty clay are performed using the shear strength measured in these direct shear tests for a normal stress equal to the vertical stress under the fully loaded cask storage pads prior to imposition of the dynamic loading due to the earthquake. As shown in Figure 7 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment C), this shear strength is 2.1 ksf and the friction angle is set equal to 0° .

Effective-stress strength parameters are estimated to be c = 0 ksf, even though these soils may be somewhat cemented, and $\phi = 30^{\circ}$. This value of ϕ is based on the PI values for these soils, which ranged between 5% and 23% (SWEC, 2000a), and the relationship between ϕ and PI presented in Figure 18.1 of Terzaghi & Peck (1967).

Therefore, static bearing capacity analyses are performed using the following soil strengths:

Case IA Static using undrained strength: $\phi = 0^{\circ} \& c = 2.2 \text{ ksf.}$

Case IB Static using effective-stress strength: $\phi = 30^{\circ} \& c = 0$.

The pads will be constructed on and within soil cement, as illustrated in SAR Figure 4.2-7 and described in SAR Sections 2.6.1.7 and 2.6.4.11. The unit weight of the soil cement is assumed to be 100 pcf in the bearing capacity analyses included herein. The strength of the soil cement is conservatively ignored in these bearing capacity analyses.

METHOD OF ANALYSIS

DESCRIPTION OF LOAD CASES

Load cases analyzed consist of combinations of vertical static, vertical dynamic (compression and uplift, Y-direction), and horizontal dynamic (in X and Z-directions) loads.

The following load combinations are analyzed:

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				
j.o. or w.o. no. 05996.02	DIVISION & GROUP G(B)	PAGE 9		
Case I	Static			

Case II Static + dynamic horizontal forces due to the earthquake

Case III Static + dynamic horizontal + vertical uplift forces due to the earthquake

Case IV Static + dynamic horizontal + vertical compression forces due to the earthquake

For Case II, 100% of the dynamic lateral forces in both X and Z directions are combined. For Cases III and IV, the effects of the three components of the design basis ground motion are combined in accordance with procedures described in ASCE (1986) to account for the fact that the maximum response of the three orthogonal components of the earthquake do not occur at the same time. For these cases, 100% of the dynamic loading in one direction is assumed to act at the same time that 40% of the dynamic loading acts in the other two directions. For these cases, the suffix "A" is used to designate 40% in the X direction (N-S, as shown in Figure 1), 100% in the Y direction (vertical), and 40% in the Z direction (E-W). Similarly, the suffix "B" is used to designate 40% in the X direction, 40% in the Y, and 100% in the Z, and the suffix "C" is used to designate 100% in the X direction and 40% in the other two directions. Thus,

Case IIIA40%N-S direction, -100%Vertical direction,40%E-W direction.Case IIIB40%N-S direction,-40%Vertical direction,100%E-W direction.Case IIIC100%N-S direction,-40%Vertical direction,40%E-W direction.

The negative sign for the vertical direction in Case III indicates uplift forces due to the earthquake. Case IV is the same as Case III, but the vertical forces due to the earthquake act downward in compression; therefore, the signs on the vertical components are positive.

OVERTURNING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

5010.65

The factor of safety against overturning is defined as:

 $FS_{OT} = \Sigma M_{Resisting} \div \Sigma M_{Driving}$

The resisting moment is calculated as the weight of the pad and casks x the distance from one edge of the pad to the center of the pad in the direction of the minimum width. The weight of the pad is calculated as 3 ft x 64 ft x 30 ft x 0.15 kips/ft³ = 864 K, and the weight of 8 casks is 8 x 356.5 K/cask = 2,852 K. The moment arm for the resisting moment equals $\frac{1}{2}$ of 30 ft, or 15 ft. Therefore,

Wp Wc B/2 $\Sigma M_{\text{Resisting}} = [864 \text{ K} + 2.852 \text{K}] \times 15 \text{ ft} = 55.740 \text{ ft-K}$

The driving moment includes the moments due to the horizontal inertial force of the pad x $\frac{1}{2}$ the height of the pad, the vertical inertial force of the pad plus casks x $\frac{1}{2}$ the minimum width of the pad, and the horizontal force from the casks acting at the top of the pad x the height of the pad. The casks are simply resting on the top of the pads; therefore, this force cannot exceed the friction force acting between the steel bottom of the cask and the top of

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER				D. 07. 10
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE IU
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

the concrete storage pad. This friction force was calculated based on the upper-bound value of the coefficient of friction between the casks and the storage pad ($\mu = 0.8$, as shown in SAR Section 8.2.1.2) x the normal force acting between the casks and the pad. This force is maximum when the vertical inertial force due to the earthquake acts downward. However, when the vertical force from the earthquake acts downward, it acts in the same direction as the weight, tending to stabilize the structure. Therefore, the minimum factor of safety against overturning will occur when the dynamic vertical force acts in the upward direction, tending to unload the pad.

When the vertical inertial force due to the earthquake acts upward, the friction force = $0.8 \times (2.852 \text{K} - 0.533 \times 2.852 \text{K}) = 1.066 \text{ K}$. This is less than the maximum dynamic cask horizontal driving force of 1.855 K (Table D-1(c) in CEC, 1999). Therefore, the worst-case horizontal force that can occur when the vertical earthquake force acts upward is limited by the upper-bound value of the coefficient of friction between the bottom of the casks and the top of the storage pad, and it equals 1.066 K.

 $a_h \quad Wp \qquad a_v \quad Wp \qquad Wc \qquad B/2$ $\Sigma M_{Driving} = 1.5 \text{ ft } x \ 0.528 \text{ x } 864 \text{ K} + 0.533 \text{ x } [864 \text{ K} + 2,852 \text{ K}] \text{ x } 15 \text{ ft } + 3 \text{ ft } x \ 1,066 \text{ K} = 33,592 \text{ ft-K}.$ EQhc

$$\Rightarrow FS_{or} = \frac{55,740 \text{ ft} - \text{K}}{33,592 \text{ ft} - \text{K}} = 1.66$$

This is greater than the criterion of 1.1; therefore, the cask storage pads have an adequate factor of safety against overturning due to dynamic loadings from the design basis ground motion.

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

The factor of safety (FS) against sliding is defined as follows:

FS = resisting force ÷ driving force

For this analysis, ignoring passive resistance of the soil (soil cement) adjacent to the pad, the resisting, or tangential force (T), below the base of the pad is defined as follows:

 $T = N \tan \phi + c B L$

where, N (normal force) = $\sum F_v = W_c + W_p + EQ_{vc} + EQ_{vp}$

 $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ (for Silty Clay/Clayey Silt)

c = 2.1 ksf, as indicated on p C-2.

B = 30 feet

L = 64 feet

5010.65

	CALCULATION IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER		1)
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 11
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE PADS CONSTRUCTED ON AND WITHIN SOIL CEMENT

Objective:

Determine the minimum required strength of the soil cement to provide a factor of safety against sliding of the cask storage pads of 1.1.

Method/Assumptions:

- 1. Assume that the resistance to sliding is provided only by the passive resistance of the soil-cement layer above the bottom of the pads, ignoring the contribution of the frictional portion of the strength.
- 2. Ignore the passive resistance of the overlying compacted aggregate.
- 3. Assume the active thrust of the compacted aggregate is less than the passive thrust and, thus, the active thrust can be ignored.
- 4. Use Eq 23.8a of Lambe & Whitman (1969) to calculate passive thrust, P_p, as follows:

$$P_{p} = \frac{1}{2} \gamma_{w} H^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \gamma_{b} H^{2} N_{a} + q_{s} H N_{a} + 2\bar{c} H \sqrt{N_{a}}$$

where:

- H = height of soil cement above bottom of pad
- $N_{\phi} = K_{p}$, coefficient of passive pressure, = 1 assuming $\phi = 0$.
- $q_s = uniform surcharge_ = (\gamma x H)_{compacted aggregate_ > 0.125 kcf x 0.71 ft = 0.09 ksf$
- \vec{c} = effective cohesion

	10			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 12
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE PADS CONSTRUCTED ON AND WITHIN SOIL CEMENT

Analysis:

Figure 3 presents an elevation view of the minimum thickness of soil cement in the vicinity of the cask storage pads. Figure 4 illustrates the passive pressures acting on the pads.

To obtain FS = 1.1, the total resisting force, T, must =

$$1.1 \times \left[3 \times 30 \times 64 \times 0.15 \frac{\text{K}}{\text{ft}^3} + 8 \text{ casks} \times 356.5 \frac{\text{K}}{\text{cask}} \right] \times 0.528$$

 \therefore T = 2,158 K

Assuming this resisting force is provided <u>only</u> by the passive resistance provided by the 2ft thick layer of soil cement adjacent to the pads, as shown in Figures 3 & 4, the minimum required strength of the soil cement is calculated as follows. Note, ignore buoyancy, since the depth to the water table is ~124.5 ft below grade, as measured in Observation Well CTB-5 OW.

$$P_{p} = \frac{1}{2} \gamma H^{2} N_{\phi} + q_{s} H N_{\phi} + 2\overline{c} H \sqrt{N_{\phi}} \qquad EQ 23.8a \text{ of Lambe & Whitman (1969)}$$

where

$$q_s = (\gamma \cdot H)_{\text{comparted}} = 0.125 \frac{K}{ft^3} \times \frac{8.5 \text{ in.}}{12 \text{ in }/ft} = 0.09 \text{ ksf/LF}$$
, which is negligible.

Conservatively assuming $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ for soil cement, $N_{\phi} = K_P = 1.0$.

Assuming sliding resistance is provided only by the passive resistance of the soil cement, the minimum resistance will exist for sliding in the N-S direction, because the width in the east-west direction (B=30') is less than the length in the north-south direction (L=64').

Find the minimum cohesion required to provide FS = 1.1.

$$\gamma \qquad H^2 \qquad K_P \qquad H \qquad \sqrt{N_{\phi}}$$

$$P_P \text{ must be} \ge 2,158K = \frac{1}{2} \cdot 0.100 \frac{K}{ft^3} \times (2 \text{ ft})^2 \times 1.0 + 2\overline{c} \cdot 2 \text{ ft} \cdot \sqrt{1.0}$$

$$\frac{2,158 \text{ K}}{30 \text{ ft}} = 0.2 \frac{K}{ft} + 4\overline{c} = 71.93 \frac{K}{LF} \implies 4\overline{c} = 71.73 \frac{K}{LF}$$

$$\therefore \quad \overline{c} \ge 17.93 \frac{\text{ksf}}{LF} \times \left(\frac{ft}{12 \text{ in.}}\right)^2 \times \frac{1,000 \text{ \#}}{K} = 125 \text{ psi}$$

The unconfined compressive strength equals twice the cohesion, or 250 psi. Soil cement with strengths higher than this are readily achievable, as illustrated by the lowest curve in Figure 4.2 of ACI 230.1R-90, which applies for fine-grained soils similar to the eolian silt in the pad emplacement area. Note, $f_c = 40C$ where C = percent cement in the soil cement. Therefore, to obtain $f_c > 250$ psi, the percentage of cement required would be $\sim 250/40 =$

5010.65

CALCULATION SHEET

	DAOF 19			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 13
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE PADS CONSTRUCTED ON AND WITHIN SOIL CEMENT

6.25%. This is even less cement than would typically be used in constructing soil cement for use as road base, and it would be even lower if shear resistance acting on the base of the pad was included or if K_p was calculated for $\phi > 0^\circ$. Note, Tables 5 & 6 of Nussbaum & Colley (1971) indicate ϕ exceeds 40° for all A-4 soils (CL & ML) treated with cement. Therefore, soil cement will greatly improve the sliding stability of the cask storage pads.

As indicated in Figure 3, the soil cement will extend at least 1 ft below all of the cask storage pads, and, as shown in SAR Figure's 2.6-5. Pad Emplacement Area Foundation Profiles, it will typically extend 3 to 5 ft below most of the pads. Thus, the area available to resist sliding will greatly exceed that of the pads alone. The soil cement will have higher shear strength than the underlying silty clay/clayey silt layer; therefore, the resistance to sliding on that interface will be limited by the shear strength of the silty clay/clayey silt. Direct shear tests on samples of the soils from the in the pad emplacement area indicate the shear strength available to resist sliding from loads due to the design basis ground motion 2.1 ksf as shown in Figure 7 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-5-2 (copy included in Attachment C).

The following pages illustrate that there is an adequate factor or safety against sliding of the pads, postulating that they are constructed directly on the silty clay/clayey silt and neglecting the passive resistance provided by the soil cement that will be surrounding the pads. The factor of safety against sliding along the soil cement/silty clay interface will be much greater than this, because the shearing resistance will be available over the areas between the pads, as well as under the pads, and additional passive resistance will be provided by the continuous soil cement layer existing below the pads.

0010.00

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 14
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE PADS CONSTRUCTED DIRECTLY ON SILTY CLAY/CLAYEY SILT

Material around the pad will be soil cement. In this analysis, the passive resistance provided by the soil cement is ignored to demonstrate that there is an acceptable factor of safety against sliding of the pads if they were founded directly on the silty clay/clayey silt. The soil cement is assumed to have the same properties that were used in Rev 4 of this calculation to model the crushed stone (compacted aggregate) that was originally proposed adjacent to the pads. These include:

 $\gamma = 125 \text{ pcf}$ Because of the low density of the eolian silts that will be used to construct the soil cement, it is likely that γ will be less than this value. It is conservative to use this higher value, because it is used in this analysis only for determining upper-bound estimates of the active earth pressure acting on the pad due to the design basis ground motion.

- $\phi = 40^{\circ}$ Tables 5 & 6 of Nussbaum & Colley (1971) indicate that ϕ exceeds 40° for all A-4 soils (CL & ML, similar to the eolian silts at the site) treated with cement; therefore, it is likely that ϕ will be higher than this value. This value is not used, however, in this analysis for calculating sliding resistance. It also is used in this analysis only for determining upperbound estimates of the active earth pressure acting on the pad due to the design basis ground motion.
- H = 3 ft
 As shown in SAR Figure 4.2-7, the pad is 3 ft thick, but it is constructed such that the top is 3.5" above grade to accommodate potential settlement. The depth of the pad is used in this analysis only for calculating the maximum dynamic lateral earth pressure; therefore, it is conservative to ignore the 3.5" that the pad sticks out of the ground.

The resistance to sliding is lower when the forces due to the earthquake act upward; therefore, analyze the sliding stability for Load Case III, which has the dynamic forces due to the earthquake acting upward. To increase the conservatism of this analysis, assume 100% of the dynamic forces due to the earthquake act in both the N-S and Vertical directions at the same time. The length of the pad in the N-S direction (64 ft) is greater than twice the width in the E-W direction (30 ft); therefore, estimate the driving forces due to dynamic active earth pressures acting on the length of the pad, tending to cause sliding to occur in the E-W direction. The maximum dynamic cask driving force, however, acts in the N-S direction. To be conservative, assume that it acts in the E-W direction in this analysis of sliding stability. However, the maximum horizontal force that can be applied to the top of the pad by the casks is limited to the maximum value of the coefficient of friction between the cask and the top of the pad, which equals 0.8, multiplied by the cask normal force.

5010.65	
---------	--

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 10
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS CONSTRUCTED DIRECTLY ON SILTY CLAY/CLAYEY SILT

ACTIVE EARTH PRESSURE

 $P_a = 0.5 \gamma H^2 K_a$

 $K_a = (1 - \sin \phi)/(1 + \sin \phi) = 0.22$ for $\phi = 40^\circ$ for the soil cement.

 $P_a = [0.5 \times 125 \text{ pcf x } (3 \text{ ft})^2 \times 0.22] \times 64 \text{ ft (length)/storage pad} = 7,920 \text{ lbs.}$

DYNAMIC EARTH PRESSURE

As indicated on p 11 of GTG 6.15-1 (SWEC, 1982), for active conditions, the combined static and dynamic lateral earth pressure coefficient is computed according to the analysis developed by Mononobe-Okabe and described in Seed and Whitman (1970) as:

$$K_{AE} = \frac{(1 - \alpha_{v}) \cdot \cos^{2}(\phi - \theta - \alpha)}{\cos \theta \cdot \cos^{2} \alpha \cdot \cos (\delta + \alpha + \theta) \cdot \left[1 + \sqrt{\frac{\sin (\phi + \delta) \cdot \sin (\phi - \theta - \beta)}{\cos (\delta + \alpha + \theta) \cdot \cos (\beta - \alpha)}}\right]^{2}}$$

where :

$$\theta = \tan^{-1}\left(\frac{\alpha_{\rm H}}{\alpha_{\rm V}}\right)$$

 β = slope of ground behind wall,

- α = slope of back of wall to vertical,
- α_{H} = horizontal seismic coefficient, where a positive value corresponds to a horizontal inertial force directed toward the wall,
- α_v = vertical seismic coefficient, where a positive value corresponds to a vertical inertial force directed upward,
- δ = angle of wall friction,
- ϕ = friction angle of the soil,
- g = acceleration due to gravity.

The combined static and dynamic active earth pressure force, PAE, is calculated as:

 $P_{AE} = \frac{1}{2} \gamma H^2 K_{AE}$, where :

- γ = unit weight of soil,
- H = wall height, and

 K_{AE} is calculated as shown above.

- ----

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER		
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 16
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		
SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CA	SK STORAGE PADS CONSTRUCTE	DIRECTLY ON SILTY CLAY/C	LAYEY SILT	
$\beta = \alpha = 0$				
$\theta = \tan^{-1} \times \left(\frac{0.52}{1 - 0.5}\right)$	$\left(\frac{8}{33}\right) = 48.5^{\circ}$			
$\phi = 40^{\circ}$				
Approximating si	$\mathbf{n} (\phi - \theta) \approx 0$ and $\cos (\phi - \theta) = 0$	$(\phi - \theta) \approx 1$		
$K_{AE} = \frac{1 - \alpha_v}{\cos \theta \cdot \cos \theta}$	$\overline{\delta + \theta}$	•		
$\delta = \frac{\phi}{2} = 20^{\circ}$				
$\therefore K_{AE} = \frac{1}{\cos 48}.$	$\frac{1 - 0.533}{5^{\circ} \cdot \cos(20^{\circ} + 48.5^{\circ})}$	=1.92		
Therefore, the cor	nbined static and dy	namic active lateral	earth pressure force	e is:
	γ H ² K _{AF}	2 L		
$F_{AE \epsilon \cdot w} = P_{AE} = \frac{1}{2} \times$	125 pcf \times (3 ft) ² \times 1.9	2×64 ft / storage pa	d = 69.1 K in E - W di	rection.
$F_{AE_{NS}} = 69.1 \text{ K} \times \frac{3}{6}$	$\frac{10 \text{ ft}}{10 \text{ ft}} = 32.4 \text{ K in the N}$	I-S direction.		

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	ITIFICATION NUMBER		2405 17		
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 17		
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6				
SLIDING STABILITY OF THE C	ASK STORAGE PADS CONSTRUCT	ED DIRECTLY ON SILTY CLAY/C	CLAYEY SILT			
WEIGHTS						
Casks: $Wc = 8 \times 356.5 \text{ K/cask} = 2,852 \text{ K}$						
Pad: Wp =	Pad: Wp = 3 ft x 64 ft x 30 ft x $0.15 \text{ kips}/\text{ft}^3 = 864 \text{ K}$					
EARTHQUAKE ACCELERATIONS - PSHA 2,000-YR RETURN PERIOD						
a_{H} = horizontal earthquake acceleration = 0.528g						
$a_v = vertical eart$	hquake acceleration	= 0.533g				
Cask Earthquake Loadings						
EQvc = -0.533 x	2,852 K = -1,520 K (minus sign signifies	uplift force)			
$EQhc_{x} = 1.855 K$	(acting short direction	on of pad, E-W)	$Q_{xd max}$ in Table D-1(c) in Att B		
EQhc _y = 1,791 K (acting in long direction of pad, N-S) $Q_{yd max}$ in Table D-1(c) "						
Note: These maximum horizontal dynamic cask driving forces are from Calc 05996.02- $G(PO17)$ -2, (CEC, 1999), and they apply only when the dynamic forces due to the earthquake act downward and the coefficient of friction between the cask and the pad equals 0.8. For frictional materials, sliding is critical when the foundation is unloaded due to unlift forces from the carthquake.						

to uplift forces from the earthquake. Therefore, $EQh_{c max}$ is limited to a maximum value of 1,066 K for Case III, based on the upper-bound value of $\mu = 0.8$, as shown in the following table:

	WT K	EQ _{Vc} K	N K	0.2 x N K	0.8 x N K	EQ _{he max} K
Case III – Uplift	2,852	-1,520	1,332	266	1,066	1,066
Case IV - EQ, Down	2,852	1,520	4,372	874	3,498	1,855 E-W 1,791 N-S

Note:

Case III: 100% N-S, -100% Vertical, 0% E-W Case IV: 100% N-S, 100% Vertical, 0% E-W Earthquake Forces Act Upward Earthquake Forces Act Downward

FOUNDATION PAD EARTHQUAKE LOADINGS

EQvp = -0.533 x 864 K = -461 K

 $EQhp = 0.528 \ge 864 = 456 K$

	DAGE 19			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 18
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS CONSTRUCTED DIRECTLY ON SILTY CLAY/CLAYEY SILT

CASE III: 100% N-S, -100% VERTICAL, 0% E-W

Minimum sliding resistance exists when EQvc and EQvp act in an upward direction (Case III), tending to unload the pad. For this case,

Wc Wp EQvc EQvp N = 2,852 K + 864 K + (-1,520 K) + (-461 K) = 1,735 K

N ϕ c B L T = 1,735 K x tan 0° + 2.1 ksf x 30 ft x 64 ft = 4,032 K

The driving force, V, is defined as:

5010.65

 $V = F_{AE} + EQhp + EQhc$

The factor of safety against sliding is calculated as follows:

T F_{AE} EQhp EQhc FS = 4,032 K ÷ (69.1 K + 456 K + 1,066 K) = 2.53

For this analysis, the value of EQhc was limited to the upper-bound value of the coefficient of friction, $\mu = 0.8$, x the cask normal load, because if Qxd exceeds this value, the cask would slide. The factor of safety exceeds the minimum allowable value of 1.1; therefore the pads are stable with respect to sliding for this load case. The factor of safety against sliding is higher than this if the lower-bound value of μ is used (= 0.2), because the driving forces due to the casks would be reduced.

CASE IV: 100% N-S, 100% VERTICAL, 0% E-W EARTHQUAKE FORCES ACT DOWNWARD

When the earthquake forces act in the downward direction:

 $T = N \tan \phi + [c B L]$

where, N (normal force) = $\sum Fv = Wc + Wp + EQvc + EQvp$

Wc Wp EQvc EQvp N = 2,852 K + 864 K + 1,520 K + 461 K = 5,697 K

 $\begin{array}{cccccccc} N & \phi & c & B & L \\ T = 5,697 \text{ K x tan } 0^\circ + 2.1 \text{ ksf x } 30 \text{ ft x } 64 \text{ ft} \end{bmatrix} = 4,032 \text{ K} \end{array}$

The driving force, V, is defined as:

 $V = F_{AE} + EQhp + EQhc$

The factor of safety against sliding is calculated as follows:

T F_{AE} EQhp EQhc FS = 4,032 K ÷ (69.1 K + 456 K + 1,855 K) = 1.69

	10			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 19
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS CONSTRUCTED DIRECTLY ON SILTY CLAY/CLAYEY SILT

For this analysis, the larger value of EQhc (i.e., acting in the short direction of the pad) was used, because it produces a lower and, thus, more conservative factor of safety. The factor of safety exceeds the minimum allowable value of 1.1; therefore the pads are stable with respect to sliding for this load case. The factor of safety against sliding is higher than this if the lower-bound value of μ is used (= 0.2), because the driving forces due to the casks would be reduced.

These analyses illustrate that if the cask storage pads constructed directly on the silty clay/clayey silt layer, they would have an adequate factor of safety against sliding due to loads from the design basis ground motion. Because the soil cement is continuous between the pads, its interface with the silty clay will be much larger than that provided by the footprint of the pads and used in the analyses presented in this section. The soil cement will be mixed and compacted into the upper layer of the silty clay, providing a bond at the interface that will exceed the strength of the silty clay. Therefore, this interface will have more resistance to sliding than is included in these analyses and, thus, there will be adequate resistance at this interface to preclude sliding of the pads due to the loads from the design basis ground motion.

	BAGE 90			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 20
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

EVALUATION OF SLIDING ON DEEP SLIP SURFACE BENEATH PADS

Adequate factors of safety against sliding due to maximum forces from the design basis ground motion have been obtained for the storage pads founded directly on the silty clay/clayey silt layer, conservatively ignoring the presence of the soil cement that will surround the pads. The shearing resistance is provided by the undrained shear strength of the silty clay/clayey silt layer, which is not affected by upward earthquake loads. As shown in SAR Figures 2.6-5, Pad Emplacement Area – Foundation Profiles, a layer, composed in part of sandy silt, underlies the clayey layer at a depth of about 10 ft below the cask storage pads. Sandy silts oftentimes are cohesionless; therefore, to be conservative, this portion of the sliding stability analysis assumes that the soils in this layer are cohesionless, ignoring the effects of cementation that were observed on many of the split-spoon and thin-walled tube samples obtained in the drilling programs.

The shearing resistance of cohesionless soils is directly related to the normal stress. Earthquake motions resulting in upward forces reduce the normal stress and, consequently, the shearing resistance, for purely cohesionless (frictional) soils. Factors of safety against sliding in such soils are low if the maximum components of the design basis ground motion are combined. The effects of such motions are evaluated by estimating the displacements the structure will undergo when the factor of safety against sliding is less than 1 to demonstrate that the displacements are sufficiently small that, should they occur, they will not adversely impact the performance of the pads.

The method proposed by Newmark (1965) is used to estimate the displacement of the pads, assuming they are founded directly on a layer of cohesionless soils. This simplification produces an upper-bound estimate of the displacement that the pads might see if a cohesionless layer was continuous beneath the pads. For motion to occur on a slip surface along the top of a cohesionless layer at a depth of 10 ft below the pads, the slip surface would have to pass through the overlying clayey layer, which, as shown above, is strong enough to resist sliding due to the earthquake forces. In this analysis, a friction angle of 30° is used to define the strength of the soils to conservatively model a loose cohesionless layer. The soils in the layer in question have a much higher friction angle, generally greater than 35°, as indicated in the plots of "Phi" interpreted from the cone penetration testing, which are presented in Appendix D of ConeTec (1999).

ESTIMATION OF HORIZONTAL DISPLACEMENT USING NEWMARK'S METHOD



5	0	۱	0		6	5
---	---	---	---	--	---	---

CALCULATION SHEET

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE ZI
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

EVALUATION OF SLIDING ON DEEP SLIP SURFACE BENEATH PADS

Newmark (1965) defines "N·W" as the steady force applied at the center of gravity of the sliding mass in the direction which the force can have its lowest value to just overcome the stabilizing forces and keep the mass moving. Note, Newmark defines "N" as the "Maximum" Resistance Coefficient," and it is an acceleration coefficient in this case, not the normal force.

For a block sliding on a horizontal surface, $N \cdot W = T$,

where T is the shearing resistance of the block on the sliding surface.

Shearing resistance, $T = \tau Area$

where

 $\tau = \sigma_n \tan \phi$ $\sigma_n =$ Normal Stress

 ϕ = Friction angle of cohesionless layer

- σ_n = Net Vertical Force/Area
- = $(F_v F_{v Eqk})/Area$

$$T = (F_v - F_{v Eqk}) \tan \phi$$

- $\mathbf{N}\mathbf{W} = \mathbf{T}$
- $\mathbf{N} = [(\mathbf{F}_{v} \mathbf{F}_{v \; Eqk}) \tan \phi] / \mathbf{W}$ ⇒

The maximum relative displacement of the pad relative to the ground, u_m , is calculated as

$$u_m = [V^2 (1 - N/A)] / (2gN)$$

The above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all of the data points for N/A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5, as shown in Figure 5, which is a copy of Figure 41 of Newmark (1965). Within the range of 0.5 to 0.15, the following expression gives an upper bound of the maximum relative displacement for all data.

 $u_m = V^2 / (2gN)$

MAXIMUM GROUND MOTIONS

The maximum ground accelerations used to estimate displacements of the cask storage pads were those due to the PSHA 2,000-yr return period earthquake; i.e., $a_{H} = 0.528g$ and $a_v = 0.533g$. The maximum horizontal ground velocities required as input in Newmark's method of analysis of displacements due to earthquakes were estimated for the cask storage pads assuming that the ratio of the maximum ground velocity to the maximum ground acceleration equaled 48 (i.e., 48 in./sec per g). Thus, the estimated maximum velocities applicable for the Newmark's analysis of displacements of the cask storage pads = $0.528 \times 48 = 25.3$ in./sec. Since the peak ground accelerations are the same in both horizontal directions, the velocities are the same as well.

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 22
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

EVALUATION OF SLIDING ON DEEP SLIP SURFACE BENEATH PADS

LOAD CASES

The resistance to sliding on cohesionless materials is lowest when the dynamic forces due to the design basis ground motion act in the upward direction, which reduces the normal forces and, hence, the shearing resistance, at the base of the foundations. Thus, the following analyses are performed for Load Cases IIIA, IIIB, and IIIC, in which the pads are unloaded due to uplift from the earthquake forces.

Case IIIA 40% N-S direction, 100% Vertical direction, 40% E-W direction.

Case IIIB 40% N-S direction, -40% Vertical direction, 100% E-W direction.

Case IIIC 100% N-S direction, -40% Vertical direction, 40% E-W direction.

GROUND MOTIONS FOR ANALYSIS

Load Case	North-South		Vertical	East-West	
	Accel g	Velocity in./sec	Accel g	Accel g	Velocity in./sec
IIIA	0.211g	10.1	0.533g	0.211g	10.1
IIIB	0.211g	10.1	0.213g	0.528g	25.3
IIIC	0.528g	25.3	0.213g	0.211g	10.1

Load Case IIIA: 40% N-S direction, -100% Vertical direction, 40% E-W direction.

Static Vertical Force, $F_v = W =$ Weight of casks and pad = 2,852 K + 864 K = 3,716 kips Earthquake Vertical Force, $F_{v Eqk} = a_v \ge W/g = 0.533g \ge 3,716$ K/g = 1,981 K

$$\phi = 30^{\circ}$$

For Case IIIA, 100% of vertical earthquake force is applied upward and, thus, must be subtracted to obtain the normal force; thus, Newmark's maximum resistance coefficient is

 F_v $F_{v Eqk}$ ϕ W N = [(3,716 - 1,981) tan 30°] / 3,716 = 0.270

Resultant acceleration in horizontal direction, A = $\sqrt{(0.211^2 + 0.211^2)} = 0.299g$

40% N-S 40% E-W Resultant velocity in horizontal direction, $V = \sqrt{(10.1^2 + 10.1^2)} = 14.3$ in./sec

$$\Rightarrow$$
 N / A = 0.270 / 0.299 = 0.903

The maximum displacement of the pad relative to the ground, u_m , calculated based on Newmark (1965) is

5010.65

CALCULATION SHEET

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	page 23
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

EVALUATION OF SLIDING ON DEEP SLIP SURFACE BENEATH PADS

 $u_m = [V^2 (1 - N/A)] / (2gN)$

where g is in units of inches/sec².

$$\Rightarrow \mathbf{u}_{m} = \left(\frac{(14.3 \text{ in.} / \text{sec})^{2} \cdot (1 - 0.903)}{2 \cdot 386.4 \text{ in.} / \text{sec}^{2} \cdot 0.270}\right) = 0.1^{m}$$

The above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all the data points for N /A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5, as shown in Figure 5. In this case, N /A is > 0.5; therefore, this equation is applicable for calculating the maximum relative displacement. Thus the maximum displacement is ~0.1 inches.

Load Case IIIB: 40% N-S direction, -40% Vertical direction, 100% E-W direction.

Static Vertical Force, $F_v = W = 3,716 \text{ K}$

Earthquake Vertical Force, $F_{v(Eqk)} = 1.981$ K x 0.40 = 792 K

φ = 30°

$$F_v = F_{v Eqk} = 0.454$$

N = [(3,716 - 792) tan 30°] / 3,716 = 0.454

 $\frac{40\% \text{ N-S}}{\sqrt{(0.211^2 + 0.528^2)}} = 0.569g$

40% N-S 100% E-W Resultant velocity in horizontal direction, $V = \sqrt{(10.1^2 + 25.3^2)} = 27.2$ in./sec

$$\Rightarrow$$
 N / A = 0.454 / 0.569 = 0.798

The maximum displacement of the pad relative to the ground, u_m , calculated based on Newmark (1965) is

$$u_{m} = [V^{2} (1 - N/A)] / (2g N)$$

$$\Rightarrow u_{m} = \left(\frac{(27.2 \text{ in.} / \text{sec})^{2} \cdot (1 - 0.798)}{2 \cdot 386.4 \text{ in.} / \text{sec}^{2} \cdot 0.454}\right) = 0.43^{\circ}$$

The above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all the data points for N /A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5, as shown in Figure 5. In this case, N /A is > 0.5; therefore, this equation is applicable for calculating the maximum relative displacement. Thus the maximum displacement is ~0.4 inches.

CALCULATION SHEET

	5105 Q4			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 24
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

EVALUATION OF SLIDING ON DEEP SLIP SURFACE BENEATH PADS

5010.65

Load Case IIIC: 100% N-S direction, -40% Vertical direction, 40% E-W direction.

Since the horizontal accelerations and velocities are the same in the orthogonal directions, the result for Case IIIC is the same as those for Case IIIB.

SUMMARY OF HORIZONTAL DISPLACEMENTS CALCULATED BASED ON NEWMARK'S METHOD

	DISPLACEMENT			
Case IIIA	40% N-S	-100% Vert	40% E-W	0.1 inches
Case IIIB	40% N-S	-40% Vert	100% E-W	0.4 inches
Case IIIC	100% N-S	-40% Vert	40% E-W	0.4 inches

Assuming the cask storage pads are founded directly on a layer of cohesionless soils with ϕ = 30°, the estimated relative displacement of the pads due to the design basis ground motion based on Newmark's method of estimating displacements of embankments and dams due to earthquakes ranges from ~0.1 inches to 0.4 inches. Because there are no connections between the pads or between the pads and other structures, displacements of this magnitude, were they to occur, would not adversely impact the performance of the cask storage pads. There are several conservative assumptions that were made in determining these values and, therefore, the estimated displacements represent upperbound values.

The soils in the layer that are assumed to be cohesionless, the one ~10 ft below the pads that is labeled "Clayey Silt/Silt & Some Sandy Silt" in the foundation profiles in the pad emplacement area (SAR Figures 2.6-5. Sheets 1 through 14), are clayey silts and silts, with some sandy silt. To be conservative in this analysis, these soils are assumed to have a friction angle of 30°. However, the results of the cone penetration testing (ConeTec, 1999) indicate that these soils have ϕ values that generally exceed 35 to 40°, as shown in Appendices D & F of ConeTec (1999). These high friction angles likely are the manifestation of cementation that was observed in many of the specimens obtained in split-barrel sampling and in the undisturbed tubes that were obtained for testing in the laboratory. Possible cementation of these soils is also ignored in this analysis, adding to the conservatism.

In addition, this analysis postulates that cohesionless soils exist directly at the base of the pads. In reality, the surface of these soils is 10 ft or more below the pads, and it is not likely to be continuous, as the soils in this layer are intermixed. For the pads to slide, a surface of sliding must be established between the horizontal surface of the "cohesionless" layer at a depth of at least 10 ft below the pads, through the overlying clayey layer, and daylighting at grade. As shown in the analysis preceding this section, the overlying clayey layer is strong enough to resist sliding due to the earthquake forces. The contribution of the shear strength of the soils along this failure plane rising from the horizontal surface of the "cohesionless" layer at a depth of at least 10 ft to the resistance to sliding is ignored in

	5.05 QT			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 25
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

EVALUATION OF SLIDING ON DEEP SLIP SURFACE BENEATH PADS

5010.65

· . . .

the simplified model used to estimate the relative displacement, further adding to the conservatism.

These analyses also conservatively ignore the presence of the soil cement under and adjacent to the cask storage pads. As shown above, this soil cement can easily be designed to provide all of the sliding resistance necessary to provide an adequate factor of safety. considering only the passive resistance acting on the sides of the pads, without relying on friction or cohesion along the base of the pads. Adding friction and cohesion along the base of the pads will increase the factor of safety against sliding.

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 20
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		1

ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

The bearing capacity for shallow foundations is determined using the general bearing capacity equation and associated factors, as referenced in Winterkorn and Fang (1975). The general bearing capacity equation is a modification of Terzaghi's bearing capacity equation, which was developed for strip footings and indicates that $q_{ult} = c \cdot N_c + q \cdot N_q + \frac{1}{2}\gamma B \cdot N_r$. The ultimate bearing capacity of soil consists of three components: 1) cohesion, 2) surcharge, and 3) friction, which are represented by the bearing capacity factors N_c , N_q , and N_r . Terzaghi's bearing capacity equation has been enhanced by various investigators to incorporate shape, depth, and load inclination factors for different foundation geometries and loads as follows:

$$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + q N_q s_q d_q i_q + \frac{1}{2} \gamma B N_\gamma s_\gamma d_\gamma i_\gamma$$

where

 q_{ult} = ultimate bearing capacity

c = cohesion or undrained strength

q = effective surcharge at bottom of foundation, = γD_f

 γ = unit weight of soil

B = foundation width

 s_c , s_q , s_y = shape factors, which are a function of foundation width to length

 d_c , d_q , d_{γ} = depth factors, which account for embedment effects

 i_c , i_q , i_{γ} = load inclination factors

 N_c , N_q , N_γ = bearing capacity factors, which are a function of ϕ .

 γ in the third term is the unit weight of soil below the foundation, whereas the unit weight of the soil above the bottom of the footing is used in determining *q* in the second term.

BEARING CAPACITY FACTORS

Bearing capacity factors are computed based on relationships proposed by Vesic (1973), which are presented in Chapter 3 of Winterkorn and Fang (1975). The shape, depth and load inclination factors are calculated as follows:

$$N_{q} = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^{2} \left(45 + \frac{\phi}{2} \right)$$

 $N_c = (N_q - 1) \operatorname{cot} \phi$, but = 5.14 for $\phi = 0$.

 $N_r = 2 (N_q + 1) \tan \phi$

CALCULATION SHEET

<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	0.5			
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 27
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		
ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACI	ty of the Cask Storage Pads		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
SHAPE FACTORS (FO	PR L>B)			
$s_{c} = 1 + \frac{B}{L} \cdot \frac{N_{q}}{N_{c}}$				
$s_q = 1 + \frac{B}{L} \tan \theta$	φ			
$s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 \frac{B}{L}$				
Depth Factors (fo	$\operatorname{DR} \frac{D_t}{B} \leq 1$			
$d_{c} = d_{q} - \frac{(1 - q)}{N_{q} \cdot t_{d}}$	$\frac{d_q}{d_n \phi}$ for $\phi > 0$ and d_c	$= \mathbf{l} + 0.4 \left(\frac{\mathbf{D}_{\mathbf{f}}}{\mathbf{B}} \right) \text{ for } \mathbf{\phi}$	= 0.	
$d_q = 1 + 2 \tan q$	$\phi \cdot \left(1 - \sin \phi\right)^2 \cdot \left(\frac{D_r}{B}\right)$			
$d_{\gamma} = 1$				
Inclination Factor	RS			
$i_q = \left(1 - \frac{1}{F_v + E}\right)$	$\frac{F_{H}}{S'L' c \cot \phi} \bigg)^{m}$			
$i_c = i_q - \frac{(l - i_q)}{N_c \cdot tar}$	$\frac{1}{10}$ for $\phi > 0$ and $i_c = 2$	$1 - \left(\frac{m F_{H}}{B' L' c N_{c}}\right) \text{ for } \phi$	9 = 0	
$i_{Y} = \left(1 - \frac{1}{F_{V} + E}\right)$	$\frac{F_{H}}{B'L' c \cot \phi} \right)^{m+1}$			

where F_H and F_V are the total horizontal and vertical forces acting on the footing.

STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

The following pages present the details of the bearing capacity analyses for the static load cases. These cases are identified as follows:

Case IA Static using undrained strength parameters ($\phi = 0^\circ \& c = 2.2 \text{ ksf}$). Case IB Static using effective-stress strength parameters ($\phi = 30^\circ \& c = 0$).

CALCULATION SHEET

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCUL	ATION NO.	OPTIONAL	L TASK CODE	PAGE 28	
05996.02	G(B)	0	4 - 6				
STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF	THE CASK STORAGE PADS	-				_	
Allowable Bearing	g Capacity of Cask	Storage I	Pads				
Static Analysis:	Case IA	- Static	0	% in X,	0 % in Y,	0 % in Z	
Soil Properties:	C =	2,200 Cohe	sion (psf)			······································	
Undrained Strength	φ =	0.0 Fricti	on Angle (de	egrees)			
	γ =	80 Unit (weight of so	il (pcf)			
	γ _{surch} ≃	100 Unit (weight of su	rcharge (pcl	f)		
Foundation Properties:	B' =	30.0 Footi	ng Width - ft	: (E-W)	L' = 64.0	Length - ft (N-S	
	D _t =	2.7 Dept	h of Footing	(ft)			
	β =	0.0 Angle	e of load incl	ination from	vertical (degr	ees)	
	FS =	3.0 Facto	or of Safety r	required for	Gallowable.		
	F _v =	3,716 k	EQ _v =	0 k			
	EQ _{HE-W} =	0 k	EQ _{H N-S} =	0 k			
	General Bearing Capacity Equatio						
$\begin{bmatrix} q_{ult} = C N_c S_c \alpha_c I_c + \gamma_{st} \end{bmatrix}$	$urch D_1 N_q S_q U_q I_q + 1/2$	γ Β Ν _γ S _γ α _γ Ι	Y	based on \	Ninterkorn &	Fang (1975)	
	$N_c = (N_q - 1) \cot(\phi)$, bu	t = 5 .1 4 for ¢	= 0 =	5.14	Eq 3.6 &	Table 3.2	
	$N_q = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/4 + \phi)$	/2)	=	1.00	Eq 3.6		
	$N_{\gamma} = 2 (N_{q} + 1) \tan (\phi)$		=	0.00	Eq 3.8		
	$s_{c} = 1 + (B/L)(N_{q}/N_{c})$		· ±	1.09	Table 3.2	2	
	$s_q = 1 + (B/L) \tan \phi$		2	1.00	D D		
	$s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$		=	0.81	M		
For D _f /B ≤ 1:	$d_q = 1 + 2 \tan \phi$ (1 - sin	n φ) ² D _f /Β	=	1.00	Eq 3.26		
	$d_{\gamma} = 1$		=	1.00	н		
For φ > 0	$d_{c} = d_{q} - (1 - d_{q}) / (N_{q} \tan q)$	η φ)	=	N/A			
For φ = 0:	$d_c = 1 + 0.4 (D_f/B)$		=	1.04	Eq 3.27		
	No inclined loads;	therefore, i _c	$= i_q = i_\gamma = 1.4$	0.			
		Nc	term	N _g term	N _r term		

Gross q _{ult} =	13,056	psf =	0	+	6,497	+	21,842	
q _{alt} =	4,350	psf = q _{uit}	/FS					
q _{actual} ≂	1,936	psf = (F _v	+ EQ _v) / (B'	x L')				
FS _{actual} =	6.75	$= q_{ut} / q_{ac}$	tual		>	3	Hence O	K

[geot]j05996\calc\bmg_cap\Pad\cu_phi.xls

5010.65

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PAGE 29 J.O. OR W.O. NO. **DIVISION & GROUP** CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE 05996.02 G(B) 04 - 6 STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS Allowable Bearing Capacity of Cask Storage Pads Case **IB** - Static 0 % in X. 0 % in Y, 0 % in Z Static Analysis: Soil Properties: 0 Cohesion (psf) c = 30.0 Friction Angle (degrees) Effective-Stress Strengths φ= 80 Unit weight of soil (pcf) γ= 100 Unit weight of surcharge (pcf) Ysurch = Foundation Properties: B' = 30.0 Footing Width - ft (E-W) L' = 64.0Length - ft (N-S $D_{f} =$ 2.7 Depth of Footing (ft) β= 0.0 Angle of load inclination from vertical (degrees) 3.0 Factor of Safety required for qallowable. FS = F_v = 3,716 k $EQ_V =$ 0 k 0 k EQ_{HN-S} = 0 k EQ_{HE-W} = **General Bearing Capacity Equation,** $q_{uit} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{surch} D_f N_q s_q d_q i_q + 1/2 \gamma B N_\gamma s_\gamma d_\gamma i_\gamma$ based on Winterkorn & Fang (1975) $N_c = (N_q - 1) \operatorname{cot}(\phi)$, but = 5.14 for $\phi = 0$ 30.14 Eq 3.6 & Table 3.2 $N_{\sigma} = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/4 + \phi/2)$ 18.40 Eq 3.6 = $N_{y} \approx 2 (N_{a} + 1) \tan (\phi)$ = 22.40 Eq 3.8 $s_c = 1 + (B/L)(N_o/N_c)$ 1.29 Table 3.2 = $s_a = 1 + (B/L) \tan \phi$ 1.27 = $s_{y} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$ 0.81 = For $D_{f}/B \le 1$: $d_{a} = 1 + 2 \tan \phi (1 - \sin \phi)^{2} D_{f}/B$ 1.03 Eq 3.26 = $d_{y} = 1$ 1.00 = For $\phi > 0$: $d_c = d_q - (1-d_q) / (N_q \tan \phi)$ 1.03 For $\phi = 0$: $d_c = 1 + 0.4 (D/B)$ N/A Eq 3.27

No inclined loads; therefore, $i_c = i_q = i_\gamma = 1.0$.

			N _c term		N _q term		N _y term	
Gross q _{uit} =	28,340	psf =	0	+	6,497	+	21,842	
q _{all} =	9,440	psf = q _{uit}	/FS					
q _{actual} =	1,936	psf = (F _v	+ EQ _v) / (B' :	x L')				
FS _{actual} =	14.64	$= q_{ut} / q_{at}$	ctual		>	3	Hence Ol	K

5010.65

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER								
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 30					
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6							

STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

Table 2.6-6 presents a summary of the results of the bearing capacity analyses for the static load cases. As indicated in this table, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the cask storage pads to obtain a factor of safety of 3.0 against a shear failure from static loads is greater than 4 ksf. However, loading the storage pads to this value may result in undesirable settlements. This minimum allowable value was obtained in analyses that conservatively assume $\phi = 0^{\circ}$ and c = 2.2 ksf, as measured in the UU tests that are reported in Attachment 2 of Appendix 2A of the SAR, to model the end of construction. Using the estimated effective-stress strength of $\phi = 30^{\circ}$ and c = 0 results in higher allowable bearing pressures. As shown in Table 2.6-6, the gross allowable bearing capacities of the cask storage pads for static loads for this soil strength is greater than 9 ksf.

5010.65

J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 31
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		

DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

Dynamic bearing capacity analyses are performed using two different sets of dynamic forces. In the first set of analyses, which are presented on Pages 32 to 45, the dynamic loads are determined as the inertial forces applicable for the peak ground accelerations from the design basis ground motion. The second set of analyses use the maximum dynamic cask driving forces developed for use in the design of the pads in Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2 (CEC, 1999), for the pad supporting 2 casks, 4 casks, and 8 casks.

BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES

This section presents the analysis of the allowable bearing capacity of the pad for supporting the dynamic loads defined as the inertial forces applicable for the peak ground accelerations from the design basis ground motion. The total vertical force includes the static weight of the pad and eight fully loaded casks \pm the vertical inertial forces due to the earthquake. The vertical inertial force is calculated as $a_{y} x$ (weight of the pad + cask dead loads], multiplied by the appropriate factor ($\pm 40\%$ or $\pm 100\%$) for the load case. In these analyses, the minus sign for the percent loading in the vertical direction signifies uplift forces, which tend to unload the pad. Similarly, the horizontal inertial forces are calculated as $a_H x$ [weight of the pad + cask dead loads], multiplied by the appropriate factor (40% or 100%) for the load case. The horizontal inertial force from the casks was confirmed to be less than the maximum force that can be transmitted from the cask to the pad through friction for each of these load cases. This friction force was calculated based on the upper-bound value of the coefficient of friction between the casks and the storage pad considered in the HI-STORM cask stability analysis ($\mu = 0.8$, as shown in SAR Section 8.2.1.2, Accident Analysis) x the normal force acting between the casks and the pad.

The lower-bound friction case (discussed in SAR Section 4.2.3.5.1B), wherein μ between the steel bottom of the cask and the top of the concrete storage pad = 0.2, results in lower horizontal forces being applied at the top of the pad. This decreases the inclination of the load applied to the pad, which results in increased bearing capacity. Therefore, the dynamic bearing capacity analyses are not performed for $\mu = 0.2$.

Table 2.6-7 presents the results of the bearing capacity analyses for the following cases, which include static loads plus inertial forces due to the earthquake. Because the *in situ* fine-grained soils are not expected to fully drain during the rapid cycling of load during the earthquake, these cases are analyzed using the undrained strength that was measured in unconsolidated-undrained triaxial tests ($\phi = 0^\circ$ and c = 2.2 ksf).

Case II	100%	N-S direction,	0%	Vertical direction,	100%	E-W direction.
Case IIIA	40%	N-S direction,	-100%	Vertical direction,	40%	E-W direction.
Case IIIB	40%	N-S direction,	-40%	Vertical direction,	100%	E-W direction.
Case IIIC	100%	N-S direction,	-40%	Vertical direction,	40%	E-W direction.
Case IVA	40%	N-S direction,	100%	Vertical direction,	40%	E-W direction.
Case IVB	40%	N-S direction,	40%	Vertical direction,	100%	E-W direction.
Case IVC	100%	N-S direction,	40%	Vertical direction,	40%	E-W direction

. .

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	ITIFICATION NUMBER								
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 32						
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6								
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY	OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS B	IASED ON INERTIAL FORCES								
Case II: 100%	Case II: 100% N-S, 0% Vertical, 100% E-W									
Determine forces a	nd moments due to e	arthquake.								
Wc W	'σ									
$F_v = 2,852 \text{ K} + 86$	4 K = 3,716 K and I	$EQ_v = 0$ for this case	·-							
ан	HTpad B L Ycone									
$EQ_{H Pad} = 0.528 x$	3' x 30' x 64' x 0.15	kcf = 456 K		ļ						
EQhc = Minimun	ан Wc 1 of {0.528 x 2,852 K 1,506 K	μ Nc [& 0.8 x 2,852 K] 2,282K	\Rightarrow EQhc =1,506 K							
Note, Nc = Wc in	this case, since $a_V =$	0.								
EQhp	EQhc									
EQ _{H N-S} = 456 K +	1,506 K = 1,962 K									
The horizontal co	mponents are the sa	ame for this case; the	erefore, EQ _{H E-w} = EG	H N-S						
Combine these h	orizontal component	s to calculate F _H :								
\Rightarrow $F_{\rm H} = \sqrt{EQ^2_{\rm H}}$	$\overline{E-w + EQ^2_{HN-S}} = \sqrt{1,9}$	$\overline{962^2 + 1,962^2} = 2,7$	75 K							
Determine moment	s acting on pad due t	to casks.								
See Figure 6 for i	dentification of Δb .									
$\Delta b = -\frac{1}{2}$	$\frac{3.83^{\circ} \times \text{EQhc}}{\text{Wc} + \text{EQvc}} = \frac{9.83^{\circ} \times 2.85^{\circ}}{2.85^{\circ}}$	$\frac{(1,506 \text{ K})}{2 \text{ K}+0} = 5.19 \text{ ft}$								
	ан Wp	EQhc ∆b	Wc EQvc							
$\Sigma M_{\mathcal{Q}N-S} = 1$.5' x 0.528 x 864 K +	- 3' x 1,506 K + 5.19	' x (2,852K + 0)							
=	684 ft-K	+ 4,518 ft-K +	14,804 ft-K = 20,00	6 ft-K						
The horizontal fo	rces are the same N-	S and E-W for this c	ase; therefore,							
$\Sigma M_{\mathscr{D}E-W} = \Sigma$	$M_{@N-S} = 20,006 \text{ ft-l}$	K								
Determine q _{allowabl}	£ for FS = 1.1.									

.....

CALCULATION SHEET

· . . -

5010.65		UALC	ULATION	SHEE	= 1				
	CALCULAT	ION IDENTIF	ICATION NUM	BER					
J.O. OR W.O. NO. 05996.02	DIVISION & G(B)	GROUP	CALCULATION 04 - 6	N NO.	OPTION	AL TA	SK CODE	PAGE 33	
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES									
Allowable Bearing Capacity of Cask Storage Pads Inertial Forces									
PSHA 2,000-Yr Earl	PSHA 2,000-Yr Earthquake: Case II 100 % in X, 0 % in Y, 100 % in Z								
Soil Properties:	C =	= 2,200	Cohesion (psf)					
	φ =	= 0.0	Friction Angle	(degr	ees) not				
	γ = 	= 80 = 100	Unit weight of	son (pci) narge (pcf)				
Foundation Properties	:: B' :	= 19.2	Footing Width	- ft (E	-W)	L' =	53.2	Length - ft (N-S)	
	D _f =	= 2.7	Depth of Foot	ing (ft)	1				
	β:	= 27.8	Angle of load	inclina	tion from	vertica	al (degree:	s) _.	
	FS :	= 1.1	Factor of Sate	ety req	uirea for q	allowable	}-		
	FO	- 1062	k & EQ	v =	1 962	к к	2 775	k for E.	
	COHE-W -	- 1,902		5 -	General F	Rearin	z,rij a Canaci	ty Equation	
$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_s$	$B_{\rm urch} D_{\rm f} N_{\rm g} s_{\rm g} d_{\rm g}$	_q + 1/2 γ Β Ι	N _y s _y d _y i _y		based on	Winte	erkorn &	Fang (1975)	
N	$c = (N_q - 1) \cot(d)$), but = 5.14	l for φ = 0	=	5.14		Eq 3.6 &	Table 3.2	
N	$a = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$	(4 + φ/2)		=	1.00		Eq 3.6		
N	$\gamma = 2 (N_q + 1)$ ta	n (ф)		=	0.00		Eq 3.8		
					4 07		T-1-1-0.0		
S	$_{c} = 1 + (B/L)(N_{q})$ = 1 + (B/L) tan	N _c) ტ	•	=	1.07		able 3.2		
s	u = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)	т		=	0.86				
	- 1 : 2 top + ($1 \sin 4 \sqrt{2} D$	D		1.00		F ~ 0.00		
$\frac{1}{2} \text{Por } D \neq B \leq 1; \ d_{0}$	_q = 1 + 2 ιαπφ (i-sniφ) υ _β	D	=	1.00		Eq 3.20 "		
Earth Ord				-	N1/A				
For $\phi = 0$: d	$c = 0_q \circ (1 - 0_q) / (1 - 0_q)$	¥q tαtiψ)		=	1.06		Ea 3.27		
	$a = (2 \pm B/L) / (1)$	± B/I)		-	1.68		Fa 3 18a		
	= (2 + U/2) / (1	+ U/D)		_	1.00		Eq 2 19h		
	L = (2 + DB) / (1)	+ 00)		-	1.52		EQ 3.100		
If $EQ_{HN-S} > 0$: Θ_{I}	$n = 1an (EQ_{HE-W})$	/ EQ _{HN-S})		=	0.79	rad			
m,	$m = m_{L} \cos^{2} \theta_{n} + $	m _e sinfo _n		=	1.50		Eq 3.18c		
i,	_q = { 1 - F _H / [(F _v	+ EQ _v) + B'	L' c cot	=	1.00		Eq 3.14a		
i	$F_{y} = \{ 1 - F_{H} / [(F_{v}$	+ EQ _v) + B'	$L' c \cot \phi$	=	0.00		Eq 3.17a		
For $\phi = 0$: i	_c = 1 - (m F _H /B	L' c N _c)		=	0.64		Eq 3.16a		
			N _c term		N _q term		N _γ term		
Gross q _u	_{it} = 8,459	psf =	8,188	+	271	+	0		
_ q_	ıı = 7,690	psf = q _{uit} /	FS						
q _{actua}	ai = 3,630	psf = (F _v +	- EQ _v) / (B' x I	L')					
FS _{actua}	al = 2.33	$= q_{ult} / q_{act}$	ual		>	1.1	Hence	ок	
[geot]j05996\calc\brng_ca	ap\Pad\cu_phi.xls								

5010.65

5.17

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER							
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 34					
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6							
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY	OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS B	ASED ON INERTIAL FORCES							
Case IIIA: 40% N-S, -100% Vertical, 40% E-W									
Determine forces ar	nd moments due to e	arthquake.							
	av Wp Wc								
$EQ_V = -100\% \ge 0.1$	533 x (864 K + 2,85	2 K) = -1,981 K							
ан V	Vc								
EQhp = 0.528 x 8	64 K = 456 K								
Normal force at b	ase of the cask =	Cask DL = 2,85	52 K						
— Cas	$sk EQvc = -1. \times 0.53$	3 x 2 ,852 K = - 1,52	$20 \text{ K} = a_v \text{ x Wc}$						
		\Rightarrow Nc = 1,33	32 K						
$\Rightarrow F_{EQ\mu=0.8} = 0.8$	3 x 1,332 K = 1,066	к							
	ан Wc	μ Νς							
EQhc = Minimum	of [0.528 x 2,852 K	(& 0.8 x 1,332K]							
_	1,506 K	1,066K							
Note: Use only 40	0% of the horizontal	earthquake forces i	n this case.						
40% of 1,506 K =	602 K, which is < F	Eg _{µ=0.8} ; therefore, E	Qhc =1,506 K						
40%	of [EQhp EQhc]								
$\Rightarrow EQ_{H N-S} = 0.4$	x [456 K + 1,506 K] = 785 K							
Since horizontal o	components are the	same for this case, I	EQ _{H E·W} = EQ _{H N·S}						
\Rightarrow $F_{H} = \sqrt{EQ^{2}_{H}}$	$\overline{E-W + EQ^2_{HN-S}} = \sqrt{7}$	$(85^2 + 785^2) = 1,110$	οĸ						
Determine moments	s acting on pad due t	to casks.							
See Figure 6 for i	dentification of Δb .	Note: EQvc = 0.533	x 2,852 K = 1,520 K						
Δb.,	$=\frac{9.83' \times EQhc}{2}$	9.83'×0.4×1,506 I	$\frac{X}{2}$ = 4.45 ft						
E-W	Wc + EQvc = 2.8	$352 \mathrm{K} - 1. \times 0.533 \times 2.3$	852 K						
	40% ан W	p 40% EQhc	Δb Wc	EQvc					
$\Sigma M_{@N-S} = 1.$	5' x 0.4 x 0.528 x 86	64 K + 0.4 x 3' x 1,5	06 K + 4.45' x (2,852	K – 1,520 K)					
=	274 ft-K	+ 1,807 ft-K +	5,927 ft-K = 8,008 f	t-K					
The horizontal for	The horizontal forces are the same N-S and E-W for this case; therefore,								
$\Sigma M_{@E-W} = \Sigma I$	$\Sigma M_{@E-W} = \Sigma M_{@N-S} = 8,008 \text{ ft-K}$								
Determine q _{allowable} f	for FS = 1.1.								

· · · · · · · · · · · · ·

5	0	1	٥.	6	5
---	---	---	----	---	---

CALCULATION SHEET

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER									
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION &	GROUP	CALCULATION	NO.	OPTION	IAL TA	SK CODE	PAGE 35	
05996.02	G(B)		04 - 6	<u></u>		•••••			
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY	OF THE CASK STOR	AGE PADS BASED	ON INERTIAL FOR	RCES					
Allowable Bearing Capacity of Cask Storage Pads Inertial Forces									
PSHA 2,000-Yr Earth	nquake: Cas	eIIIA		40	% in X,	-100	% in Y,	40 % in Z	
Soil Properties:	C =	= 2,200 C	ohesion (psf)					
	φ: γ:	= 0.0 F = 80 L	Init weight of	(aegr	ees) (ncf)				
	Ysurch ³	= 100 L	Init weight of	surcl	harge (pcf)				
Foundation Properties:	B'	= 20.8 F	ooting Width	- ft (E	E-W)	Ľ' =	54.8	Length - ft (N-S)	
	D _t :	= 2.7 [Depth of Footi	ing (ft) 			- >	
	EG.	- 24.3 A - 11 F	Ingle of load l	inclina ity rec	ation from v		ai (degree:	5)	
	Fv:	= 3.716 k	EQ		-1.981	allowabi K	e.		
	EQ _{HE-W}	= 785 k	& EQ _{H N-S}	s =	785	k →	1,110	k for F _H	
$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{sul}$	_{rch} D _f N _q s _q d _q	i _q + 1/2 γ Β Ν	l _γ s _γ d _γ i _γ		General E based on	Bearir Wint	ng Capaci erkorn &	ty Equation, Fang (1975)	
N _c :	= (N _q - 1) cot(), but = 5.14	for $\phi = 0$	=	5.14		Eq 3.6 &	Table 3.2	
N _q :	$= e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$	/4 + ¢/2)		=	1.00		Eq 3.6		
N _y :	= 2 (N _q + 1) ta	n (ф)		=	0.00		Eq 3.8		
S _c :	= 1 + (B/L)(N₀/	N _c)		=	1.07		Table 3.2		
Sq	= 1 + (B/L) tan	φ		=	1.00		H		
sγ	= 1 - 0.4 (B/L)			=	0.85				
For $D_f/B \leq 1$: d_q	= 1 + 2 tan φ (1 - sin φ) ² D _r /Ε	3	=	1.00		Eq 3.26		
d _y :	= 1			=	1.00		n		
For $\phi > 0$: \mathbf{d}_{c}	= d _q - (1-d _q) / (N _q tan ø)		=	N/A				
For $\phi = 0$: $\mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{c}}$	= 1 + 0.4 (D _t /B)		=	1.05		Eq 3.27		
m _B :	= (2 + B/L) / (1	+ B/L)		=	1.68		Eq 3.18a		
m _L	= (2 + L/B) / (1	+ L/B)		=	1.32		Eq 3.18b		
If EQ _{H N-S} > 0: θ_n	= tan ⁻¹ (EQ _{H E-W}	/ EQ _{H N-S})		=	0.79	rad			
m _n	$= m_L \cos^2 \theta_n +$	m _B sin ² θ _n		=	1.50		Eq 3.18c		
i _a :	= { 1 - F _H / [(F _v	+ EQ _v) + B' L	' c cot φ] } ^m	=	1.00		Eq 3.14a		
i,	= { 1 - F _H / {(F,	+ EQ,) + B' L	' c cot ø] } ^{m+1}	=	0.00		Eq 3.17a		
For $\phi = 0$: i_c	= 1 - (m F _H /B	L'cN _c)	,	=	0.87		Eq 3.16a		
		•	N _c term		N _a term		N., term		
Gross q _{uit}	= 11,394	psf =	11,123	+	271	+	0		
q _{all}	= 10,350	psf = q _{uit} /	FS						
q _{actual}	= 1,525	psf = (F _v +	EQ _v) / (B' x L	_')					
FS _{actual}	= 7.47	= q _{uit} / q _{actua}	al		>	1.1	Hence (эк	
[geot]j05996\calc\brng_cap	\Pad\cu_phi.xls								

	CALCULATION IDEN	ITIFICATION NUMBER		
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	page 36
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY	OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS E	BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES		
Case IIIB: 40% N	S, -40% Vertical,	100% E-W		
Determine forces ar	nd moments due to e	earthquake.		
	av Wp Wc			
$EQ_v = -40\% \ge 0.5$	33 x (864 K + 2,852	K) = -792 K		
Normal force at ba	ase of the cask =	Cask DL = 2,85	2 K	
— 40% of Cask	$EQvc = -0.4 \ge 0.53$	$3 \times 2,852 \text{ K} = -60$	$8 \text{ K} = 40\% \text{ of } a_{\text{V}} \text{ x}$	Wc
		\Rightarrow Nc = 2,24	4 K	
$\Rightarrow F_{EQ} = 0.8 = 0.8$	$3 \ge 2,224 = 1,795$	K		
-37	We u	Nc		
EObe - Min of 10		$P = 2.244 \text{ Kl} \rightarrow FObc$	- 1 EOG K ginge it i	
EGHC = WHH OF [O.	1,506 K	$2,244 \text{ K} \Rightarrow EQIC1,795K$	= 1,500 K, since it	IS < ΓΕΟμ=0.8
Using 40% of N-S	: 40% of [EQhp	EQhc]		
$\Rightarrow E$	$Q_{HN-S} = 0.4 \text{ x} [456 \text{ K}]$	K + 1,506 K] = 785 K		
Using 100% of E-	W: 100% of [EQhp	EQhc]		
$\Rightarrow E$	$Q_{HEW} = 1.0 \text{ x} [456 \text{ F}]$	K + 1,506 K] = 1,962	K	
		2 10002 . 70	$\overline{r^2}$ 0.110 K	
⇒ F	$H_{\rm H} = \sqrt{EQ^2} HEW + EQ^2$	$H_{\rm HN-S} = \sqrt{1.962^2 + 78}$	$35^{\circ} = 2,113 \mathrm{K}$	
Determine moments	s acting on pad due i	to casks.		
See Figure 6 for id	dentification of Δb .	Note: EQvc = 0.533	x 2,852 K = 1,520 F	X
	9.83'×EQhc	9.83'×1.0×1.506	K	
Δb _{E-W}	$=\frac{1}{Wc+EQvc}=\frac{1}{200}$	852K-0.4×0.533×2	= 6.60 ft 2,852 K	
	100%	100% FOba 4b	Wo 4006 I	
Σ Mayo $= 1$	5' x 0 528 x 864 K	$-3' \times 1506 K + 6.60$	x (2.852 K = 0.4 x 1)	520 K)
210100.5 - 1.				
=	684 R-N -	+ 4,318 II-K +	14,810 II-K = 20.01	.2 IL-K
٨b	$= \frac{9.83' \times 40\% \text{ EQhc}}{100}$	= <u> </u>	506 K = 2.64 ft	
N-S	Wc + EQvc	2,852 K - 0.4 × 0.53	3×2,852 K	
	40% ан Wp	40% EQhc	۵b Wc	40% EQvc
$\Sigma M_{\odot E-W} = 1.5^{\circ}$	x 0.4x0.528 x 864	K + 3' x 0.4x1,506 K	+ 2.64' x (2,852K -	0.4x1,520 K)
=	274 ft-K	+ 1,807 ft-K +	5,924 ft-K = 8,005	ft-K
Determine q _{allowable} f	for FS = 1.1.			

5010.65

· ·

÷ ...

.

.....

5010.65

CALCULATION SHEET

ſ	CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER										
ſ	J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & O	GROUP	CALCULATION	NO.	OPTION.	AL TA	SK CODE	PAGE 37		
ŀ	05996.02	G(B)		04 - 6							
	DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES										
	Allowable Bearing Capacity of Cask Storage Pads Inertial Forces										
	PSHA 2,000-Yr Eart	hquake: Cas	e IIIB		40	% in X,	-40	% in Y,	100 % in Z		
	Soil Properties:	C = ά =	: 2,200 : 0.0	Conesion (ps)) (dear	ees)					
		γ =	- 80	Unit weight of	soil (pcf)					
		Ysurch =	= 100	Unit weight of	surcl	harge (pcf)					
	Foundation Properties:	B' =	- 16.3	Footing Width	- ft (E	E-W)	£' =	58.5	Length - ft (N-S)		
		β=	- 2., = 33.9	Angle of load i	inclina	r ation from v	ertica	al (dearee:	s)		
		FS =	= 1. 1	Factor of Safe	ty req	juired for q	lilowabli	e.	-,		
		F _v =	= 3,716	ik EQ.	v =	-792	k				
		EQ _{H E-W} =	= 1,962	≥k & EQ _{HN-S}	; =	785	k →	2,113	k for F _H		
	$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{st}$	_{urch} D _f N _q s _q d _q i	_q + 1/2 γ Β	$\mathbf{N}_{\gamma} \mathbf{S}_{\gamma} \mathbf{d}_{\gamma} \mathbf{i}_{\gamma}$		General E based on	Searir Wint	ng Capaci erkorn &	ty Equation, Fang (1975)		
	Nc	$= (N_q - 1) \cot(\phi)$), but = 5.1	14 for $\phi = 0$	#	5.14		Eq 3.6 &	Table 3.2		
	Nq	$= e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/$	(4 + φ/2)		æ	1.00		Eq 3.6			
	Ν _γ	$\approx 2 (N_q + 1) ta$	n (ø)		=	0.00		Eq 3.8			
	Sa	$= 1 + (B/L)(N_{a}/I)$	N_)		=	1.05		Table 3.2	2		
	s _q	= 1 + (B/L) tan	φ		=	1.00		Ħ			
	sγ	= 1 - 0.4 (B/L)			=	0.89		۳			
	For D₁/B ≤ 1: dq	$= 1 + 2 \tan \phi$ (1 - sin φ) ² [D _# /B	n	1.00		Eq 3.26			
	ďγ	= 1			=	1.00					
	For $\phi > 0$: d _c	$= d_q - (1 - d_q) / (1$	N _q tan φ)		=	N/A					
	For $\phi = 0$: d_c	$= 1 + 0.4 (D_{f}/B)$)		=	1.07		Eq 3.27			
	m _B	= (2 + B/L) / (1	+ B/L)		=	1.68		Eq 3.18a			
	m _L	= (2 + L/B) / (1	+ L/B)		=	1.32		Eq 3.18b			
	If EQ _{HN-S} > 0: θ_n	= tan ⁻¹ (EQ _{H E·W}	/ EQ _{H N-S})		=	1.19	rad				
	m"	$= m_L \cos^2 \theta_n + r$	m _B sin ² 0 _n		=	1.63		Eq 3.18c			
	ia	$= \{ 1 - F_{H} / [(F_{v})]$	+ EQ _v) + B	' L' c cot φ] } ^m	=	1.00		Eq 3.14a			
	i,	.= { 1 - F _H / [(F _v	+ EQ _v) + B	' L' c cot φ] } ^{m+1}	=	0.00		Eq 3.17a			
	For φ = 0: i	$= 1 - (m F_{\mu} / B')$	L'cN.)		=	0.68		Eg 3.16a			
	· · · · · · · · ·		0/	N. term		N_ term		N. term			
	Gross a	= 8.926	psf =	8,655	+	271	+	0			
	4uk _ q _{ali}	= 8,110	psf = q _{ut}	,/ FS	·		•	•			
	q _{actual}	= 3,062	psf.= (F,	+ EQ _v) / (B' x l	-')						
	FS _{actual}	= 2.92	= q _{uit} / q _a	ctual		>	1.1	Hence	ок		
	[geot]j05996\calc\brng_ca	o\Pad\cu_phi.xls									
CALCULATION SHEET

5010.65

×.__

	CALCULATION IDEN	TIFICATION NUMBER		
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 38
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6	l	
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY O	F THE CASK STORAGE PADS B	ASED ON INERTIAL FORCES		
Case IIIC: 100% N	I-S, -40% Vertical,	40% E-W		
Determine forces and	d moments due to e	arthquake.		
EQv = -40% x 0.53	3 x (864 K + 2,852	K) = -792 K		
Normal force at ba	se of the cask =	Cask DL = 2,85	2 K	
— 40% of Cask	$EQvc = -0.4 \ge 0.53$	$3 \ge 2,852 = -60$	$8 \text{ K} = 40\% \text{ of } a_v x$	Wc
		\Rightarrow Nc = 2,24	4 K	
$\Rightarrow F_{EQ\mu=0.8}=0.8$	x 2,224 K = 1,795	к		
EQhc = Min of [0.5	ан Wc µ 28 x 2,852 K & 0.8 1,506 K 1	^{Nc} 8 x 2,244 K] ⇒ EQho ,795K	c = 1,506 K, since it :	is < $F_{EQ \mu=0.8}$
Using 100% of N-S	:			
100%	of [EQhp EQhc]			
\Rightarrow EQ _{H N·S} = 1.0	x [456 K + 1,506 K] = 1,962 K		
Using 40% of E-W				
40% c	f [EQhp EQhc]			
$\Rightarrow EQ_{H E \cdot W} = 0.4$	x [456 K + 1,506 K	[] = 785 K		
$\Rightarrow F_{\rm H} = \sqrt{EQ^2_{\rm HE}}$	$-w + EQ^2_{HN-S} = \sqrt{7}$	$(85^2 + 1,962^2) = 2,1$	13 K	
Determine moments	acting on pad due t	to casks		
See Figure 6 for id	entification of Δb .	Note: EQvc = 0.5	533 x 2,852 K = 1,52	0 K
Δb _{ε-w} :	$=\frac{9.83'\times40\%\text{EQhc}}{\text{Wc}+\text{EQvc}}$	$=\frac{9.83\times0.4\times1}{2,852\mathrm{K}-0.4\times0.5}$	$\frac{1,506 \mathrm{K}}{33 \times 2,852 \mathrm{K}} = 2.64 \mathrm{fm}$	t
	40% а _н Wp	40% EQhc	Δb Wc	40% EQvc
$\Sigma M_{@N-S} = 1.5$	x 0.4x0.528 x 864]	K + 3' x 0.4x1,506 K	(+ 2.64' x (2,852K –	0.4x1,520 K)
=	274 ft-K -	+ 1,807 ft-K +	5,924 ft-K = 8,005	ft-K
∆b _{N-S} =	$\frac{9.83' \times EQhc}{Wc + EQvc} = \frac{1}{2.8}$	9.83'×1.0×1,506 k 52 K - 0.4×0.533×2	$\frac{K}{852 \mathrm{K}} = 6.60 \mathrm{ft}$	
	100% ан Wp	100% EQhc 🛛 🛆 b	Wc 40%	EQvc
$\Sigma M_{@E-W} = 1.5$	' x 0.528 x 864 K +	- 3' x 1,506 K + 6.60) x (2,852K – 0.4 x 1	,520 K)
=	684 ft-K -	+ 4,518 ft-K +	14,810 ft-K = 20,01	2 ft-K
Determine q _{allowable} fo	or FS = 1.1.			

...

..

CALCULATION SHEET

5010.65

~

	CALCULATI	ON IDENTI	ICATION NUME	BER				
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & C	ROUP	CALCULATION	NO.	OPTION	AL TA	SK CODE	page 39
05996.02	G(B)		04 - 6			_		
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY C	F THE CASK STORA	GE PADS BASE	D ON INERTIAL FOR	CES				
Allowable Bearing	Capacity of	f Cask St	orage Pads	Iner	tial Forc	es		
PSHA 2,000-Yr Earth	quake: Cas	e IIIC		100	% in X,	-40	% in Y,	40 % in Z
Soil Properties:	C =	- 2,200	Cohesion (psf)				
	¢ =	- 0.0	Friction Angle	(degr	rees)			
	γ=	= 80	Unit weight of	soil (pct) horea (naf)			
Equindation Properties:	Ysurch =	- 245	Eooting Width	- ft /F	narge (pcr) =_\\/\	1'-	50.3	Leogth - ft (N-S)
roundation riopentes.	D, =	- 24.5	Depth of Footi	na (ft)	L	50.5	Length - It (N-O)
	β =	= 15.0	Angle of load i	inclina	r ation from v	vertica	al (degree	s)
	FS =	- 1.1	Factor of Safe	ty req	uired for q	allowable		•
	F _V =	= 3,716	k EQ	v =	-792	k		
	EQ _{H E•W} =	- 785	k & EQ _{H N-S}	; =	1,962	k · →	2,113	k for F _H
$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{sur}$	_{ch} D _f N _q s _q d _q i	_q + 1/2 γ Β	$N_{\gamma} s_{\gamma} d_{\gamma} i_{\gamma}$		General E based on	Bearin Wint	ig Capaci erkorn &	ity Equation, Fang (1975)
N _c =	= (N _q - 1) cot(¢), but = 5.14	4 for φ = 0	=	5.14		Eq 3.6 &	Table 3.2
N _q =	₌ e ^{π tanφ} tan ² (π/	4 + φ/2)		=	1.00		Eq 3.6	
Ν _γ =	= 2 (N _q + 1) tai	n (þ)		=	0.00		Eq 3.8	
S _c =	$= 1 + (B/L)(N_q/I)$	N _c)	•	=	1.09		Table 3.2	<u>}</u>
Sq =	= 1 + (D/L) (an)	φ		=	1.00			
s _γ :	= 1 - 0.4 (B/L)	_		=	0.81			
For D _f /B <u><</u> 1: d _q =	= 1 + 2 tan φ (*	$(1 - \sin \phi)^2 D$	_f ∕B	=	1.00		Eq 3.26	
d _γ =	= 1			=	1.00		**	
For $\phi > 0$: $\mathbf{d}_{c} =$	= d _q - (1-d _q) / (1	N _q tan φ)		=	N/A			
For $\phi = 0$: $d_c =$	= 1 + 0.4 (D _f /B)			=	1.04		Eq 3.27	
m _B =	= (2 + B/L) / (1	+ B/L)		=	1.68		Eq 3.18a	(
m _L :	= (2 + L/B) / (1	+ L/B)		=	1.32		Eq 3.18b)
If EQ _{HNS} > 0: $\theta_{\rm p}$ =	= tan ⁻¹ (EQ _{H E-W}	/ EQ _{H N-S})		=	0.38	rad		
m	$-m_c \cos^2\theta_c + r$	$n_{\rm e} \sin^2 \theta$		_	1 37		Eq 3 18c	
····n -			17		1.07		Eq 0.100	
 	= { 1 - F _H / [(F _v	+ EQ _v) + B		=	1.00		Eq 3.14a	
i _y :	= { 1 - F _H / [(F _v	+ EQ _v) + B'	L' c cot ø] }"""	=	0.00		Eq 3.17a	1
For $\phi = 0$: $i_c =$	= 1 - (m F _H / B'	L' c N _c)		=	0.79		Eq 3.16a	•
			N _c term		N _q term		N _y term	
Gross q _{uit} :	= 10,518	psf =	10,247	÷	271	+	0	
_ q _{all} =	= 9,560	psf = q _{uit}	/FS					
q _{actual} :	= 2,369	psf = (F _v	+ EQ _v) / (B' x L	_')				
FS _{actual} =	= 4.44	$= q_{ult} / q_{ac}$	tual		>	1.1	Hence	ок
[geot]j05996\calc\brng_cap\	Pad\cu_phi.xls							

CALCULATION SHEET

•••••

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER	. 10
J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE	40
	<u> </u>
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STOKAGE PADS BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES	
Case IVA: 40% N-S, 100% Vertical, 40% E-W	
Determine forces and moments due to earthquake.	
av Wp Wc	
$EQ_V = 100\% \ge 0.533 \ge (864 \text{ K} + 2,852 \text{ K}) = 1.981 \text{ K}$	
ан Wc	
$EQhp = 0.528 \times 864 K = 456 K$	
Normal force at base of the cask = $Cask DL = 2,852 K$	
+ Cask EQvc = 1. x 0.533 x 2,852 K = + 1,520 K = $a_v x Wc$	
\Rightarrow Nc = 3,498 K	
\Rightarrow F _{EQ µ=0.8} = 0.8 x 4,372 K = 3,498 K	
au We II Ne	
$EOhc = Min of [0.528 x 2.852 K & 0.8 x 4.372 K] \Rightarrow EQhc = 1.506 K, since it is < F_{EO}_{H}$	0.8
1,506 K 3,498K	
40% of Fohn Fohn	
$\Rightarrow E_{\text{Curve}} = 0.4 \text{ x} [456 \text{ K} + 1.506 \text{ K}] = 785 \text{ K}$	
$ = \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum_{j=1}^{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \sum$	
Since norizontal components are the same for this case. EQHE.W = EQHN.S	
$\Rightarrow F_{\rm H} = \sqrt{EQ^2_{\rm HE-W} + EQ^2_{\rm HN-S}} = \sqrt{785^2 + 785^2} = 1,110 \rm K$	
Determine moments acting on pad due to casks.	-
See Figure 6 for identification of Δb . Note: EQvc = 0.533 x 2.852 K = 1.520 K	
9.83'×EQhc 9.83'×0.4×1.506K	
$\Delta b_{E-W} = \frac{1.35 \text{ ft}}{Wc + EQvc} = \frac{1.35 \text{ ft}}{2,852 \text{ K} + 1. \times 0.533 \times 2,852 \text{ K}} = 1.35 \text{ ft}$	
40% a _H Wp 40% EQhc Δb Wc EQ	vc
$\Sigma M_{\text{@N-S}} = 1.5^{\circ} \times 0.4 \times 0.528 \times 864 \text{ K} + 0.4 \times 3^{\circ} \times 1,506 \text{ K} + 1.35^{\circ} \times (2,852 \text{ K} + 1,520 \text{ K})$) K)
= 274 ft-K + 1,807 ft-K + 5,921 ft-K = 8,002 ft-K	
The horizontal forces are the same N-S and E-W for this case; therefore,	
$\Sigma M_{\varnothing E-W} = \Sigma M_{\varnothing N-S} = 8,002 \text{ ft-K}$	
Determine $q_{allowable}$ for $r = 1.1$.	

•~.

5010.65

5010.65

•••••

· • • • •

	CALCULAT	ION IDEN	TIFICATION NUM	IBER				
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION &	GROUP	CALCULATIO	N NO.	OPTIO	NAL T	ASK CODE	PAGE 41
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6					
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY O	F THE CASK STOP	AGE PADS BA	ASED ON INERTIAL FO	RCES				
Allowable Bearing	Capacity o	of Cask S	Storage Pade	s Ine	rtial For	ces		
PSHA 2,000-Yr Earth	quake: Cas	e IVA		40	% in X,	100	% in Y,	40 % in Z
Soil Properties:	с	= 2,20	00 Cohesion (ps	f)				
	φ	= 0	.0 Friction Angle	e (deg	rees)			
	۲ ۲	= { - 1(30 Unit weight of	f soil f suire	(pcf)	`		
Foundation Properties:	Isurch R'	- IL - 27	2 Ecoting Width	i surc h_ft/l	narge (pcr ≓₋wn) 1'-	61 2	Longth (N.S.)
r oundation r ropentes.	D,	- 2	.7 Depth of Foot	tina (fi	vv) t)	L -	. 01.2	cengin - it (i4-5)
	β	= 7	.8 Angle of load	inclin	ation from	vertic	al (deoree:	s)
	FS	- 1	.1 Factor of Safe	ety red	quired for a	allowab	le.	-,
	Fv	= 3,71	16 k EC	2 _v =	1,981	k		
	EQ _{H E-W}	= 78	35 k & EQ _{HN} .	s =	785	k	1,110	k for F _н
$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{surc}$	_h D _f N _q s _q đ _q	i _q + 1/2 γ	$BN_{Y}s_{Y}d_{Y}i_{Y}$		General based or	Beari Wint	ng Capaci terkorn &	ty Equation, Fang (1975)
N _c =	(N _q - 1) cot(φ), but = 5	.14 for $\phi = 0$	=	5.14		Eq 3.6 &	Table 3.2
N _q =	$e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$	/4 + φ/2)		H	1.00		Eq 3.6	
Ν _γ =	2 (N _q + 1) ta	ın (φ)		=	0.00		Eq 3.8	
s. =	$1 + (B/L)(N_{*})$	N_)		_	1 09		Table 3.2	
S _n =	1 + (B/L) tan	ф		=	1.00		1 abie 0.2	
s _γ =	1 - 0.4 (B/L)			=	0.82		n	
For D _f /B ≤ 1: d _o =	1+2 tan ¢ (1 - sin φ) ²	D∤B	=	1.00		Ea 3.26	
d _γ =	1			8	1.00		, ,	
For $\phi > 0$: $d_c =$	$d_{q} - (1 - d_{q}) / ($	N _o tan φ)		=	N/A			
For $\phi = 0$: $d_c =$	1 + 0.4 (D _f /B)		=	1.04		Eq 3.27	
т _в =	(2 + B/L) / (1	+ B/L)		=	1.68		Eq 3.18a	
m _L =	(2 + L/B) / (1	+ L/B)		=	1.32		Eq 3.18b	
lf EQ _{H N·S} > 0: θ _n =	tan ⁻¹ (EQ _{H E-W}	/ EQ _{H N-S})	I	=	0.7 9	rad		
m _n =	$m_L \cos^2 \theta_n + i$	m _B sin ² 8 _n		=	1.50		Eq 3.18c	
i _q =	${1 - F_H / [(F_v$	+ EQ _v) + I	B' L' c cot	=	1.00		Eq 3.14a	
i _γ =	${1 - F_H / [(F_v$	+ EQ _v) + I	B' L' c cot	=	0.00		Eq 3.17a	
For $\phi = 0$: $i_c =$	1 - (m F _H /B	L' c N _c)		=	0.91		Eq 3.16a	
			N _c term		N _q term		N _γ term	
Gross q _{uit} =	11,915	psf =	11,645	+	271	+	0	
, q _{alt} =	10,830	psf = q _u	_{lit} / FS					
q _{actual} =	3,424	psf = (F	v + EQ _v) / (B' x l	L')				
FS _{actual} =	3.48	= q _{uit} / q	actual		>	1.1	Hence C	ж
[geot]j05996\calc\brng_cap\P	ad\cu_phi.xls							

_

CALCULATION SHEET

	CALCULATION IDEN	ITIFICATION NUMBER		2105 40
J.O. OR W.O. NO.	DIVISION & GROUP	CALCULATION NO.	OPTIONAL TASK CODE	PAGE 42
05996.02	G(B)	04 - 6		
DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY	OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS E	BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES		
Case IVB: 40% N	I-S, 40% Vertical, 1	.00% E-W		
Determine forces a	nd moments due to e	arthquake.		
av EQv = 0.4 x 0.533	^{Wp} Wc 3 x (864 K + 2,852 K	.) = 792 K		
Normal force at b	ase of the cask =	Cask DL = 2,85	2 K	
+ 40% of Cask	c EQvc = +0.4 x 0.53	$3 \times 2,852 \text{ K} = +60$ $\Rightarrow \text{ Nc} = 3,46$	$8 \text{ K} = 40\% \text{ of } a_V x$	Wc
$\Rightarrow F_{EQ\mu=0.8}=0.8$	8 x 3,460 K = 2,768	K		
EQhc = Min of [0.	ан Wc µ .528 x 2,852 K & 0.8 1,506 K 2	^{Nc} 3 x 3,460 K] ⇒ EQhc 2,768K	2 = 1,506 K, since it i	is < $F_{EQ \mu=0.8}$
Using 40% of N-S	5:			
40%	of [EQhp EQhc]			
$\Rightarrow EQ_{H N-S} = 0.4$	4 x [456 K + 1,506 K	.] = 785 K		
Using 100% of E-	·W:			
100%	% of [EQhp EQhc]			
$\Rightarrow EQ_{HE-W} = 1.$	0 x [456 K + 1,506 K	[] = 1,962 K		
\Rightarrow $F_{\rm H} = \sqrt{EQ^2_{\rm H}}$	$\overline{1E-W + EQ^2_{HN-S}} = \sqrt{1}$	$,962^2 + 785^2 = 2,11$	13 K	
Determine moment	s acting on pad due t	to casks		
See Figure 6 for i	dentification of Δb .	Note: EQvc = 0.533	x 2,852 K = 1,520 F	2
∆b _{e-w}	$=\frac{9.83'\times EQhc}{Wc+EQvc}=\frac{1}{2.8}$	9.83'×1.0×1,506 H 352 K+0.4×0.533×2	$\frac{K}{2,852\mathrm{K}} = 4.28\mathrm{ft}$	
	100% ан Wp	100% EQhc ∆b	Wc 40% I	Egve
$\Sigma M_{@N-S} = 1$.5' x 0.528 x 864 K +	+ 3' x 1,506 K + 4.28	' x (2,852K + 0.4 x 1	,520 K)
=	684 ft-K ·	+ 4,518 ft-K +	14,810 ft-K = 20,01	2 ft-K
Δb _{N-S}	$= \frac{9.83 \times 40\% \text{ EQhc}}{\text{Wc} + \text{EQvc}}$	$=\frac{9.83^{\circ}\times0.4\times1,}{2,852\mathrm{K}+0.4\times0.53^{\circ}}$	$\frac{506 \mathrm{K}}{33 \times 2,852 \mathrm{K}} = 1.71 \mathrm{ft}$	
	40% ан Wp	40% EQhc	Δb Wc	40% EQvc
$\Sigma M_{@E-W} = 1.5$	' x 0.4x0.528 x 864	K + 3' x 0.4x1,506 K	(+ 1.71' x (2,852K +	0.4x1,520 K)
=	274 ft-K	+ 1,807 ft-K +	5,917 ft-K = 7,998	ft-K

Determine $q_{allowable}$ for FS = 1.1.

.

5010.65

...

~~~

## CALCULATION SHEET

5010.65

\_. ^

|                                                | CALCULAT                                                   | ION IDENTIF                       | ICATION NUM                                   | BER     |                     |         |                     | 40                |
|------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|---------|---------------------|---------|---------------------|-------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                               | DIVISION &                                                 | GROUP                             | CALCULATION                                   | INO.    | OPTION              | AL T    | ASK CODE            | PAGE 43           |
| 05996.02                                       | G(B)                                                       |                                   | 04 - 6                                        |         |                     |         |                     |                   |
| DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF                    | THE CASK STORA                                             | GE PADS BASE                      | D ON INERTIAL FOR                             | CES     |                     |         |                     |                   |
| Allowable Bearing C                            | Capacity of                                                | f Cask St                         | orage Pads                                    | Iner    | tial Forc           | es      |                     |                   |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Earthq                           | uake: Cas                                                  | e IVB                             |                                               | 40      | % in X,             | 40      | % in Y,             | 100 % in Z        |
| Soil Properties:                               | C =                                                        | - 2,200                           | Cohesion (psf                                 | )       |                     |         |                     |                   |
|                                                | φ=<br>ν-                                                   | = 0.0<br>- 90                     | Friction Angle                                | (degi   | rees)<br>(pof)      |         |                     |                   |
|                                                | Ysurch =                                                   | - 80                              | Unit weight of                                | surc    | harge (pcf)         | 1       |                     |                   |
| Foundation Properties:                         | B' =                                                       | = 21.1                            | Footing Width                                 | - ft (E | E-W)                | L' =    | 60.5                | Length - ft (N-S) |
|                                                | D <sub>f</sub> =                                           | = 2.7                             | Depth of Footi                                | ing (ft | :)                  |         |                     |                   |
|                                                | β =                                                        | = 23.5                            | Angle of load i                               | inclin  | ation from          | vertic  | al (degree          | s)                |
|                                                | FS =                                                       | = 1.1<br>- 2.716                  | Factor of Safe                                | ty rec  | quirea for q        | allowab | ie•                 |                   |
|                                                | FOurwa                                                     | - 3,710                           |                                               | v       | 792                 | к<br>к  | 2 113               | k for Eu          |
|                                                | H E-W                                                      | 1,002                             | 11 01 CHN-5                                   | >       | General F           | Beari   | ng Capaci           | ty Equation.      |
| $q_{uit} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{surch}$ | $D_f N_q s_q d_q i$                                        | <sub>q</sub> + 1/2 γ Β            | $N_{\gamma} s_{\gamma} d_{\gamma} i_{\gamma}$ |         | based on            | Win     | terkorn &           | Fang (1975)       |
| N <sub>c</sub> =                               | (N <sub>q</sub> - 1) cot(¢                                 | ), but = 5.14                     | 4 for φ = 0                                   | =       | 5.14                |         | Eq 3.6 &            | Table 3.2 ·       |
| N <sub>q</sub> =                               | $e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/$                            | 4 + ¢/2)                          |                                               | =       | 1.00                |         | Eq 3.6              |                   |
| Ν <sub>γ</sub> = 1                             | 2 (N <sub>q</sub> + 1) tai                                 | n (ф)                             |                                               | =       | 0.00                |         | Eq 3.8              |                   |
|                                                | 4. 707 VNL /                                               |                                   |                                               |         | 1 07                |         | T-51-0.0            |                   |
| $S_c =$                                        | 1 + (B/L)(1Nq/1)<br>1 + (B/L) tan                          | ∿c/<br>¢                          |                                               | =       | 1.07                |         | 1 able 3.2          |                   |
| S <sub>4</sub> =                               | 1 - 0.4 (B/L)                                              |                                   |                                               | =       | 0.86                |         | ų                   |                   |
| For D/R < 1, d =                               | 1 . 2 tan 4 ('                                             | $t = \sin \phi^2 D$               | (D                                            |         | 1 00                |         | 5~ 2.06             |                   |
| $  FOID_{\psi}B \leq 1: d_q = d = d = d$       | 1 + 2 ιαιίψ (<br>1                                         | r-sπφ) D <sub>1</sub>             | 0                                             | -       | 1.00                |         | EQ 3.26             |                   |
| $G_{\gamma} = G_{\gamma}$                      | י<br>ק (1.d.)//                                            | 1 top 4)                          |                                               | -       | N1/A                |         |                     |                   |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c = 0$                     | u <sub>q</sub> - (1-u <sub>q</sub> ) / (1<br>1 + 0.4 (D√B) | Ng tan ψ)                         |                                               | =       | 1.05                |         | Ea 3.27             |                   |
| m <sub>n</sub> =                               | (2 ± B/L) / (1                                             | + B/L)                            |                                               | _       | 1.68                |         | Eq 3 18a            |                   |
|                                                | (2 + U(2)) / (1)                                           | · 1/D)                            |                                               | _       | 1.00                |         | Eq 0.104            |                   |
| un∟ = 1                                        | (2 + 0.0) / (1)                                            |                                   |                                               | =       | 1.32                |         | EQ 3. 160           |                   |
| If $EQ_{HN-S} > 0$ : $\theta_n = 1$            | an (EQ <sub>HE-W</sub>                                     | / EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> )           |                                               | =       | 1.19                | rad     |                     |                   |
| m <sub>n</sub> =                               | m <sub>L</sub> cos <sup>ε</sup> θ <sub>n</sub> + r         | n <sub>B</sub> sinfθ <sub>n</sub> |                                               | =       | 1.63                |         | Eq 3.18c            |                   |
| i <sub>q</sub> = -                             | { 1 - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub>                    | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B'          | L' c cot                                      | =       | 1.00                |         | Eq 3.14a            |                   |
| i <sub>y</sub> = -                             | { 1 - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub>                    | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B'          | L' c cot                                      | =       | 0.00                |         | Eq 3.17a            |                   |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $i_c =$                       | 1 - (m F <sub>H</sub> /B'                                  | L'cN <sub>c</sub> )               |                                               | =       | 0.76                |         | Eq 3.16a            |                   |
|                                                |                                                            |                                   | N <sub>c</sub> term                           |         | N <sub>e</sub> term |         | N <sub>r</sub> term |                   |
| Gross q <sub>uit</sub> =                       | 9,937                                                      | psf =                             | 9,666                                         | +       | 271                 | +       | 0                   |                   |
| q <sub>all</sub> =                             | 9,030                                                      | psf = q <sub>uit</sub>            | FS                                            |         |                     |         |                     |                   |
| q <sub>actual</sub> =                          | 3,530                                                      | psf = (F <sub>v</sub> -           | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x L                 | .')     |                     |         |                     |                   |
| FS <sub>actual</sub> =                         | 2.81                                                       | $= q_{ult} / q_{act}$             | ual                                           |         | >                   | 1.1     | Hence (             | ж                 |
| [geot]j05996\calc\brng_cap\Pa                  | id\cu_phi.xls                                              |                                   |                                               |         |                     |         |                     |                   |

### CALCULATION SHEET

|                                           | CALCULATION IDEM                                            | ITIFICATION NUMBER                                                    |                                                                     |                                        |
|-------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                          | DIVISION & GROUP                                            | CALCULATION NO.                                                       | OPTIONAL TASK CODE                                                  | PAGE 44                                |
| 05996.02                                  | G(B)                                                        | 04 - 6                                                                |                                                                     |                                        |
| DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY                  | OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS E                                  | BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES                                              |                                                                     |                                        |
| Case IVC: 100%                            | N-S, 40% Vertical,                                          | 40% E-W                                                               |                                                                     |                                        |
| Determine forces a                        | nd moments due to e                                         | earthquake.                                                           |                                                                     |                                        |
| av<br>EQv = 0.4 x 0.533                   | <sup>Wp</sup> Wc<br>3 x (864 K + 2,852 K                    | ) = 792 K                                                             |                                                                     |                                        |
| Normal force at b                         | ase of the cask =                                           | Cask DL = 2,85                                                        | 2 K                                                                 |                                        |
| + 40% of Casl                             | $x = -0.4 \times 0.53$                                      | $3 \times 2,852 \text{ K} = +60$                                      | 8 K = 40% of a <sub>v</sub> x                                       | Wc                                     |
| $\rightarrow$ Fra $\alpha = 0.1$          | 8 x 3 460 K - 2 768                                         | ⇒ Nc = 3,46                                                           | 0 K                                                                 |                                        |
| $\rightarrow$ 1 EQ $\mu$ =0.8 – 0.0       | 5 A 5,400 IX = 2,700                                        | IX No.                                                                |                                                                     |                                        |
| EChe - Min of 10                          |                                                             |                                                                       |                                                                     |                                        |
| Eqnc = $\min \text{ or } [0]$             | 1,506 K 2,                                                  | 768 K                                                                 | c = 1,506 K, since it i                                             | lS < r <sub>E</sub> g <sub>µ≖0.8</sub> |
| Using 100% of N-                          | S:                                                          |                                                                       |                                                                     |                                        |
| $\Rightarrow EQ_{H N-S} = 1.0$            | 6 of [EQhp EQhc]<br>) x [456 K + 1,506 K                    | ] = 1,962 K                                                           |                                                                     |                                        |
| Using 40% of E-V                          | V:                                                          |                                                                       |                                                                     |                                        |
| 40%                                       | of [EQhp EQhc]                                              |                                                                       |                                                                     |                                        |
| $\Rightarrow EQ_{H E \cdot W} = 0.4$      | 4 x (456 K + 1,506 F                                        | <b>[] =</b> 785 K                                                     |                                                                     |                                        |
| $\Rightarrow$ $F_{H} = \sqrt{EQ^{2}_{H}}$ | $\overline{E-W + EQ^2_{HN-S}} = \sqrt{7}$                   | $785^2 + 1,962^2 = 2,11$                                              | 13 K                                                                |                                        |
| Determine moments                         | s acting on pad due i                                       | to casks                                                              |                                                                     |                                        |
| See Figure 6 for i                        | dentification of ∆b.                                        | Note: EQvc = $0.5$                                                    | 33 x 2,852 K = 1,520                                                | ОК                                     |
| Δb <sub>ε-w</sub>                         | $=\frac{9.83'\times40\%\text{EQhc}}{\text{Wc}+\text{EQvc}}$ | $=\frac{9.83^{\circ}\times0.4\times1}{2.852\mathrm{K}+0.4\times0.53}$ | $\frac{506 \text{ K}}{33 \times 2.852 \text{ K}} = 1.71 \text{ ft}$ |                                        |
|                                           | 40% or Wo                                                   | 40% EOba                                                              | Ab Wo                                                               | 40% F.C.                               |
| $\Sigma M_{evs} = 1.5$                    | $10\% a_{\rm H} = wp$                                       | 40% Egnc<br>K + 3' x 0 4x1 506 K                                      | $\pm 1.71' \times 12.852K \pm$                                      | (4x) = 520  K                          |
| =                                         | 274 ft-K                                                    | + 1,807 ft-K +                                                        | 5,917  ft-K = 7,998  ft                                             | 6.4x1,020 H)                           |
|                                           | 9.83'×EObc                                                  | 9 83'x1 0x1506F                                                       | ζ                                                                   |                                        |
| Δb <sub>N-S</sub>                         | $=\frac{3.00 \times Dgile}{Wc + EQvc} = \frac{1}{2.8}$      | $352 \text{ K} + 0.4 \times 0.533 \times 2$                           | $\frac{1}{852 \text{ K}} = 4.28 \text{ ft}$                         |                                        |
|                                           | 100% ан Wp                                                  | 100% EQhc 🛛 🛆 b                                                       | Wc 40% B                                                            | EQvc                                   |
| $\Sigma M_{\&E-W} = 1.$                   | 5' x 0.528 x 864 K +                                        | - 3' x 1,506 K + 4.28                                                 | ' x (2,852K + 0.4 x 1                                               | ,520 K)                                |
| =                                         | 684 ft-K                                                    | + 4,518 ft-K +                                                        | 14,808 ft-K = 20,01                                                 | 0 ft-K                                 |
| Determine q <sub>allowable</sub> j        | for FS = 1.1.                                               |                                                                       |                                                                     |                                        |

5010.65

·····

• •

### CALCULATION SHEET

5010.65

.....

|                                             | CALCULATI                                                                     | ON IDENTI                         | FICATION NUME                                                                                    | BER     |                       |                  |                      |                             |
|---------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------|-----------------------|------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                            | DIVISION &                                                                    | GROUP                             | CALCULATION                                                                                      | NO.     | OPTION                | AL TA            | SK CODE              | PAGE 45                     |
| 05996.02                                    | G(B)                                                                          | {                                 | 04 - 6                                                                                           |         |                       |                  |                      |                             |
| DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY                    | OF THE CASK STORA                                                             | GE PADS BAS                       | ED ON INERTIAL FOR                                                                               | CES     |                       |                  |                      |                             |
| Allowable Bearing                           | J Capacity of                                                                 | f Cask St                         | torage Pads                                                                                      | Iner    | tial Forc             | es               |                      |                             |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Eart                          | hquake: Cas                                                                   | e IVC                             |                                                                                                  | 100     | % in X,               | 40               | % in Y,              | 40 % in Z                   |
| Soil Properties:                            | C =                                                                           | - 2,200                           | Cohesion (psf                                                                                    | )       |                       |                  |                      |                             |
|                                             | φ =                                                                           | = 0.0                             | Friction Angle                                                                                   | (degr   | rees)                 |                  |                      |                             |
|                                             | γ=<br>∕                                                                       | - 100                             | Unit weight of                                                                                   | SOIL (  | pci)<br>parge (ncf)   |                  |                      |                             |
| Foundation Properties:                      | · B' =                                                                        | = 26.5                            | 5 Footing Width                                                                                  | - ft (E | -W)                   | L' = :           | 55.1                 | Lenath - ft (N-S)           |
|                                             | <br>D <sub>1</sub> =                                                          | = 2.7                             | 7 Depth of Footi                                                                                 | ng (ft) | )                     | _                |                      | 20.13.1.1.1                 |
|                                             | β =                                                                           | - 9.9                             | Angle of load i                                                                                  | inclina | ation from v          | vertica          | l (degree            | s)                          |
|                                             | FS =                                                                          | - 1.1                             | Factor of Safe                                                                                   | ty req  | uired for q           | allowable        |                      |                             |
|                                             | F <sub>v</sub> =                                                              | = 3,716                           | sk EQ                                                                                            | v =     | 792                   | k                |                      |                             |
|                                             | EQ <sub>HE-W</sub> =                                                          | - 785                             | 5 k & EQ <sub>HN-S</sub>                                                                         | ; =     | 1,962                 | k →              | 2,113                | k for F <sub>H</sub>        |
| $q_{uit} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{st}$ | <sub>urch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i | <sub>q</sub> + 1/2 γ Β            | $\mathbf{B}  \mathbf{N}_{\gamma}  \mathbf{S}_{\gamma}  \mathbf{d}_{\gamma}  \mathbf{i}_{\gamma}$ |         | General E<br>based on | Bearing<br>Winte | g Capaci<br>erkorn & | ty Equation,<br>Fang (1975) |
| N <sub>c</sub>                              | $= (N_q - 1) \cot(4$                                                          | ), but = 5.1                      | 14 for φ = 0                                                                                     | =       | 5.14                  | i                | Eq 3.6 &             | Table 3.2                   |
| Nq                                          | $= e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/$                                             | '4 + φ/2)                         |                                                                                                  | =       | 1.00                  | I                | Eq 3.6               |                             |
| N <sub>Y</sub>                              | $= 2 (N_q + 1) ta$                                                            | n (ф)                             |                                                                                                  | =       | 0.00                  | I                | Eq 3.8               |                             |
| Sa                                          | = 1 + (B/L)(N <sub>a</sub> /                                                  | N_}                               |                                                                                                  | =       | 1.09                  |                  | Table 3.2            | 2                           |
| Sa Sa                                       | $= 1 + (B/L) \tan(1 - 1)$                                                     | ф                                 |                                                                                                  | =       | 1.00                  |                  | "                    |                             |
| s <sub>r</sub>                              | = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)                                                               |                                   |                                                                                                  | =       | U.81                  |                  | **                   |                             |
| For D/B < 1; d.                             | = 1 + 2 tan o (                                                               | 1 - sin φ) <sup>2</sup> [         | D/B                                                                                              | =       | 1.00                  |                  | Ea 3.26              |                             |
| d <sub>y</sub>                              | ,= 1                                                                          | ,                                 | - <b>r -</b>                                                                                     | =       | 1.00                  |                  |                      |                             |
| For $\phi > 0$ : d <sub>c</sub>             | $= d_{q} - (1 - d_{q}) / (l)$                                                 | N₀ tan φ)                         |                                                                                                  | =       | N/A                   |                  |                      |                             |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c$                      | $= 1 + 0.4 (D_f/B)$                                                           | )                                 |                                                                                                  | Ξ       | 1.04                  |                  | Eq 3.27              |                             |
| m <sub>B</sub>                              | = (2 + B/L) / (1                                                              | + B/L)                            |                                                                                                  | =       | 1.68                  |                  | Eq 3.18a             |                             |
| m <sub>L</sub>                              | = (2 + L/B) / (1                                                              | + L/B)                            |                                                                                                  | H       | 1.32                  |                  | Eq 3.18b             | I.                          |
| lf EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0: θ <sub>n</sub>  | = tan <sup>-1</sup> (EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                                      | / EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> )           |                                                                                                  | =       | 0.38                  | rad              |                      |                             |
| m <sub>n</sub>                              | $f = m_L \cos^2 \theta_n + r$                                                 | m <sub>e</sub> sin²θ <sub>n</sub> |                                                                                                  | =       | 1.37                  |                  | Eq 3.18c             |                             |
| ia                                          | $_{\rm H} = \{ 1 - F_{\rm H} / [(F_{\rm v}$                                   | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B           | 3' L' c cot φ] } <sup>m</sup>                                                                    | =       | 1.00                  |                  | Eq 3.14a             |                             |
| i,                                          | $_{r} = \{ 1 - F_{H} / [(F_{v}$                                               | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B           | 5' L' c cot φ] } <sup>m+1</sup>                                                                  | =       | 0.00                  |                  | Eq 3.17a             |                             |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $i_c$                      | ; = 1 - (m F <sub>H</sub> / Β'                                                | L' c N <sub>c</sub> )             |                                                                                                  | =       | 0.82                  |                  | Eq 3.16a             |                             |
|                                             |                                                                               |                                   | N <sub>c</sub> term                                                                              |         | N <sub>q</sub> term   |                  | N <sub>y</sub> term  |                             |
| Gross q <sub>uit</sub>                      | t = 10,882                                                                    | psf =                             | 10,612                                                                                           | +       | 271                   | +                | 0                    |                             |
| _ q <sub>all</sub>                          | = 9,890                                                                       | psf = q <sub>uti</sub>            | t/FS                                                                                             |         |                       |                  |                      |                             |
| Pactual                                     | = 3,092                                                                       | psf = (F <sub>v</sub>             | , + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x L                                                                  | _')     |                       |                  |                      |                             |
| FS <sub>actual</sub>                        | = 3.52                                                                        | $= q_{ult} / q_a$                 | ictual                                                                                           |         | >                     | 1.1              | Hence                | эк                          |
| [geot]i05996\calc\brng_ca                   | o\Pad\cu_phi.xls                                                              |                                   |                                                                                                  |         |                       |                  |                      |                             |

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | B105 40 |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 40 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6            |                    |         |

DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS BASED ON INERTIAL FORCES

5010.65

As indicated in Table 2.6-7, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the cask storage pads to obtain a factor of safety of 1.1 against a shear failure from static loads plus the inertial loads due to the design basis ground motion exceeds 7.7 ksf for all loading cases identified above. The minimum allowable value was obtained for Load Case II, wherein 100% of the earthquake loads act in the N-S and E-W directions and 0% acts in the vertical direction. The actual factor of safety for this condition was 2.3, which is greater than the criterion for dynamic bearing capacity (FS  $\geq$  1.1).

#### BASED ON MAXIMUM CASK DYNAMIC FORCES FROM THE SSI ANALYSIS

The following pages determine the allowable bearing capacity for the cask storage pads with respect to the maximum dynamic cask driving forces developed for use in the design of the pads in Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2 (CEC, 1999) for the pad supporting 2 casks, 4 casks, and 8 casks. These dynamic forces represent the maximum force occurring at any time during the earthquake at each node in the model used to represent the cask storage pads. It is expected that these maximum forces will not occur at the same time for every node. These forces, therefore, represent an upper bound of the dynamic forces that could act at the base of the pad.

The coordinate system used in these analyses is the same as that used for the analyses discussed above, which is shown in Figure 1. Note, this is different than the coordinate system used in Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2 (CEC, 1999), which is shown on Page B11. Therefore, in the following pages, the X direction is N-S, the Y direction is vertical, and the Z direction is E-W.

These maximum dynamic cask driving forces were confirmed to be less than the maximum force that can be transmitted from the cask to the pad through friction acting at the base of the cask for each of these load cases. This friction force was calculated based on the upper-bound value of the coefficient of friction between the casks and the storage pad ( $\mu = 0.8$ , as shown in SAR Section 8.2.1.2) x the normal force acting between the casks and the pad. These maximum dynamic cask driving forces can be transmitted to the pad through friction only when the inertial vertical forces act downward; therefore, these analyses are performed only for Load Case IV. The analyses conservatively assume that 100% of the horizontal forces act in the E-W and vertical directions at the same time. The width (30 ft) is less in the E-W direction than the length N-S (64 ft); therefore, the E-W direction is the critical direction with respect to a bearing capacity failure.

NOTED JUN 1 9 1997,

۱

P. J.

Inden

1.26-00



| ĺ        | 7                                       | CALCULAT         | ION IDENTIFICATION NU    | IMBER                     |                       |
|----------|-----------------------------------------|------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------|
|          | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02            | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.          | OPTIONAL TASK CODE        | PAGE <u>48</u>        |
| 1<br>2   | DYN BEAR WE                             | CAPACITY OF      | PAD: 2-CAG               | ok case                   |                       |
| 3        |                                         |                  |                          |                           | CEC (1988)            |
| 5        | INCLUDED                                | in Att B         | AND ARE SUM              | MARIZED IN TH             | BLE 1                 |
| 6<br>7   | VERTICAL F                              | PRESSURES INCLU  | No: PAD DL               | - 0,45 KSF                |                       |
| 8<br>9   |                                         |                  | PAD EG                   | = 0.24  kg<br>= 0.045  kg |                       |
| 10       | CASK LL=                                | 1.36 KSF ALONE   | G LINE AC 9              | is assumed to c           | ECREASE               |
| 12       | CASK EQ.                                | PRESSURES A      | RE SHOWN ON              | S TABLE 1.                |                       |
| 13       | SUMMING                                 | THESE VERTI      | LAL PRESSURE             | S RESULTS 1               | N THE                 |
| 15<br>16 | Forowin                                 | S MAXIMUM TO     | TAL PRESSURE             | DISTRIBUTIONS             | Note,                 |
| 17<br>18 | loading f                               | 1/2 of the       | PAD.                     |                           |                       |
| 19       |                                         | 3.90 KSF         | _ 1.53                   |                           |                       |
| 21       | 3.73                                    | ( ,              | - /= =                   |                           | - PAD DL<br>+ PAD EQ. |
| 23       | 4.30                                    | E I              | .56//                    |                           | + SNOW LOAD           |
| 24<br>25 | 12                                      | 1.15             | Έ                        | Н                         |                       |
| 26<br>27 | A                                       |                  | G                        |                           |                       |
| 28<br>29 |                                         |                  | -                        |                           |                       |
| 30       | For LOADED                              | walf of PAD      | 1                        |                           |                       |
| 32       | S'                                      | [117.45          | RAD KSF 15'              | 48,00]                    | KOP 32'               |
| 33<br>34 | $F_{v} = \left(\frac{15}{2}\right)^{*}$ | ( ~ 30 + 2× 3,15 | $+ 3.40) + \frac{1}{2}($ | 10 +2×100+100,            |                       |
| 35<br>36 |                                         |                  |                          |                           |                       |
| 37<br>38 | $F_v \simeq 264$                        | 7 K FOR LC       | DADED 1/2 OF             | Pad                       |                       |
| 39<br>40 |                                         | 1745 K = 2       |                          | 1 - 300 K                 | ويت                   |
| 41       | "Ac,"                                   | FT               | baugac t                 | AUGAC                     | ∕\-                   |
| 42<br>43 |                                         | a K a a          | 8 9                      | A LLO KSE                 |                       |
| 44<br>45 | A <sub>DF</sub> ~~~                     | FT = 30          | SANGE =7 BAN             | A DE                      | 00867                 |
| 46       |                                         |                  |                          |                           |                       |



<u>.</u>



STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE 04-6 05996.02 G(B) DYN BEARING CAPACITY OF PAD: 2-CASK CASE <--7,5'-→ - 7.5'------- 11.5' ------ (1.5/ --P.BT => 540 K N-S GBI K E-W FHC= 681K 19.27 - CENTER OF GRAVITY 9,83'=118" (pc4 CALC ==2647.2 4 05996.01-G(8)-05-0) eb== 0.3' FHP= 1/2.456K= 228.K (= 1/2 PAD) 3 4 C = 0.528×30'×32'×3'×0.15K/FT2 TO FIND LOC'N OF RESULTANT TO RESIST Fu'S ΣM FUC BOTTOM OF PAD 1/2 PAD \* 2-CASKS TRANSVERSE LOADING  $RAb = 1.5' \times \frac{456k}{2} + (3' + 9.83') 681 k$ (E-W) t= F = 2647.2K  $\therefore \Delta b = \frac{342.0 + 8737.2}{2(47.2 \text{ K} - FT)} = 3.43 \text{ FT}$ ADD  $e_{b_{E_1}} = 0.3 \implies e_b = 3.43' + 0.3' = 3.73'$  $B' = B - 2e_1 = 30' - 2 \times 3.73' = 22.54'$ 

PAGE 51

\* NOTE: HORIZ INERTIA OF OTHER 1/2 OF PAD ( 228K 321 = 0.24KSF) 13 REGISTED BY C=1,4 KSF \$ N tand w/ d= 21,30 ALONG BASE OF THAT V2 OF PAD <del>\$\$870</del>

▲ 5010.65

10

2

3

4 5 6

7 8

9

10 E

12

13

14

15

16

21

22

23

24

25 26

27 28 29

34 35 36

41

42 43

44

45 46

\_ ~

|            |           | ▲ 5010.65                    |                                 |                      |                    |                                       |
|------------|-----------|------------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------|--------------------|---------------------------------------|
|            |           | 11                           | CALCULAT                        | ON IDENTIFICATION NU | MBER               |                                       |
| $\bigcirc$ |           | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996,02 | DIVISION & GROUP                | CALCULATION NO.      | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 52                               |
|            | 1<br>2    | DYN BEARING                  | CAPACITY OF                     | PAD: 2-CAS           | K CASE             | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
|            | 3         |                              |                                 |                      | land to an A       |                                       |
|            | 4<br>5    | DIRECT                       | ions                            | ILARCO FOIL          | CONGILODINA        | -                                     |
|            | 6<br>7    | _                            |                                 | <u>A</u>             | P7 5.0             |                                       |
|            | 8<br>9    | + <sub>#cL</sub> =           | = 540 K (=                      | = Qyd max FRO        | M PUT FOR 2        | casks)                                |
|            | 10<br>11  | 2 Me.                        | 1/2 PAD                         |                      | 2-CASKS LONGIT     | FUDINAL LOADG                         |
|            | 12<br>13  | Rol                          | = 1.5' x 456                    | K + (3'+9.83         | 540 K)             |                                       |
|            | 14<br>15  | 2 = F.                       | = 2647.2K                       |                      |                    |                                       |
|            | 16        |                              | 710 00                          | K-ET + (000          | k 6-               |                                       |
|            | 18        | :, 4,                        | $l = \frac{3+2.00}{2}$          | 647.2 K              | = 2.75             | FT                                    |
|            | 20        |                              |                                 |                      |                    |                                       |
| $\smile$   | 22        | ADD E                        | $l_{\rm fv} = 2.2' \Rightarrow$ | $e_{l} = 2.75' +$    | 2.2' = 4.95'       |                                       |
|            | 23<br>24  |                              |                                 |                      |                    |                                       |
|            | 25<br>26  | L'=                          | $L-2e_{g}=30$                   | 2' - 2x 4.95'        | = 22.11' +         | - < 22.54'<br>; THIS = B'             |
|            | 28        |                              |                                 |                      | ۴                  | L'= 22.54'                            |
|            | 30        | 9 =                          | Fv =                            | 26422 K              | = 5.31 KSF         |                                       |
|            | 32        | BACTURE                      | B'KL'                           | 22.11' x 22.54'      |                    | 00 51                                 |
|            | 34        | CALC JALL                    | the for the $\alpha$            |                      | B=2211 L-          | 24.2                                  |
|            | 35<br>36  | F4 - 681                     | t 1/2 PAD ED                    | iog k max vs<br>ic   | + 228K PAD         |                                       |
|            | 37<br>38  | (<br>2-049                   | ok EQL (PB7)                    | FS = L1              | 708K N-5           |                                       |
|            | 39<br>4 D | F. = 26                      | 47.2 K FOR                      | 2-CASK (5-           | TATIC + DYN)       |                                       |
|            | 41<br>42  | Assume                       | Yources = 100                   | PCF FOR Sou          | CEMENT \$          |                                       |
| <u> </u>   | 43<br>44  | $D_n = 3'$                   | $-\frac{3.5''}{12}=2.7'$        | (49 70 90T)          | 3,5" ABOUE GRA     | 65)                                   |
|            | 45<br>46  | t<br>For Dyr                 | J LOADS OB                      | = 0° c=2.2           | . KSF _{           | 0871-                                 |
|            |           | 1                            |                                 |                      |                    | -                                     |

.

5010.65

-

### CALCULATION SHEET

| CALCULATION IDENT                                                                                                                                                                          |                                                                                             |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP                                                                                                                                                          | CALCULATION NO, OPTIONAL TASK CODE PAGE 53                                                  |
| 05996.02 G(B)                                                                                                                                                                              | 04 - 6                                                                                      |
| DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS BAS                                                                                                                                      | SED ON MAXIMUM CASK DYNAMIC FORCES FROM THE SSI ANALYSIS                                    |
| ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY O                                                                                                                                                               | F CASK STORAGE PADS WITH 2 CASKS                                                            |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Earthquake: Case IV                                                                                                                                                          | 100 % in X, 100 % in Y, 100 % in Z                                                          |
| Soil Properties: c = 2,20                                                                                                                                                                  | 0 Cohesion (psf)                                                                            |
| $\phi = 0.0$                                                                                                                                                                               | 0 Friction Angle (degrees)                                                                  |
| γ = 80<br>V = 100                                                                                                                                                                          | U Unit weight of surcharge (pcf)                                                            |
| Foundation Properties: $B' = 22$ .                                                                                                                                                         | <b>1</b> Footing Width - ft (E-W) $L' = 22.5$ Length - ft (N-S)                             |
| D <sub>f</sub> = <b>2.</b>                                                                                                                                                                 | 7 Depth of Footing (ft)                                                                     |
| β = 19.0                                                                                                                                                                                   | 0 Angle of load inclination from vertical (degrees)                                         |
| FS = 1.                                                                                                                                                                                    | 1 Factor of Safety required for q <sub>allowable</sub> .                                    |
| $F_V = 2,64$                                                                                                                                                                               | 7 K (includes $EQ_V$ )<br>9 k & EQ_{VV} = 768 k = 1 100 k for E                             |
|                                                                                                                                                                                            | $\sigma$ $\kappa$ $\omega$ $\omega_{HNS} = 700 \kappa \rightarrow 1,190 \kappa$ $101 r_{H}$ |
| $q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{surch} D_f N_q s_q d_q i_q + 1/2 \gamma E$                                                                                                          | $3 N_{\gamma} s_{\gamma} d_{\gamma} i_{\gamma}$ based on Winterkorn & Fang (1975)           |
| $N_c = (N_q - 1) \operatorname{cot}(\phi), \operatorname{but} = 5.$                                                                                                                        | 14 for $\phi = 0$ = 5.14 Eq 3.6 & Table 3.2                                                 |
| $N_q = e^{\pi \tan \varphi} \tan^2(\pi/4 + \phi/2)$                                                                                                                                        | = 1.00 Eq 3.6                                                                               |
| $N_{\gamma} = 2 (N_q + 1) \tan (\phi)$                                                                                                                                                     | = 0.00 Eq 3.8                                                                               |
|                                                                                                                                                                                            |                                                                                             |
| $s_c = 1 + (B/L)(N_c/N_c)$                                                                                                                                                                 | = 1.19 Table 3.2                                                                            |
| $s_q = 1 + (D/L) \tan \psi$                                                                                                                                                                | = 1.00 "                                                                                    |
| $S_{\gamma} = 1 + 0.4 (B/L)$                                                                                                                                                               | = 0.61                                                                                      |
| For D/B $\leq$ 1: d <sub>q</sub> = 1 + 2 tan $\phi$ (1 - sin $\phi$ ) <sup>2</sup> [                                                                                                       | <b>D<sub>y</sub>/B</b> = 1.00 Eq 3.26                                                       |
| $\alpha_{\gamma} = 1$                                                                                                                                                                      | = 1.00 *                                                                                    |
| For $\phi > 0$ : $d_c = d_q - (1 - d_q) / (N_q \tan \phi)$                                                                                                                                 | = N/A                                                                                       |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c = 1 + 0.4 (D/B)$                                                                                                                                                     | = 1.05 Eq 3.27                                                                              |
| $m_B = (2 + B/L) / (1 + B/L)$                                                                                                                                                              | = 1.68 Eq 3.18a                                                                             |
| $m_{L} = (2 + L/B) / (1 + L/B)$                                                                                                                                                            | = 1.32 Eq 3.18b                                                                             |
| If EQ <sub>HNS</sub> > 0: $\theta_n = \tan^{-1}(EQ_{HEW} / EQ_{HNS})$                                                                                                                      | = 0.87 rad ,                                                                                |
| $m_n = m_L \cos^2 \theta_n + m_B \sin^2 \theta_n$                                                                                                                                          | = 1.53 Eq 3.18c                                                                             |
| $i_a = \{ 1 - F_H / [(F_v + EQ_v) + B) \}$                                                                                                                                                 | $3^{m}$ L' c cot $\phi$ ] $3^{m}$ = 1.00 Eq 3.14a                                           |
| $i_{\rm c} = \{1 - F_{\rm c} / I(F_{\rm c} + FQ_{\rm c}) + B_{\rm c}\}$                                                                                                                    | $5^{1}L^{2}C \cot \delta L^{m+1} = 0.00 Ec. 3.172$                                          |
| For $h = 0$ , $i = 1 - (m E / P H a N)$                                                                                                                                                    |                                                                                             |
| $ \begin{array}{c} \mathbf{U} : \mathbf{U} : \mathbf{U} = \mathbf{U} \cdot \mathbf{U}_{c} = \mathbf{U} \cdot \mathbf{U} : \mathbf{U} : \mathbf{U}_{c} \\ \vdots \\ \vdots \\ \end{array} $ | = 0.68 Eq 3.16a                                                                             |
| •                                                                                                                                                                                          | N <sub>c</sub> term N <sub>q</sub> term N <sub>y</sub> term                                 |
| Gross q <sub>ult</sub> =     9,824     psf =                                                                                                                                               | 9,554 + 271 + 0                                                                             |
| $q_{all} = 8,930 \text{ psf} = q_{ult}$                                                                                                                                                    | t/FS                                                                                        |
| $q_{actual} = 5,323 \text{ psf} = (F_v)$                                                                                                                                                   | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x L')                                                             |
| $FS_{actual} = 1.85 = q_{ult} / q_{actual}$                                                                                                                                                | ctual > 1.1 Hence OK                                                                        |
| logotli05996\calc\bmg_can\Parl\cu_nhi_xls                                                                                                                                                  |                                                                                             |

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\Pad\cu\_phi.xls



| <u></u> | 5010.65                      |                  |                         |                    | r           |
|---------|------------------------------|------------------|-------------------------|--------------------|-------------|
| A       |                              | CALCULAT         | ION IDENTIFICATION NU   | MBER               | 55          |
|         | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02 | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.<br>04-6 | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE        |
| 2       | DYN BEARING                  | CAPACITY OF F    | AD: 4-CASK              | CASE               |             |
|         | Sou BEARING                  | g PRESSURES 1    | LRE RAGED ON            | info from          | CEC(1999)   |
| 5       | INCLUDED I                   | N ATT B A        | ND ARE SUMMA            | RIZED IN TABL      | e 1.        |
| /       | VERTICAL PR                  | essures Inclut   | E: PAD DL = 0           | 45 KSF             |             |
|         |                              |                  | SNOW LOAD=              | 0.045 KSF          |             |
|         | LL OF CASK                   | s = 1.77 ksp A   | LONG LINE AC            | & IS ASSUME        | >           |
| 2       | to decre                     | AGE LINEARLY     | ( TO O ALONO            | 4 LINE GJ.         |             |
| 3       | CASK EQ P                    | RESSURES ARE     | SHOWN ON TA             | BLE 1              |             |
| 1<br>5  | Resulting 1                  | Pressure Distr   | LIBUTION:               |                    |             |
| 5       |                              | AA2 KSF          |                         |                    |             |
|         |                              |                  | 2,84                    |                    | Id AAG      |
|         | 4,20                         |                  | $-\lambda = \lambda$    | 0.13               | + PAD EQU   |
|         | /                            | 2.7              | 16 5                    | M // J .           | + SNON LOAD |
|         |                              |                  | YE N.                   | Hu                 |             |
| •       |                              | 340              |                         |                    |             |
|         |                              |                  |                         |                    | ļ           |
|         |                              | - 32'            | 16'                     |                    |             |
|         | 100 100 3                    | (1 OF PAN 1      | S FEFTATUR              | IN PESISTING       | LOADS       |
|         | OF 4-CA                      | AK CASE          |                         |                    | 10          |
|         | _                            |                  | 3 1 4 40                | (                  |             |
|         | ÷ B:                         | 30' L'           | I 64 3 70               | >                  |             |
| ,       | LINEARLY                     | DISTRIBUTE       | STATIC + DYN            | LOADING FR         | .04         |
|         | LINE DF                      | To 42'           | AWAY FROM               | LINE AC ¥          | DETERHINE   |
| 5       | FV                           |                  |                         |                    |             |
| ,       | VERT ST                      | RESSES           | KSF POIN                | <b>v</b>           |             |
|         | 6.5 (3.40.                   | +0.73) = 2       | 1.07 K                  |                    |             |
|         | 0.5 (2.76                    | + 0.73) = 1      | .75 L                   |                    |             |
|         | 05 (7.84                     | + 0.731 = 1      | .79 ~~                  |                    |             |
| ,       |                              | )                | • • • •                 |                    | 0 11 11-    |
| •       |                              |                  |                         | -0-                | 0010        |
|         |                              |                  |                         |                    |             |
| ٢L      |                              | . <u> </u>       |                         |                    |             |

-----

| 3                            | CALCULATI            | ON IDENTIFICATION NU        | JMBER              | <b></b>                |
|------------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------|------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996,02 | DIVISION & GROUP     | CALCULATION NO.             | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 26                |
| DYN BEARING                  | CAPACITY OF F        | AD: 4-CASK                  | CASE               |                        |
| CALCULATE                    | F,                   |                             |                    |                        |
| ALONG<br>LINE,               | AREA                 | $= K(r_{\tau})$             |                    |                        |
| AC 15                        | (4.47 + 2 + 4.20     | +4.42) KSF                  | = 129.68  K/F      | σ.                     |
| DF 15                        | (3.40 + 2×2.76       | + 2.84)                     | = 88.20            |                        |
| KM 15                        | (2.07 + 2× 1.75      | + 1.79)                     | = 55.20            |                        |
|                              |                      |                             |                    |                        |
| Fv~ 32/2                     | (129.68+88.2         | (0) $(1)$ $(2)$ $(2)$ $(2)$ | 8.20+55.20)K/      |                        |
| $F_V =$                      | 3486.1 K 4           | - 1147.2K =                 | 4633.3 K           |                        |
| Estimate<br>of Pi            | Locations with $D$ , | agre F <sub>v</sub> A       | CTS ON 30'X        | 48 <sup>(</sup> PORTIA |
| NOTE AN                      | ig vert stre         | ss along li                 | nes .              |                        |
| LINDE                        |                      |                             |                    |                        |
| AC :                         | = <u>129.68 %</u> =  | = 4.32 Kae                  |                    |                        |
|                              |                      |                             |                    |                        |
| DF =                         | 88.20 4FT            | i = 2.94 KSF                |                    |                        |
| KM =                         | 55.20 K/FT           | = 1.84 KSF                  |                    |                        |
|                              | 30 <sup>c</sup>      |                             |                    |                        |
|                              |                      |                             |                    |                        |
|                              |                      |                             | ~                  | 0876                   |
|                              |                      |                             | <u>.</u>           | 90100                  |
|                              |                      |                             |                    |                        |



Ċ



 $\checkmark$ 





.....

|   |           | ▲ 5010.65                    |                           |                       |                                | <u> </u>                    |
|---|-----------|------------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------------------|
|   |           | 4                            | CALCULAT                  | ION IDENTIFICATION NU | JMBER                          |                             |
|   |           | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02 | DIVISION & GROUP          | CALCULATION NO.       | OPTIONAL TASK CODE             | PAGE 61                     |
|   | 1         | DYN BEARING                  | CAPACITY OF               | PAD: 4-CASI           | K CASE                         |                             |
|   | 3         |                              |                           |                       |                                |                             |
|   | 4<br>5    | CALCULATE                    | , L' simil                | ARLY FOIL             | LONGITUDINAL                   | F <sub>H</sub>              |
|   | 6<br>7    | FHC =                        | 923 K = Qy                | TAB MAX 4 CASKS       | E D-16) PB7<br>FH              |                             |
|   | 9         | +3 FHP = 3                   | 456 => EQHN               | -5 = 1265K            | - 4 CA                         | SKS                         |
|   | 10<br>11  | ZM <sub>r</sub> R            | (A) = 1.5' × 3            | * 456 K + (34         | -9.83') 923 K                  |                             |
|   | 12        | t t                          | - = = = 4633.3            | K ON EFFECTIV         | JE PORTION OF P                | 1D (30'x 48')               |
|   | 14        |                              | v i i i j                 |                       |                                |                             |
|   | 15<br>16  | 0 —                          | 513.2 K-FT                | + 11,842.1 K.         | fT = 2.67'                     | = e,                        |
|   | 17        |                              | 4-(                       | 633.3 K               |                                | <sup>L</sup> F <sub>W</sub> |
|   | 19        |                              |                           |                       |                                |                             |
|   | 20<br>2 I | p. = (                       | $e_1 + e_1$               | = 3:22' + 2.67        | 1 = 5.891                      |                             |
| _ | 22        |                              | Fv Fr                     |                       |                                |                             |
|   | 24        |                              | 1-28 -                    | 48'- 2× 5.89          | = 36.23                        |                             |
|   | 25<br>26  |                              |                           |                       |                                |                             |
|   | 27<br>28  |                              | Fv                        | 4633.3K               |                                |                             |
|   | 29        |                              | = =                       | 24-11-21-221          | = 5,32 **                      | SF                          |
|   | 30<br>31  |                              | 0~0                       | 24.00 × 30.03         |                                | `                           |
|   | 32        | CALC ZAUC                    | w FOR THE                 | For owing:            | B'= 24.04' L                   | ! = 36.23'                  |
|   | 34        | $F_V = \cdot$                | 4633.3 K F                | or 4-cask ca          | SE (STATIC+                    | DYN)                        |
|   | 35<br>36  |                              | PAD                       | FHC                   |                                |                             |
|   | 37        | EQHE-                        | $5 = \frac{3}{4} 456 + 1$ | 036 = 137             | 3 K E-W                        |                             |
|   | २४<br>39  | EQUNC                        | . = " +                   | 923 = 124             | 5 N-S                          |                             |
|   | 40<br>41  | FS=1.1                       | You - int                 | PRE V= RD             | $PCF$ $D_n = 3' = \frac{3}{2}$ | 5" = 271                    |
|   | 42        | £-~°                         | A - D D LARE              |                       | 4                              |                             |
|   | 43<br>44  | 4-0                          |                           | •                     |                                | 19881 G                     |
|   | 45        |                              |                           |                       |                                |                             |
|   | 46        | L                            |                           |                       |                                |                             |

. . . . .

## CALCULATION SHEET

| CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER            |                                                                            |                                         |                                                             |                                       |                           |                | 00                    |                              |
|----------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|----------------|-----------------------|------------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                             | DIVISION &                                                                 | GROUP                                   | ALCULATION                                                  | NO.                                   | OPTION                    | IAL TA         | SK CODE               | PAGE 62                      |
| 05996.02                                     | G(B)                                                                       |                                         | 04 - 6                                                      |                                       | <u> </u>                  |                |                       |                              |
| DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY (                   | OF THE CASK STOR                                                           | AGE PADS BASED                          | ON MAXIMUM CA:                                              | SK DYN                                | IAMIC FORCES              | 5 FROM         | THE SSI ANA           | LYSIS                        |
| ALLOWABLE BEA                                | RING CAP                                                                   | ACITY OF (                              | CASK STO                                                    | RAC                                   | E PADS                    |                | TH 4 CA               | SKS                          |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Eartl                          | nquake: Cas                                                                | e IV                                    |                                                             | 100                                   | % in X,                   | 100            | % in Y,               | 100 % in Z                   |
| Soil Properties:                             | C                                                                          | = 2,200 (                               | Cohesion (psf                                               | )                                     |                           |                |                       |                              |
|                                              | φ<br>ν                                                                     | = 0.0 F<br>= 80 I                       | Friction Angle                                              | (degi<br>soil                         | rees)<br>(pcf)            |                |                       |                              |
|                                              | Ysurch                                                                     | = 100 l                                 | Jnit weight of                                              | surc                                  | harge (pcf)               | )              |                       |                              |
| Foundation Properties:                       | B,                                                                         | = 24.0 F                                | Footing Width                                               | - ft (8                               | E-W)                      | Ĺ' =           | 36.2                  | Length - ft (N-S)            |
|                                              | Dt                                                                         | = 2.7 [                                 | Depth of Foot                                               | ing (fl                               | i)                        |                |                       |                              |
|                                              | p<br>ES                                                                    | = 16.67<br>- 115                        | Angle of load                                               | inclin<br>tv rec                      | ation from<br>wired for a |                | al (degree:           | s)                           |
|                                              | , c<br>Fv                                                                  | = 4.633                                 | (Includes EC                                                | ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, |                           | allowadi       | e.                    |                              |
|                                              | EQ <sub>HE-W</sub>                                                         | = 1,378 k                               | . & EQ <sub>H N-8</sub>                                     | 3 =                                   | 1,265                     | k →            | 1,871                 | k for F <sub>H</sub>         |
| $q_{utt} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{sut}$ | <sub>rch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> | i <sub>q</sub> + 1/2 γ B N              | l <sub>γ</sub> s <sub>γ</sub> d <sub>γ</sub> i <sub>γ</sub> |                                       | General I<br>based on     | Beariı<br>Wint | ng Capaci<br>erkorn & | ity Equation,<br>Fang (1975) |
| N <sub>c</sub> :                             | = (N <sub>q</sub> - 1) cot(                                                | φ), but = 5.14                          | for $\phi = 0$                                              | =                                     | 5.14                      |                | Eq 3.6 &              | Table 3.2                    |
| N <sub>q</sub> :                             | $= e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$                                           | /4 + ¢/2)                               |                                                             | =                                     | 1.00                      |                | Eq 3.6                |                              |
| N <sub>y</sub> :                             | = 2 (N <sub>q</sub> + 1) ta                                                | ın (φ)                                  |                                                             | Ξ                                     | 0.00                      |                | Eq 3.8                |                              |
|                                              |                                                                            | N N                                     |                                                             |                                       | 4 40                      |                | T-61- 0.0             |                              |
| S <sub>c</sub>                               | $= 1 + (B/L)(N_{q'})$                                                      | Φ                                       |                                                             | =                                     | 1.13                      |                | 1 able 3.2            |                              |
| S <sub>v</sub>                               | = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)                                                            | •                                       |                                                             | =                                     | 0.73                      |                |                       |                              |
| For $D/B < 1$ d.                             | = 1 + 2 tan & (                                                            | 1 - sin φ) <sup>2</sup> D/I             | 3                                                           |                                       | 1.00                      |                | Fa 3 26               |                              |
| d,                                           | = 1                                                                        |                                         | -                                                           | =                                     | 1.00                      |                |                       |                              |
| For $\phi > 0$ : d.                          | = d (1-d_) / (                                                             | N <sub>a</sub> tan é)                   |                                                             | =                                     | N/A                       |                |                       |                              |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c$                       | = 1 + 0.4 (D <sub>1</sub> /B                                               | )                                       |                                                             | =                                     | 1.05                      |                | Eq 3.27               |                              |
| m <sub>B</sub>                               | = (2 + B/L) / (1                                                           | + B/L)                                  |                                                             | =                                     | 1.68                      |                | Eq 3.18a              |                              |
| <br> m                                       | = (2 + L/B) / (1                                                           | + L/B)                                  |                                                             | =                                     | 1.32                      |                | Eq 3.18b              |                              |
| If EQ <sub>HN-S</sub> > 0: θ <sub>n</sub>    | = tan <sup>-1</sup> (EQ <sub>H E-V</sub>                                   | / EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> )                 |                                                             | =                                     | 0.83                      | rad            | •                     |                              |
| m <sub>n</sub>                               | $= m_L \cos^2 \theta_n +$                                                  | $m_B sin^2 \theta_n$                    |                                                             | =                                     | 1.52                      |                | Ea 3.18c              |                              |
| i.                                           | = { 1 - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub>                                  | + EQ.,) + B' L                          | .' c cot ø] } <sup>m</sup>                                  | =                                     | 1.00                      |                | Eq 3.14a              |                              |
| <br>                                         | = { 1 - F <sub>u</sub> / [(F <sub>u</sub>                                  | <br>+ EQ.) + B' L                       | ' c cot 6] } <sup>m+1</sup>                                 | =                                     | 0.00                      |                | Eg 3.17a              |                              |
| For $\phi = 0$ ; i.                          | = 1 - (m Fu/ B                                                             | 'L' c N.)                               |                                                             | =                                     | 0.71                      |                | Eq 3 16a              |                              |
| +                                            | - <u>(</u> ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,                            | - · w                                   | N. term                                                     | _                                     | N. term                   |                | N. term               |                              |
| Gross a                                      | = 9.773                                                                    | psf =                                   | 9.503                                                       | +                                     | 271                       | ÷              | 0                     |                              |
| q <sub>all</sub>                             | = 8,880                                                                    | psf = q <sub>ult</sub> /                | FS                                                          | . •                                   | _,,                       | •              | -                     |                              |
| q <sub>actual</sub> :                        | = 5,320                                                                    | psf.= (F <sub>v</sub> +                 | EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x L                                 | .')                                   |                           |                |                       |                              |
| FS <sub>actual</sub>                         | = 1.84                                                                     | = q <sub>uit</sub> / q <sub>actua</sub> | <del>3</del> i                                              |                                       | >                         | 1.1            | Hence (               | Ж                            |
| [geot]j05996\calc\bmg_cap                    | Pad\cu_phi.xls                                                             |                                         |                                                             |                                       |                           |                |                       |                              |

5010.65

-

.

•





· · -

| ĺ              | ▲ 5010.65<br>CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER |                           |                                       |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
|----------------|------------------------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|
|                | J.O. OR W.O. NO.                               | DIVISION & GROUP          | CALCULATION NO.                       | OPTIONAL TASK CODE                     | PAGE 65      |  |  |  |  |
|                | 05996.02                                       | GLO )                     | PAN: 9 0101                           |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| z              | DUN BEAKING                                    | y CAPACITY OF             | TAD B-CASI                            |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 3<br>4         | CALCULATE                                      | $F_{v}$ :                 |                                       |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 5              | LINE                                           | AREA = K                  | clet F                                | (K/FT)                                 | & AUG (KSF)  |  |  |  |  |
| 8<br>9         | AC 15                                          | (4.90 + 2× 4,50           | r + 4.33) =                           | 138.08                                 | 4.60         |  |  |  |  |
| 10<br>11       | $DF \frac{15}{2}$                              | $(5.15 + 2 \times 3.77)$  | 1.+ 4.57) =                           | 129.45                                 | 4.32         |  |  |  |  |
| 12<br>13<br>14 | GJ 15<br>Z                                     | (.6.12 + 2× 44            | (2+4.67) = 1                          | 50.23                                  | 5.01         |  |  |  |  |
| 15             |                                                |                           |                                       |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 16<br>17       | 70'                                            |                           |                                       |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 18             | $F_{\rm W} \sim \frac{s^2}{2}$                 | (138.08+2                 | × 129,45 + 150,2                      | (3)= 8755 K                            | <u>,</u>     |  |  |  |  |
| 19             | ۲.                                             |                           |                                       | •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• | _            |  |  |  |  |
| 20             | ******                                         |                           |                                       | ·····                                  |              |  |  |  |  |
| 22             | ESTIMATE LO                                    | CATION WHERE              | F. ACTS.                              | ſ                                      | 3            |  |  |  |  |
| 23             | DETERMINE                                      | ECCENTRICITY              | OF FU WRT                             | B, $e_{B_{c}} = -$                     | <u>-</u> - X |  |  |  |  |
| 25             | ALONG LIN                                      | JE GJ WHIC                | H HAS THE (                           | GREATEST STRE                          | SSES         |  |  |  |  |
| 26             | (                                              | 12 KSF                    | · · · · ·                             |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 27             | 1.50                                           |                           | 1 M (3)                               | 4.67 KSF                               | 215          |  |  |  |  |
| 9              | 4.62                                           |                           |                                       | 4.62 0.05 K                            | 75           |  |  |  |  |
| 50             |                                                |                           |                                       |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 31             |                                                | (2)                       | (2)                                   |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 33             | IMP D                                          |                           | E                                     | F                                      |              |  |  |  |  |
| 34             |                                                |                           | 15'                                   |                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| 35             |                                                | ×                         | Le <sub>Be</sub>                      | Ĩ                                      |              |  |  |  |  |
| 37             | ARE                                            | A KIFT                    | R MOMENT                              | ARM (FT)                               | MOMENT K.FT  |  |  |  |  |
| 38             | A LIED KEE                                     | $x_{15}^{\prime} = 11.25$ |                                       | 51                                     | Fr 56.25     |  |  |  |  |
| 39<br>10       |                                                | - 120/0                   | 3~13 -                                | ン<br>に <sup>1</sup>                    | 2019.00      |  |  |  |  |
| 41             | (2) 4.62 × 30                                  | - 120.00                  | 2× 50 - 1                             |                                        | 9.38         |  |  |  |  |
| 42<br>43       | 3 12 0.05× 10                                  | R= 2 = 150.23             | 5 15'+2x15'                           | = 25"<br>RX = E =                      | 2144.63      |  |  |  |  |
| •4<br>45<br>46 | $x = \frac{Rx}{R}$                             | - 150,23                  | $\frac{14.28'}{4/\text{FT}} = 14.28'$ | $e_{B_{F_v}} = \frac{30}{2} - 14$      | .2B'= 0.72'  |  |  |  |  |

\$ 5010.65 CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PAGE 66 J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE 04-6 05996.02 G(B) DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF PAD: 8-CASK CASE T 2 3 4 USE AVERAGE VALUES ALONG LINE AG, WHICH ARE GREATER 5 6 THAN ALONG BH \$ CJ. 0 5,15 6,12 K9= \_\_\_\_\_]}0.97 490 9 10 11 (2) $(\mathbf{A})$ 12 13 AC GJ 14 32 32 15 ·e JFv EMAC 16 17 18 AREA KIFT 19 MOMENT ARM FT MOMENT K-FT 20  $B = \frac{1}{2} (0.25 \text{ KSF}) \times 32' = 4.0 \qquad \frac{2}{3} \times 32' = 21.33'$ 21 85.33 22 (2)  $4.90 \text{ KSF } \times 32' = 156.80$   $\frac{1}{2} \times 32' = 16'$ 23 2508,80 24  $(3) \frac{1}{2} (6.12 - 5.15)^{KSF} \times 32' = 15.52$   $32' + \frac{2}{3} 32' = 53.33'$ 25 827.68 26 (a) 5.15 KSF × 32' = 164.80 32' +  $\frac{1}{2}$  32' = 48.0' 7910,40 27 28 Ry = 11,332.2 KF R= 341.12 K/FT 29 30  $y = \frac{Ry}{R} = \frac{11,332.2 \text{ K-FT/FT}}{34 \text{ L} 12 \text{ K/FT}} = 33,22'$ 3.1 32 33 34  $e_{LF_{1}} = y - \frac{L}{2} = 33.22' - \frac{64'}{2} = 1.22'$ 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 00887 43 44 45 46





....

. . . **.** 

| ▲ 50 | 10.65                        |                  |                      |                    | 1          |
|------|------------------------------|------------------|----------------------|--------------------|------------|
| 3    |                              | CALCULAT         |                      |                    | 40         |
|      | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02 | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.      | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 69    |
| 7    | orn bearing                  | CAPACITY OF      | PAD: 8-CASK          | CASE               |            |
|      |                              |                  |                      |                    |            |
|      | SIMILARLY                    | For Long         | TUDINAL DIRE         | CTION              |            |
|      | - (                          |                  |                      |                    |            |
|      | $F_{H} = 1$                  | 791 K ADI        | $5 F_{HP} = 456 K$   | => EQH =           | 2247K      |
|      | Ċ                            | 2087             | <b>~</b>             | 10-3               |            |
|      |                              | R=Fv             | PAD                  | CASKS              | •          |
| -    | 2M                           | 8755 K A         | $= 1.5 \times 456 k$ | (+(3+4.83))(1)     | 1918)      |
|      | 3                            |                  |                      |                    |            |
|      | 5L                           | =                | -,474 K-FT =         | 2,70'              |            |
|      |                              | 8755             | K                    |                    |            |
|      | ADD                          | 20 - 1.22        | FT -> P =            | 270'+122'=         | 3921       |
|      |                              | $F_{\rm L}$      | l l                  |                    | ~,(-       |
|      |                              |                  | •                    |                    |            |
|      | L'= L                        | $-2e_{0} = 6$    | 4'-2x 3,92'          | = 56.15 FT         |            |
|      |                              | ~                |                      |                    |            |
|      | <u>^</u>                     | Fv               | 8755 K               |                    |            |
|      | JACTUAL                      | = <u>B'×L'</u> = | 22.97' × 56,15'      | = 6.19 KSF         |            |
|      |                              |                  |                      | ·                  |            |
|      | CALC 2.                      | FOR              | FS=1.1 1             | B'= 22.97' L       | 1 = 56.151 |
|      | DA                           |                  |                      |                    | -          |
|      | $F_v = 8$                    | 755 K (ST        | atic + dyn           | & CASKS)           |            |
|      |                              | FHP              | Fue                  |                    |            |
|      | EQHEN                        | w = 456  K +     | 1855 K = 25          | IIK                |            |
|      | FB                           | = ASUK +         | 1791 K = 22          | 47 K               |            |
|      | COCH N-                      | - TIGK           |                      |                    |            |
|      | YSURCH                       | = 100 PCF        | Y= 80 PCF            | Doz 3'- 3.5" =     | 2.71       |
|      | • • • •                      | R                | •                    | 4 1271             |            |
|      | ¢= (                         | $5^{-}$ C=2.2    | 2 KSF                |                    | 6          |
|      |                              |                  |                      |                    |            |
|      |                              |                  |                      |                    |            |
|      | •                            |                  |                      | - <del>00</del>    | 880        |
|      |                              | ······           |                      |                    |            |

.

5010.65

### CALCULATION SHEET

|                                                                                                                                     | CALCULAT                                                    | ION IDENTIF                                    | ICATION NUM                                         | BER              |                       |                |                         | 70                          |
|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----------------------|----------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                                                                                                                    | DIVISION &                                                  | GROUP                                          | CALCULATION                                         | NO.              | OPTIOI                | NAL T          | ASK CODE                | PAGE 70                     |
| 05996.02                                                                                                                            | G(B                                                         | <u></u>                                        | 04 - 6                                              |                  |                       |                |                         | L                           |
| DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF                                                                                                         | THE CASK STOR                                               | AGE PADS BASE                                  | D ON MAXIMUM CA                                     | ASK DY           | NAMIC FORCE           | S FROM         | THE SSI ANA             | al ysis                     |
| ALLOWABLE BEAR                                                                                                                      | ING CAP                                                     | ACITY OF                                       | CASK STO                                            | RA               | GE PADS               |                | H 8 CAS                 | SKS                         |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Earthq                                                                                                                | uake: Cas                                                   | e IV                                           |                                                     | 100              | ) % in X,             | 100            | % in Y,                 | 100 % in Z                  |
| Soil Properties:                                                                                                                    | C                                                           | = 2,200                                        | Cohesion (psf                                       | )<br>/daa        |                       |                |                         |                             |
|                                                                                                                                     | Ψ<br>                                                       | = 0.0<br>= 80                                  | Unit weight of                                      | soil             | (pcf)                 |                |                         |                             |
|                                                                                                                                     | Ysurch                                                      | = 100                                          | Unit weight of                                      | surc             | charge (pcf)          | )              |                         |                             |
| Foundation Properties:                                                                                                              | B'                                                          | = 23.0                                         | Footing Width                                       | - ft (i          | E-W)                  | L' =           | 56.2                    | Length - ft (N-S)           |
|                                                                                                                                     | Ur<br>ß                                                     | = 2.7<br>= 14.8                                | Apple of load                                       | ing (f<br>inclin | t)<br>ation from s    | vartica        | el (degroop             | .)                          |
|                                                                                                                                     | FS                                                          | = 1.1                                          | Factor of Safe                                      | ty red           | quired for q          | ailowable      | e.                      | >)                          |
|                                                                                                                                     | Fv                                                          | = 8,755                                        | k (Includes EC                                      | ⊋ <sub>∨</sub> ) |                       |                |                         |                             |
|                                                                                                                                     | EQ <sub>HE-W</sub>                                          | = 2,311                                        | k & EQ <sub>HN-S</sub>                              | ; =              | 2,247                 | k →            | 3,223                   | k for F <sub>н</sub>        |
| $\mathbf{q}_{ult} = \mathbf{c} \ \mathbf{N}_{c} \ \mathbf{s}_{c} \ \mathbf{d}_{c} \ \mathbf{i}_{c} \ \mathbf{\dot{\gamma}}_{surch}$ | D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> | i <sub>q</sub> + 1/2 γ Β                       | $N_{\gamma} s_{\dot{\gamma}} d_{\gamma} i_{\gamma}$ |                  | General E<br>based on | Bearir<br>Wint | ng Capaci<br>erkorn & I | ty Equation,<br>Fang (1975) |
| N <sub>c</sub> = (                                                                                                                  | N <sub>q</sub> - 1) cot(                                    | ¢), but = 5.14                                 | for $\phi = 0$                                      | =                | 5.14                  |                | Eq 3.6 & <sup>-</sup>   | Table 3.2                   |
| N <sub>q</sub> = 6                                                                                                                  | $e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$                              | /4 + ¢/2)                                      |                                                     | =                | 1.00                  |                | Eq 3.6                  |                             |
| $N_{\gamma} = 2$                                                                                                                    | 2 (N <sub>q</sub> + 1) ta                                   | .n (ф)                                         |                                                     | =                | 0.00                  |                | Eq 3.8                  |                             |
| S. = 1                                                                                                                              | + (B/L)(N <sub>a</sub> /                                    | N)                                             | a<br>North                                          | =                | 1.08                  |                | Table 3.2               |                             |
| s <sub>q</sub> = 1                                                                                                                  | + (B/L) tan                                                 | φ                                              |                                                     | =                | 1.00                  |                | "<br>"                  |                             |
| s <sub>γ</sub> = 1                                                                                                                  | - 0.4 (B/L)                                                 |                                                |                                                     | =                | 0.84                  |                | **                      |                             |
| For $D_f B \le 1$ : $d_q = 1$                                                                                                       | + 2 tan ¢ (                                                 | 1 - sin φ) <sup>2</sup> D <sub>#</sub>         | /B                                                  | =                | 1.00                  |                | Eq 3.26                 |                             |
| $d_{\gamma} = 1$                                                                                                                    | l                                                           |                                                |                                                     | =                | 1.00                  |                | 11                      |                             |
| For $\phi > 0$ : $d_c = c$                                                                                                          | l <sub>q</sub> - (1-d <sub>q</sub> ) / (i                   | N <sub>q</sub> tan φ)                          |                                                     | =                | N/A                   |                |                         |                             |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c = 1$                                                                                                          | + 0.4 (D <sub>t</sub> /B                                    | )                                              |                                                     | =                | 1.05                  |                | Eq 3.27                 |                             |
| . m <sub>B</sub> = (                                                                                                                | 2 + B/L) / (1                                               | + B/L)                                         |                                                     | =                | 1.68                  |                | Eq 3.18a                |                             |
| m <sub>L</sub> = (                                                                                                                  | 2 + L/B) / (1                                               | + L/B)                                         |                                                     | =                | 1.32                  |                | Eq 3.18b                |                             |
| If EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0: $\theta_n = t$                                                                                          | an <sup>-1</sup> (EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                       | / EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> )                        |                                                     | =                | 0.80                  | rad            |                         |                             |
| m <sub>n</sub> = r                                                                                                                  | n <sub>L</sub> cos <sup>2</sup> θ <sub>n</sub> + :          | m <sub>B</sub> sin <sup>2</sup> θ <sub>n</sub> |                                                     | =                | 1.51                  |                | Eq 3.18c                |                             |
| i <sub>q</sub> = {                                                                                                                  | 1 - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub>                       | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B'                       | L' c cot                                            | =                | 1.00                  |                | Eq 3.14a                |                             |
| i <sub>v</sub> = {                                                                                                                  | 1 - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub>                       | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + 8'                       | L' c cot $\phi$ ] } <sup>m+1</sup>                  | =                | 0.00                  |                | Eq 3.17a                |                             |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $i_0 = 1$                                                                                                          | - (m F <sub>4</sub> / B'                                    | L' c N_)                                       |                                                     | =                | 0.67                  |                | Eg 3.16a                |                             |
|                                                                                                                                     |                                                             |                                                | N, term                                             |                  | N <sub>a</sub> term   |                | N, term                 |                             |
| Gross q <sub>utt</sub> =                                                                                                            | 8,802                                                       | psf =                                          | 8,531                                               | +                | 271                   | +              | 0                       |                             |
| q <sub>all</sub> =                                                                                                                  | 8,000                                                       | psf = q <sub>uit</sub> /                       | FS                                                  |                  |                       |                |                         |                             |
| q <sub>actual</sub> =                                                                                                               | 6,788                                                       | psf <mark>≕ (F</mark> v +                      | - EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x L                       | .')              |                       |                |                         |                             |
| FS <sub>actual</sub> =                                                                                                              | 1.30                                                        | $= q_{ult} / q_{act}$                          | Jał                                                 |                  | >                     | 1.1            | Hence C                 | к                           |
| [geot]j05996\calc\brng_cap\Pa                                                                                                       | d\cu_phi.xls                                                |                                                |                                                     |                  |                       |                |                         |                             |

| 50 | 10. | 65 |
|----|-----|----|
|----|-----|----|

| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO. | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 71 |
|------------------|------------------|-----------------|--------------------|---------|
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6          |                    |         |

DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS BASED ON MAXIMUM CASK DYNAMIC FORCES FROM THE SSI ANALYSIS

Table 2.6-8 presents a summary of the bearing capacity analyses that were performed using the maximum dynamic cask driving forces developed for use in the design of the pads in Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2 (CEC, 1999) for the pad supporting 2 casks, 4 casks, and 8 casks. Details of these analyses are presented on the preceding pages. As indicated in this table, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the cask storage pads to obtain a factor of safety of 1.1 against a shear failure from static loads plus the very conservative maximum dynamic cask driving forces due to the design basis ground motion is at least 8.0 ksf for the 2-cask, 4-cask, and 8-cask loading cases. The minimum allowable value (8.0 ksf) was obtained for the 8-cask loading. The actual factor of safety (FS  $\geq$  1.1).

#### CALCULATION SHEET

| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP   CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE |        |  |  |  |  |
|------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|
| 05996.02         | G(B)                                                                   | 04 - 6 |  |  |  |  |

#### CONCLUSIONS

5010 65

Analyses presented herein demonstrate that the cask storage pads have adequate factors of safety against overturning, sliding, and bearing capacity failure for static and dynamic loadings due to the design basis ground motion. The following load cases are considered:

- Case I Static
- Case II Static + dynamic horizontal forces due to the earthquake
- Case III Static + dynamic horizontal + vertical uplift forces due to the earthquake
- Case IV Static + dynamic horizontal + vertical compression forces due to the earthquake

For Case II, 100% of the dynamic lateral forces in both X and Z directions are combined. For Cases III and IV, the effects of the three components of the design basis ground motion are combined in accordance with procedures described in ASCE (1986); i.e., 100% of the dynamic loading in one direction is assumed to act at the same time that 40% of the loading acts in the other two directions.

These results of these stability analyses are discussed in more detail in the following sections.

#### **OVERTURNING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS**

Analyses presented above indicate that the factor of safety against overturning due to dynamic loadings from the design basis ground motion is 1.66. This is greater than the criterion of 1.1 for the factor of safety against overturning due to dynamic loadings; therefore, the cask storage pads have an adequate factor of safety against overturning due to loadings from the design basis ground motion.

#### SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

The cask storage pads will be constructed on and within soil cement, as described in Sections 2.6.1.7 and 2.6.4.11 of the SAR and as illustrated in Figure 4.2-7 of the SAR. Analyses presented above demonstrate that, using only the passive resistance of the soil cement above the bottom of the pads, the soil cement can be designed to provide sufficient resistance to sliding of the pads to readily achieve the minimum required factor of safety of 1.1. Thus, embedding the pads in soil cement will greatly enhance their resistance to sliding due to dynamic loads from the design basis ground motion. Additional analyses are included that demonstrate that sliding will not occur along deeper surfaces within the profile underlying the cask storage pads. First, the sliding resistance of the *in situ* silty clay/clayey silt layer is addressed to demonstrate that sliding will not occur along the interface between the bottom of the soil cement and those soils. These analyses demonstrate that if the pads were founded directly on the silty clay/clayey silt layer, the minimum factor of safety against sliding would be ~1.7. Therefore, the cask storage pads, embedded in soil cement, will have an adequate factor of safety against sliding.

| 5 | 0 | 1 ( | ٥. | 6 | 5 |
|---|---|-----|----|---|---|
|---|---|-----|----|---|---|

|                  | BLOF 72          |                 |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-----------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO. | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 73 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6          |                    |         |

Adequate factors of safety against sliding due to maximum forces from the design basis ground motion were obtained assuming that the storage pads were founded directly on the silty clay/clayey silt layer and conservatively ignoring the passive resistance of the soil cement that will be placed under and adjacent to the pads. In this case, much of the shearing resistance is provided by the cohesive portion of the shear strength of the silty clay/clayey silt layer, which is not affected by upward earthquake loads. As shown in SAR Figures 2.6-5, Pad Emplacement Area – Foundation Profiles, a layer, composed in part of sandy silt, underlies the clayey layer at a depth of about 10 ft below the cask storage pads. Sandy silts oftentimes are cohesionless; therefore, to be conservative, the sliding stability of the cask storage pads was analyzed assuming that the soils in this layer are cohesionless, ignoring the effects of cementation that were observed on many of the split-spoon and thin-walled tube samples obtained in the drilling programs.

Analyses were performed to address the possibility that sliding may occur along a deep slip plane at the clayey soil/sandy soil interface as a result of the earthquake forces. To simplify the analysis, it was assumed that cohesionless soils extend above the 10 ft depth and, thus, the pads are founded directly on cohesionless materials. Because of the magnitude of the peak ground accelerations (0.53g) due to the design basis ground motion at this site, the frictional resistance available when the normal stress is reduced due to the uplift from the inertial forces applicable for the vertical component of the design basis ground motion is not sufficient to resist sliding. However, analyses were performed to estimate the amount of displacement that might occur due to the design basis ground motion for this case. These analyses, based on the method of estimating displacements of dams and embankments during earthquakes developed by Newmark (1965), indicate that even if these soils are cohesionless and even if they are conservatively located directly at the base of the pads, the estimated displacements would be less than ½ inch. Whereas there are no connections between the ground and these pads or between the pads and other structures, this minor amount of displacement would not adversely affect the performance of these structures if it did occur. Furthermore, the pads will be constructed on and within soil cement, which will be strong enough to resist sliding of the pads using only the passive resistance of the soil cement. This soil cement will effectively lock the pads in their respective locations, so that they can not move relative to one another.
#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | DAOF 74 |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 74 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6            |                    |         |

#### ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

#### STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

Analyses of bearing capacity for static loads are summarized in Table 2.6-6. As indicated for Case IA, the factor of safety of the cask storage pad foundation is 6.3 using the undrained strength for the cohesive soils that was measured in the UU tests ( $s_u > 2.2$  ksf) that were performed at depths of approximately 10 to 12 feet. The results for Case IB illustrates that the factor of safety against a bearing capacity failure increases to greater than 14 when the effective-stress strength of  $\phi = 30^{\circ}$  is used. Therefore, cases result in factors of safety against a bearing capacity failure that exceed the minimum allowable value of 3 for static loads. The minimum gross allowable bearing capacity exceeds 4 ksf for static loads.

#### DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CASK STORAGE PADS

Analyses of bearing capacity for dynamic loads are summarized in Tables 2.6-7 and 2.6-8. Table 2.6-7 presents the results of the bearing capacity analyses based on the inertial forces applicable for the peak ground accelerations from the design basis ground motion. Table 2.6-8 presents the results of the analyses based on the maximum dynamic cask driving forces developed for use in the design of the pads in Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2 (CEC, 1999) for the pad supporting 2 casks, 4 casks, and 8 casks. These latter dynamic forces represent the maximum force occurring at any time during the earthquake at each node in the model used to represent the cask storage pads. It is expected that these maximum forces will not occur at the same time for every node. These forces, therefore, represent an upper bound of the dynamic forces that could act at the base of the pad.

Table 2.6-7 presents the results of the dynamic bearing capacity analyses for the following cases, which include static loads plus inertial forces due to the earthquake.

| Case II   | 100% | N-S direction,   | 0%   | Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
|-----------|------|------------------|------|--------------------------|----------------|
| Case IIIA | 40%  | N-S direction, - | 100% | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IIIB | 40%  | N-S direction,   | -40% | Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
| Case IIIC | 100% | N-S direction,   | -40% | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IVA  | 40%  | N-S direction,   | 100% | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IVB  | 40%  | N-S direction,   | 40%  | Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
| Case IVC  | 100% | N-S direction,   | 40%  | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction  |

As indicated in Table 2.6-7, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the cask storage pads to obtain a factor of safety of 1.1 against a shear failure from static loads plus the inertial loads due to the design basis ground motion exceeds 7.7 ksf for all loading cases identified above. The minimum allowable value was obtained for Load Case II, wherein 100% of the earthquake loads act in the N-S and E-W directions and 0% acts in the Vertical direction,

5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 75 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6            |                    |         |

tending to rotate the cask storage pad about the N-S axis. The actual factor of safety for this condition was 2.3, which is greater than the criterion for dynamic bearing capacity (FS  $\ge 1.1$ ).

Table 2.6-8 presents a summary of the bearing capacity analyses that were performed using the maximum dynamic cask driving forces developed for use in the design of the pads in Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2 (CEC, 1999) for the pad supporting 2 casks, 4 casks, and 8 casks. As indicated in this table, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the cask storage pads to obtain a factor of safety of 1.1 against a shear failure from static loads plus the very conservative maximum dynamic cask driving forces due to the design basis ground motion is at least 8 ksf for the 2-cask, 4-cask, and 8-cask loading cases. The minimum allowable value (8.0 ksf) was obtained for the 8-cask loading. The actual factor of safety for this case was 1.3, which is greater than the criterion for dynamic bearing capacity (FS  $\geq$  1.1).

5010.65

5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | 50      |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 76 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6            |                    |         |

#### **REFERENCES:**

ASCE 4-86, Seismic Analysis of Safety-Related Nuclear Structures and Commentary on Standard for Seismic Analysis of Safety-Related Nuclear Structures, American Society of Civil Engineers, 1986.

ACI, 1998, "State-of-the Art Report on Soil Cement," reported by ACI Committee 230, ACI 230-1R-90 (Reapproved 1997), American Concrete Institute, Detroit, MI.

CEC, 1999, PFSF Calculation 05996.02-G(PO17)-2, Rev. 1, "Storage Pad Analysis and Design," prepared by International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc, for Stone and Webster Engineering Corp, Denver, CO.

ConeTec, 1999, "Cone Penetration Testing Report, Private Fuel Storage Facility," prepared for Stone and Webster Engineering Corp, Denver, CO, 2 volumes.

GTG 6.15-1, "Geotechnical Division Technical Guideline on Determination of Lateral Pressures on Buried Structures in Granular Soils," Stone and Webster Engineering Corp, Boston, MA, 1982.

Geomatrix Consultants, Inc, 1999b, "Development of Design Ground Motions for the Private Fuel Storage Facility," prepared for Stone and Webster Engineering Corp, Denver, CO, 19 pp.

Lambe, T.W., and R. V. Whitman, 1969, Soil Mechanics, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., N.Y., 553 pp.

Newmark, N. M., 1965, "Effects of Earthquakes on Dams and Embankments," Fifth Rankine Lecture, Geotechnique, Institution of Civil Engineers, London, 15(2), pp139-60.

Nussbaum, P. J., and Colley, B. E., 1971, "Dam Construction and Facing with Soil-Cement," Portland Cement Association, Publication RD010.01W.

Seed, H. B., and Whitman, R. V., 1970, "Design of Earth Retaining Structures for Dynamic Loads," ASCE Specialty Conference on Lateral Stresses in the Ground and the Design of Earth Retaining Structures, pp 103-147.

SWEC, 1982, Geotechnical Technical Guideline 6.15-1, "Determination of Lateral Pressures on Buried Structures in Granular Soils," Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation, Boston, MA.

SWEC, 2000a, Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-5, Revision 2, "Document Bases for Geotechnical Parameters Provided in Geotechnical Design Criteria," Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation, Boston, MA.

SWEC, 2000b, Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13, Revision 2, "Stability Analyses of the Canister Transfer Building Supported on a Mat Foundation," Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation, Boston, MA.

5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 77 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 04 - 6            |                    |         |

Terzaghi, K., and Peck, R. B., 1967, <u>Soil Mechanics in Engineering Practice</u>, John Wiley & Sons, New York, NY, p 112.

Vesic, A. S., 1973, "Analysis of Ultimate Loads on Shallow Foundations," *Journal of the Soil Mechanics and Foundations Division*, ASCE, Vol 99, No. SM1, pp 45-73.

Winterkorn, H. F., and Fang, H., 1975, <u>Foundation Engineering Handbook</u>, Van Nostrand Reinhold Co., New York, NY..

| Sumi    | nary of ver       | tical 501 |                | g riessu   | res (ksi) | from Ca  | IC 03990 | 06-0121 | J11]-2, 1 | ter t  |
|---------|-------------------|-----------|----------------|------------|-----------|----------|----------|---------|-----------|--------|
|         |                   |           | [After a       | djastiog s | now loads | to 0.045 | kal      |         |           | •      |
| Loading | Paint             | A (287)   | <b>B</b> (293) | C [299)    | D (144)   | E (150)  | F (156)  | G (1)   | H (7)     | J (13) |
| 2-Cask  | Pad DL            | 0.45      | 0.45           | C.45       | 0.45      | 0.45     | 0.45     | 0.45    | 0.45      | 0.45   |
|         | Snow LL           | 0.045     | 0.045          | 0.045      | 0.045     | 0.045    | 0.045    | 0.045   | 0.045     | 0.045  |
|         | Cask LL           | L.35      | i.36           | 1.36       | 0.35      | 0.35     | 0.35     | 0.00    | 0.00      | 0.00   |
|         | Pad EQ            | 0.24      | 0.24           | 0.24       | 0.24      | 0.24     | 0.24     | 0.24    | 0.24      | 0.24   |
| •       | Cask EQ           | 2.22      | 1.64           | 1.81       | 0.67      | 0.48     | · 0.45   | 0.00    | 0.00      | 0.00   |
| •       | 10 <b>0%</b> Vert | 4.30      | 9.73           | 3.90       | 1.75      | 1.56     | 1.53     | 0.79    | 0.73      | 0.78   |
| 4-Cask  | Pad DL            | 0.45      | 0.45           | 0.45       | 0.45      | 0.45     | 0.45     | 9.45    | 0.45      | 0.45   |
|         | Snow LL           | 0.045     | 0.045          | 0.045      | 0.045     | 0.045    | 0.045    | 0.045   | 0.C45     | 0.045  |
|         | Cask LL           | l 77      | 1.77           | J.77       | 0.80      | 0.80     | 0.80     | 0.00    | 0.00      | 0.00   |
|         | Pad EQ            | 0.24      | C.24           | 0.24       | 0.24      | 0.24     | 9.24     | 0.24    | 0.24      | 0.24   |
| -       | Cask EQ           | 1.97      | 1.70           | 1.92       | 1.57      | 1.23     | 1.31     | 0.00    | 0.00      | C.CC   |
|         | 100% Vert         | 4.47      | 4.20           | 4.42       | 3.40      | 2.76     | 2.84     | 0.73    | 0.73      | 0.73   |
| 8-Cask  | Pad DL            | 0.45      | C.45           | 0.45       | Ç.45      | 0.45     | 0.45     | C.45    | 0.45      | C.45   |
|         | Snow LL           | 0.045     | 0.045          | 0.045      | 0.045     | 0.045    | 0.045    | 0.045   | 0.045     | 0.045  |
|         | Cask LL           | 1.47      | 1.47           | ].47       | 1.80      | 1.60     | i.60     | 1.47    | 1.47      | 1.47   |
|         | Pad EQ            | 0.24      | 0.24           | 0.24       | 0.24      | 0.24     | 0.24     | 0.24    | 0.24      | C.24   |
|         | Cask EQ           | 2.70      | 2.39           | 2.13       | 2.82      | 1.44     | 2.24     | 3.92    | 2.42      | 2,47   |
|         | 100% Vert         | 4.90      | 4.39           | 4.33       | 5.13      | 3.77     | 4.57     | 6.12    | 4.62      | 4.67   |

TABLE 1

ć

.

.

[gact])CS96calt/Cmp\_capidyn sis

í

İ

:

STONE & WESSTER ENGINEERING CORFORATION

CALCULATION SHEET

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

5010.HH

JO. OH WO NO 05996.02

NIVISION & GROUP

ର(B)

01 - 6

OPTIONAL TASK CODE

NGL 18

ĺ

# TABLE 2.6-6 SUMMARY - ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF CASK STORAGE PADS

**Based on Static Loads** 

| 0.000                                | E     | 50             | FO      | <b>584</b> | 5:84     | βΒ                 | β                   | GRO   | DSS              |     |     | E    | FFECTI | VE                         |          |
|--------------------------------------|-------|----------------|---------|------------|----------|--------------------|---------------------|-------|------------------|-----|-----|------|--------|----------------------------|----------|
| Case                                 | Fγ    | EGH N-S        | E CHE-W | LIVI @N-S  | ZINIGE-M | EQ <sub>HE-W</sub> | EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> | quit  | q <sub>all</sub> | 68  | εĽ  | B'   | Ľ      | <b>q</b> <sub>actual</sub> | FSactual |
|                                      | k     | k              | k       | ft-k       | ft-k     | deg                | deg                 | ksf   | ksf              | ft  | ft  | ft   | ft     | ksf                        |          |
| 1A - Static<br>Undrained<br>Strength | 3,716 | <sup>.</sup> 0 | 0       | 0          | 0        | 0.0                | 0.0                 | 13.05 | 4.35             | 0.0 | 0.0 | 30.0 | 64.0   | 1.94                       | 6.7      |
| IB - Static<br>Effective<br>Strength | 3,716 | 0              | 0       | 0          | 0        | 0.0                | 0.0                 | 28.34 | 9.44             | 0.0 | 0.0 | 30.0 | 64.0   | 1.94                       | 14.6     |

c = 2,200 Undrained strength (psf), f=0.

 $\gamma = 80$  Unit weight of soil (pcf)

B = 30 Footing width (ft)

L = 64 Footing length (ft)

 $D_t = 2.7$  Depth of footing (ft)

 $\gamma_{surch} = 100$  Unit weight of surcharge (pcf)

FS = 3 Factor of safety for static loads.

 $EQ_{H} = Earthquake: Horizontal force. F_{H} = EQ_{HEW} or EQ_{HNS}$ 

 $\beta_B = \tan^{-1} \left[ (EQ_{HEW}) / F_V \right] =$  Angle of load inclination from vertical (deg) as f(

 $\beta_L = \tan^{-1} [(EQ_{HN-S}) / F_V] = Angle of load inclination from vertical (deg) as f(I$ 

 $e_{B} = \Sigma M_{\mathcal{Q}N-S} / F_{V}$   $e_{L} = \Sigma M_{\mathcal{Q}E-W} / F_{V}$ 

 $B' = B - 2 e_B \qquad L' = L - 2 e_L$ 

 $q_{actual} = F_V / (B' \times L')$ 

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

5010.65

ر 0

05996.02 OR W.O. . NO DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER G(B) CALCULATION NO 04 - 6 OPTIONAL TASK CODE PAGE 79

(geot]\05996\calc\brng\_cap\Pad\cu\_phi.xis Table 2.6-6

Ĉ

|          | AGF &0 |           |            |                  |                      |                 |                 |                     |                       |                |                                  |                                               | <i>1-</i> \$              | .C \$(df) 3)14   | anwikas.           | :ໄຈ: ອີແລະ, ອາ           | 30/96660    | (]:04 <b>)</b> ] |
|----------|--------|-----------|------------|------------------|----------------------|-----------------|-----------------|---------------------|-----------------------|----------------|----------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|---------------------------|------------------|--------------------|--------------------------|-------------|------------------|
| 1        | đ      |           |            |                  |                      |                 |                 |                     |                       |                |                                  |                                               | .si                       | eol cimeny:      | ) tol (defai       | s jo xciae <u>-</u> .    | 1,1         | = 8£             |
|          |        |           |            |                  |                      |                 |                 |                     | _                     |                | ោ                                | x '8, '.,'A                                   | = <sup>#F3</sup> 3        | (ភព ទនិទ         | ע בן צרונקי        | - Uut: Main<br>-         | -30°-       | ≂ roue'          |
|          |        |           |            |                  |                      |                 |                 |                     | -58                   | = .7           |                                  | aə 3 - 8                                      | = '5                      | (log             | li fos fo li       | içiəw hnU                | 03          | =1               |
|          |        | N 12 1    |            |                  |                      |                 |                 | Ŀ'n                 | / <sup>///84</sup> MZ | = 9            | E^                               | , <del>542</del> ,43                          | ≂ 89                      |                  | (il) grifod        | Depth: cf h              | 72          | =' <u>J</u>      |
|          | F      |           | .irta      | i na ini ang     | (Cep) a              | ≈ល់ឧប ព         | 13., LOJ        | ericri              | beol to el            | £u¥ = { *      | <u>н (</u> ринс                  | ;3;) <sup>1</sup> .nel                        | = 'g                      |                  | ្រប់ ណូទ័រ         | el guicoof               | <b>t</b> -3 | = ]              |
|          | Į      |           | · ul       | cia)) se         | (Sab) le             | 10 1194 L       | ion) noti       | erioa t             | iso' it ell           | 6uy = 1        | - 1 <del>0</del> 9 46            | :3;) <sup>1</sup> °nel                        | = <sup>0</sup> ]          |                  | ዝ ተን               | w gneoof                 | 65          | ≈ £              |
|          | 1      |           |            |                  |                      | 5-41            | .031¢.          | EQH E.V             | =⊦∃ .s:               | not læno:      | મંદરન અન                         | erby WeB                                      | = <sup>H</sup> O3         | ສະຕິເຈ (ຕອງ)     | s nationt a        | sente exoT               | 0.0         | = <b>Q</b>       |
|          | -      |           |            |                  |                      |                 |                 |                     |                       | *0 <u>3</u> +2 | :z:5)                            | i leo hav                                     | = 1-3                     | (jsd) u          | ciserco si         | ente eto.                | 2,230       | ≓ 0              |
|          |        |           | 3.5        | <del>3</del> 0.6 | 1.32                 | 26.5            | 4.4             | 8.î                 | <del>6</del> 3'3      | 66.01          | 932                              | 66                                            | 50'008                    | : 200'E          | 297                | 396                      | 629'7       | LIC              |
|          |        | 64-       | 2.8        | <b>3</b> '25     | 9'09                 | 5: :            | 3.7             | t't                 | ณร                    | 56.9           | 66                               | 53.5                                          | 6,002                     | 56'039           | · '662             | \ <b>%</b> 2             | 829'7       | avi              |
| S LA     |        |           | SE         | 54°E             | 3.19                 | 2.7.2           | <b>†</b> ".     | . <b>†</b> ``\      | 58.0F                 | 16"11          | 87                               | 8.7                                           | 300,9                     | 800,8            | 337                | 982                      | 129,8       | FAI              |
| YL<br>YL |        | <br>x     | t"Þ        | 287              | 803                  | 515             | <b>3</b> 3      | 72                  | 9976                  | <b>58.</b> 07  | 688                              | 12.2                                          | 300,05                    | 300.9            | 382                | 586,1                    | 5'854       | 'om              |
|          |        |           | 67         | 306              | <u>6.88</u>          | 39:             | 7.2             | 89                  | 01.3                  | 39.8           | C'SI                             | 33°C                                          | 200,3                     | 500,02           | <b>396</b> ° -     | SGL                      | 436,2       | anı              |
|          |        |           | <b>2</b> 7 | 26.I             | 849                  | 3.0Z            | 1 94            | <u>6</u> .4         | SCCI                  | 98t            | 57'3                             | 5162                                          | 200'8                     | 200,3            | 982                | 56 <i>2</i>              | 927         | VIII             |
|          |        | Iaivio    | 53         | 22               | 235                  | 3.91            | <del>7</del> 9  | ₩S                  | 89.7                  | 346            | 9.72                             | 9.72                                          | 900'0Z                    | 1 80002          | <b>25</b> 6 I      | 539,1                    | 912'8       | п                |
|          |        |           | <br>IN     | 유<br>문<br>문      | יו<br>ר,<br>וובבכדוו | 4<br>,13<br>43  | ų<br>Ja         | в <sup>9</sup><br>Н | 154<br>170<br>SS(     | l 121<br>Gelex | วังว<br>ระพา <b>ว</b> อุร<br>ากู | , ເອດ<br><sup>ເມ</sup> ສະເງສ<br>ອີຊູ          | 74<br><sup>V-58</sup> MIZ | , ⊁i†<br>∑¥]\$H≈ | .×=⊦D∃             | א<br><sup>\$†.</sup> ⊦D⊇ | א<br>שי     | 926) į           |
|          |        | 0.9996.02 |            |                  | po                   | SQA4<br>Dinaq n | A 30A<br>Mutafi | 9012<br>17-00       | CASK                  | ake: PS        | 7-8.5 3<br>2APAC<br>aphis        | al <b>a</b> lat<br>Ming (<br>Ding (<br>Ding ( | an o; ang<br>¢319 319     | AVLOWA           | - YAAN<br>siheni n | io paseg<br>IMAS         | . —         |                  |

``

.

.

Ì

1

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING COMPOHATION

.

.

٠

. .

|             | PAGE 81                     |             |                   |           |                  |                      |                 |                          |                    |                                                    |                                           | s-≎                             | ag aicid: simi                    | በትርጉር እርስይፈላ                   | dor Insept            | F7496620    | ():::ð;           |
|-------------|-----------------------------|-------------|-------------------|-----------|------------------|----------------------|-----------------|--------------------------|--------------------|----------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------------------|-------------|-------------------|
|             | K CODE                      |             |                   |           |                  |                      |                 |                          |                    | :1                                                 | x.9¦./Å4                                  | :S)<br>د <sup>ور ۲۹</sup> =     | justi par                         | arorus to li<br>bitoli yletisi | stonotos<br>Factorio: | 1°1<br>001  | = SJ<br>= '¥'¥!   |
|             | L TĂŜ                       |             |                   |           |                  |                      |                 | <b>℃</b> -79             | Г.= I              |                                                    | 8∋3.ē                                     | = ,9                            | ýs<                               | aji [cei 30 ti                 | ų£jav. ⊒uj∩           | 08          | = l.              |
|             | NOI.                        |             |                   |           |                  |                      |                 |                          | : = wash           | 12                                                 | ∿∃ X <del>s</del> ≎                       | = <sup>310</sup> ,10            |                                   | (4) buged                      | y to thqeQ            | 2.2         | = <b>'</b> O      |
|             | 140                         | ់ប្រ        | prain au          | 9 (59¢; µ | еспеч і          | roil nci             | lenikri I       | teci ic ei               | ĉuy = [ ·          | ש <i>וייי</i> י <b>ל</b>                           | :3;] <sup>r.</sup> net                    | = <sup>7</sup> (                |                                   | (់) ជេះ                        | Focting le            | seinev      | = 7               |
| m           |                             | .irtl       | 3 <b>i</b> w]] 28 | r (Ceo) n | L AGL CS         | <br>nc:1 not         | s incira        | le cf leau               | יין = אר <u>כ</u>  | ∃/( <sup>wa</sup> •¢                               | :3;] <sup>t</sup> .net                    | ≂ <sup>z</sup> Ę                |                                   | է) տր                          | w радас <u>-</u> ,    | 90          | = 8               |
| MBER        | N NS                        |             |                   |           | 5 <del>1</del> 1 | HDE 10               | EQ48.4          | = <sup>H</sup> =' -9(    | not letne          | s toH :eva                                         | sup thisd                                 | = <b>t</b> 03                   | n.ĉle (qa3)                       | e noito fi e:                  | senie liadoT          | 0.0         | =0                |
| ITILICATION | 04<br>CALCULA               |             |                   |           |                  |                      |                 |                          |                    |                                                    | -                                         |                                 |                                   |                                |                       |             |                   |
| וייד        | ЧD                          | <b>E.</b> 1 | 62'9              | S.92      | cez              | 29.E                 | ZEE             | 00.8                     | CE.3               | ¢'\$!                                              | 341                                       | 3 <del>⊀</del> '353             | 30'61E                            | 118'2                          | 2,247                 | 997,8       | EMERJ &           |
| ATION       | а ав<br>(В)                 | 8.1         | 28°9              | 3.9C      | C.4S             | <del>6</del> 9'S     | 5,39            | 88.8                     | 2276               | £'3.                                               | 99:                                       | 25,250                          | 739,61                            | 828'1                          | 1'568                 | 889'7       | 2 <b>1(</b> 28) I |
| 10:01       | 810N<br>G                   | 8.          | 5,32              | 55'E      | ऊ.1              | 98°b                 | 67.6            | D678                     | 58.9               | 2.8:                                               | 06.                                       | 501,61                          | \$13'5                            | 606                            | 897                   | 743,5       | 236293 S          |
| NO.         | ואום                        | 157%¢C1     | ូន)<br>រករាល់     | Ъ<br>Т    | H<br>.9          | ĥ                    | ŀ               | js:<br>PP                | <u> 189</u><br>СГБ | Diag<br>Shi Hima                                   | Dep<br>™∃∺bro                             | *#                              | <u></u> у-Я                       | Я                              | я                     | *           |                   |
|             |                             |             |                   | หาวอา     | 13<br>EE         | -e                   | 89              | SS                       | <u></u><br>วษย     | ٦ġ                                                 | ∎d<br>                                    | EW <sup>sew</sup>               | 5·149[1][]                        | EO <sup>P E-11</sup> .         | Str ⊦0∃               | <b>'</b> -1 | }¶ ess⊃<br>:      |
|             | л.р. ов w о мо.<br>05996.02 |             | 101 bo            | ited u    | SQA<br>SUA       | 965 F<br>100-Yr<br>W | .9018<br>1.5 AH | and 10<br>Ke: PS<br>CASK | srtical,<br>TY OF  | 100% \6<br>2APACI<br>3∃ ngis:<br>3∃ ngis:<br>2,6-8 | 18816<br>(RING 0<br>6 to 06<br>2 v.S.N \$ | 901 :VI<br>900 :Somo<br>918 318 | дүүОЛЛД<br>Ч рпіvілД<br>ювяЭ рпёр | - YAAM<br>YasO m<br>IsoJ       | NUS<br>umixeM         | uo pas      | ₽8                |

.

.

.

STONE & WEBSTER FUCINFFINING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

A010 AA

-

-

-

-

---

### CALCULATION SHEET



### CALCULATION SHEET



5010.65

#### 5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET





From Newmark (1965)

VALUES OF

#### CALCULATION SHEET



Vertical reaction of cask load acts on the pad at an offset =  $\Delta b$  from the centerline of the cask.

> $\sum M_{\text{@centerline}}$  to find  $\Delta b$ .  $\Delta b \times (W_{c} + EQ_{VC}) = 9.83 \text{ ft} \times EQ_{HC}$  $\sum M_{eo}$  to find  $\sum M_{eN-S}$  $\sum M_{\odot N-S} = 1.5 \text{ ft} \times EQ_{HP} + 3 \text{ ft} \times EQ_{HC} + \Delta b \times (W_{c} + EQ_{VC}).$ cask horiz cask vert pad

Note: Moment arm of 3 ft is used for determining moment due to cask horizontal force, because casks are only resting on the pads - No connection exists to transmit moment to the pad.

# TED JUN 1 2 2000

**P. J.** 

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET



ATTACHMENT A TO CALC 05996.01-G(B)-04-5 pA1/1

## NOTES OF TELEPHONE CONVERSATION

PRIVATE FUEL STORAGE, LLC PRIVATE FUEL STORAGE FACILITY JO No. 05996.01

Date: 06-19-97 Time: 2:45 PM EDT

| FROM: | Stan M. Macie<br>Wen Tseng | SWEC-Denver 1E<br>(ICEC) | Voice | Tie Line 321-7305<br>(510) 841-7328<br>(510) 841-7438 |
|-------|----------------------------|--------------------------|-------|-------------------------------------------------------|
| то:   | Paul J. Trudeau            | SWEC-Boston 245/03       |       | (617) 589-8473                                        |

#### SUBJECT: DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF PAD

#### **DISCUSSION:**

WTseng reported that his pad design analyses are being prepared for three loading cases: 2 casks, 4 casks, and 8 casks. The dynamic loads that he is using are based on the forcing time histories he received from Holtec. These forcing time histories were developed using a coefficient of friction between the cask and the pad of 0.2 and 0.8, where 0.2 provides the lower bound and 0.8 provides the upper bound loads from the cask to the pad.

He indicated that the bearing pressures at the base of the pad are greatest for the 2-cask dynamic loading case for  $\mu = 0.8$  between the cask and the pad, because of eccentricity of the loading. For this case, the vertical pressures at the 30' wide loaded end of the pad are 5.77 ksf at one corner and 3.87 ksf at the other. He reported that it is reasonable to assume this pressure decreases linearly to 0 at a distance of ~32 ft; i.e., approximately half of the pad is loaded in this case. He also indicated that the horizontal pressure at the base of the pad is 1.04 ksf at the 30' wide end of the pad that is loaded by the 2 casks, and that this pressure decreases linearly over a distance of ~40' from the loaded end. He noted that the vertical pressures include the loadings (DL + dynamic loadings) of the casks and the pad, but the horizontal pressures apply only to the casks. Therefore, the inertia force of the whole pad must be added to the horizontal loads calculated based on the horizontal pressure distribution described above.

Since the table of allowable bearing pressures as a function of coefficient of friction between the cask and the pad that is in the design criteria does not include a value for  $\mu = 0.8$ , WTseng asked PJTrudeau to provide the allowable bearing pressure for this case.

#### **ACTION ITEMS:**

PJTrudeau to determine the dynamic allowable bearing pressure for the 2-cask loading case.

COPY TO: NTGeorges Boston 245/03 SMMacie Denver 1E -00901

[geot]\j05996\telcon\970619.doc

| 10             | -28-1999 12 | 53PM FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095                            | ER B1            | P.1       |
|----------------|-------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-----------|
|                |             | ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5                             |                  |           |
|                |             | CALCULATION SHEET                                                   |                  |           |
|                | ORIGINATOR  | CALC. NO. G(PO17)-2<br>DATE <u>9/20/19</u> CHECKED                  | REV. NO.<br>DATE | 0 9-20-99 |
|                | PROJECT     | Private Fuel Storage Pacility                                       | JOB NO.          | 1101-000  |
|                | SUBJECT     | Storage Pad Analysis and Design                                     | SHEET            | _234_     |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                | 5.3         | Soil Pressures                                                      |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             | 5.3.1 Static Soil Pressure                                          |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             | Calculations of static soil pressure due to dead load (DL) and cask | live load (      | LL) are   |
|                |             | given in Table S-1 and S-2, respectively.                           |                  |           |
|                |             | ·                                                                   |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     | •                |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
| $\smile$       |             |                                                                     |                  | f         |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  | 1         |
|                |             | 7671 Daw 10-24-46 pages 11                                          |                  |           |
|                |             | Post-it Fax Note                                                    |                  |           |
|                |             | Co./Dept. Co.                                                       |                  |           |
|                |             | Phone #                                                             |                  |           |
|                |             | 617-Soft of a last                                                  |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                | NOT         | E: CALL 05996.02-G(POIT)-2 REV 1                                    |                  |           |
|                |             | DATED 12-6-99 PER CALL INDEX                                        |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             | · .                                                                 |                  |           |
| <del>.</del> . |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |
|                |             |                                                                     |                  |           |

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

NOTED OCT 2 8 1999 P. J.

. •

-----

FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE 82



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

| ORIGINATOR |                       | la/                                      | DATE                                | 1/20/49                         | CHECKED                       |                          | DATE 9  |          |
|------------|-----------------------|------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------------|--------------------------|---------|----------|
| PROJECT    | Private Fuel St       | orage Facility                           |                                     |                                 | -                             | السورية الأمر بمطاورها   | JOB NO. | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT    | Storage Pad At        | nalysis and De                           | sign                                |                                 |                               | ·····                    | SHEET   | -235     |
|            | Maximu                | um Vertica                               | Tabi<br>I Displaceme<br>Dead        | e S - 1<br>Ints and S<br>I Load | ioil Bearing                  | g Pressures              |         | :        |
|            |                       |                                          | k, = 2.75 kcf                       | k. = 2                          | 26.2 kcf                      |                          |         |          |
|            |                       | Z_(fl) =                                 | 0.164                               | 0.0                             | 0172                          |                          |         |          |
|            | ĺ                     | q <sub>zw</sub> (ksf) =                  | 0.45                                | 0                               | .45                           |                          |         |          |
|            | moduli =<br>respectiv | 2.75 and 28<br>ely, and Z <sub>w</sub> a | 2 KCf for lower<br>are obtained fro | -bound and<br>m CECSAF          | upper-bound<br>9 analysis re: | sons,<br>nuits (Att. A). |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          |                                     |                                 |                               |                          |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          |                                     |                                 |                               |                          |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          |                                     |                                 |                               |                          |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          |                                     |                                 |                               |                          |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          |                                     |                                 |                               |                          |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          | •                                   |                                 |                               |                          |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          | · .                                 |                                 |                               | ·                        |         |          |
|            |                       |                                          | · ·                                 |                                 |                               | ·                        |         |          |

10-28-1999 12:54PM

#### FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 Attachment B to Calc 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE B3



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

| •          | 2                               |      |         | CALC. NO. | G(P017)-2 | REV, NO. | 0        |
|------------|---------------------------------|------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|
| ORIGINATOR |                                 | DATE | 9/20/99 | CHECKED   | -21, 4 55 | DATE     | 9-20-99  |
| PROJECT    | Private Fuel Storage Facility   |      |         |           |           | JOB NO.  | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT    | Storage Pad Analysis and Design |      |         |           |           | SHEET    | 23.6     |

# Table S - 2 Maximum Vertical Displacements and Soil Bearing Pressures Live Load

|      |         |           |             | (Z)mex     | (x10 <sup>2</sup> fL) | ····                |             |           |
|------|---------|-----------|-------------|------------|-----------------------|---------------------|-------------|-----------|
| Node | sub     | grade mod | ulus = 2.75 | kcf        | SU                    | bgrade mod          | iutus = 26. | 2 kcf     |
| No.  | 2 Casks | 4 Casks   | 8 Casks     | 7 Casks +  | 2 Casks               | 4 Casks             | 8 Casks     | 7 Casks + |
|      | •       |           |             | OLT        |                       |                     |             | OLT       |
| 1    | 13.54   | 11.2      | -53.28      | -60.55     | 0.7244                | 1.22                | -4,959      | -5.451    |
| 7    | 13.5    | 11.19     | -53.27      | -44        | 0.7026                | 1.206               | -4.965      | -4.481    |
| 13   | 13.54   | 11.2      | -53.28      | -27.42     | 0.7244                | 1.22                | -4.969      | -3.479    |
| 144  | -12.65  | -27.63    | -55.27      | -81.67     | -0.8428               | -3.061              | -6.121      | -8.451    |
| 150  | -12.74  | -27.62    | -55.24      | -63.97     | -0.8975               | -3.061              | -6,119      | -6.723    |
| 158  | -12.65  | -27.83    | +65.27      | -48.31     | -0.8428               | -3.061              | -6,121      | -5.01     |
| 287  | -43.58  | -64.48    | -53.28      | -103       | -5.152                | -6.179              | -4.959      | -11.85    |
| 293  | -43.63  | -64.46    | -53.27      | -83.3      | -5.178                | -6.172              | -4.966      | -8.549    |
| 299  | -43.58  | -64.48    | -53.28      | -63.94     | -5.152                | -6.179              | -4.959      | -5.58     |
|      |         |           | Maximum     | Soil Bearl | ng Pressure           | $Q_{z}^{(1)}$ (ksf) | )           |           |
| 1    | 0       | 0         | -1.465      | -1.685     | 0                     | 0                   | -1.299      | -1.428    |
| 7    | 0       | 0         | -1.465      | -1.210     | 0                     | 0                   | -1.301      | -1,174    |
| 13   | 0       | 0         | -1.465      | -0.754     | 0                     | 0                   | -1.299      | -0.911    |
| 144  | 0.348   | -0.780    | -1.520      | -2.240     | 0.221                 | 0.802               | -1.604      | -2.214    |
| 150  | 0.350   | -0.760    | -1.519      | -1.759     | 0.235                 | -0.802              | -1.603      | -1.761    |
| 156  | 0.348   | -0.760    | -1.520      | -1.274     | 0.221                 | -0.802              | -1.604      | -1.313    |
| 287  | -1.198  | -1.773    | -1.465      | -2.833     | -1.350                | -1.619              | -1.299      | -3.105    |
| 293  | -1.200  | -1.773    | -1.465      | -2.291     | -1.357                | -1.617              | -1.301      | -2.240    |
| 299  | -1.198  | -1.773    | -1.465      | -1.758     | -1.350                | -1.619              | -1.299      | -1.462    |

Note:

1.  $q_{zi} = k_s \times Z_i$ , where  $k_s = 2.75$  and 26.2 kcf for lower-bound and upper-bound subgrade moduli, respectively, and  $Z_i$  are obtained from CECSAP analysis results (Att. A)

2. Negative displacements imply downward movements.

3. The displacement values listed are taken from the selected 9 nodes. They are Node 1, 7, 13, 144, 150, 156, 287, 293, and 299. The locations of these nodes are shown in Figure 1. Their maximum displacement values may not be the local maxima. By close examination, it is determined that the nine values taken for each loading case have encompassed the maximum value for that case.

4. For snow load, the soil bearing pressure is .45)ksf (Ref. 5).

45 PSA = 0.045 KSF PER REN 3 CRUTERUA PER DESIGN CRUTERUA

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

## FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE B4



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

| ORIGINATOR |           | in/                   | DATE         | 9/20/99          | CHECKED       |                | DATE             | 9-20               |
|------------|-----------|-----------------------|--------------|------------------|---------------|----------------|------------------|--------------------|
| PROJECT    | Private I | Fuel Storage Facility |              |                  | -<br>         |                | JO <b>B NO</b> . | 1101-              |
| SUBJECT    | Storage   | Pad Analysis and Des  | liga         |                  |               |                | SHEET            | <u>&gt;</u>        |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            | 5.3.2     | Dynamic Horizo        | ontal and V  | ertical Soil Pre | SSURES        |                |                  | ÷                  |
|            |           | •                     |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           | Calculations of       | horizontal   | and vertical s   | oil pressure  | s due to dyn   | unic cask        | drivin             |
|            |           | forces resulting      | from carthq  | uake motions     | are given in  | the following  | tables:          |                    |
|            |           | Table D-1(a) she      | ows calcule  | ution of total r | naximum ho    | rizontal dyna  | mic soil re      | action             |
|            |           | in the X-directio     | n (short dir | ection of pad)   |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           | Table D-1(b) she      | ows calcula  | ution of total n | naximum ho    | rizontal dyna  | mic soil re      | action             |
|            |           | in the Y-direction    | n (long dire | ction of pad).   |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           | Table D-1(c) sho      | )WS à SUMM   | uary of total m  | aximum hori   | zontal dynam   | ic soil rea      | tions.             |
|            |           | Table D-1(d) sho      | ows calcula  | tion of maxim    | um vertical ( | lynamic soil t | earing pre       | ssur <del>es</del> |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |
|            |           |                       |              |                  |               |                |                  |                    |

FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE B5



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

| <b>.</b>   | 2                               |      |         | CALC. NO. | G(PO17)-2 | REV. NO. | 0        |
|------------|---------------------------------|------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|
| ORIGINATOR | m                               | DATE | 9/20/99 | CHECKED   | -114 4 25 | DATE     | 9-20-99  |
| PROJECT    | Private Fuel Storage Facility   |      |         |           |           | JOB NO.  | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT    | Storage Pad Analysis and Design |      |         |           |           | SHEET    | 23%      |

# Table D-1(a) Total Maximum Horizontal Soil Reactions in the X Direction Dynamic Load

|              |         |         | Max     | dimum Disp | biacement | Xd ( x10 <sup>-9</sup> | ft.)    |         |         |
|--------------|---------|---------|---------|------------|-----------|------------------------|---------|---------|---------|
| Node         |         | LB      |         |            | BE        |                        |         | UB      |         |
| Number       | 2 Casks | 4 Casks | 8 Casks | 2 Casks    | 4 Casks   | 8 Casks                | 2 Casks | 4 Casks | 8 Casks |
| 1            | 6.106   | 3.738   | 33.63   | 3.256      | 1.974     | 17.72                  | 1,673   | 1.380   | 10.2    |
| 7            | 6,110   | 3,738   | 33.68   | 3.256      | 1.975     | 17.73                  | 1.874   | 1.379   | 10.31   |
| 13           | 6.106   | 3.739   | 33.64   | 3.258      | 1.972     | 17.73                  | 1.873   | 1.377   | 10.30   |
| 144          | 8.131   | 15.69   | 16.72   | 4.405      | 8.923     | 17.88                  | 2.335   | 5,129   | 10.7    |
| 150          | 8.130   | 15.69   | 16.72   | 4.408      | 8.928     | 17.89                  | 2.333   | 5.097   | 10.76   |
| 156          | 8.137   | 15.89   | 15.70   | 4.409      | 8.933     | 17.89                  | 2.338   | 5.061   | 10.7    |
| 287          | 22.76   | 34.77   | 34.90   | 12.28      | 19.48     | 18.14                  | 6.776   | 10,68   | 10,8    |
| 293          | 22.76   | 34.78   | 34.92   | 12.27      | 19.48     | 18.16                  | 6.777   | 10.70   | 10.90   |
| 299          | 22.78   | 34.76   | 34.91   | 12.27      | 19.45     | 18.16                  | 6.776   | 10.68   | 10.89   |
| Average      | 12.333  | 18.065  | 28.424  | 6.643      | 10.125    | 17.922                 | 3.595   | 5.720   | 10.65   |
| (xd (kips/i) | 55188   | 55188   | 55188   | 102288     | 102288    | 102288                 | 174240  | 174240  | 174240  |
| Oxd (kins)   | 681     | 997     | 1569    | 680        | 1036      | 1833                   | 626     | 997     | 1855    |

Notes:

1. Average = {sum(Xd);}/N; Xd=max. x-displ.; i=nodes 1,7,13,144,150,156,287,293,299; and N=9.

2. Oxd = Kxd x Average = total maximum horizontal-x soil reaction in Kips due to dynamic loading.

3. Kxd for LB, BE, and UB soils are dynamic horizontal-x soil spring stiffnesses given below:

| (Kxd)LB = | 4.60E+06 10/in   | Kxd)BE = | 8.52E+08 lb/in   | Kxd)UB = | 1.45E+07 lb/m    |
|-----------|------------------|----------|------------------|----------|------------------|
|           | 5.52E+04 Kips/ft |          | 1.02E+05 Kips/ft |          | 1.74E+05 Kips/ft |

4. LB = lower-bound soil, BE = best-estimate soil, UB = upper-bound soil.

5. Xd are obtained from CECSAP analysis results given in Att. A.

6. The maximum nodel displacements listed may not be concurrent. However, they are assumed to be concurrent for conservatism.

7. Node numbers are shown in Figure 1.

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

P. 5

٢

FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 Attachment B to Calc 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE B6



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

|            |                                 |      |         | GALC, NO. | G(P017)-Z | REV. NO. | U        |
|------------|---------------------------------|------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|
| ORIGINATOR | ×u-                             | DATE | 9/20/99 | CHECKED   |           | DATE     | 9-20-99  |
| PROJECT    | Private Puel Storage Facility   |      |         |           |           | JOB NO.  | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT    | Storage Pad Analysis and Design |      |         |           |           | SHEET    | 231      |

# Table D-1(b) Total Maximum Horizontal Soil Reactions in the Y Direction Dynamic Load

|               |         |         | ł       | Aax. Displ | acement Yo | d ( x10 <sup>-3</sup> fi | .)      |         |              |
|---------------|---------|---------|---------|------------|------------|--------------------------|---------|---------|--------------|
| Node          |         | LB      |         |            | BE         |                          |         | UB      |              |
| Number        | 2 Casks | 4 Casks | 8 Casks | 2 Casks    | 4 Casks    | 8 Casks                  | 2 Casks | 4 Casks | 8 Casics     |
| 1             | 9.362   | 17.42   | 29.04   | 5.446      | 10.100     | 17.04                    | 3.550   | 5,444   | 10.87        |
| 7             | 7.698   | 14.54   | 17.42   | 4.581      | 8,865      | 17.23                    | 2.829   | 5.085   | 10.80        |
| 13            | 9.788   | 14.65   | 20.90   | 5.119      | 9,150      | 17.41                    | 3.116   | 5.711   | <u>10.92</u> |
| 144           | 9.472   | 17.51   | 29.08   | 5,583      | 10.240     | 17.07                    | 3.588   | 5.602   | 10.71        |
| 150           | 7.746   | 14.66   | 17.40   | 4.660      | 8.984      | 17.24                    | 2.889   | 5.226   | 10.83        |
| 156           | 9,856   | 14.76   | 20.72   | 5.225      | 9,310      | 17.42                    | 3.245   | 5.874   | 10.95        |
| 287           | 9.570   | 17.54   | 29.13   | 5.671      | 10.380     | 17.06                    | 3.767   | 5,734   | 10.71        |
| 293           | 7,833   | 14.72   | 17.39   | 4.803      | 9,120      | 17.23                    | 3.001   | 5.348   | 10.81        |
| 299           | 10.000  | 14.89   | 20.54   | 5.346      | 9.366      | 17.41                    | 3.370   | 5.890   | 10.93        |
| Average       | 9.036   | 15.832  | 22.402  | 5.157      | 9.502      | 17.234                   | 3.262   | 5,546   | 10.814       |
| Kvd (kips/ft) | 52428   | 52428   | 52428   | 97178      | 97178      | 97176                    | 165600  | 165600  | 165600       |
| Qyd (kips)    | 474     | 820     | 1175    | 501        | 923        | 1675                     | 540     | 918     | 1791         |

Notes:

1. Average={sum(Yd)i}/N; Yd=max. y-displ.; i=nodes 1,7,13,144,150,156,287,293,299; and N=9.

2. Qyd = Kyd x Average = total maximum horizontal-y soil reaction in Kips due to dynamic loading.

3. Kyd for LB, BE, and UB soils are dynamic horizontal-y soil spring stiffnesses for entire pad given below:

| (Kyd)LB = | 4.37E+06 lb/in    | (Kyd)BE | 8.10E+06 ib/in    | (Kyd)UB | 1,38E+07 ID/In    |
|-----------|-------------------|---------|-------------------|---------|-------------------|
|           | 5.24.E+04 Kips/ft |         | 9.72.E+04 Kips/ft |         | 1.66.E+05 Kips/ft |

4. LB = lower-bound soil, BE = best-estimate soil, UB = upper-bound soil.

5. Yd are obtained from CECSAP analysis results given in Att. A.

8. The maximum nodal displacement listed may not be concurrent. However, they are assumed to be concurrent for conservatism.

7. Node numbers are shown in Figure 1.

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

10-28-1999 12:56PM

۰.

FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE 67

|                             | ليجد                   |                              |                                           |                              |                                   | GALC. N                                  | 0. <u>G(PO)</u> | 17)-2    | REV. NO            | ).     | 0  |
|-----------------------------|------------------------|------------------------------|-------------------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------------------|-----------------|----------|--------------------|--------|----|
| DRIGINAT                    | OR                     | K                            | <u>v</u>                                  | DATE                         | 9/20/49                           | CHECKE                                   | D 7704          |          | DATE               | 9-3    | 3- |
|                             | Priva                  | the Fuel Storag              | ge Facility                               |                              |                                   |                                          |                 | <u>-</u> | JOB NO.<br>CHEET   |        |    |
|                             |                        | ige Fai Analy                | SIE AND DESI                              | <u></u>                      |                                   |                                          |                 |          |                    |        | 2  |
|                             |                        | Summa                        | ary of Tot                                | Tabi<br>al Maximu<br>Dyna    | e D-1(c)<br>Im Horizo<br>Mic Load | ntal Soil F                              | Reactions       | <b>3</b> |                    | 2<br>* |    |
| Ę                           |                        |                              |                                           | Max. So                      | Il Reaction                       | (Kips)                                   |                 |          |                    |        |    |
| F                           | 2 Caste                | LB<br>A Casks                | 8 Casks                                   | 2 Cashs                      | 4 Casks                           | 8 Casks                                  | 2 Casics        | 4 Cask   | s   8 C            | Castos |    |
| Oxd =                       | 681                    | 997                          | 1569                                      | 680                          | 1036                              | 1833                                     | 626             | 9        | 97                 | 1855   | F  |
| Qyd ≠                       | 474                    | 820                          | 1175                                      | 501                          | 923                               | 1675                                     | 540             | 8        | 181                | 1791   | 11 |
| Notes:<br>1. Qxd<br>2. LB = | and Qyd i<br>tower-bou | n Kips are c<br>and soil, BE | aiculated in<br>= best-estin              | n Tables D-1<br>mate soil, U | i (a) and (b)<br>IB = upper-t     | ), respective<br>bound soil.             | sty.            |          | <u>,</u>           |        |    |
| Notes:<br>1. Qxd<br>2. LB = | and Qyd i<br>Iower-bou | n Kips are c<br>and soil, BE | aiculated in<br>= b <del>est-est</del> ir | n Tables D-1<br>mate soil, U | i(a) and (b)<br>8 = upper-t       | ), respective<br>Dound Soil.             | <b>sty.</b>     |          | <u>_</u> - Loop as |        | •  |
| Notes:<br>1. Qxd<br>2. LB = | and Qyd i<br>Iower-bou | n Kips are c<br>and soil, BE | aiculated in<br>= best-esti               | n Tables D-1<br>mate soil, U | i(a) and (b)<br>8 = upper-t       | ), respective<br>bound soil.             | sty.            |          | <u>.</u> .         |        |    |
| Notes:<br>1. Qxd<br>2. LB = | and Qyd i<br>Iower-bou | n Kips are c<br>and soil, BE | aiculated in<br>= b <del>est-est</del> ir | n Tables D-1<br>mate soil, U | i(a) and (b)<br>IB = upper-t      | ), respective<br>bound soil.             | sty.            |          | <u>.</u>           |        |    |
| Notes:<br>1. Qxd<br>2. LB = | and Qyd i<br>Iower-bou | n Kips are c<br>and soil, BE | elculated in<br>= best-esti               | n Tables D-1<br>mate soil, U | i(a) and (b)<br>B = upper-t       | ), respective                            | sły.            |          | · ·                |        |    |
| Notes:<br>1. Qxd<br>2. LB = | and Qyd i<br>Iower-bou | n Kips are c<br>and soil, BE | elculated in<br>= best-estin              | n Tables D-1<br>mate soil, U | i(a) and (b)<br>8 = upper-t       | ), <del>respe</del> ctive<br>bound soil. | sty.            |          |                    |        |    |

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE B8



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

|            |                                 |              | CALC. NO. | G(PO17)-2 | rev. No. | 0        |
|------------|---------------------------------|--------------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|
| ORIGINATOR | m                               | DATE 9/20/49 | CHECKED   | mer       | DATE     | 7-20-99  |
| PROJECT    | Private Fuel Storage Facility   |              |           |           | JOB NO.  | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT    | Storage Pad Analysis and Design |              |           |           | SHEET    | 241      |

# Table D-1(d) Maximum Vertical Soil Bearing Pressures Dynamic Load

|        |         |         | M       | eximum Dis | splacement  | Zd (x10 <sup>-3</sup> f   | t.)                  | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |         |
|--------|---------|---------|---------|------------|-------------|---------------------------|----------------------|---------------------------------------|---------|
| Node   |         | LB      |         |            | BE          |                           |                      | UB                                    |         |
| Number | 2 Casks | 4 Casks | 8 Casks | 2 Casks    | 4 Casks     | 8 Casks                   | 2 Casks              | 4 Casks                               | 8 Casks |
| 1      | 6,046   | 13.58   | -30,77  | 4.002      | 7.599       | -50.25                    | 1.945                | 5.852                                 | -33.37  |
| 7      | 6.421   | 9.074   | -29.91  | 3.341      | 5.761       | -24.61                    | 1.955                | 3.728                                 | -20.64  |
| 13     | 0.799   | 14.73   | -47.10  | 4.855      | 10.53       | -27.68                    | 2.379                | 6.073                                 | -21.03  |
| 144    | -12.78  | -24.37  | -30.63  | -9.079     | -22.41      | -29.56                    | -5.715               | -15.900                               | -23.99  |
| 150    | -6.301  | -12.57  | -16.70  | -5.213     | -12.41      | -15.86                    | -4.055               | -10.450                               | -12.29  |
| 156    | -10.13  | -25.14  | -21.34  | -5.896     | -13.95      | -29.82                    | -3.801               | -11.180                               | -19.07  |
| 287    | -25.50  | -35.51  | -69.21  | -23.57     | -27.08      | -25.68                    | -18.900              | -16.760                               | -14.97  |
| 293    | -21,77  | -32.04  | -61.38  | -17.39     | -22.58      | -21.37                    | -14.010              | -14.500                               | -15.10  |
| 299    | -26.01  | -37.77  | -54.79  | -29.69     | -22.41      | -26.55                    | -15.430              | -16.340                               | -18.84  |
|        |         |         | Maxim   | um Soil Be | aring Press | ure q <sub>zd</sub> ( Kiç | xs/ft <sup>2</sup> ) |                                       |         |
| 1      | 0.00    | 0.00    | -1.20   | 0.00       | 0.00        | -3,53                     | 0.00                 | 0.00                                  | -3.92   |
| 7      | 0.00    | 0.00    | -1.18   | 0.00       | 0.00        | -1.73                     | 0.00                 | 0.00                                  | -2.42   |
| 13     | 0.00    | 0.00    | 1.83    | 0.00       | 0.00        | -1.94                     | 0.00                 | 0.00                                  | -2.47   |
| 144    | -0.50   | -0.95   | -1.19   | -0.64      | -1.57       | -2.08                     | -0.87                | 1.87                                  | -2.82   |
| 150    | -0.25   | -0.49   | -0.65   | -0.37      | -0.87       | -1.11                     | -0.48                | -1.23                                 | -1.44   |
| 156    | -0.39   | -0.98   | -0.83   | -0.41      | -0.98       | -2.09                     | -0.45                | -1.31                                 | -2.24   |
| 287    | -1.03   | -1.38   | -2.70   | -1.66      | -1.90       | -1.80                     | -2.22                | -1.97                                 | -1.78   |
| 293    | -0.85   | -1.25   | -2.39   | -1.22      | -1.69       | -1.50                     | -1.64                | -1.70                                 | -1.77   |
| 299    | -1.01   | -1.47   | -2.13   | -2.09      | -1.57       | -1.87                     | -1.81                | -1.92                                 | -1.98   |

Notes:

1.  $q_{po} = maximum$  soil bearing pressure = (Kzd x Z<sub>0</sub>)/A, where A = 64' x 30' = 1920 ft<sup>2</sup>.

2. Kzd for LB, BE, and UB soils are vertical-z dynamic soil spring stiffnesses given below:

(Kzd)LB = 6.23E+06 lb/in (Kzd)BE = 1.12E+07 lb/in

7.48.E+04 Kips/ft

2.25.E+05 Kips/ft

(Kzd)UB = 1.88E+07 lb/in

3. LB = lower-bound soil, BE = best-estimate soil, UB = upper-bound soil.

4. Zd are obtained from CECSAP analysis results given in Att. A.

5. Negative displacements imply downward movements.

 The maximum Zd values listed above may not be concurrent. However they are assumed to be concurrent values and concurrent signs are assigned to them.

1.35.E+05 Kips/ft

7. Node numbers are shown in Figure 1.

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

P.8

ŧ

#### FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 Attachment B to Calc 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 Page B9



# **CALCULATION SHEET**

|             |                                 |      |         | CALC. NO. | G(PO17)-2 | REV. NO. | V        |
|-------------|---------------------------------|------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|
| ORIGINATOR  | w                               | DATE | 9/20/99 | CHECKED   | mig       | DATE     | 9-20-99  |
| <br>PROJECT | Private Fuel Storage Facility   |      |         |           |           | JOB NO.  | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT     | Storage Pad Analysis and Design |      |         |           |           | SHEET    | 311      |
|             |                                 |      |         |           |           | •        |          |

6.2 Vertical Soil Bearing Pressures and Horizontal Soil Shear Stresses

Vertical soil bearing pressures for individual loadings and combined loadings are summarized as shown in Table 5.

Horizontal soil shear stresses are shown in Tables D-1(a) and (b), and the total horizontal soil reactions (shear forces) in both the short (x) and long (y) directions of the pad are summarized in Table D-1(c).

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

P. 9

ł

#### FROM STONE AND WEBSTER 303 741 7095 ATTACHMENT B TO CALC 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 PAGE BIO



# CALCULATION SHEET

|            |                                 |        |         | CALC. NO. | G(PO17)-2 | rev. No. | 0        |
|------------|---------------------------------|--------|---------|-----------|-----------|----------|----------|
| ORIGINATOR | in                              | DATE _ | 9/20/99 | CHECKED   | marza     | DATE     | 9-20-99  |
| PROJECT    | Private Fuel Storage Facility   |        |         |           |           | JOB NO.  | 1101-000 |
| SUBJECT    | Storage Pad Analysis and Design |        |         |           |           | SHEET    | 312      |

#### Table 5

#### Summary of Vertical Soll Bearing Pressures (ksf) 287 293 299 144 150 Node Number 156 1 7 13 Pad DL 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.450.45 Snow LL 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 ⊾لا 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 Cask LL 1.35 1.38 1.38 0.35 0.35 0.35 ٥ 0 ٥ 2-Cask Pad EQ 0.24 0.24 0.24 0,24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 Cask EQ 2.22 1.64 1.81 0.67 0.48 0 0.45 0 0 100% Ve 4.71 4.14 4.31 2.16 1.14 1.97 1.94 1.14 1.14 Pad DL 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 Snow LL 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 ¥ Cask LL 1,77 1.77 1.77 0.80 0.80 0 0.80 Ũ 0 4-Cask Pad EQ 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 1.92 1.23 Cask EQ 1.70 1.87 1.97 1.31 ٥ 0 0 4.61 4.83 100% Ve 4.88 3.81 3.17 3.25 1.14 1.14 1.14 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 Pad DL 0.46 0.45 0.46 0.45 0.45 0.45 Snow LL 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.45 × Cask LL 1.47 1.47 1.47 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.47 1.47 1.47 8-Cask 0.24 Pad EQ 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24 Cask EQ 2.70 2.39 2.13 2.82 1.44 2.24 3.92 2.42 2.47 100% Ve 5.31 5.00 4.74 5.66 4.18 4.98 5.03 5.08 6.53 Notes: (1) Values for Pad DL are obtained from Table S-1. (2) Values for Snow LL are obtained from Table S-2. (3) Values for Cask LL are obtained from Table S-2. (4) Pad EQ pressure = (pad wt.) x a, where pad wt. = 864 kips, and a, = 0.533g.

(5) Values for Cask EQ are obtained from Table D-1(d).

(6) EQ pressures listed are the envelopes of results for all soil conditions.

(7) Node numbers are shown in Figure 1.

\* SNOW LOAD SHOLD BE 0.045 KSF (i.e., 45 pst.); \* ADJUST "1007. Ne" LINES ACCORDINGLY.

International Civil Engineering Consultants, Inc.

10-28-1999 12:58PM

.....

**`**57

FROM STONF AND WEBSIER R03 741 7095 Attachment B to Calc 05996.02-0(B)-04-5

PAGE BII

46 11



Figure 1 CRCSAP Finite-Element Model with Hode Humburg

International Civil Engineering Consultants Inc.

| ID .ON        |   | 867814<br>867814 | cn<br>cn   | 0'9<br>0'91     | 32.C<br>3.35 | 1.2<br>1.2  | 1'20<br>5'53 | 679<br>8729        | 9106<br>2192  | HDM<br>HDM | 37.23<br>27.23 | 7.46<br>2.62       | 25°5<br>26'8  | 32°2<br>42°3 | ₹ <b>4</b> 93'0<br>₹423'3 | <b>č.</b> ð<br>2.č | ປະກ<br>ຄາ-ນ  | B-3<br>E-1 |
|---------------|---|------------------|------------|-----------------|--------------|-------------|--------------|--------------------|---------------|------------|----------------|--------------------|---------------|--------------|---------------------------|--------------------|--------------|------------|
| NON TION      |   | 66, ounp         |            | 679<br>870      | 340          | 2'1         | 26.1         | 2.55               | 0.08          | HC         | 0'62           | 56'62              | 675           | 3.43         | I 9977                    | ₽'8<br>₽'8         | 072-U        | S-HLO      |
| 15 JU         |   | 8t, wy           |            | 0.01            | 908          | 21          | 82.6         | 6.24               | 0.85          | 110        | 8.52           | 6.07               | 2.98          | 3.87         | 2.25542                   | 9.5                |              | CTB-8      |
| D EV<br>A L C |   | 66 51-110        |            | 0.03            | 026<br>16-2  | 41          | 80 L         | 5.2E               | 8.88          |            | 506            | 808                | C 115         | 6.59         | 9 228PP                   | 901<br>20          | 11-30        | - X-8442)  |
| N U<br>O      | - |                  | .10        | 081             | 12 6         | <u> </u>    | 96.0         |                    | 9.72          | H-72       | 5'<br>19:01    | 0.1**              | 5<br>~ 15     | 1.05         | r 95FF                    | <u> </u>           | 8011         | R-8343     |
| AT            |   | 56 31789         | 60         | 08              | 01.2         | <u> </u>    | 20.2         | <u> </u>           | 9.00:         |            | 881            | 5 60               | ь Ir<br>      | 1.02         | 6.10PP                    | 42<br>             |              | A-0112     |
| LOCI C        |   | 30, acris        | <u>113</u> | 0.0             | 51'C         | 21<br>      | TO'1         | . 6.9 <u>2</u><br> | 6 20          | 80         |                | 17. 7. 20          |               | 2.09         | 0.03PP                    | 0 5<br>C'S         | 02-0         |            |
| V D D         |   | 63 2000          | 0.0        | 0.2             | 107          | 21          | 200          | 1.20               | 6 16          | 80         | <b>.</b>       | 10-1-20            | 2             | 0 = F        | 2 237F                    | 10                 |              | T-04-J     |
| U U           |   | 16 080           | 03         | 0'TT            | 68'7         | 8.1         | 26           | a'/g               | C-97          | 11         | .33            | 2 02-0             | 99 <u>6</u>   | 9.65         | 1.50.4                    | T1                 | 07-0         | 2:1        |
|               |   | 78 msc           | 0.0        | 0' <del>7</del> | 87.7         | 87          | 80.1         | 1.78               | 5.45          |            | 97.73          | 1.14               | G'7t          | ÷.12         | 7951                      | €'01               | <b>n</b> ¢-n | t-A        |
|               |   | 36, <b>A</b> 3N  | no         | 0.3             | 12.2         | <u>.</u>    | 78.2         | 8.64               | <u>3</u> 02 - | EW         | 7.95           | 6'01               | 9.05          | 6'79         | Q' <b>&gt;</b> 967        | ŝŝ                 | 87-0         | T-B        |
| 20            |   |                  | cn         | 27              | 5.03         | 0           | SI.S         | 6'89               | 6'62          | EDW        | 7.28           | <del>1</del> .35.4 | :' <u>s</u> e | [127         | 6'8967                    | 6.9                | n-3C         | 1-11       |
| 0             |   | 2120             | adtr       | 55              | <b>ह</b> म्  | 15 <b>4</b> |              | 324                | pad           | aboD       | Id             | JI                 | ΤΊ            | <u>%</u>     | IJ                        | Ħ                  | ombre        | Saudor     |

PAGE 25K

ATTRUMENT C PCL/3

. . . . . .

0005/63/9 no six.1 -xsin:/del/99950/[pc92]

----



FIGURE 7

## STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET



Private Fuel Storage Facility

PP 5-21-1 Attachment 2 Page 1 of 2

# QA CATEGORY I CALCULATION CHECKLIST

| Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04<br>Revision No. 6                                                                                                  | Project No<br>Job Book File Loc | . 0599<br>ation ( | 96.02<br>Q2.9 |  |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------|---------------|--|
|                                                                                                                                                     | Yes                             | <u>No</u>         | <u>N/A</u>    |  |
| Method                                                                                                                                              |                                 |                   |               |  |
| Identify the method used to verify the "Method" of the calculation                                                                                  | 1                               |                   |               |  |
| <ul> <li>By design review</li> <li>Compare the Method with another calculation</li> <li>Alternate calculation</li> </ul>                            | <u> </u>                        |                   |               |  |
| If the compare method was used, is the statement identifying the other calculation identified in this calculation?                                  |                                 |                   | $\checkmark$  |  |
| If an alternate calculation was used for a QA Category I calculation, is it included with the calculation?                                          |                                 |                   | $\checkmark$  |  |
| Is the calculation method acceptable?                                                                                                               | $\checkmark$                    |                   |               |  |
| Assumptions                                                                                                                                         |                                 |                   |               |  |
| Affirmative answers to the following questions are required:                                                                                        |                                 |                   |               |  |
| <ul> <li>Are all assumptions uniquely identified as assumptions and<br/>adequately described?</li> </ul>                                            | $\checkmark$                    |                   |               |  |
| Are all assumptions reasonable?                                                                                                                     | $\checkmark$                    |                   |               |  |
| <ul> <li>Are all assumptions that require confirmation at a later date<br/>specifically identified as assumptions that must be confirmed</li> </ul> | <u>/</u>                        |                   |               |  |
| For Revisions to the Calculation                                                                                                                    |                                 |                   |               |  |
| Are changes clearly identified?                                                                                                                     | $\checkmark$                    |                   |               |  |
| • For QA Category I calculations, is a reason for the revision g                                                                                    | jiven? <u>V</u>                 |                   |               |  |
| • Does the calculation identify the calculation, including revision when applicable, which is superseded?                                           | on, 🗸                           |                   |               |  |

# Private Fuel Storage Facility

.

PP 5-21-1 Attachment 2 Page 2 of 2

# QA CATEGORY I CALCULATION CHECKLIST

| Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-04 | Project No. 05996.02        |  |  |  |
|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|--|--|--|
| Revision No. 6                   | Job Book File Location Q2.9 |  |  |  |
|                                  |                             |  |  |  |
|                                  |                             |  |  |  |

|   |                                                                                                                                | <u>Yes</u>   | <u>No</u> | <u>N/A</u>   |
|---|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------|-----------|--------------|
| • | Are affected pages identified with the new calculation number or revision number?                                              | $\checkmark$ |           |              |
| • | When applicable, is an alternate calculation included as part of the calculation?                                              |              |           | $\checkmark$ |
| • | When applicable, is a statement identifying the calculation to which the method was compared included as part of the revision? |              |           | $\checkmark$ |

Thomas Y. Chang Printed Name

Thomas 4. Chang Signature

6-16-2000 Date

# **Exhibit** A

# Attachment 2

ر حمد در م

# CALCULATION TITLE PAGE

\*SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE SIDE

| ▲ 5010.64 (FRONT) |                           |                  |                                       |          |                               |          |              |  |
|-------------------|---------------------------|------------------|---------------------------------------|----------|-------------------------------|----------|--------------|--|
| CLIENT & PROJECT  | r Ø                       |                  |                                       |          | PAGE 1 OF                     | 52 +     |              |  |
| PRIVATE FUEL STO  | SEASE, LLC- KEIVI         | ATE FUEL STO     | RACE FI                               | ACILITY  | 6 pp of                       | ATTAC    | H'S          |  |
| CALCULATION TITL  | E (Indicative of the Obje | ective):         | -                                     |          | QA CAT                        | FEGORY ( | ∧            |  |
| STABILIT          | ( ANALYSES                | OF THE C         | CANIST                                | ek.      | TAI - NUC                     | LEAR     |              |  |
| TRANSFER          | BUNDING SU                | PPORTED ON       | A                                     |          | SAFETY RELATED                |          |              |  |
| AAAT TIM          |                           |                  |                                       |          |                               |          |              |  |
| IVIAT FOUNDATION  |                           |                  |                                       |          |                               |          |              |  |
|                   | CALCULATION IDE           | NTIFICATION NUM  | 3FR                                   |          | <u> </u>                      |          |              |  |
|                   |                           | CURRENT          |                                       | IONAL    | 0P1                           | TIONAL   |              |  |
| J. O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP          | CALC. NO.        | TASI                                  | CODE     | WORK P                        | ACKAGE   | NO.          |  |
| 000000            | (2)                       | 1-2              |                                       |          | ~~                            | (E AD    |              |  |
| 03996.02          | GCOJ                      | 12               |                                       |          |                               |          |              |  |
| * APPROVALS - SIG | NATURE & DATE             |                  | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | REV. NO. | SUPERSEDES                    | CONFIRM  | ATION        |  |
| PREPARER (S)/DATE | (S) REVIEWER(S)/DAT       | E (S) INDEPENDEN | T                                     | ORNEW    | * CALC. NO.                   | *REQUIR  |              |  |
|                   |                           | REVIEWER(S)      | /DATE(S)                              | CALC NO. | OR REV. NO.                   | TES      | NO           |  |
| L.P. SINGH        | 7. L. Aloysius            | r J.L. Aloy      | Sivs                                  | 0        |                               |          |              |  |
| Reigh             | Arring                    | 71 Aw            | · · · ·                               |          |                               |          |              |  |
| 10-0.98           | 12 2 - 98                 | 12-18-0          | 0                                     |          |                               |          |              |  |
| 12-1-10           | 12-10-10                  | 12-10-1          | 0                                     |          |                               |          |              |  |
|                   | ev2                       | mia              |                                       |          |                               |          | /            |  |
| DLALOYSIU         | SJUNDARY                  | ETYCH            | ang                                   | {        | G(C)-13                       |          | $\checkmark$ |  |
| 9-3-49            | 9-3-99                    | 9-3-6            | 19                                    | •        | RAID                          |          |              |  |
| TA alaina         | Sul aleso                 | blicker          |                                       |          |                               |          | 1            |  |
| in the second     | sasand                    | [nomas v         | Charc                                 | r        |                               |          |              |  |
| SYBOAKYE          | DLALOYSI                  | US TY CH         | lang                                  |          |                               |          | F            |  |
| 9 2 90            | 9-3-99                    | 9-2.             | -995                                  |          |                               |          |              |  |
| Sint in           |                           |                  | diar                                  |          |                               |          |              |  |
| - Sonoadye        | - Aloysius                | (nomas of        | 'Chairy                               | r        |                               |          |              |  |
|                   |                           |                  | 02-50                                 |          |                               |          |              |  |
| <u>5</u>          | E PAGE 2-1                | ron LD of        | PKEN-                                 | aked / f | KENIEWOD                      | BY       |              |  |
|                   |                           |                  |                                       | <u> </u> |                               |          |              |  |
| PAUL J. TRUDE     | AU Thomas Y. Che          | ang Thomas       | l. Chang                              | 2        | 4(8)-13                       |          | · •          |  |
| 1-21-2000         | 1-21-2000                 | 0 1-21-          | 2000 (                                | _        | P. I                          |          |              |  |
| TATI Dan          | 7/1004000 14 Ch           | and Thomas M     | Chan                                  |          | Nev. L                        |          | 1            |  |
| und have          | in lunner of co           | In the man is    | · chang                               | h        |                               |          |              |  |
| Pul T TAUDE       | an Thomas Y. Ch           | and Thomas Y     | Chana                                 | 2        | 6(B)-12                       |          |              |  |
| L-19-2000         | E-19-200                  | 0 6-10.          | -2000 D                               | する       |                               |          | l l          |  |
|                   |                           |                  |                                       |          | Rev.2                         |          | 1            |  |
| 1 Paul Slander    | and Womes 4. Cl           | range (llowar 1  | Chang                                 | h        |                               |          |              |  |
|                   |                           |                  | (                                     | L        | L                             |          |              |  |
|                   | r <del>æ</del>            |                  | UN *                                  |          |                               | T        |              |  |
| 00000             |                           | COPY             | 000.00                                |          | AME 6 1004                    |          | COPY         |  |
| GROUP             | I NAME & LOCATIO          |                  | GROUP                                 | l N<br>t | AME & LOCA                    | HON      | (V)          |  |
| PECOPOS MOT       | 1                         |                  |                                       | l        |                               | L<br>1   | <u> </u>     |  |
| FILES (OR FIRE    | JOB BOOK R4.              | Z ORIG           |                                       | i        |                               | 1        |              |  |
| FILE IF NONE)     |                           |                  |                                       | i        |                               |          | 1            |  |
|                   | FIRE FILE                 |                  |                                       | I        |                               | l        |              |  |
| Georgeon          | SUEC-Russ                 |                  |                                       | 1        |                               | I        | 1            |  |
|                   |                           |                  |                                       |          |                               | 1        |              |  |
| 1                 | ,<br>                     |                  |                                       | 1        |                               | 1        | 1            |  |
| ,<br>i            | 1                         |                  |                                       | 1        |                               | 1        |              |  |
|                   | 1                         |                  |                                       |          |                               | Ì        | 1            |  |
| 1                 | )<br>                     |                  |                                       |          |                               | 1        | 1            |  |
|                   |                           | 1                |                                       |          |                               | ,<br>1   | 1            |  |
| L                 | L                         |                  |                                       |          |                               | L        |              |  |
| •                 |                           |                  |                                       |          | A second second second second |          | -            |  |

# STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

- ......

| 010.65                                                                                         | CAL                                                                              | CULATION SHEE                                                     | , <b>I</b>                                                       |                        |  |  |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------|--|--|
| CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER                                                              |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  |                        |  |  |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02                                                                   | DIVISION & GROUP<br>G(B)                                                         | CALCULATION NO.<br>13-3                                           | OPTIONAL TASK CODE<br>N/A                                        | PAGE 2                 |  |  |
|                                                                                                | TABI                                                                             |                                                                   | TS                                                               |                        |  |  |
|                                                                                                |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  |                        |  |  |
| TABLE OF CONT                                                                                  | ENTS                                                                             |                                                                   |                                                                  | 2                      |  |  |
| RECORD OF REV                                                                                  | 7ISIONS                                                                          |                                                                   |                                                                  | 3                      |  |  |
| OBJECTIVE                                                                                      |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  | 6                      |  |  |
| ASSUMPTIONS/D                                                                                  | ATA                                                                              |                                                                   |                                                                  | 6                      |  |  |
| GEOTECHNICAL P                                                                                 | ROPERTIES                                                                        |                                                                   |                                                                  | 7                      |  |  |
| METHOD OF ANAL                                                                                 | LYSIS                                                                            |                                                                   |                                                                  | 10                     |  |  |
| ANALYSIS OF OVE                                                                                | RTURNING STABILITY                                                               |                                                                   |                                                                  | 10                     |  |  |
| ANALYSIS OF SLID                                                                               | ING STABILITY                                                                    |                                                                   |                                                                  | 12                     |  |  |
| Sliding Stabilit                                                                               | y of the Canister Tran                                                           | sfer Building on In                                               | Situ Clayey Soils                                                | 12                     |  |  |
| Sliding Stabilit                                                                               | y of the Canister Tran                                                           | isfer Building on Co                                              | nesionless Soils<br>basionless Soils (cont'd'                    | 13                     |  |  |
| Neumark's Me                                                                                   | y of the Cultister ITal                                                          | splacements Due to                                                | Farthauakes                                                      | 20                     |  |  |
| Estimation of F                                                                                | Iorizontal Displaceme                                                            | nt Usina Newmark's                                                | s Method                                                         | 20                     |  |  |
| Load Case IIIA                                                                                 | : 40% N-S direction, -                                                           | 100% Vertical direc                                               | tion, 40% E-W direction.                                         | . 22                   |  |  |
| Load Case IIIB: 40% N-S direction, -40% Vertical direction, 100% E-W direction.                |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  |                        |  |  |
| Load Case IIIC                                                                                 | : 100% N-S direction,                                                            | -40% Vertical direc                                               | tion, 40% E-W direction.                                         | . 24                   |  |  |
| Summary of H                                                                                   | orizontal Displacemen                                                            | at Calculated Using                                               | Newmark's Method                                                 | 25                     |  |  |
| ALLOWABLE BEAF                                                                                 | UNG CAPACITY                                                                     |                                                                   |                                                                  | 26                     |  |  |
| Shape Facto                                                                                    | rs                                                                               |                                                                   |                                                                  | 20<br>27               |  |  |
| Depth Factor                                                                                   | rs                                                                               |                                                                   |                                                                  | 27                     |  |  |
| Inclination F                                                                                  | `actors                                                                          |                                                                   |                                                                  | 27                     |  |  |
| Static Bearing Capacity of the Canister Transfer Building                                      |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  |                        |  |  |
| Dynamic Beari                                                                                  | ng Capacity of the Ca                                                            | inister Transfer Bui                                              | lding                                                            | 31                     |  |  |
| CONCLUSIONS                                                                                    |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  | 39                     |  |  |
| OVERTURNING ST                                                                                 | ABILITY OF THE CANIST                                                            | er Transfer Buildi                                                | NG                                                               | 39                     |  |  |
| SLIDING SLIDING                                                                                | STABILITY OF THE CANI                                                            | STER TRANSFER BUIL                                                | DING                                                             | 39                     |  |  |
| BEARING CAPACIT                                                                                | Y                                                                                |                                                                   |                                                                  | 40                     |  |  |
| Static Bearing                                                                                 | Capacity of the Canis                                                            | ter Transfer Buildin                                              | g                                                                | 40                     |  |  |
| Dynamic Beari                                                                                  | ng Capacity of the Ca                                                            | inister Transfer Bui                                              | lding                                                            | 41                     |  |  |
| REFERENCES                                                                                     |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  | 42                     |  |  |
| <b>FABLES</b>                                                                                  |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  | 43                     |  |  |
| FIGURES                                                                                        |                                                                                  |                                                                   |                                                                  | 47                     |  |  |
| ATTACHMENTS<br>A Pages from C<br>(pp 25K, 34, 3<br>B Annotated co                              | alc 05996.02-G(B)-05<br>35, & 36)<br>pies of CPT-37 & CP1                        | 5-2 re Strength of C<br>C-38 Showing Relat                        | Layey Silt<br>ive Difference Between                             | 4 pp<br>2 pp           |  |  |
| <ul> <li>A Pages from C<br/>(pp 25K, 34, 3</li> <li>B Annotated co<br/>Deeper Lying</li> </ul> | aic 05996.02-G(B)-05<br>35, & 36)<br>pies of CPT-37 & CP1<br>Soils and Those Tes | 5-2 re Strength of C<br>f-38 Showing Relat<br>sted in UU & CU Tri | iayey Siit<br>ive Difference Between<br>iaxial Tests At Depths - | 4 pp<br>2 pp<br>~10 Ft |  |  |

# CALCULATION SHEET

| 010.65                                                                                                                          | CAL                                            | CULATION SHEE                                 |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------|--------------|--|--|--|--|
| CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER                                                                                               |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                                                                                                                | DIVISION & GROUP                               | CALCULATION NO.                               | OPTIONAL TASK CODE                         | page 3       |  |  |  |  |
| 05996.02                                                                                                                        | G(B)                                           | 13-3                                          | N/A                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 | RECC                                           | ORD OF REVISIO                                | DNS                                        |              |  |  |  |  |
| REVISION 0                                                                                                                      |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| Original issue                                                                                                                  |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| REVISION 1                                                                                                                      |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| Page count increase                                                                                                             | d from 37 to 63.                               |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| Revised seismic                                                                                                                 | loadings to correspond                         | to the PSHA 2,000-y                           | r return period earthqua                   | ke (p. 9-1)  |  |  |  |  |
| <ul> <li>Added section or</li> </ul>                                                                                            | n dynamic strength of s                        | oils (p. 9-3)                                 |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| <ul> <li>Added section or</li> </ul>                                                                                            | n seismic sliding resista                      | ince of the mat found                         | ation (p. 9-5)                             |              |  |  |  |  |
| <ul> <li>Added section on evaluation of sliding on a deep slip surface (p. 9-8)</li> </ul>                                      |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| Updated bearing capacity analysis using revised seismic loadings (p. 34-1)                                                      |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| = Added additional loading combination: static + 40% seismic uplift + 100% in x (N-S) direction $\pm 40\%$ in z (E-W) direction |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| <ul> <li>Added additional references (n. 36-1)</li> </ul>                                                                       |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| NOTE:                                                                                                                           |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| SYBoakye prepare                                                                                                                | d/DLAloysius reviewe                           | d pp. 9-8 through 9-                          | 12. Remaining pages p                      | prepared by  |  |  |  |  |
| DLAloysius and re                                                                                                               | viewed by SYBoakye.                            |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| <b>REVISION 2</b>                                                                                                               |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| Major re-write of th                                                                                                            | e calculation.                                 |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| 1. Renumbered pa                                                                                                                | ages and figures to m                          | ake the calculation                           | easier to follow.                          |              |  |  |  |  |
| 2. Changed effecti<br>05996.02-SC-4                                                                                             | ive length of mat to 2<br>, Rev 1 (SWEC, 1999  | 65 ft to make it cor<br>a).                   | nsistent with Calculat                     | ion          |  |  |  |  |
| 3. Added overturn                                                                                                               | ing analysis.                                  |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| <ol> <li>Corrected calcu<br/>seismic loads in</li> </ol>                                                                        | lation of moments fo<br>a calculations of over | r joints 3 and 6 in '<br>turning stability an | Table 1 and incorporand dynamic bearing ca | ited revised |  |  |  |  |
| 5. Revised dynam                                                                                                                | ic bearing capacity a                          | nalyses to utilize or                         | nly total strength para                    | meters       |  |  |  |  |
| because these                                                                                                                   | partially saturated so                         | ils will not have tin                         | ne to drain fully durin                    | g the rapid  |  |  |  |  |
| cycling associat                                                                                                                | ted with the design b                          | asis ground motion                            | a. See Calculation 059                     | 996.02-G(B)- |  |  |  |  |
| 05-1 (SWEC, 19                                                                                                                  | 999b) for additional d                         | letails.                                      |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
| 6. Updated referen                                                                                                              | nces to current issue                          | <b>s of d</b> rawings.                        |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                 |                                                |                                               |                                            |              |  |  |  |  |

7. Added references to foundation profiles through Canister Transfer Building area presented in SAR Figures 2.6-21 through 23.

### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO. | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 4 |
|------------------|------------------|-----------------|--------------------|--------|
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3            | N/A                |        |

8. Deleted analyses of bearing capacity on layered profile, as adequate factors of safety are obtained conservatively assuming that the total strengths measured for the clayey soils in the upper ~25' to 30' layer apply for the entire profile under the Canister Transfer Building and revised all of the detailed bearing capacity analyses.

- 9. Changed "Load Combinations" to "Load Cases" and defined these cases to be consistent throughout the various stability analyses included herein. These are the same cases as are used in the stability analyses of the cask storage pads, Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-04-5 (SWEC, 2000).
- 10.Added analysis of sliding on a deep plane at the top of silty sand/sandy silt layer, incorporating passive resistance acting on the block of clayey soil and the foundation mat overlying this interface.
- 11. Revised Conclusions to reflect results of these changes.

# **REVISION 3**

5010.65

- 1. Added a 1-ft deep key around the perimeter of the Canister Transfer Building mat to permit use of the cohesive strength of the in situ silty clay/clayey silt in resisting sliding due to loads from the design basis ground motion.
- 2. Revised shear strength used in the sliding stability analyses of the Canister Transfer Building mat supported on the in situ silty clay to be the strength measured in the direct shear tests performed on samples obtained from elevations approximately at the bottom of the 1-ft deep perimeter key. The shear strength used in this analysis equaled that measured for stresses corresponding to the vertical stresses at the bottom of the mat following completion of construction.
- 3. Removed static and dynamic bearing capacity analyses based on total-stress strengths.
- 4. The relative strength increase noted for the deeper lying soils in the cone penetration testing that was performed within the Canister Transfer Building footprint was used to determine a weighted average undrained strength of the soils in the entire upper layer for use in the bearing capacity analyses, since the soils within a depth equal to approximately the width of the foundation are effective in resisting bearing failures. This resulted in the average undrained strength for the bearing capacity analyses of the upper layer equal to 3.18 ksf.
- 5. Removed dynamic analyses based on increasing strengths of the cohesive soils that were measured in static tests to reflect well known phenomenon that the strength of cohesive soils increases as the rate of loading decreases.
- 6. Revised undrained shear strength of the clay block overlying the cohesionless layer to 2.2 ksf, based on the UU tests that were performed at confining pressures of 1.3 ksf (reported in Attachment 2 of Appendix 2A of the SAR) in the analysis of sliding of the Canister Transfer Building on deep plane of cohesionless soils.
5010.65

|                                                                                                                                                              | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |        |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------|
| CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER       J.O. OR W.O. NO.     DIVISION & GROUP     CALCULATION NO.     OPTIONAL TASK       05996.02     G(B)     13-3     N/A |                  |                   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE D |
| 05996.02                                                                                                                                                     | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |        |

7. Added shearing resistance available on the ends of the block of clay, since this soil must be sheared along these planes in order for the Canister Transfer Building to slide on a deep plane of cohesionless soils.

- 8. Revised method of calculating the inclination factor in the bearing capacity analyses to that presented by Vesic in Chapter 3 of Winterkorn and Fang (1975). Vesic's method expands upon the theory developed by Hansen for plane strain analyses of footings with inclined loads. Vesic's method permits a more rigorous analysis of inclined loads acting in two directions on rectangular footings, which more closely represents the conditions applicable for the Canister Transfer Building.
- 9. Replaced Tables 2, 2.6-9, and 2.6-10 with revised results for the changes in shear strength of the in situ soils noted above and deleted Table 3.

5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |        |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE O |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |        |

#### **OBJECTIVE**

To determine the stability against overturning, sliding, and static and dynamic bearing capacity failure of the Canister Transfer Building supported on a mat foundation.

#### ASSUMPTIONS/DATA

The footprint of the Canister Transfer Building foundation mat is shown on SWEC Drawing 0599601-EA-8-D, Canister Transfer Building – Floor Plan, and Drawing 0599601-EM-1-D, Canister Transfer Building – General Arrangement Sheet 1. The elevation view of the structure is shown on Drawing 0599601-EA-9-D, Canister Transfer Building – Elevations Sheet 1, and Drawing 0599601-EM-1-D, Canister Transfer Building – General Arrangement Sheet 2. As indicated in SAR Section 4.7.1.5.1, Structural Design, the mat foundation is 5 ft thick. The foundation mat is modeled as 165 ft x 265 ft x 5 ft thick. These are the effective dimensions that were developed and used in Calculation 05996.02-SC-4, Rev 1 (SWEC, 1999a).

Figure 1 presents a schematic view of the foundation and identifies the coordinate system used in these analyses. Figure 2 presents the stick model used in the structural analysis of the Canister Transfer Building.

The various static and dynamic loads and load combinations used in these analyses were obtained from Calculation 05996.02-SC-5-1 (SWEC, 1999b). All loads are transferred to the bottom of the mat. Moments, when transferred to the bottom of the mat, result in eccentricity of the applied load with respect to the center of gravity of the mat. Lateral loads, when combined with the vertical load, result in inclination of the vertical load, which decreases the allowable bearing capacity.

The generalized soil profile at the site is shown on Figure 3. The soil profile consists of ~30 ft of silty clay/clayey silt with sandy silt/silty sand layers (Layer 1), overlying ~30 ft of very dense fine sand (Layer 2), overlying extremely dense silt (N  $\geq$ 100 blows/ft, Layer 3). SAR Figures 2.6-21 through 23 present foundation profiles showing the relationship of the Canister Transfer Building with respect to the underlying soils. These profiles, located as shown in SAR Figure 2.6-18, provide more detailed stratigraphic information, especially within the upper ~30-ft thick layer at the site.

The bearing capacity analyses assume that Layer 1, which consists of silty clay/clayey silt with some sandy silt/silty sand, is of infinite thickness and has strength properties based on those measured for the clayey soils within the upper layer. These assumptions simplify the analyses and they are very conservative. The strength of the sandy silt/silty sand in the upper layer is greater than that of the clayey soils, based on the increases in Standard Penetration Test (SPT) blow counts (N-values) and the increased tip resistance (see SAR Figure 2.6-5, Sheet 1) in the cone penetration testing (ConeTec, 1999) measured for these soils. The underlying soils are even stronger, based on their SPT N-values, which generally exceed 100 blows/ft.

| 5010. | . 6 | 5 |
|-------|-----|---|
|-------|-----|---|

|                  | 7                                                                    |      |     |  |  |  |
|------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|------|-----|--|--|--|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE |      |     |  |  |  |
| 05996.02         | G(B)                                                                 | 13-3 | N/A |  |  |  |

#### **GEOTECHNICAL PROPERTIES**

Based on laboratory test results presented in Table 3 of Calculation 05996.02-G(B)-5-2 (SWEC, 2000),  $\gamma_{\text{moist}}$  = 80 pcf above the bottom of the mat and 90 pcf below the mat.

Table 6 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment A) summarizes the results of the triaxial tests that were performed within depths of ~10 ft. The undrained shear strengths ( $s_u$ ) measured in these tests are plotted vs confining pressure in Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment A). This figure is annotated to indicate the vertical stresses existing prior to construction and following completion of construction.

The undrained shear strengths measured in the triaxial tests are used for the dynamic bearing capacity analyses because the soils are partially saturated and they will not drain completely during the rapid cycling of loadings associated with the design basis ground motion. As indicated in Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment A), the undrained strength of the soils within ~10 ft of grade is assumed to be 2.2 ksf. This value is the lowest strength measured in the UU tests, which were performed at confining stresses of 1.3 ksf. This confining stress corresponds to the in situ vertical stress existing near the middle of the upper layer, prior to construction of these structures. It is much less than the final stresses that will exist under the cask storage pads and the Canister Transfer Building following completion of construction. Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment A) illustrates that the undrained strength of these soils increase as the loadings of the structures are applied; therefore, 2.2 ksf is a very conservative value for use in the bearing capacity analyses of these structures.

The bearing capacity of the structures are dependent primarily on the strength of the soils in the upper ~25 to ~30-ft layer at the site. All of the borings drilled at the site indicate that the soils underlying this upper layer are very dense fine sands overlying silts with standard penetration test blow counts that exceed 100 blows/ft. The results of the cone penetration testing, presented in ConeTec(1999) and plotted in SAR Figure 2.6-5, Sheets 1 to 14, illustrate that the strength of the soils in the upper layer are much greater at depths below ~10 ft than in the range of ~5 ft to ~10 ft, where most of the triaxial tests were performed.

In determining the bearing capacity of the foundation, the average shear strength of the soils along the anticipated bearing capacity failure slip surface should be used. This slip surface is normally confined to the zone within a depth below the footing equal to the minimum width of the footing. For the Canister Transfer Building, the effective width of the footing is decreased because of the large eccentricity of the load on the mat due to the seismic loading. As indicated in Table 2.6-10, the minimum effective width of the Canister Transfer Building occurs for Load Case IIIA, where B' = 38.2 ft. This is greater than the depth of the upper layer (~30 ft). Therefore, it is reasonable to use the average strength of the soils in the upper layer in the bearing capacity analyses, since all of the soils in the

5010.65

#### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |        |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE O |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |        |

upper layer will be effective in resisting failure along the anticipated bearing capacity slip surface.

The undrained strength used in the bearing capacity analyses presented herein is a weighted average strength that is applicable for the soils in the upper layer. This value is determined using the value of undrained shear strength of 2.2 ksf noted above for the soils tested at depths of ~10 ft and the relative strength increase measured for the soils below depths of ~12 ft in the cone penetration tests that were performed within the Canister Transfer Building footprint. As indicated on SAR Figure 2.6-18, these included CPT-37 and CPT-38. Similar increases in undrained strength for the deeper lying soils were also noted in all of the other CPTs performed in the pad emplacement area.

Attachment B presents copies of the plots of  $s_u$  vs depth for CPT-37 and CPT-38, which are included in Appendix D of ConeTec(1999). These plots are annotated to identify the average undrained strength of the cohesive soils measured with respect to depth. As shown by the plot of  $s_u$  for CPT-37, the weakest zone exists between depths of ~5 ft and ~12 ft. The results for CPT-38 are similar, but the bottom of the weakest zone is at a depth of ~11 ft. The underlying soils are all much stronger. The average value of  $s_u$  of the cohesive soils for the depth range from ~18 ft to ~28 ft is ~2.20 tsf, compared to  $s_u$  ~1.34 tsf for the zone between ~5 ft and ~12 ft. Therefore, the undrained strength of the deeper soils in the upper layer was ~64% ( $\Delta s_u = 100\% \times [(2.20 \text{ tsf} - 1.34 \text{ tsf}) / 1.34 \text{ tsf}]$  higher than the strength measured for the soils within the depth range of ~5 ft to ~12 ft. The relative strength increase was even greater than this in CPT-38.

Using 2.2 ksf, as measured in the UU triaxial tests performed on specimens obtained from depths of ~10 ft, as the undrained strength applicable for the weakest soils (i.e., those in the depth range of ~5 ft to ~12 ft), the average strength for the soils in the entire upper layer is calculated as shown in Figure 4. The resulting average value, weighted as a function of the depth, is  $s_u$  ~3.18 ksf. This value would be much higher if the results from CPT-38 were used; therefore, this is considered to be a reasonable lower-bound value of the average strength applicable for the soils in the upper layer that underlie the Canister Transfer Building.

Further evidence that this is a conservative value of  $s_u$  for the soils in the upper layer is presented in Figure 11 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copy included in Attachment A). This plot of  $s_u$  vs confining pressure illustrates that this value is slightly less than the average value of  $s_u$  measured in the CU triaxial tests that were performed on specimens obtained from depths of ~10 ft at confining stresses of 2.1 ksf. As indicated in this figure, the confining stress of 2.1 ksf used to test these specimens is comparable to the vertical stress that will exist ~5 ft below the Canister Transfer Building mat following completion of construction. Since these tests were performed on specimens of the weakest soils underling the Canister Transfer Building mat (the deeper lying soils are stronger based on the SPT and the cone penetration test data), it is conservative to use the weighted average value of  $s_u$  of 3.18 ksf for the soils in the entire upper layer of the profile in the bearing capacity analyses.

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | 0      |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|--------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 9 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |        |

Direct shear tests were performed on undisturbed specimens of the silty clay/clayey silt obtained from Borings CTB-6 and CTB-S, which were drilled in the locations shown in SAR Figure 2.6-18. These specimens were obtained from Elevation ~4469, the elevation of the bottom of the 1-ft deep perimeter key proposed at the base of Canister Transfer Building mat. Note, this key is being constructed around the perimeter of the mat to ensure that the full shear strength of the clayey soils is available to resist sliding of the structure due to loads from the design basis ground motion. These direct shear tests were performed at normal stresses that ranged from 0.25 ksf to 3.0 ksf. This range of normal stresses bounds the ranges of stresses expected for static and dynamic loadings from the design basis ground motion.

The results of these tests are presented in Attachments 7 and 8 of the Appendix 2A of the SAR and they are plotted in Figures 9 and 10 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copies included in Attachment A). Because of the fine grained nature of these soils, they will not drain completely during the rapid cycling of loadings associated with the design basis ground motion. Therefore, sliding stability analyses included below of the Canister Transfer Building constructed directly on the silty clay are performed using the average shear strength measured in these direct shear tests for a normal stress equal to the vertical stress under the building following completion of construction, but prior to imposition of the dynamic loading due to the earthquake. As shown in Figures 9 and 10 of Calc 05996.02-G(B)-05-2 (copies included in Attachment A), this average shear strength is 1.8 ksf and the friction angle is set equal to  $0^{\circ}$ .

Effective-stress strength parameters are estimated to be  $\phi = 30^{\circ}$  and c = 0 ksf, even though these soils may be somewhat cemented. This value of  $\phi$  is based on the PI values for these soils, which ranged between 5% and 23% (SWEC, 2000a), and the relationship between  $\phi$  and PI presented in Figure 18.1 of Terzaghi & Peck (1967).

Therefore, static bearing capacity analyses are performed using the following soil strengths:

Case IA Static using undrained strength parameters:  $\phi = 0^{\circ} \& c = 3.18 \text{ ksf.}$ 

Case IB Static using effective-stress strength parameters:  $\phi = 30^{\circ} \& c = 0$ .

and dynamic bearing capacity analyses are performed using  $\phi = 0^{\circ} \& c = 3.18 \text{ ksf.}$ 

#### 5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | 10      |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE IU |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |         |

#### METHOD OF ANALYSIS

Load cases analyzed consist of combinations of vertical static, vertical dynamic (compression and uplift, Y-direction), and horizontal dynamic (in X and Z-directions) loads.

The following load combinations are analyzed:

- Case I Static
- Case II Static + dynamic horizontal forces due to the earthquake
- Case III Static + dynamic horizontal + vertical uplift forces due to the earthquake
- Case IV Static + dynamic horizontal + vertical compression forces due to the earthquake

For Case II, 100% of the dynamic lateral forces in both X and Z directions are combined. For Cases III and IV, 100% of the dynamic loading in one direction is assumed to act at the same time that 40% of the dynamic loading acts in the other two directions. For these cases, the suffix "A" is used to designate 40% in the X direction (N-S for the Canister Transfer Building, as shown in Figure 1), 100% in the Y direction (vertical), and 40% in the Z direction (E-W). Similarly, the suffix "B" is used to designate 40% in the X direction, 40% in the Y, and 100% in the Z, and the suffix "C" is used to designate 100% in the X directions. Thus,

Case IIIA40%N-S direction,-100%Vertical direction,40%E-W direction.Case IIIB40%N-S direction,-40%Vertical direction,100%E-W direction.Case IIIC100%N-S direction,-40%Vertical direction,40%E-W direction.

The negative sign for the vertical direction in Case III indicates uplift forces due to the earthquake. Case IV is the same as Case III, but the vertical forces due to the earthquake act downward in compression; therefore, the signs on the vertical components are positive.

Combining the effects of the three components of the design basis ground motion in this manner is in accordance with ASCE-4 (1986).

#### ANALYSIS OF OVERTURNING STABILITY

The factor of safety against overturning is defined as:

 $FS_{OT} = \Sigma M_{Resisting} \div \Sigma M_{Driving}$ 

The overturning stability of the Canister Transfer Building is determined using the dynamic loads for the building due to the PSHA 2,000-yr return period earthquake. These loads are listed in Table 1 (SAR Table 2.6-11), and they were developed based on the dynamic analysis performed in Calculation 05996.02-SC-5 (SWEC, 1999b) and described

|                  | TIFICATION NUMBER |      |     |  |
|------------------|-------------------|------|-----|--|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | PAGE II           |      |     |  |
| 05996.02         | G(B)              | 13-3 | N/A |  |

in SAR Section 4.7.1.5.3. The masses and accelerations of the joints (see Figure 2 for locations of the joints) used in the model of the Canister Transfer Building in Calculation 05996.02-SC-5 are listed on the left side of Table 1, and the resulting inertial forces and associated moments are listed on the right. Based on building geometry shown schematically in Figure 1 and the forces and moments shown in Table 1, overturning is more critical about the N-S axis (~265 ft) than about the E-W axis (~165 ft).

The resisting moment is calculated as the weight of the building x the distance from one edge of the mat to the center of the mat. The weight of the building is 72,988 K, as shown in Table 1. For overturning about the N-S axis, the moment arm for the resisting moment equals  $\frac{1}{2}$  of ~165 ft, or 82.5 ft. Therefore,

 $\Sigma M_{\text{Resisting}} = 72,988 \text{ K x } 82.5 \text{ ft} = 6,021,510 \text{ ft}-\text{K}.$ 

The driving moments include the  $\Sigma M$  acting about the N-S axis,  $\Sigma M_X$  in Table 1, which is 2,513,041 ft-K, and the moment due to the uplift force ( $\Sigma F_{V dyn} = 57,139$  K) x ½ the width of the mat. The vertical force due to the earthquake can act upward or downward. However, when it acts downward, it acts in the same direction as the weight, tending to stabilize the structure. Therefore, the minimum factor of safety against overturning will occur when the dynamic vertical force acts in the upward direction, tending to unload the mat.

The square root of the sum of the squares (SRSS) is used to combine the moments to account for the fact that the maximum responses of earthquake do not act in all three orthogonal directions at the same time. The moments acting about the E-W axis do not contribute to overturning about the N-S axis; therefore,

$$\sum M_{\text{Driving}} = \sqrt{2,513,041^2 + (57,139 \text{ K x } 82.5 \text{ ft})^2} = 5,341,991 \text{ ft} - \text{K}$$

and

 $FS_{OT} = 6,021,510 \div 5,341,991 = 1.13$  about the N-S axis.

Checking overturning about the E-W axis (~165 ft), the resisting moment is calculated as the weight of the building x the distance from one edge of the mat to the center of the mat. The weight of the building is 72,988 K, as shown in Table 1. For overturning about the E-W axis, the moment arm for the resisting moment equals  $\frac{1}{2}$  of ~265 ft, or 132.5 ft. Therefore,

 $\Sigma M_{\text{Resisting}} = 72,988 \text{ K x } 132.5 \text{ ft} = 9,670,910 \text{ ft-K}.$ 

The driving moments include the  $\Sigma M$  acting about the E-W axis,  $\Sigma M_Y$  in Table 1, which is 1,961,325 ft-K, and the moment due to the uplift force ( $\Sigma F_{V dyn} = 57,139$  K) x ½ the length of the mat. The vertical force due to the earthquake can act upward or downward. However, when it acts downward, it acts in the same direction as the weight, tending to stabilize the structure. Therefore, the minimum factor of safety against overturning will occur when the dynamic vertical force acts in the upward direction, tending to unload the mat.

#### CALCULATION SHEET

| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | PAGE 12                |  |  |  |  |
|------------------|------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| 05996.02         | 05996.02 G(B) 13-3 N/A |  |  |  |  |

The square root of the sum of the squares (SRSS) is used to combine the moments to account for the fact that the maximum responses of earthquake do not act in all three orthogonal directions at the same time. The moments acting about the N-S axis do not contribute to overturning about the E-W axis; therefore,

$$\sum M_{\text{Driving}} = \sqrt{1,961,325^2 + (57,139 \text{ K} \times 132.5 \text{ ft})^2} = 7,820,843 \text{ ft} - \text{K}$$

and

 $FS_{OT} = 9,670,910 \div 7,820,843 = 1.24$  about the E-W axis.

These values are greater than the criterion of 1.1; therefore, the Canister Transfer Building has an adequate factor of safety against overturning due to dynamic loadings from the design basis ground motion.

#### ANALYSIS OF SLIDING STABILITY

The factor of safety (FS) against sliding is defined as follows:

FS = Resisting Force  $\div$  Driving Force = T  $\div$  V

For this analysis, ignoring passive resistance of the soil adjacent to the mat, the resisting, or tangential shear force, T, below the base of the pad is defined as follows:

 $T = N \tan \phi + c B L$ 

where,

 $\phi = 0^{\circ}$  (for Silty Clay/Clayey Silt)

N (normal force) =  $\sum F_v = F_v \text{ static} + F_v \text{ Eok}$ 

c = 1.8 ksf, as discussed above under "Geotechnical Properties."

B = 165 feet

L = 265 feet

The driving force, V, is calculated as follows:

$$V = \sqrt{F_{HN-S}^2 + F_{HE-W}^2}$$

#### SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING ON IN SITU CLAYEY SOILS

The sliding stability of the CTB was evaluated using the foundation loadings developed in the soil-structure interaction analyses (Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, SWEC, 1999b). In this case, the strength of the clayey soils at the bottom of the 1-ft deep key around the CTB mat was based on the average of the two sets of direct shear tests performed on samples of soils obtained from beneath the CTB at the elevation proposed for founding the structure. The results of these tests are included in Attachments 7 and 8 of Appendix 2A of the SAR. As discussed above under Geotechnical Properties,  $\phi = 0^{\circ}$  and a shear strength of 1.8 ksf were used for the clayey soils underlying the Canister Transfer Building in determining resisting forces for the earthquake loading combinations.

5010.65

|         |                    | TIEICATION NUMBER | CALCULATION IDEN |                  |
|---------|--------------------|-------------------|------------------|------------------|
| PAGE 13 | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | CALCULATION NO.   | DIVISION & GROUP | J.O. OR W.O. NO. |
|         | N/A                | 13-3              | G(B)             | 05996.02         |

Conservatively assume the backfill to be placed around the Canister Transfer Building mat and 1-ft deep key will be the eolian silt that was excavated from the area. For these soils, it is reasonable to assume the lower bound value of  $\gamma$  is 80 pcf,  $\phi = 30^{\circ}$  & c = 0.

$$K_{p} = \left(\frac{1 + \sin \phi}{1 - \sin \phi}\right) = 3.0 \text{ for } \phi = 30^{\circ}$$

For cohesionless soils,  $P_p = 0.5 \text{ x} \gamma \text{ H}^2 \text{ K}_p$ 

$$P_p = 0.5 \ge 0.080 \text{ kcf} \ge (6 \text{ ft})^2 \ge 3.0 = 4.32 \text{ k/LF}$$

Based on Drawing 0599602-EC-2-A (See Figure 5), the CTB mat is actually 35' + 145' + 35' = 215' wide in the E-W direction and 182' + 60' + 30' = 272' long in the N-S direction. Therefore, the total passive force available to resist sliding is at least 215' x 4.32 k/LF = 929 k acting in the N-S direction.

Lambe & Whitman (1969, p 165) indicates that little horizontal compression, ~0.5%, is required to reach half of full passive resistance for dense sands. The eolian silts will be compacted to a dense state; therefore, assume that half of the total passive resistance is available to resist sliding of the building. Note, 0.5% of the 6 ft height of the mat + 1-ft deep key =  $0.005 \times 6$  ft x 12 in./ft = 0.36 in. Since there are no safety-related systems that would be severed or otherwise impacted by movements of this small magnitude, it is reasonable to use this passive thrust to resist sliding.

The results of the sliding stability analysis of the Canister Transfer Building are presented in Table 2, and they indicate that the factors of safety are acceptable for all load combinations examined. The lowest factor of safety was 1.10, which applies for Cases IIIB and IVB, where 100% of the dynamic earthquake forces act in the east-west direction and 40% act in the other two directions. These results assume that only one-half of the passive pressures are available to resist sliding and no credit is taken for the fact that the strength of cohesive soils increases as the rate of loading increases (Schimming et al, 1966, Casagrande and Shannon, 1948, and Das, 1993); therefore, they represent a conservative lower-bound value of the sliding stability.

#### SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING ON COHESIONLESS SOILS

The Canister Transfer Building will be founded on clayey soils that have an adequate amount of cohesive strength to resist sliding due to the dynamic forces from the design basis ground motion. As shown in SAR Figures 2.6-21 through 2.6-23, however, some of the soils underlying the building are cohesionless within the depth zone of about 10 to 20 ft, especially near the southern portion of the building. Analyses presented on the next six pages address the possibility that sliding may occur along a deeper slip plane at the clayey soil/sandy soil interface as a result of the earthquake forces.

The resistance to sliding is greatly reduced for frictional materials when the dynamic forces due to the earthquake act upward. The normal forces act downward for Case IV loadings and, hence, the resisting forces will be much greater than those for Case III.

| 501 | 0.65 |
|-----|------|
|-----|------|

|                                                                                                                                                | CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER |                          |       |             |          |                    |       |         |    |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|-------|-------------|----------|--------------------|-------|---------|----|
| J.O. OR W.O. N<br>05996.02                                                                                                                     | 10.                               | DIVISION & GROUI<br>G(B) | CAI   | 13-3        | D. OPTI  | ONAL TASK (<br>N/A | CODE  | PAGE    | 14 |
| Therefore, these analyses are performed only for Load Cases IIIA, IIIB, and IIIC. As described above, these load cases are defined as follows: |                                   |                          |       |             |          |                    |       |         |    |
| Case IIIA                                                                                                                                      | 40%                               | N-S direction,           | -100% | Vertical di | rection, | 40% E-             | W dir | ection. |    |
| Case IIIB                                                                                                                                      | 40%                               | N-S direction,           | -40%  | Vertical di | rection, | 100% E-            | W dir | ection. |    |
| Case IIIC                                                                                                                                      | 100%                              | N-S direction,           | -40%  | Vertical di | rection, | 40% E-             | W dir | ection. | :  |

As shown in SAR Figures 2.6-21 through 2.6-23, the top of the cohesionless layer varies from about 5 ft to about 9 ft below the mat, and it generally is at a depth of about 6 ft below the mat. These analyses include the passive resistance acting on a plane extending from grade down to the top of the cohesionless layer, plus the shear strength available at the ends of the silty clay block under the mat, plus the frictional resistance available along the top of the cohesionless layer. The weight of the clayey soils existing between the top of the cohesionless soils and the bottom of the mat is included in the normal force used to calculate the frictional resistance acting along the top of the cohesionless layer.

A review of the cone penetration test results (ConeTec, 1999) obtained within the top 2 ft of the layer of nonplastic silt/silty sand/sandy silt underlying the Canister Transfer Building indicated that  $\phi = 38^{\circ}$  is a reasonable minimum value for these soils. This review is presented on the next page.

The next five pages illustrate that the factor of safety against sliding along the top of this layer is >1.1 for Load Cases IIIA and IIIC and they illustrate that it is ~1.1 for Load Case IIIB. These analyses include several conservative assumptions. They are based on static strengths of the silty clay block under the Canister Transfer Building mat, even though, as reported in Das (1993), experimental results indicate that the strength of cohesive soils increases as the rate of loading increases. For rates of strain applicable for the cyclic loading due to the design basis ground motion, Das indicates that for most practical cases, one can assume that  $c_{u \ dynamic} \sim 1.5 \times c_{u \ static}$ . In addition, the silty sand/sandy silt layer is not continuous under the Canister Transfer Building mat, and this analysis neglects cementation of these soils that was observed in the samples obtained in the borings. Therefore, sliding is not expected to occur along the surface of the cohesionless soils underlying the Canister Transfer Building.

\_\_\_\_

· \_\_\_

\_---

| NOTED                                              | JAN 2 1 2000                                      | <b>J.</b> C4                                                 | ALCULAT                          | ION SHE                                          | ET                                                            |                               |                                                |
|----------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------------------------|
| ſ                                                  | 1                                                 | CALCUL                                                       | ATION IDEN                       | TIFICATION                                       | NUMBER                                                        | T                             |                                                |
|                                                    | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02                      | DIVISION & GROUP                                             | CALCU                            | ILATION NO                                       | . OPTIONAL                                                    | TASK CODE                     | PAGE 15                                        |
| i<br>2<br>3<br>4                                   | SLIDING C<br>SANDY                                | on deep pl<br>Silt Laye                                      | ANE A                            | tt top                                           | , 0k J                                                        | ILTY SALD                     | >/                                             |
| 5<br>6<br>7                                        |                                                   |                                                              |                                  | Д                                                | F EL                                                          | 4475                          |                                                |
| 8<br>9<br>10<br>11<br>12                           | ASSUME<br>COMPACTED<br>EOLIAN SIL                 | Y = 80                                                       | ftr<br>E                         | D J A                                            | CTB                                                           | MAT<br>1470                   | 51                                             |
| 13<br>14<br>15<br>16<br>17                         |                                                   | $\gamma_{m} = 90$<br>Su= 2,<br>$\varphi = 0$                 | PLF<br>2 KSF                     | SII<br>CI                                        | -I' PERHA<br>LTY CLA<br>LAYEY S                               | KETER KEY                     | ~ 6'<br>(VARIES 5'<br>TO~9',<br>ienerauy, 56') |
| 18<br>19<br>20<br>21<br>22<br>23<br>24             | Y~ 125                                            | pcf ¢                                                        | = 38°                            | 3                                                | SILTY<br>SANDY                                                | SAND/<br>SILT                 | c                                              |
| 25<br>26<br>27<br>28                               | NOTE: VALUE<br>PRESENTE                           | of & bases<br>ed in Cone                                     | e on a<br>Tec (19                | ф DAT<br>99)                                     | A F.Rom                                                       | CP7-37                        | \$ 38 .                                        |
| 29<br>30<br>31                                     | ID S                                              | DEPTH OF<br>ILTY SAND                                        | min<br>¢                         | MAX<br>P                                         | AUG<br>P                                                      | медіды<br>Ф                   | 4 IN<br>TOP 2'                                 |
| 32                                                 | CPT-37 ~                                          | 11.6' 70~18.7'                                               | 36*                              | 44-                                              | 40                                                            | 40                            | ~ 38                                           |
| 33<br>34<br>35                                     | CPT-38                                            | UIL' TO NIB'                                                 | 38                               | 46                                               | 43                                                            | 44                            | ~38                                            |
| 36<br>37<br>38<br>39<br>40<br>41<br>42<br>43<br>44 | PASSIVE<br>INCREAS<br>SAND/S<br>TOP OF<br>N VALUE | PRESSURES A<br>E AS B<br>ANDY SUT<br>THE LAYER<br>5 ARE HIGH | ACTING<br>GETS<br>LAYER<br>2. => | on PL<br>DEEPER<br>j $i$ $ld = 3\Delta uy \gg 2$ | ANE A<br>R IN TI<br>$USE \varphi$<br>$Be^{\circ}$ .<br>Be(FT) | B WILL<br>HE SILTY<br>NEAR TH | E<br>IS REASONABLE                             |
| 45<br>46                                           | * EXCLUDING                                       | h single vai                                                 | -ve of (                         | \$= 34° A                                        | AT Z= 13                                                      | .8′                           |                                                |

|          | ▲ 5010.65                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
|----------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
|          | CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
|          | J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE PAGE 16<br>05996.02 G(B) 13-3                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 1        | SLIDING ON DEEP COHESIONLESS PLANE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 2        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 4        | Z RESISTING FORCES                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 5        | FS SUDING = DRUGUE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 6        | prevince torces                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 8        |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 9        | RESISTING FORCES INCLUDE: PASSIVE RESISTANCE AUAILABLE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               |
| 10       | ALANG AB + SHEAR RESIGNANCE ALCONG ENDS OF                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           |
| 11       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 12       | BLOCK BCDE + FRICTION ALONG BC.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 14       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 15       | O PASSIVE RESISTANCE AVAILABLE ALONG AB                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
| 16       | 410, 1000 - (nato K ) (11)2, 2 - 120 Kl                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              |
| 18       | $\frac{1}{1000000} = \frac{2 \times (0.000 \text{ Fr3}) \times (0.1 \times 5.0 \text{ = 4.52 MLF FOR})}{100000000000000000000000000000000000$                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        |
| 19       | COMPACTED EOLIAN SILT ADJACENT TO 5' MAT + 1' KEY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 20       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 21       | $4 \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{4^2} \frac{1}{4^2} + 9 \frac{1}{4} $ |
| 23       | 2 1 mp to the ECHVKp FOR 5 BLOCK                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     |
| 24       | OF SILTY CLAY UNDERLYING THE COMPACTED SILT.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         |
| 25<br>26 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 27       | 1 (DOROK) (SEVELO + GETUROROK SET 10                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 |
| 28       | $\frac{2}{5} + \frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}$                                                                                                                                                                                                   |
| 29       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 30<br>31 | $+ 2 \times 2.2 - \times 5 \text{ FT} \times \sqrt{1.0} = 1.125 + 2.40 + 22.0 = 25.52 \text{ FT}$                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    |
| 32       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 33       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 34       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 36       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| . 37     |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 38       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 39       | · Torthe Pressing Resident to the AR A AR                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            |
| 41       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 42       | = 4.32 + 25.52 = 29.84 K/16                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          |
| 43       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 44       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 45<br>46 |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |
| 46       |                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      |

-

· •

| ć   | ▲ 5010.85                    |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
|-----|------------------------------|------------------|----------------------|-----------------------------------------|----------|--|--|
| ł   |                              | CALCULATI        | ON IDENTIFICATION NU | IMBER                                   |          |  |  |
|     | J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.62 | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.      | OPTIONAL TASK CODE                      | PAGE     |  |  |
| · 1 |                              |                  |                      | ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• |          |  |  |
| 2   |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
| 3   | $\sim$                       |                  | _                    |                                         |          |  |  |
| 4   | (2) ESTIM                    | ATE ADDIT        | 10NA RESI            | STANCE TO SI                            | LIDING   |  |  |
| 6   |                              |                  | S ELING M            | The BLOGH                               |          |  |  |
| 7   |                              |                  |                      | THE OULS                                | <u> </u> |  |  |
| в   | SILTY                        | CLAY THAT        | MUST SHEA            | RED BEFORE                              | 5        |  |  |
| 9   |                              | \<br>\           |                      | -                                       |          |  |  |
| 10  | THE                          | CTU CAN S        | NDE. LNC             | urbe only                               | THE      |  |  |
| 12  | DARTIE                       | BELMU)           | THE CTB .            | TAT' ip B                               | CAR      |  |  |
| 13  | 101000                       |                  | -                    |                                         |          |  |  |
| i4  | SHow                         | N ON PAGE        | E 15.                |                                         |          |  |  |
| 15  |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
| 16  | S =                          | 2 2 Kas =        | MILTIMITY S.         | MEASUREN IN                             | uu       |  |  |
| 18  |                              | 1                | TRIAXIAL             | TESTS AT T.                             | 1.3 KGF  |  |  |
| 19  |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
| 20  | AREA                         | BCDE = C         | oft x 215 f          | <sup>37</sup> E-w = 1290                | FTC      |  |  |
| 21  |                              |                  |                      |                                         | ENS      |  |  |
| 23  |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
| 24  | : AT                         | = 2  END         | 15 x 1290 FTZ ,      | × 2.2 K = 5.                            | 676 K    |  |  |
| 25  | E                            | NOS E-W          | END                  | FT2                                     | Έ-ω.     |  |  |
| 26  | 1                            |                  | 1122201222           | *                                       |          |  |  |
| 28  |                              | MN-S - CONDS     | x 6-212 - 212        | Frz - 1,181 K                           | N-43     |  |  |
| 29  | 3 FRICTION                   | NAL RESISTAND    | CE ALONG P           | LANE BC:                                |          |  |  |
| 30  |                              |                  | _                    |                                         | _        |  |  |
| 31  | ADD W                        | eight of SII     | TY CLAY BLO          | ick between                             | BOTTOM   |  |  |
| 33  | of MAT                       | & TOP OF S       | NUTY SAND / S.       | ANDY SILT TO                            | THE      |  |  |
| 34  |                              | • • • • •        |                      | (                                       |          |  |  |
| 35  | NORMAL                       | force At         | BOTTOM OF T          | HE MAT.                                 |          |  |  |
| 36  |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
| 37  | $\Lambda N =$                | 1 D. DROK        |                      | - 22 412 4                              |          |  |  |
| 39  | CLAY                         | FT3              | K 165 × L65          | = $23,012$ N                            |          |  |  |
| 40  |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |
| 41  | NOTE: FRICT                  | LONAL RESIST     | ANCE WILL BE         | e lower when                            | 2        |  |  |
| 42  |                              | PTUNNAKS ER      | PUES ALT UPL         | MARN Aur                                | 1014     |  |  |
| 44  | VCICT EN                     | r floomne fo     | icos act of a        |                                         | , com    |  |  |
| 45  | CASES                        | TTAB             | с.                   |                                         |          |  |  |
| 46  |                              |                  |                      |                                         |          |  |  |

|          |                            | STONE & WEBS                          | TER ENGINEERING CO    | RPORATION          |          |
|----------|----------------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------|----------|
| HOR      | TED JAN 2 1 2000           | EL CAL                                | CULATION SHEE         | T                  |          |
| Ê        | 5010.65                    |                                       |                       |                    |          |
| -        |                            |                                       | ION IDENTIFICATION NU | JMBER              | الح      |
|          | 0.0.00 W.O.NO.<br>0599(.02 | G(B)                                  | CALCULATION NO.       | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 10  |
| $\vdash$ | SLIDING on DE              | ED PLANS                              | ()-)                  |                    |          |
| 2        |                            |                                       |                       |                    |          |
| 5        | 0                          | N-5                                   | VERCE                 | E-W                |          |
| 5        | CASE TILA:                 | 40% WX                                | -100% IN Y            | 40% in Z           |          |
| 5        | FROM TABLE 1               | 0.4×62,040×                           | -57,189K              | 0.4 - 67,57        | 2=27,029 |
|          |                            | CTB DL                                | FUD OF Elev A         | Very L=1           | lew      |
|          | :. N=                      | 72,988 -                              | 57,139K+23            | 6121 = 39,46       | OK       |
|          | N tande                    | = 39, 460K ten                        | 38° = 30,830          | K                  |          |
|          | ~ FS                       | 29.84 K                               | Fx 215' + 7,18        | 31K + 30 830K      |          |
|          | SLIDINGN                   |                                       | 8 <u>5.</u> w         |                    | 1.78     |
|          |                            | , <b>o</b>                            | 0,4 × 62,040          | , K                |          |
|          |                            | 29 RAK                                | 2721 + 5676K          | 208301             | •        |
|          | FS                         | = LT. LFX                             |                       | $== 1.6^{4}$       | 5 > 1.1  |
|          | SCIDING EN                 | v 0.4                                 | ×67,572K              |                    | JOK      |
|          |                            |                                       |                       |                    |          |
|          |                            | N-S                                   | VERT                  | E-W                |          |
| .        | CASE III IS                | 40% IN X                              | - 40% IN              | (100% N)           | 7        |
|          | FROM TABLE 1               | 0.4×62,040                            | K -0.4×57,139         | K 67,572K          |          |
| 1        |                            |                                       |                       | $L = V_{E}$        |          |
|          | CTE                        | DL                                    | FUD ANCL              | AY                 | 6        |
|          | 1 N= 72,0                  | 188K - 0,4x5                          | 7.139K + 23_6         | $12^{K} = 73.744$  | K        |
|          |                            | 22,                                   | 856                   | ,                  | -        |
|          | · · ·                      | TP                                    | LN-S                  |                    |          |
|          | =>T = (4.32)               | K + 25:52 K                           | × 272'+ 5             | 676 K              |          |
|          | · I                        | L.r. L.F.                             | / /                   | 5-62               |          |
|          |                            |                                       |                       |                    |          |
|          |                            | + JZ JAAV                             | φ                     |                    |          |
| ł        |                            | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | tan 55 -              | 1,4011             |          |
|          |                            | 2 1 61                                | 2                     |                    |          |
|          |                            |                                       |                       |                    |          |
|          | Te                         | RESISTING                             | 71,407K               | - 1                |          |
|          | 49=                        | DRUNAK                                |                       | $= 1,06$ $\sim$    | 1.1      |
|          |                            | - moving                              | ·61, > 12 K           |                    |          |
|          |                            |                                       |                       |                    |          |
|          | ·                          |                                       |                       |                    |          |
|          | . ·                        |                                       |                       |                    |          |
|          |                            |                                       |                       |                    |          |

----

. . . . .

-----

NOTED JAN 2 1 2000 P. J. STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

|          | 05996.02 $G(B)$ $13-3$                                               |
|----------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|
| <br>2    | sliding on deep plane                                                |
| 3        | N-S VERT E-W                                                         |
| 4<br>5   | <u>CASE TIC</u> 100% WX -40% WY 40% WZ                               |
| 6<br>7   | FROM TABLE 1 62,040K -04×57,139K 0.4×67,572                          |
| 8        | CTB DL . FUD ANCLAY                                                  |
| 9        | $N = 72,988 - 04 \times 57,139 \times + 23,612 = 73,744 \times 1000$ |
| 11       |                                                                      |
| 12       | $B = A^{1}N^{1}S$                                                    |
| 13       | T = 24.04 - x 215 + 1,101 + 15,144 ton 50 = 71,212 k NS              |
| 14       |                                                                      |
| 16       |                                                                      |
| 17       |                                                                      |
| 18       | T 71,212 K                                                           |
| 19<br>20 | $fS_{11}$ = $V = 62040$ K                                            |
| 21       | N-S QL, C+Ot                                                         |
| 22       |                                                                      |
| 23       |                                                                      |
| 24<br>25 | THE FACTOR OF SAFETY AGAINST SLIDING ON A DEEP                       |
| 26<br>27 | PLANE OF COHESIONLESS SOIL IS > 1,1 FOR LOAD                         |
| 28<br>29 | CASES TILA & TILC, AND IT IS ESSENTIALLY                             |
| 30<br>31 | 1.1 FOR LOAD CASE TIB. THIS CASE,                                    |
| 32<br>37 | HOWEVER, IS LESS CRITICAL THAN THE CLASE                             |
| 34       | PRESENTED IN THE FOLLOWING SECTION, WHICH                            |
| 36       | DEMONSTRATES THAT EVEN IF THE COHESIONLESS                           |
| 38       | SOLL WAS LOCATED DIRECTLY BENEATH THE                                |
| 40       | CTB MAT, THE ESTIMATED HORLZONTAL DISPLACEMENTS                      |
| 42       | OF THE FOUNDATION DUE LOADS FROM THE DESIGN BASIS                    |
| 43<br>44 | GROUND MOTION ARE S 1.2 INCLOSS.                                     |
| 45<br>46 |                                                                      |

|                  | D105 90          |                 |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-----------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO. | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 20 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3            | N/A                |         |

1

SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING ON COHESIONLESS SOILS (CONT'D)

5010.65

An additional analysis of sliding on cohesionless soils was performed to define the upper bound of potential movement that might occur due to the earthquake if the mat was founded directly on cohesionless soils. In this analysis it was postulated that the cohesionless soils extend above the depth of about 10 ft and the structure is founded directly on the cohesionless materials. These analyses conservatively assumed that  $\phi =$ 35° and c = 0 for these soils.

The higher value of  $\phi$  used here, compared to that used in the cask storage pad sliding analysis, is based on the fact that the cohesionless soils underlying the Canister Transfer Building area are sandier than those in the pad emplacement area. Further, this higher value is justified by the results of the cone penetration testing, which indicate that the average and median  $\phi$  range from 40° to 44° for the cohesionless soils underlying the Canister Transfer Building. The high values reported in the CPT results likely are the manifestation of cementation that was observed in many of the specimens obtained in split-barrel sampling. Possible cementation of these soils is also ignored in this analysis, adding to the conservatism.

Because of the magnitude of the dynamic forces resulting from the soil-structure interaction analyses, the factor of safety against sliding of this building would be less than 1 if it were founded directly on cohesionless soils. For this case, the displacements the building may experience were calculated using the method proposed by Newmark (1965) for estimating displacements of dams and embankments during earthquakes.

NEWMARK'S METHOD OF ESTIMATING DISPLACEMENTS DUE TO EARTHQUAKES



Newmark (1965) defines N W as the steady force applied at the center of gravity of the sliding mass in the direction which the force can have its lowest value to just overcome the stabilizing forces and keep the mass moving.

For a block sliding on a horizontal surface,  $N \cdot W = T$ ,

where T is the shearing resistance of the block on the sliding surface.

| 3010.03 |
|---------|
|---------|

#### CALCULATION SHEET

| ······································ | ~ ~ ~    |                       |                 |                    |         |
|----------------------------------------|----------|-----------------------|-----------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                       | DIVISIO  | N & GROUP             | CALCULATION NO. | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 21 |
| 05996.02                               |          | G(B)                  | 13-3            | N/A                |         |
| Shearing resistar                      | nce, T = | = τ·Area              |                 |                    |         |
| where                                  | τ=       | $\sigma_n  tan  \phi$ |                 |                    |         |
| $\sigma_n = Normal Stress$             |          |                       |                 |                    |         |
| $\phi$ = Friction angle of sand layer  |          |                       |                 |                    |         |
| $\sigma_n = $ Net Vertical Force/Area  |          |                       |                 |                    |         |
| $= (F_v - F_{v Eqk}) / Area$           |          |                       |                 |                    |         |
| $T = (F_v - F_{v Eqk}) \tan \phi$      |          |                       |                 |                    |         |
| $N \cdot W = T$                        |          |                       |                 |                    |         |
|                                        | N =      | $[(F_v - F_{v Eql})]$ | J tan 6] / W    |                    |         |
|                                        |          |                       |                 |                    |         |

The maximum relative displacement of the mat relative to the ground,  $u_m$ , is calculated as

$$u_m = [V^2 (1 - N/A)] / (2gN)$$

The above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all the data points for N/A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5, as shown in Figure 6, which is a copy of Figure 41 of Newmark (1965). Within the range of 0.5 to 0.15, the following expression gives an upper bound of the maximum relative displacement for all data.

 $u_m = V^2 / (2gN)$ 

#### ESTIMATION OF HORIZONTAL DISPLACEMENT USING NEWMARK'S METHOD

1. Maximum Ground Motions

The maximum ground accelerations and velocities at the Canister Transfer Building are based on Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, Rev. 1, p. 37 (SWEC, 1999b), which indicates:

|              | North-South  | Vertical        | East-West    |
|--------------|--------------|-----------------|--------------|
| Acceleration | 0.805g       | 0. <b>7</b> 20g | 0.769g       |
| Velocity     | 21.7 in./sec | Not Required    | 19.8 in./sec |

#### 2. Load Combinations

The resistance to sliding is greatly reduced for frictional materials when the dynamic forces due to the earthquake act upward. The normal forces act downward for Case IV loadings and, hence, the resisting forces will be much greater than those for Case III. Therefore, these analyses are performed only for Load Cases IIIA, IIIB, and IIIC. As described above, these load cases are defined as follows:

|                              | CALCULATION IDEN         | TIFICATION NUMBER       |              |          |         |
|------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|--------------|----------|---------|
| j.o. or w.o. no.<br>05996.02 | DIVISION & GROUP<br>G(B) | CALCULATION NO.<br>13-3 | OPTIONAL TAS | SK CODE  | PAGE 22 |
| Case IIIA 40                 | 0% N-S direction, -      | 100% Vertical direc     | tion, 40%    | E-W dire | ection. |
| Case IIIB 40                 | 0% N-S direction,        | -40% Vertical direct    | tion, 100%   | E-W dire | ection. |
| Case IIIC 100                | 0% N-S direction,        | -40% Vertical direct    | tion, 40%    | E-W dire | ection. |

#### 3. Ground Motions for Analysis

|      | North-South  |                       | Vertical     | East-West    |                       |
|------|--------------|-----------------------|--------------|--------------|-----------------------|
| Case | Accel<br>(g) | Velocity<br>(in./sec) | Accel<br>(g) | Accel<br>(g) | Velocity<br>(in./sec) |
| ПІА  | 0.322        | 8.68                  | 0.720        | 0.308        | 7.92                  |
| ШВ   | 0.322        | 8.68                  | 0.288        | 0.769        | 19.8                  |
| шс   | 0.805        | 21.7                  | 0.288        | 0.308        | 7.92                  |

LOAD CASE IIIA: 40% N-S DIRECTION, -100% VERTICAL DIRECTION, 40% E-W DIRECTION.

Static Vertical Force,  $F_v = W = 72,988$  kips (Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, Rev 1 (SWEC, 1999b), p37)

Earthquake Vertical Force, F<sub>v Eqk</sub> = 57,139 kips (Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, Rev 1, p37)

φ = 35°
N = [(72,988 - 57,139) tan 35°] /72,988
N = 0.152

Resultant acceleration in horizontal direction,  $A = \sqrt{(0.322^2 + 0.308^2)} g$ 

A = 0.446g

$$40\% \text{ N-S} \quad 40\% \text{ E-W} = \sqrt{(8.68^2 + 7.92^2)}$$

Resultant velocity in horizontal direction,  $V = \sqrt{(8.68^2 + 7)^2}$ 

$$\Rightarrow \quad \frac{N}{A} = \frac{0.152}{0.446} = 0.34$$

The maximum relative displacement of the building relative to the ground,  $u_m$ , based on Newmark (1965) is

$$u_m = [V^2 (1 - N/A)] / (2gN)$$

where g is in units of inches/sec<sup>2</sup>.

5010.65

. . . . . .

|                              | CALCULATION IDEN                                                            | TIFICATION NUMBER                                                     |                           |         |
|------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02 | DIVISION & GROUP<br>G(B)                                                    | CALCULATION NO.<br>13-3                                               | OPTIONAL TASK CODE<br>N/A | PAGE 23 |
|                              | $\Rightarrow u_{\rm m} = \left(\frac{(11.75{\rm irr})}{2\cdot386.1}\right)$ | $\left(\frac{1-34}{4 \text{ in.}/\text{sec}^2 \cdot (1-0.34)}\right)$ | = 0.8"                    |         |

As shown in Figure 6, the above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all the data points for N/A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5 where there is symmetrical resistance to sliding. Within the range of values of N/A between 0.15 to 0.5, the following expression gives an upper bound for all data:

$$u_m = V^2 / (2gN)$$

Substituting the relevant parameters,

 $\Rightarrow u_{m} = \left(\frac{(11.75 \text{ in.}/\text{sec})^{2}}{2 \cdot 386.4 \text{ in.}/\text{sec}^{2} \cdot 0.152}\right) = 1.2^{n}$ 

Therefore, the maximum relative displacement ranges from 0.8" to 1.2" for Load Case IIIA.

LOAD CASE IIIB: 40% N-S DIRECTION, -40% VERTICAL DIRECTION, 100% E-W DIRECTION.

Static Vertical Force,  $F_v = W = 72,988$  kips (Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, Rev 1 (SWEC, 1999b), p37)

Earthquake Vertical Force,  $F_{v Eqk} = 57,139$  kips x 0.40 = 22,856 kips acting upward.

φ = 35° N = [(72,988 - 22,856) tan 35°] /72,988 N = 0.48

Resultant acceleration in horizontal direction,  $A = \sqrt{(0.322^2 + 0.769^2)}g$ 

A = 0.834g

40% N-S 100% E-W Resultant velocity in horizontal direction,  $V = \sqrt{(8.68^2 + 19.8^2)}$ 

$$\Rightarrow \quad \frac{N}{A} = \frac{0.48}{0.834} = 0.576$$

The maximum relative displacement of the building relative to the ground,  $u_m$ , based on Newmark (1965) is

$$u_m = [V^2 (1 - N/A)] / (2gN)$$

|                  | · · · ·          |                   |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |         |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 24 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |         |

where g is in units of inches/ $\sec^2$ .

$$\Rightarrow u_{\rm m} = \left(\frac{(21.6\,{\rm in./sec})^2 \cdot (1-0.576)}{2 \cdot 386.4\,{\rm in./sec}^2 \cdot 0.48}\right) = 0.5"$$

As shown in Figure 6, the above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all the data points for N/A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5 where there is symmetrical resistance to sliding. For Case IIIB, N/A > 0.5; therefore,  $u_m = 0.5$ " for this case.

LOAD CASE IIIC: 100% N-S DIRECTION, -40% VERTICAL DIRECTION, 40% E-W DIRECTION.

Static Vertical Force,  $F_v = W = 72,988$  kips (Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, Rev 1 (SWEC, 1999b), p37)

Earthquake Vertical Force,  $F_{v Eqk} = 57,139$  kips x 0.40 = 22,856 kips acting upward.

Resultant acceleration in horizontal direction, A =  $\sqrt{(0.805^2 + 0.308^2)}$  g

A = 0.862g

Resultant velocity in horizontal direction.  $V = \sqrt{(21.7^2 + 7.92^2)}$ 

V = 23.1 in./sec

$$\Rightarrow \quad \frac{N}{A} = \frac{0.48}{0.862} = 0.558$$

The maximum relative displacement of the building relative to the ground,  $u_m$ , based on Newmark (1965) is

100% N-S 40% E-W

$$u_m = [V^2 (1 - N/A)] / (2gN)$$

where g is in units of inches/sec<sup>2</sup>.

$$\Rightarrow u_{\rm m} = \left(\frac{(23.1\,{\rm in./sec})^2 \cdot (1-0.558)}{2 \cdot 386.4\,{\rm in./sec}^2 \cdot 0.48}\right) = 0.6^{\prime\prime}$$

As shown in Figure 6, the above expression for the relative displacement is an upper bound for all the data points for N/A less than 0.15 and greater than 0.5 where there is symmetrical resistance to sliding. For Case IIIC, N/A > 0.5; therefore,  $u_m = 0.6$ " for this case.

5010.65

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 25 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |         |

#### SUMMARY OF HORIZONTAL DISPLACEMENT CALCULATED USING NEWMARK'S METHOD

The following table presents a summary of the Newmark's analysis of sliding of the Canister Transfer Building, assuming it is founded directly on cohesionless soils.

|           |      | Load | Combination     Displacement       -100% Vertical     40% E-W     0.8 to 1.2 inches |      |     |                   |
|-----------|------|------|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------|-----|-------------------|
| Case IIIA | 40%  | N-S  | -100% Vertical                                                                      | 40%  | E-W | 0.8 to 1.2 inches |
| Case IIIB | 40%  | N-S  | -40% Vertical                                                                       | 100% | E-W | 0.5 inches        |
| Case IIIC | 100% | N-S  | -40% Vertical                                                                       | 40%  | E-W | 0.6 inches        |

These analyses indicate that there is an adequate factor of safety against sliding along the surface of the soils underlying the building that may be cohesionless within the depth zone of about 10 to 20 ft, especially near the southern portion of the building. The analysis that postulated that these cohesionless soils exist higher in the profile, such that the building was constructed directly on them, includes several conservative assumptions. Even with this high level of conservatism, the estimated relative displacement of the building ranged from 0.5 inches to 1.2 inches.

Motions of this magnitude, occurring at the depth of the silty sand/sandy silt layer, would likely not even be evident at the ground surface. For the building to slide, a surface of sliding must be established between the horizontal sliding surface in the silty sand/sandy silt layer and through the overlying clayey layer. In the simplified model used to estimate these displacements, the contribution of this surface of sliding through the overlying clayey layer to the dynamic resistance to sliding motion is ignored, as is the passive resistance that would act on the embedded portion of the building foundation and the block of soil that is postulated to be moving with it. It is likely, that should such slippage occur within the cohesionless soils underlying the building, it would minimize the level of the accelerations that would be transmitted through the soil and into the structure. In this manner, the cohesionless soils would act as a built-in base-shear isolation system. Any decrease in these accelerations as a result of this would increase the factor of safety against sliding, which would decrease the estimated displacements as well. Further, since there are no Important to Safety systems that would be severed or otherwise impacted by movements of this small amount as a result of the earthquake, such movements do not adversely affect the performance of the Canister Transfer Building.

5010.65

#### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | 2405.00 |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 26 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |         |

#### ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY

Bearing capacity calculations are performed using the method for determining general bearing capacity failure, as presented in Winterkorn and Fang (1975. Local bearing capacity (punching shear) failure is ruled out due to the large size of the mat, 165' x 265'.

The general bearing capacity equation is a modification of Terzaghi's bearing capacity equation, which was developed for strip footings and which indicates that  $q_{ult} = cN_c+qN_q+1/2 \gamma BN_r$ . For this relationship, the ultimate bearing capacity of soil consists of three components: 1) cohesion, 2) surcharge, and 3) friction, which are represented by bearing capacity factors  $N_c$ ,  $N_q$ , and  $N_r$ . Terzaghi's bearing capacity equation has been enhanced by various investigators to incorporate shape, depth, and load inclination factors for different foundation geometries and loads as follows:

$$q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + q N_q s_q d_q i_q + \frac{1}{2} \gamma B N_\gamma s_\gamma d_\gamma i_\gamma$$

where

 $q_{ult}$  = ultimate bearing capacity

c = cohesion or undrained strength

q = effective surcharge at bottom of foundation, =  $\gamma D_f$ 

 $\gamma$  = unit weight of soil

B = foundation width

 $s_c$ ,  $s_q$ ,  $s_r$  = shape factors, which are a function of foundation width to length

 $d_c$ ,  $d_q$ ,  $d_\gamma$  = depth factors, which account for embedment effects

 $i_c$ ,  $i_q$ ,  $i_{\gamma}$  = load inclination factors

 $N_c$ ,  $N_q$ ,  $N_\gamma$  = bearing capacity factors, which are a function of  $\phi$ .

 $\gamma$  in the third term is the unit weight of soil below the foundation, whereas the unit weight of the soil above the bottom of the footing is used in determining q in the second term.

#### **BEARING CAPACITY FACTORS**

Bearing capacity factors computed based on relationships proposed by Vesic (1973), which are presented in Chapter 3 of Winterkorn and Fang (1975).

#### CALCULATION SHEET

5010.65

| <u> </u>                                                                             | CALCULATION IDEN                                                                                              | TIFICATION NUMBER                                   |                    |         |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                                                                     | DIVISION & GROUP                                                                                              | CALCULATION NO.<br>13-3                             | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 27 |
| $N_q = e^{\pi \tan \varphi} ta$                                                      | $n^2\left(45 + \frac{\phi}{2}\right)$                                                                         |                                                     |                    |         |
| $N_c = (N_q - 1)$                                                                    | $\cot \phi$ , but = 5.14 for $\phi$ :                                                                         | = 0.                                                |                    |         |
| $N_r = 2 \left( N_q + 1 \right)$                                                     | ) tan ø                                                                                                       |                                                     |                    |         |
| Shape Factors                                                                        |                                                                                                               |                                                     |                    |         |
| $s_c = 1 + \frac{B}{L} \cdot \frac{N_c}{N_c}$                                        | 2                                                                                                             |                                                     |                    |         |
| $s_q = 1 + \frac{B}{L} \tan \theta$                                                  | ιφ                                                                                                            |                                                     |                    |         |
| $s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 \cdot \frac{B}{L}$                                             | <u>.</u>                                                                                                      |                                                     |                    |         |
| Depth Factors                                                                        |                                                                                                               |                                                     |                    | . •     |
| For $\frac{D_{f}}{B} \leq 1$ :                                                       |                                                                                                               |                                                     |                    |         |
| $\mathbf{d_c} = \mathbf{d_q} - \frac{\mathbf{(l-1)}}{\mathbf{N_q} \cdot \mathbf{t}}$ | $\frac{d_q}{an\phi}$ for $\phi > 0$ and $d_c$                                                                 | $= 1 + 0.4 \left( \frac{D_f}{B} \right)$ for $\phi$ | = 0.               |         |
| $d_q = 1 + 2 \tan q$                                                                 | $\phi \cdot (1 - \sin \phi)^2 \cdot \left(\frac{D_f}{B}\right)$                                               |                                                     |                    |         |
| $d_{\gamma} = 1$                                                                     |                                                                                                               |                                                     |                    |         |
| INCLINATION FACTO                                                                    | PRS                                                                                                           |                                                     |                    |         |
| $i_q = \left(1 - \frac{1}{F_v + H}\right)$                                           | $\frac{\mathbf{F}_{\mathrm{H}}}{\mathbf{B}^{\prime}\mathbf{L}^{\prime}\mathrm{c}\cot\phi}\bigg)^{\mathrm{m}}$ |                                                     |                    |         |

 $i_{c} = i_{q} - \frac{(1 - i_{q})}{N_{c} \cdot \tan \phi} \text{ for } \phi > 0 \text{ and } i_{c} = 1 - \left(\frac{m F_{H}}{B' L' c N_{c}}\right) \text{ for } \phi = 0$  $i_{Y} = \left(1 - \frac{F_{H}}{F_{V} + B' L' c \cot \phi}\right)^{m+1}$ 

where  $F_H$  and  $F_V$  are the total horizontal and vertical forces acting on the footing.

| 2102 00 |                    | ITIFICATION NUMBER | CALCULATION IDEN |                  |
|---------|--------------------|--------------------|------------------|------------------|
| PAGE 28 | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | CALCULATION NO.    | DIVISION & GROUP | J.O. OR W.O. NO. |
|         | N/A                | 13-3               | G(B)             | 05996.02         |

#### STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING

The following pages present the **details** of the bearing capacity analyses for the static load cases. These cases are identified as follows:

Case IA Static using undrained strength parameters ( $\phi = 0^\circ \& c = 3.18$  ksf).

Case IB Static using effective-stress strength parameters ( $\phi = 30^{\circ} \& c = 0$ ).

Table 2.6-9 presents the results of the bearing capacity analyses for these static load cases. The minimum factor of safety required for static load cases is 3.

As indicated in this table, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the Canister Transfer Building to obtain a factor of safety of 3.0 against a shear failure from static loads is greater than 6 ksf. However, loading the foundation to this value may result in undesirable settlements. This minimum allowable value was obtained in analyses that conservatively assume  $\phi = 0^{\circ}$  and c = 3.18 ksf, the average undrained strength for the soils in the upper layer at the site, to model the end of construction. Using the estimated effective-stress strength of  $\phi = 30^{\circ}$  and c = 0 results in higher allowable bearing pressures. As shown in Table 2.6-9, the gross allowable bearing capacity of the Canister Transfer Building for static loads for these soil strengths is 45 ksf.

- --

\_\_\_\_

5010.65

|                                                                                                                                                           | CA                                                  | LCULATION                                                     | IDENTIFIC                                             | ATION                           | NUMBE               | R                   |                     |                     | 5×07.00              |  |
|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|---------------------|----------------------|--|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                                                                                                                                          | DIVI                                                | SION & GR                                                     | OUP CA                                                | LCUL                            | ATION N             | N NO. OPTIONAL TASK |                     |                     | PAGE 29              |  |
| 05996.02                                                                                                                                                  |                                                     | G(B)                                                          |                                                       | 1                               | 3-3                 |                     | N                   | /A                  |                      |  |
| ALLOWABLE BE                                                                                                                                              | ARING                                               | CAPAC                                                         | ITY OF C                                              | ANIS                            | TER T               | RAI                 | NSFER BU            | ILDING              |                      |  |
| Static Analysis:                                                                                                                                          |                                                     | Case                                                          | IA                                                    |                                 |                     |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |
| Soil Properties:                                                                                                                                          |                                                     | s <sub>u</sub> =                                              | 3,180 A                                               | verag                           | ge undra            | lined               | strength (psi       | i) in upper ~       | 30' layer            |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | φ =                                                           | 0.0 F                                                 | rictio                          | n Angle             | (deg                | rees)               |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | γ=                                                            | 90 (                                                  | Jnit w                          | eight of            | SOIL                | (pct)               |                     |                      |  |
| ·                                                                                                                                                         | .•                                                  | Isurch -<br>R'-                                               | 165.0 5                                               | Jan w<br>Footin                 | a Width             | _ ft /I             |                     | ' 265 N             | Length - ft (NI-S)   |  |
| roundation riopentes                                                                                                                                      | -                                                   | D =                                                           | 5 Depth of Footing (ft)                               |                                 |                     |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | β=                                                            | 0.0 Angle of load inclination from vertical (degrees) |                                 |                     |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | FS =                                                          | 3 Factor of Safety required for question              |                                 |                     |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | <br>F <sub>v</sub> =                                          | 72.988 k                                              |                                 | EQ                  | , =                 | 0 k                 |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | EQ <sub>H E-W</sub> =                                         | 0 k                                                   | : +                             | EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> | ;<br>; =            | 0 k                 | = 0                 | k for F <sub>H</sub> |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     |                                                               |                                                       |                                 |                     |                     | General Be          | aring Capa          | city Equation.       |  |
| $\mathbf{q}_{utt} = \mathbf{c}  \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{c}}  \mathbf{s}_{\mathbf{c}}  \mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{c}}  \mathbf{i}_{\mathbf{c}} + \gamma_{\mathbf{s}}$ | urch D <sub>f</sub> N                               | l <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> 1 | + 1/2 γ Β Ν <sub>γ</sub> :                            | s <sub>y</sub> d <sub>y</sub> i | Y                   |                     | based on V          | /interkorn a        | & Fang (1975)        |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | $N_c = (N_c)$                                       | , - 1) cot(φ)                                                 | , but = 5.14                                          | for $\phi$ :                    | = 0                 | =                   | 5.14                | Eq 3.6 &            | Table 3.2            |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | $N_q = e^{\pi t}$                                   | <sup>anφ</sup> tan <sup>2</sup> (π/4                          | + <b></b> \$/2)                                       |                                 |                     | =                   | 1.00                | Eq 3.6              |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | $N_{y} = 2$ (                                       | N <sub>q</sub> + 1) tan                                       | ( <b>þ</b> )                                          |                                 |                     | =                   | 0.00                | Eq 3.8              |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | s. = 1 +                                            | (B/L)(N_/N                                                    | .)                                                    |                                 |                     |                     | 1.12                | Table 3.3           | 2                    |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | s <sub>n</sub> = 1 +                                | (B/L) tan ø                                                   |                                                       |                                 |                     | =                   | 1.00                | "                   |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | $s_{v} = 1 - 1$                                     | 0.4 (B/L)                                                     |                                                       |                                 |                     | =                   | 0.75                | и                   |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | ,<br>, , ,                                          | 0.4 4. /4                                                     |                                                       | <b>`</b>                        |                     |                     | 4 00                | F - 0.00            |                      |  |
| For $D_{i}B \leq 1$ :                                                                                                                                     | $\alpha_q = 1 + 1$                                  | ·2tan φ (I                                                    | -sing) Dyt                                            | 3                               |                     | =                   | 1.00                | Eq 3.26             |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | α <sub>γ</sub> =1<br>σ σ                            | (4                                                            | <b>A a b</b>                                          |                                 |                     | =                   | 1.00                |                     |                      |  |
| <b>ror</b> φ > υ:                                                                                                                                         | $\mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{c}} = \mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{q}}$ | - (1-0 <sub>q</sub> ) / (N                                    | q tan q)                                              |                                 |                     | =                   | N/A                 |                     |                      |  |
| For <b><math>\phi</math></b> = 0:                                                                                                                         | d <sub>c</sub> = 1 +                                | • 0.4 (D <sub>f</sub> /B)                                     |                                                       |                                 |                     | =                   | 1.01                | Eq 3.27             |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | No                                                  | inclined loa                                                  | ads; therefor                                         | re, i, =                        | : k = i, =          | 1.0.                |                     |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     |                                                               | -                                                     | . •                             | •••                 |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     | 10.047                                                        |                                                       | N <sub>c</sub>                  | term                |                     | N <sub>q</sub> term | N <sub>γ</sub> term |                      |  |
| Gross                                                                                                                                                     | fult =                                              | 18,947                                                        | psi =                                                 | 18                              | ,547                | +                   | 400 4               | - U                 |                      |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           | 3 <sub>all</sub> =                                  | 6,310                                                         | psf = q <sub>ult</sub> /                              | FS                              |                     |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |
| q <sub>act</sub>                                                                                                                                          | tual =                                              | 1,669                                                         | psf = (F <sub>v</sub> +                               | EQ,)                            | / (B' x L           | ? <b>)</b>          |                     |                     |                      |  |
| FS <sub>ac</sub>                                                                                                                                          | tuel =                                              | 11.35                                                         | = q <sub>ult</sub> / q <sub>actus</sub>               | IJ                              |                     |                     | > 3                 | Hence               | ок                   |  |
|                                                                                                                                                           |                                                     |                                                               | •                                                     |                                 |                     |                     |                     |                     |                      |  |

[geot]j05996\calc\bmg\_cap\can\_xfr.xls

| 010.65                                      |                                                                                            | CAL                                                                                                                 | CULA                      | FION S                       | HEE      | Т                          |                             |                                 |
|---------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------|------------------------------|----------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|
|                                             | CALCULATIO                                                                                 | ON IDENTI                                                                                                           | FICATIO                   | ON NUMB                      | ER       |                            |                             |                                 |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                            | DIVISION & G                                                                               | ROUP                                                                                                                | CALCI                     | JLATION                      | NO.      | OPTIONAL                   | TASK CODE                   | PAGE 30                         |
| 05996.02                                    | G(B)                                                                                       |                                                                                                                     |                           | 13-3                         |          | N                          | /A                          |                                 |
|                                             |                                                                                            |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
| ALLOWABLE BE                                | ARING CAPA                                                                                 | CITY OF                                                                                                             | CAN                       | ISTER                        | TRA      | NSFER BL                   | JILDING                     |                                 |
| Static Analysis:                            | Case                                                                                       | IB                                                                                                                  |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
| Soil Properties:                            | s <sub>u</sub>                                                                             | =                                                                                                                   | 0 Coh                     | esion (ps                    | sf)      |                            |                             |                                 |
|                                             | ф                                                                                          | = 30                                                                                                                | .0 Frict                  | ion Angl                     | e (deg   | rees)                      |                             |                                 |
|                                             | Ŷ                                                                                          | = !                                                                                                                 | 90 Unit                   | weight o                     | f soil   | (pcf)                      |                             |                                 |
| ,                                           | Ysurch                                                                                     | =                                                                                                                   | <b>80</b> Unit            | weight o                     | f sur    | charge (pcf)               |                             |                                 |
| Foundation Properties:                      | : B'                                                                                       | = 165                                                                                                               | 5.0 Foo                   | ting Widt                    | h - ft ( | E-W} L                     | .' = 265.0                  | Length - ft (N-S)               |
|                                             | D <sub>1</sub>                                                                             | =                                                                                                                   | 5 Dep                     | th of Foo                    | ting (f  | t)                         |                             |                                 |
|                                             | β                                                                                          | <ul> <li>U.U Angle of load inclination from vertical (degree</li> <li>B. Easter of Safety required for a</li> </ul> |                           |                              |          |                            |                             | es)                             |
|                                             | FS                                                                                         |                                                                                                                     | 3 Fact                    | or of Sat                    | ety re   | quired for q <sub>al</sub> | owable                      |                                 |
|                                             | Fv                                                                                         | = 72,9                                                                                                              | 88 k                      | EC                           | ⊋v =     | 0 k                        |                             |                                 |
|                                             | EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                                                                        | =                                                                                                                   | 0 k -                     | F EQ <sub>H</sub> r          | ı-s =    | 0 k                        | = 0                         | k for F <sub>н</sub>            |
| $q_{uit} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{st}$ | <sub>urch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> | + 1/2 γ Β                                                                                                           | $N_{\gamma} s_{\gamma} d$ | γ İγ                         |          | General Be<br>based on \   | earing Capa<br>Vinterkorn & | city Equation,<br>& Fang (1975) |
| 1                                           | $N_c = (N_q - 1) \cot($                                                                    | φ), but = 5                                                                                                         | i,14 for                  | φ = 0                        | =        | 30.14                      | Eq 3.6 &                    | Table 3.2                       |
| ľ                                           | $N_{a} = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^{2}(\pi)$                                                  | c/4 + φ/2)                                                                                                          |                           |                              | =        | 18.40                      | Eg 3.6                      |                                 |
| 1                                           | $N_{x} = 2(N_{a} + 1)$ ta                                                                  | an (ø)                                                                                                              |                           |                              | =        | 22.40                      | Ea 3.8                      |                                 |
|                                             |                                                                                            | (K) (K)                                                                                                             |                           |                              |          | 4.00                       |                             | _                               |
| :                                           | $\mathbf{s}_{c} = \mathbf{I} + (\mathbf{B}/\mathbf{L})(\mathbf{N}_{q})$                    | /IN <sub>C</sub> )                                                                                                  |                           |                              | =        | 1.38                       | Table 3.2                   | 2                               |
|                                             | $s_q \equiv i \pm (D/L)$ (a)                                                               | ιψ                                                                                                                  |                           | •                            | =        | 1.36                       | -                           |                                 |
| :                                           | $s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$                                                               |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              | =        | 0.75                       | •                           |                                 |
| For D <sub>4</sub> /B <u>&lt;</u> 1: 0      | d <sub>q</sub> = 1 + 2 tan φ (                                                             | (1 - sin φ) <sup>2</sup>                                                                                            | D <sub>f</sub> /B         |                              | =        | 1.01                       | Eq 3.26                     |                                 |
| •(                                          | d <sub>y</sub> = 1                                                                         |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              | =        | 1.00                       |                             |                                 |
| <b>For</b> φ > 0: α                         | $d_{c} = d_{a} - (1 - d_{a}) / ($                                                          | N <sub>g</sub> tan φ)                                                                                               |                           |                              | =        | 1.01                       |                             |                                 |
| For $\phi = 0$ :                            | $d_{c} = 1 + 0.4 (D/B)$                                                                    | 3)                                                                                                                  |                           |                              | =        | N/A                        | Ea 3.27                     |                                 |
|                                             | •                                                                                          |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
|                                             | No inclined l                                                                              | oads; ther                                                                                                          | efore, i                  | $f_{q} = i_{q} = i_{\gamma}$ | = 1.0.   |                            |                             |                                 |
|                                             |                                                                                            |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
| -                                           |                                                                                            |                                                                                                                     | N                         | <sub>c</sub> term            |          | N <sub>q</sub> term        | N <sub>γ</sub> term         |                                 |
| , Gross q                                   | <sub>ult</sub> = 135,005                                                                   | psf =                                                                                                               |                           | U                            | +        | 10,094                     | + 124,911                   |                                 |
|                                             |                                                                                            |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              |          | • •                        |                             |                                 |
| q                                           | <sub>all</sub> = 45,000                                                                    | psf = q                                                                                                             | ut / FS                   |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
|                                             | -                                                                                          |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
| q <sub>actu</sub>                           | <sub>ual</sub> = 1,669                                                                     | psf = (F                                                                                                            | v + EQ                    | ,) / (B' x                   | L')      |                            |                             |                                 |
| FS <sub>actu</sub>                          | <sub>Jal</sub> = 80.88                                                                     | $= q_{ult} / c$                                                                                                     | actual                    |                              |          | > :                        | B Hence                     | ок                              |
|                                             |                                                                                            |                                                                                                                     |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |
|                                             |                                                                                            | •                                                                                                                   |                           |                              |          |                            |                             |                                 |

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xls

**...** . .

. .

5010.65

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |         |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 31 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |         |

#### DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING

The following pages present the details of the bearing capacity analyses for the dynamic load cases. These analyses use the dynamic loads for the building that were developed in Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, (SWEC, 1999b). The development of these dynamic loads is described in Section 4.7.1.5.3 of the SAR. As in the structural analyses discussed in SAR Section 4.7.1.5.3., the seismic loads used in these analyses were combined using 100% of the enveloped zero period accelerations (ZPA) in one direction with 40% of the enveloped ZPA in each of the other two directions. The resulting dynamic loading cases are identified as follows:

| Case II   | 100%N-S direction,   | 0%   | Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
|-----------|----------------------|------|--------------------------|----------------|
| Case IIIA | 40% N-S direction, - | 100% | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IIIB | 40% N-S direction,   | -40% | Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
| Case IIIC | 100%N-S direction,   | -40% | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IVA  | 40% N-S direction,   | 100% | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IVB  | 40% N-S direction,   | 40%  | Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
| Case IVC  | 100%N-S direction,   | 40%  | Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |

Table 2.6-10 presents the results of the bearing capacity analyses for these cases, which include static loads plus dynamic loads due to the earthquake. Because the *in situ* finegrained soils are not expected to fully drain during the rapid cycling of load during the earthquake, these cases are analyzed using the average undrained strength applicable for the soils within the upper layer ( $\phi = 0^\circ$  and c = 3.18 ksf). As indicated above, for these cases including dynamic loads from the design basis ground motion, the minimum acceptable factor of safety is 1.1.

Table 2.6-10 indicates the minimum factor of safety against a dynamic bearing capacity failure was obtained for Load Case IIIB, the load combination of full static with 40% of the earthquake loading acting in the N-S direction, 40% acting in the vertical direction, tending to unload the mat, and 100% acting in the E-W horizontal direction. This load case resulted in an actual soil bearing pressure of 3.31 kips per square foot (ksf), compared with an ultimate bearing capacity of ~9 ksf. The resulting factor of safety against a bearing capacity failure for this load case is ~3, which is much greater than 1.1, the minimum allowable factor of safety for seismic loading cases. In these analyses, no credit was taken for the fact that strength of cohesive soil increases as the rate of loading increases. Therefore, the Canister Transfer Building has an adequate factor of safety against a dynamic bearing capacity failure.

------

\_. \_\_

#### CALCULATION SHEET

|                                                                                                                                                               | CALCULATIO                                                                               | N IDENTIF                         | CATION NUMBER                                 | 3      |                               | <u></u>               |                                  |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|--------|-------------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                                                                                                                                              | DIVISION & GI                                                                            | RUOP                              | CALCULATION N                                 | 0.     | OPTIONAL TA                   | SK CODE               | PAGE 32                          |
| 05996.02                                                                                                                                                      | G(B)                                                                                     |                                   | 13-3                                          |        | N/A                           |                       |                                  |
| ALLOWABLE BE                                                                                                                                                  | ARING CAPA                                                                               | CITY OF                           | CANISTER T                                    | RA     | NSFER BUI                     | LDING                 |                                  |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Ear                                                                                                                                             | thquake: Case                                                                            | II                                |                                               | 100    | )% in X, (                    | ) % in Y,             | 100 % in Z                       |
| Soil Properties:                                                                                                                                              | Su                                                                                       | = 3,18                            | 0 Average undra                               | linec  | l strength (psf)              | in upper -            | -30' layer                       |
|                                                                                                                                                               | φ.                                                                                       | = 0.4                             | 0 Friction Angle                              | (deg   | rees)                         |                       |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | Yourse                                                                                   | = 91<br>= 81                      | 0 Unit weight of                              | SOIL   | (pcr)<br>charge (pcf)         |                       |                                  |
| Foundation Properties                                                                                                                                         | : B'                                                                                     | = 96.                             | 1 Footing Width                               | - ft ( | E-W) L':                      | = 211.3               | Length - ft (N-S)                |
|                                                                                                                                                               | D <sub>f</sub>                                                                           |                                   | 5 Depth of Footi                              | ng (f  | t)                            |                       | •                                |
|                                                                                                                                                               | β                                                                                        | = 42.                             | 8 Angle of load i                             | nclin  | ation from vert               | ical (degre           | ees)                             |
|                                                                                                                                                               | FS                                                                                       | = 1.                              | 1 Factor of Safe                              | ty re  | quired for q <sub>allow</sub> | able                  |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | Fv                                                                                       | = 72,98                           | 8 k EQ,                                       | , =    | 0 k                           |                       | h fan E                          |
|                                                                                                                                                               | EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                                                                      | = 67,57                           | <u>ик</u> + ЕQ <sub>н N-S</sub>               | ; =    | 62,040 k =                    | 91,733                | K TOT ⊢ <sub>H</sub>             |
| $\mathbf{q}_{uit} = \mathbf{c} \ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{c}} \ \mathbf{s}_{\mathbf{c}} \ \mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{c}} \ \mathbf{i}_{\mathbf{c}} + \gamma_{\mathbf{s}}$ | $_{\rm urch}$ D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> | + 1/2 γ Β Ι                       | $N_{\gamma} s_{\gamma} d_{\gamma} i_{\gamma}$ |        | General Bea<br>based on Wi    | ring Capa<br>nterkorn | icity Equation,<br>& Fang (1975) |
| Ĩ                                                                                                                                                             | $N_{c} = (N_{q} - 1) \cot(q)$                                                            | φ), but = 5.                      | 14 for φ = 0                                  | =      | 5.14                          | Eq 3.6 8              | Table 3.2                        |
| I                                                                                                                                                             | $N_q = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$                                                     | /4 + ¢/2)                         |                                               | =      | 1.00                          | Eq 3.6                |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | $N_{\gamma} = 2 (N_{q} + 1)$ ta                                                          | ι <b>n (</b> φ)                   |                                               | =      | 0.00                          | Eq 3.8                |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | $s_c = 1 + (B/L)(N_q/$                                                                   | 'N <sub>c</sub> )                 |                                               | =      | 1.09                          | Table 3.              | 2                                |
|                                                                                                                                                               | s <sub>q</sub> = 1 + (B/L) tan                                                           | φ                                 |                                               | =      | 1.00                          | н                     |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | $s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$                                                             |                                   |                                               | =      | 0.82                          | n                     |                                  |
| For D <sub>f</sub> /B ≤ 1:                                                                                                                                    | d <sub>q</sub> = 1 + 2 tan φ (                                                           | $(1 - \sin \phi)^2$               | D₁∕B                                          | =      | 1.00                          | Eq 3.26               |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | d <sub>γ</sub> = 1                                                                       |                                   |                                               | =      | 1.00                          | n                     |                                  |
| <b>For</b> φ > 0:                                                                                                                                             | $\mathbf{d_c} = \mathbf{d_q} - (1 - \mathbf{d_q}) / ($                                   | N <sub>q</sub> tan φ)             |                                               | =      | N/A                           |                       |                                  |
| For $\phi = 0$ :                                                                                                                                              | $d_{c} = 1 + 0.4 (D_{f}/B)$                                                              | )                                 |                                               | =      | 1.02                          | Eq 3.27               |                                  |
| n                                                                                                                                                             | $n_{B} = (2 + B/L) / (1)$                                                                | + B/L)                            |                                               | =      | 1.62                          | Eq 3.18               | a                                |
| r                                                                                                                                                             | $n_L = (2 + L/B) / (1)$                                                                  | + L/B)                            |                                               | =      | 1.38                          | Eq 3.18               | o l                              |
| If EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0:                                                                                                                                   | θ <sub>n</sub> = tan <sup>-1</sup> (EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                                  | / EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> )           |                                               | =      | 0.83 rad                      |                       |                                  |
| ľ                                                                                                                                                             | $m_n = m_L \cos^2 \theta_n +$                                                            | m <sub>B</sub> sin²θ <sub>n</sub> |                                               | =      | 1.51                          | Eq 3.18               | <b>b</b>                         |
| For <b>\$</b> = 0:                                                                                                                                            | $i_{c} = 1 - (m F_{H} / B)$                                                              | 'L' c N <sub>c</sub> )            |                                               | =      | 0.58                          | Eq 3.16               | a                                |
|                                                                                                                                                               | $i_q = \{ 1 - F_H / [(F_v$                                                               | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + E           | 3' L' c cot φ] } <sup>m</sup>                 | =      | 1.00                          | Eq 3.14               | a                                |
|                                                                                                                                                               | $i_{\gamma} = \{ 1 - F_{H} / [(F_{v}$                                                    | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + E           | 3' L' c cot φ] } <sup>m+1</sup>               | =      | 0.00                          | Eq 3.17               | a                                |
| Gross                                                                                                                                                         | Lu = 10 984                                                                              | osf =                             | N <sub>c</sub> term<br>10.584                 | ÷      | N <sub>q</sub> term<br>400 –  | N <sub>γ</sub> term   |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               |                                                                                          | nst-n                             | . / FS                                        | ſ      |                               | v                     |                                  |
|                                                                                                                                                               | all - 3,500                                                                              | por - Yut<br>psf = (F             | + FQ.)/(R' v I                                | 'n     |                               |                       |                                  |
| Hact                                                                                                                                                          |                                                                                          | ر) – اندم<br>ا                    |                                               | ,      |                               |                       |                                  |
| FS <sub>act</sub>                                                                                                                                             | <sub>ual</sub> = 3.06                                                                    | $= q_{ult} / q_a$                 | ictual                                        |        | > 1.1                         | Hence                 | ок                               |

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xls

•

| 010.65                                      |                                   |                                                               | CALC                                          | ULA                             | TION                          | SH                | FF                | 1                  |               |                           |                             |              |
|---------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------|
|                                             | CA                                | LCULATION                                                     | IDENTIF                                       | ICATI                           | ON NUM                        | IBEF              | 3                 |                    |               |                           |                             | • •          |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                            | DIV                               | SION & GRO                                                    | UP                                            | CALC                            | ULATIO                        | N N               | 0.                | OPTION             | LTA           | SK CODE                   | PAGE                        | 33           |
| 05996.02                                    |                                   | G(B)                                                          |                                               |                                 | 13-3                          |                   |                   |                    | N/A           |                           |                             |              |
|                                             |                                   |                                                               |                                               |                                 |                               |                   |                   |                    |               |                           |                             |              |
| ALLOWABLE BEA                               | RING                              |                                                               | TY OF                                         |                                 | IISTEF                        | R TI              | RAI               | <b>NSFER</b>       | BUIL          | .DING                     |                             |              |
| PSHA 2.000-Yr Eart                          | haual                             | (e: Case                                                      | IIIA                                          |                                 |                               | ſ                 | 40                | % in X.            | -100          | % in Y                    | . 40 % in                   | z            |
| Soil Properties:                            |                                   | S., =                                                         | 3.18                                          | 30 Ave                          | rage ur                       | <u>ال</u><br>ndra | ined              | strength           | (osf) i       | n upper -                 | -30' laver                  | المحت        |
|                                             |                                   | φ=                                                            | 0                                             | .0 Fric                         | tion An                       | gle (             | (deg              | rees)              |               |                           |                             |              |
|                                             | -                                 | γ=                                                            | Ş                                             | <b>30</b> Uni                   | t weight                      | tof               | soil              | (pcf)              |               |                           |                             |              |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·       |                                   | Ysurch =                                                      | 8                                             | 30 Uni                          | t weight                      | tof               | surc              | harge (pc          | f)            |                           |                             |              |
| Foundation Properties:                      |                                   | B' =                                                          | 38                                            | 5 Dor                           | ting Wi                       | dth -<br>ootir    | - tt (l<br>>a /fl | ±-₩)<br>0          | Ľ =           | 166.0                     | Length - ft (I              | <b>√-S</b> ) |
|                                             |                                   | β =                                                           | 59                                            | 6 Apr                           | ale of lo                     | ad ir             | ng (n<br>Selin    | )<br>ation from    | vorti         | al (deor                  | 222)                        |              |
|                                             |                                   | FS =                                                          | 1.1 Factor of Safety required for Qaltauable. |                                 |                               |                   |                   |                    |               | 6637                      |                             |              |
|                                             |                                   | F <sub>v</sub> =                                              | 72,98                                         | 38 k                            | 1                             | EQv               | =                 | -57,139            | k             | 210                       |                             |              |
|                                             |                                   | EQ <sub>HE-W</sub> =                                          | 27,02                                         | 29 k                            | + EQ                          | H N-S             | =                 | 24,816             | k =           | 36,693                    | k for F <sub>H</sub>        |              |
| $q_{utt} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{su}$ | <sub>irch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> I  | ¥ <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> + | 1/2 γ B                                       | N <sub>γ</sub> s <sub>γ</sub> d | d <sub>y</sub> i <sub>y</sub> |                   |                   | General<br>based o | Bear<br>n Wir | ing Capa<br>Iterkorn      | acity Equati<br>& Fang (19) | on,<br>75)   |
| 1                                           | 1 <sub>c</sub> = (N               | a - 1) cot(φ)                                                 | , but = 5                                     | .14 for                         | φ=0                           |                   | =                 | 5.14               |               | Eq 3.6 8                  | & Table 3.2                 |              |
| h                                           | $\mathbf{I}_a = \mathbf{e}^{\pi}$ | $tan\phi$ $tan^2(\pi/4$                                       | + <b></b> \$/2)                               |                                 | •                             |                   | Ħ                 | 1.00               |               | Eq 3.6                    |                             |              |
| 1                                           | $v_{\gamma} = 2$                  | (N <sub>o</sub> + 1) tan                                      | ( <b>φ</b> )                                  |                                 |                               |                   | =                 | 0.00               |               | Eq 3.8                    |                             |              |
|                                             | s. = 1.                           | + (B/L)(N_/N                                                  | .)                                            |                                 |                               |                   | =                 | 1 04               |               | Table 3                   | 2                           |              |
|                                             | $s_a = 1$                         | + (B/L) tan ø                                                 |                                               |                                 | •                             |                   | =                 | 1.00               |               | *                         | •                           |              |
| :                                           |                                   | - 0.4 (B/L)                                                   |                                               |                                 |                               |                   | =                 | 1.00               |               |                           |                             |              |
| For $D/B < 1^{\circ}$                       | 1. = 1.                           | +2 tan ≜ (1                                                   | - sin a) <sup>2</sup>                         | D/B                             |                               |                   | -                 | 1.00               |               | Fa 3 26                   |                             |              |
|                                             | ng - ·<br>d <sub>e</sub> = 1      | ( <u> </u>                                                    | σπι ψ,                                        | 0,0                             |                               |                   | =                 | 1.00               |               |                           |                             |              |
| <b>For</b> φ > 0: α                         | $d_{a} = d_{a}$                   | - (1-d <sub>o</sub> ) / (N <sub>o</sub>                       | , tan φ)                                      |                                 |                               |                   | ×                 | N/A                |               |                           |                             |              |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $\phi$                     | ۔<br>با = 1                       | + 0.4 (D/B)                                                   | • •                                           |                                 |                               |                   | =                 | 1.05               |               | Ea 3.27                   |                             |              |
|                                             | (0                                |                                                               | D/I \                                         |                                 |                               |                   |                   | 1.00               |               |                           | _                           |              |
| 11                                          | 1 <sub>B</sub> = (2               | + B/L) / (I +                                                 | D/L)                                          |                                 |                               |                   | 3                 | 1.62               |               | Eq 3.18                   | a                           |              |
| n                                           | n <sub>L</sub> = (2               | + L/B) / ( <b>1</b> +                                         | UB)                                           |                                 |                               |                   | =                 | 1.38               |               | Eq 3.18                   | b                           |              |
| If EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0: (               | $\theta_n = \tan \theta_n$        | n <sup>-1</sup> (EQ <sub>HE-W</sub> /                         | EQ <sub>HN-S</sub> )                          | )                               |                               |                   | Ŧ                 | 0.83               | rad           |                           |                             |              |
| n                                           | n <sub>n</sub> = m <sub>l</sub>   | $\cos^2\theta_n + m$                                          | <sub>B</sub> sin <sup>2</sup> 0 <sub>n</sub>  |                                 |                               |                   |                   | 1.51               |               | Eq 3.18                   | с                           |              |
| For <b><math>\phi</math></b> = 0:           | i <sub>c</sub> = 1                | - (m F <sub>H</sub> / B' L                                    | ' c N <sub>c</sub> )                          |                                 |                               |                   | =                 | 0.46               |               | Eq 3.16                   | a                           |              |
|                                             | i <sub>a</sub> = { 1              | - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub> +                         | EQ <sub>v</sub> ) +                           | B' L' c                         | cot <b>φ</b> ] }'             | m                 | н                 | 1.00               |               | Eq 3.14                   | a                           |              |
|                                             | i, = { 1                          | - F <sub>H</sub> / [(F <sub>v</sub> +                         | EQ <sub>v</sub> ) +                           | B' L' c                         | cot <b>\$</b> ] }'            | m+1               | n                 | 0.00               |               | Eq 3.17                   | a                           |              |
|                                             |                                   |                                                               | **                                            |                                 |                               |                   |                   | NI 4               |               | NI 40                     |                             |              |
| Gross q                                     | uit =                             | 8,753                                                         | psf =                                         | I                               | 8,353                         | ł                 | +                 | 400                | +             | ιν <sub>γ</sub> term<br>0 | I                           |              |
| . q                                         | <sub>all</sub> =                  | 7,950                                                         | psf = q.                                      | <sub>ult</sub> / FS             |                               |                   |                   |                    |               |                           |                             |              |
| q <sub>actu</sub>                           | <sub>ial</sub> =                  | 2,503                                                         | psf = (F                                      | , + EG                          | Q <sub>v</sub> ) / (B'        | x L'              | )                 |                    |               |                           |                             |              |
| FSact                                       | <sub>ral</sub> =                  | 3.50                                                          | $= q_{ult} / q$                               | actual                          |                               |                   |                   | >                  | 1.1           | Hence                     | ОК                          |              |
|                                             |                                   |                                                               |                                               |                                 |                               |                   |                   |                    |               |                           |                             |              |

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xls

| 10.65                                        | -                                                                                        | CALCUL                                   | ATION SHE                                    | ET                          |                           |                                 |
|----------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------|
|                                              | CALCULATIO                                                                               | N IDENTIFICA                             | TION NUMBER                                  |                             |                           |                                 |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02                 | DIVISION & GP<br>G(B)                                                                    | OUP CA                                   | LCULATION NO.<br>13-3                        | OPTIONAL<br>N               | TASK CODE                 | PAGE 34                         |
|                                              |                                                                                          |                                          |                                              |                             |                           |                                 |
| ALLOWABLE BEA                                | RING CAPA                                                                                | CITY OF C                                | ANISTER TR                                   | ANSFER B                    | UILDING                   |                                 |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Earti                          | nquake: Case                                                                             | IIIB                                     |                                              | 10 % in X,                  | -40 % in Y,               | 100 % in Z                      |
| Soil Properties:                             | S <sub>U</sub> :                                                                         | = 3,180 /                                | Average undrain                              | ed strength (p              | sf) in upper ~            | 30' layer                       |
|                                              | ф :                                                                                      | = <b>0.</b> 0 l                          | Friction Angle (de                           | egrees)                     |                           |                                 |
|                                              | γ·<br>· · · ·                                                                            | = 901<br>- 901                           | Unit weight of so                            | vil (pot)<br>vrohorgo (pot) |                           |                                 |
| Foundation Properties                        | Isurch B'                                                                                | - 64.71                                  | Footing Width - ft                           | (F-W)                       | l ' 233 7                 | l ength - ft (N-S)              |
|                                              | D <sub>f</sub>                                                                           | = 51                                     | Depth of Footing                             | (ft)                        | L - 200.1                 | Lengur - It (IA-O)              |
|                                              | β                                                                                        | = 53.4 /                                 | Angle of load inc                            | ination from v              | ertical (degre            | es)                             |
|                                              | FS                                                                                       | = 1.1                                    | actor of Safety                              | required for qa             | liowable                  | ·                               |
|                                              | Fv                                                                                       | = <b>72,98</b> 8                         | c EQ <sub>v</sub> =                          | <b>-22,8</b> 56 k           |                           |                                 |
|                                              | EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                                                                      | = 67,572                                 | ( + EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> =                    | <b>24,816</b> k             | = 71,985                  | k for F <sub>H</sub>            |
| $q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{sur}$ | <sub>ch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> | + 1/2 γ Β Ν <sub>γ</sub>                 | s <sub>y</sub> d <sub>y</sub> i <sub>y</sub> | General B<br>based on       | earing Capa<br>Winterkorn | city Equation,<br>& Fang (1975) |
| N                                            | $_{c} = (N_{q} - 1) \cot(q$                                                              | φ), but = 5.14                           | for $\phi = 0$ =                             | = 5.14                      | Eq 3.6 &                  | Table 3.2                       |
| N                                            | $q = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$                                                       | /4 + φ/2)                                | =                                            | = 1.00                      | Eq 3.6                    |                                 |
| N                                            | $r_q = 2 (N_q + 1)$ ta                                                                   | ι <b>n (φ)</b>                           | =                                            | = 0.00                      | Eq 3.8                    |                                 |
| s                                            | $_{c} = 1 + (B/L)(N_{o}/$                                                                | N <sub>c</sub> )                         | :                                            | = 1.05                      | Table 3.                  | 2                               |
| S                                            | = 1 + (B/L) tan                                                                          | ¢                                        | •                                            | = 1.00                      |                           | _                               |
| S                                            | $r_{y} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$                                                                  |                                          | -                                            | = 0.89                      |                           |                                 |
| For D/B < 1: d                               | - = 1 + 2 tan o (                                                                        | 1 - sin φ) <sup>2</sup> D <sub>4</sub> / | в .                                          | - 100                       | Fg 3 26                   |                                 |
| d                                            | u = 1                                                                                    |                                          | -                                            | = 1.00                      | Lq 0.20<br>*              |                                 |
| <b>For</b> φ > 0: d                          | $d_{\rm c} = d_{\rm o} - (1 - d_{\rm o}) / (1 - d_{\rm o})$                              | N <sub>α</sub> tan φ)                    | -                                            | = N/A                       |                           |                                 |
| For $\phi = 0$ : d                           | $c = 1 + 0.4 (D_f/B)$                                                                    | )                                        | :                                            | = 1.03                      | Eq 3.27                   |                                 |
| m                                            | $_{\rm B} = (2 + {\rm B/L}) / (1$                                                        | + B/L)                                   | =                                            | = 1.62                      | Eq 3.18a                  | L                               |
| m                                            | L = (2 + L/B) / (1                                                                       | + L/B)                                   | =                                            | = 1.38                      | Eq 3.18b                  | >                               |
| If EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0: 6                | $n = \tan^{-1}(EQ_{HEM})$                                                                | /EQHNS)                                  | -                                            | = 1.22 ra                   | ıd                        |                                 |
| m                                            | $a = m_{c} \cos^2 \theta_{a} + 1$                                                        | $m_{\rm e} \sin^2 \theta_{\rm e}$        | -                                            | - 159                       | Fa 3 18c                  | •                               |
| For a - 0: i                                 | = 1 - (m F. / B                                                                          |                                          |                                              | . 0.54                      | Eq 2 16                   | ,<br>,                          |
| ι οι φ = 0.1                                 |                                                                                          |                                          |                                              | - 0.54                      | Eq 3.108                  |                                 |
| I,                                           | $q = \{ 1 - \Gamma_H / [(\Gamma_v$                                                       | $+ EQ_v + BL$                            | . C COLOJ } =                                | = 1.00                      | Eq 3.14a                  | l                               |
| i                                            | $F_{r} = \{ 1 - F_{H} / [(F_{v})]$                                                       | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B' L               | .' c cot φ] }""*" =                          | = 0.00                      | Eq 3.17a                  | t                               |
|                                              |                                                                                          |                                          | N <sub>c</sub> term                          | N <sub>q</sub> term         | N <sub>γ</sub> term       |                                 |
| Gross q <sub>u</sub>                         | n = 9,947                                                                                | psf =                                    | 9,547 -                                      | + 400                       | + 0                       |                                 |
| , qa                                         | <sub>II</sub> = 9,040                                                                    | psf = q <sub>uit</sub> /                 | FS                                           |                             |                           |                                 |
| <b>q</b> <sub>actua</sub>                    | <sub>al</sub> = 3,313                                                                    | psf = (F <sub>v</sub> +                  | EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x L')                |                             |                           |                                 |
|                                              |                                                                                          |                                          |                                              |                             |                           |                                 |

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xis

| 10.65 _                                     |                                                                                            | CAL                                | .CUL/                           | ATION                                                        | эп                |         | 1          |                 |                           |                   |
|---------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------|---------|------------|-----------------|---------------------------|-------------------|
|                                             | CALCULATIO                                                                                 | ON IDENT                           | TIFICAT                         | ION NU                                                       | MBEI              | R       |            |                 |                           |                   |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                            | DIVISION & G                                                                               | ROUP                               | CAL                             | CULATIC                                                      | N N               | 0.      | OPTION     | AL TA           | SK CODE                   | PAGE 35           |
| 05996.02                                    | G(B)                                                                                       |                                    |                                 | 13-3                                                         |                   |         |            | N/A             | L I                       |                   |
|                                             |                                                                                            |                                    |                                 |                                                              |                   |         |            |                 |                           |                   |
| ALLOWABLE BE                                | ARING CAPA                                                                                 | CITY O                             | F CA                            | NISTEI                                                       | R TI              | RAI     | NSFER      | BUI             | DING                      |                   |
| PSHA 2.000-Yr Eart                          | houake: Case                                                                               |                                    |                                 |                                                              | ſ                 | 100     | % in X.    | -40             | % in Y.                   | 40 % in 7         |
| Soil Properties                             |                                                                                            | = 3                                | 180 AV                          | erade III                                                    | <u>L</u><br>odrai | inod    | strength   | (neft)          | in unper -                | -30' laver        |
| doint ropenties.                            | с <u>и</u><br>ф                                                                            | - 0,<br>=                          | 0.0 Fri                         | ction An                                                     | nula<br>Inte (    | den.    | rees       | (psi)           | in upper ~                | SU layer          |
|                                             | γ                                                                                          | <b>a</b>                           | 90 Ur                           | it weight                                                    | tof               | soil    | (pcf)      |                 |                           |                   |
| ,                                           | Ysurch                                                                                     | =                                  | 80 Ur                           | it weight                                                    | tof               | surc    | harge (pc  | f)              |                           |                   |
| Foundation Properties:                      | B'                                                                                         | = 12                               | 4.9 Fo                          | oting Wi                                                     | dth -             | - ft (l | E-W)       | L' =            | - 186.8                   | Length - ft (N-S) |
|                                             | D <sub>t</sub>                                                                             | =                                  | 5 De                            | pth of F                                                     | ootin             | ng (fl  | t)         |                 |                           |                   |
|                                             | p                                                                                          | = 2                                | 18.3 An                         | gle of lo                                                    | ad in             | nclin   | ation from | n verti         | cal (degre                | ees)              |
|                                             | - FS                                                                                       | = 70(                              | 1.1 ra                          | CLOP OF S                                                    | atety<br>EO       | y rec   | quirea for | <b>Q</b> allowa | ble•                      |                   |
|                                             | FQ. FV                                                                                     | = 72,3                             | 388 K                           |                                                              | EQV               | =       | -22,856    | к<br>L          | 67 670                    | k for E           |
|                                             | COHE-W                                                                                     | - 21,0                             | JZ9 N                           | T LO                                                         | H N-S             | -       | 02,040     | K =             | 07,072<br>in n Oana       |                   |
| $q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{su}$ | <sub>irch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> | + 1/2γi                            | Β N <sub>γ</sub> s <sub>γ</sub> | $\mathbf{d}_{\mathbf{\gamma}}  \mathbf{i}_{\mathbf{\gamma}}$ |                   |         | based o    | вear<br>n Wir   | ng Capa                   | & Fang (1975)     |
| N                                           | $\mathbf{I}_{c} = (N_{q} - 1) \cot($                                                       | φ), but =                          | 5.14 fo                         | r φ = 0                                                      |                   | =       | 5.14       |                 | Eq 3.6 &                  | Table 3.2         |
| ħ                                           | $\mathbf{I}_{\mathbf{q}} = \mathbf{e}^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$                          | t/4 + φ/2)                         |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.00       |                 | Eq 3.6                    |                   |
| 1                                           | $N_{\gamma} = 2 (N_q + 1) ta$                                                              | an (ø)                             |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 0.00       |                 | Eq 3.8                    |                   |
|                                             | $s_{c} = 1 + (B/L)(N_{s})$                                                                 | (N_)                               |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.13       |                 | Table 3.:                 | 2                 |
| ş                                           | sa = 1 + (B/L) tan                                                                         | φ                                  |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.00       |                 |                           | -                 |
| :                                           | $s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$                                                               |                                    |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 0.73       |                 | •                         |                   |
| For D/B < 1: 0                              | i <sub>a</sub> = 1 + 2 tan oi (                                                            | (1 - sin ø)                        | <sup>2</sup> D/B                |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.00       |                 | Eq 3.26                   |                   |
|                                             | t, = 1                                                                                     |                                    | - r -                           |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.00       |                 | "                         |                   |
| <b>For</b> φ > 0: α                         | $d_{c} = d_{q} - (1 - d_{q}) / ($                                                          | N <sub>α</sub> tan φ)              |                                 |                                                              |                   |         | N/A        |                 |                           |                   |
| <b>For</b> φ = 0: α                         | i <sub>c</sub> = 1 + 0.4 (D <sub>f</sub> /B                                                | s)                                 |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.02       |                 | Eq 3.27                   |                   |
| m                                           | и <sub>в</sub> = (2 + B/L) / (1                                                            | + B/L)                             |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.62       |                 | Eg 3.18a                  | 3                 |
| m                                           | $h_{\rm L} = (2 + {\rm L/B}) / (1)$                                                        | ,<br>+ L/B)                        |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.38       |                 | Ea 3.18                   | )                 |
| If EQ <sub>HN-S</sub> > 0: 6                | = tan <sup>-1</sup> (EQ <sub>HEM</sub>                                                     | ,<br>/ EQ <sub>H N.</sub> :        | د)                              |                                                              |                   | =       | 0.41       | rad             |                           | -                 |
| n                                           | $n_{\rm p} = m_{\rm l} \cos^2 \theta_{\rm p} + $                                           | m <sub>B</sub> sin <sup>2</sup> θ, |                                 |                                                              |                   | =       | 1.42       |                 | Ea 3.18a                  | 2                 |
| For $\phi = 0$ :                            | i <sub>e</sub> = 1 - (m F <sub>H</sub> / B                                                 | 'L'cN.)                            | •                               |                                                              |                   | =       | 0.75       |                 | Eq 3.16a                  | 3                 |
|                                             | $i_{n} = \{1 - F_{H} / [(F_{v})]$                                                          | + EQ,) +                           | - B' L' c                       | ; cot 6] }                                                   | m                 | =       | 1.00       |                 | Eq 3.14a                  | 1                 |
|                                             | $i_y = \{1 - F_H / [(F_v)]$                                                                | + EQ,) +                           | • B' L' c                       | : cot ø] }'                                                  | m+1               | =       | 0.00       |                 | Eg 3.17a                  | 3                 |
|                                             | ,                                                                                          |                                    |                                 | N town                                                       |                   |         | N tauna    |                 | N town                    | -                 |
| Gross q                                     | <sub>ult</sub> = 14,435                                                                    | psf =                              |                                 | 14,035                                                       | I                 | +       | 400        | +               | iw <sub>γ</sub> term<br>0 |                   |
| a                                           | m = 13.120                                                                                 | psf = c                            | 1 / FS                          |                                                              |                   |         |            |                 |                           |                   |
| ч                                           | at = 2149                                                                                  | psf = (                            | F. + F                          |                                                              | x f '             | ì       |            |                 |                           |                   |
| Mactu                                       | ai — E, 143                                                                                | hài - (                            | • v + Li                        | ~~/ / U                                                      | ~ )               | ,       |            |                 |                           |                   |
| FS <sub>actu</sub>                          | <sub>al</sub> = 6.72                                                                       | = q <sub>uit</sub> /               | <b>q</b> actual                 |                                                              |                   |         | >          | 1.1             | Hence                     | ОК                |

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xls

÷ .

. ...

.. ...

.

| 010.65                                                                                                | CALCULATION SHEET                   |                                          |                                        |               |                            |             |                          |                   |
|-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------------|-------------|--------------------------|-------------------|
|                                                                                                       | CALCULATION                         | IDENTIFICAT                              | TION NUMB                              | BER           |                            |             |                          |                   |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.<br>05996.02                                                                          | G(B)                                | UP CAL                                   | CULATION                               | NO.           | OPTIONA                    | N/A         | SK CODE                  |                   |
| ALLOWABLE BEAF                                                                                        | RING CAPACI                         | TY OF CA                                 | NISTER                                 | TRA           | NSFER                      | BUII        | DING                     |                   |
| PSHA 2,000-Yr Eartho                                                                                  | quake: Case                         | IVA                                      |                                        | 40            | ) % in X,                  | 100         | % in Y,                  | 40 % in Z         |
| Soil Properties:                                                                                      | S <sub>U</sub> =                    | 3,180 Av                                 | verage und                             | drained       | l strength (               | (psf) i     | in upper ~               | 30' layer         |
|                                                                                                       | φ =                                 | 0.0 Fr                                   | riction Angl                           | le (deg       | rees)                      |             |                          |                   |
|                                                                                                       | y =<br>Ysurch =                     | 90 U                                     | nit weight o<br>nit weight o           | of surc       | (pcr)<br>harge (pc)        | ก           |                          |                   |
| Foundation Properties:                                                                                | B' =                                | 149.6 Fo                                 | ooting Widt                            | th - ft (l    | E-W)                       | ,<br>L'=    | • <b>252.9</b>           | Length - ft (N-S) |
|                                                                                                       | D <sub>f</sub> =                    | 5 D(                                     | epth of Foc                            | oting (fi     | t)                         |             |                          | <b>~</b> • •      |
|                                                                                                       | β =                                 | 11.7 A                                   | ngle of load                           | d inclin      | ation from                 | verti       | cal (degre               | es)               |
|                                                                                                       | FS=                                 | 1.1 Ha                                   | actor of Sat                           | fety rec      | quired for a               | 7allowa     | ible-                    |                   |
|                                                                                                       | FV≕<br>FQuew=                       | 12,900 M<br>27 029 k                     | + EQ                                   | ωv =<br>∵ ~ = | 57,139 (<br>24,816 (       | К<br>12     | 36 603                   | k for F.          |
| q <sub>uit</sub> = c N <sub>c</sub> s <sub>c</sub> d <sub>c</sub> i <sub>c</sub> + γ <sub>surct</sub> | $D_f N_q s_q d_q i_q +$             | 1/2 γ B N <sub>γ</sub> s                 | ، ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ | N-S -         | General                    | N –<br>Bear | ing Capa                 | city Equation,    |
| Na                                                                                                    | $= (N_{a} - 1) \cot(\phi),$         | but = 5.14 fc                            | or h = 0                               | =             | 5 14                       | 1 44 11     | Fa36&                    | Tahla 3.2         |
| Na                                                                                                    | $= e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/4)$ | + ¢/2)                                   | ν ψ = -                                | =             | 1.00                       |             | Fr 3.6                   | Table O.2         |
| N <sub>Y</sub>                                                                                        | $= 2 (N_{q} + 1) \tan($             | (φ)                                      |                                        | =             | 0.00                       |             | Eq 3.8                   |                   |
| Sc                                                                                                    | $= 1 + (B/L)(N_{o}/N_{o})$          | )                                        |                                        | =             | 1.12                       |             | Table 3.2                | >                 |
| Sq                                                                                                    | = 1 + (B/L) tan φ                   | <b>,</b> .                               |                                        | =             | 1.00                       |             | N                        | -                 |
| sγ                                                                                                    | = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)                     |                                          |                                        | =             | 0.76                       |             | •                        |                   |
| For $D_f B \leq 1$ : $d_q$                                                                            | = 1 + 2 tan \ (1 -                  | sin φ)² D <sub>f</sub> /Β                |                                        | =             | 1.00                       |             | Ea 3.26                  |                   |
| d <sub>y</sub> ,                                                                                      | = 1                                 |                                          |                                        | =             | 1.00                       |             | £1                       |                   |
| For $\phi > 0$ : d <sub>c</sub> :                                                                     | $= d_q - (1 - d_q) / (N_q)$         | tan φ)                                   |                                        | =             | N/A                        |             |                          |                   |
| For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c$ :                                                                              | = 1 + 0.4 (D <sub>f</sub> /B)       |                                          |                                        | =             | 1.01                       |             | Eq 3.27                  |                   |
| m <sub>B</sub> :                                                                                      | = (2 + B/L) / (1 +                  | B/L)                                     |                                        | æ             | 1.62                       |             | Eq 3.18a                 | L                 |
| m <sub>L</sub> :                                                                                      | = (2 + L/B) / (1 +                  | L/B)                                     |                                        | =             | 1.38                       |             | Eq 3.18b                 | )                 |
| If EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0: $\theta_0$                                                                | $= \tan^{-1}(EQ_{HE-W}/E)$          | EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> )                    |                                        | =             | 0.83                       | rad         | •                        |                   |
|                                                                                                       | $= m_1 \cos^2 \theta_n + m_B$       | sin <sup>2</sup> 0                       |                                        | =             | 1.51                       |             | Fa 3,18c                 |                   |
| For $\phi = 0$ : i.                                                                                   | $= 1 - (m F_{H} / B' L')$           | c N_)                                    |                                        | =             | 0.91                       |             | Fo 3 16a                 |                   |
| · · · ·                                                                                               | = [ 1 - Fu/ [(F. + ]                | FO ) + B' I '                            | e eot ልን እ <sup>መ</sup>                | _             | 1 00                       |             | Eq 0.100                 |                   |
| -4<br>1.4                                                                                             | - / 1 - E / [(E. + [                |                                          | ~ ~~t &] } <sup>m+</sup>               | -1            | 0.00                       |             | E- 2 170                 |                   |
| iې د                                                                                                  | = { + - + H/ L0 + +                 |                                          | σουτφιγ                                | =             | 0.00                       |             | Eq 3.17a                 | <b>,</b>          |
| Gross q <sub>uit</sub> :                                                                              | = 17,214 <b>f</b>                   | osf =                                    | N <sub>c</sub> term<br>16,814          | +             | N <sub>q</sub> term<br>400 | +           | N <sub>γ</sub> term<br>0 |                   |
| q <sub>all</sub> :                                                                                    | = 15,640 F                          | osf = q <sub>uit</sub> / F               | S                                      |               |                            |             |                          |                   |
| ·<br>q <sub>actual</sub> :                                                                            | = 3,440 F                           | osf = (F <sub>v</sub> + E                | (B' x                                  | L')           |                            |             |                          |                   |
| FS <sub>actual</sub> :                                                                                | = 5.00 =                            | = q <sub>ult</sub> / q <sub>actual</sub> |                                        |               | >                          | 1.1         | Hence (                  | ЭК                |
|                                                                                                       |                                     |                                          |                                        |               |                            |             |                          |                   |

[geot]j05996\caic\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xis

#### CALCULATION SHEET 5010.65 CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PAGE 37 J.O. OR W.O. NO. **DIVISION & GROUP** CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE 05996.02 13-3 G(B) N/A ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING PSHA 2,000-Yr Earthquake: Case IVB 40 % in X, 40 % in Y, 100 % in Z Soil Properties: 3,180 Average undrained strength (psf) in upper ~30' layer 0.0 Friction Angle (degrees) φ = γ= 90 Unit weight of soil (pcf) 80 Unit weight of surcharge (pcf) $\gamma_{surch} =$ Foundation Properties: B' = 112.6 Footing Width - ft (E-W) L' = 248.6 Length - ft (N-S) $D_f =$ 5 Depth of Footing (ft) β = 35.2 Angle of load inclination from vertical (degrees) FS = 1.1 Factor of Safety required for gallowable. $F_{v} =$ 72.988 k $EQ_{v} =$ 22,856 k $EQ_{HE-W} =$ $67,572 \text{ k} + \text{EQ}_{HNS} =$ 24,816 k = 71,985 k for F<sub>H</sub> General Bearing Capacity Equation, $q_{uit} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_{surch} D_t N_a s_a d_a i_a + 1/2 \gamma B N_\gamma s_\gamma d_\gamma i_\gamma$ based on Winterkorn & Fang (1975) $N_{c} = (N_{a} - 1) \operatorname{cot}(\phi)$ , but = 5.14 for $\phi = 0$ 5.14 Eq 3.6 & Table 3.2 = $N_{\alpha} = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi/4 + \phi/2)$ 1.00 Eq 3.6 $N_{y} = 2 (N_{0} + 1) \tan (\phi)$ 0.00 Eq 3.8 = $s_c = 1 + (B/L)(N_c/N_c)$ 1.09 Table 3.2 --- $s_{\alpha} = 1 + (B/L) \tan \phi$ 1.00 = $s_{y} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$ 0.82 \_ For $D_f B \le 1$ : $d_a = 1 + 2 \tan \phi (1 - \sin \phi)^2 D_f B$ 1.00 Eq 3.26 = $d_{y} = 1$ 1.00 For $\phi > 0$ : $d_c = d_o - (1-d_o) / (N_o \tan \phi)$ N/A For $\phi = 0$ : $d_c = 1 + 0.4$ (D/B) 1.02 Eq 3.27 $m_B = (2 + B/L) / (1 + B/L)$ 1.62 Eq 3.18a $m_L = (2 + L/B) / (1 + L/B)$ 1.38 Eq 3.18b \_ If EQ<sub>H N-S</sub> > 0: $\theta_n = \tan^{-1}(EQ_{H E-W}/EQ_{H N-S})$ 1.22 rad = $m_n = m_L \cos^2 \theta_n + m_B \sin^2 \theta_n$ 1.59 Eq 3.18c = For $\phi = 0$ : $i_c = 1 - (m F_H / B' L' c N_c)$ 0.75 Eq 3.16a = $i_a = \{ 1 - F_H / [(F_v + EQ_v) + B' L' c \cot \phi] \}^m$ 1.00 Eq 3.14a = $i_v = \{ 1 - F_H / [(F_v + EQ_v) + B' L' c \cot \phi] \}^{m+1}$ 0.00 Eq 3.17a = N<sub>c</sub> term N<sub>a</sub> term N<sub>v</sub> term Gross q<sub>ult</sub> = 13,976 psf = 13,576 400 0 12,700 $psf = q_{ult} / FS$ $q_{all} =$ $psf = (F_v + EQ_v) / (B' \times L')$ $q_{actual} =$ 3,425 $= q_{ult} / q_{actual}$ FS<sub>actual</sub> = 4.08 > 1.1 Hence OK

[geot]j05996\calc\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xis

. ---

#### CALCULATION SHEET

.

٠.

.

•

.

| 010.65                                   |                                                                                            | CALCU                                | LATION SF                                    | IEE                |                                |                          |                               |
|------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------|--------------------|--------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------------|
| ······································   | CALCULATIO                                                                                 |                                      | CATION NUMBE                                 | R                  |                                |                          |                               |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO.                         | DIVISION & G                                                                               | ROUP C                               | ALCULATION N                                 | 0.                 | OPTIONAL TA                    | SK CODE                  | page 38                       |
| 05996.02                                 | G(B)                                                                                       |                                      | 13-3                                         |                    | N/A                            |                          |                               |
| ALLOWABLE BE                             | ARING CAPA                                                                                 | CITY OF C                            | CANISTER 1                                   | RAI                | NSFER BUI                      | DING                     |                               |
| PSHA 2 000-Vr Ear                        | thouske: Case                                                                              | TVC                                  |                                              | 100                | % in X 40                      | % in Y                   | 40 % in 7                     |
| Soil Properties                          | . S.                                                                                       | ≃ 3.180                              | Average undra                                | ained              | strength (psf)                 | in upper ~:              | 30' laver                     |
|                                          | φ                                                                                          | = 0.0                                | Friction Angle                               | (deg               | rees)                          |                          |                               |
|                                          | Ŷ                                                                                          | = 90                                 | Unit weight of                               | soil               | (pcf)                          |                          |                               |
|                                          | Ysurch                                                                                     | = 80                                 | Unit weight of                               | surc               | harge (pcf)                    | 0044                     |                               |
| Foundation Properties                    | : B <sup>r</sup><br>D.                                                                     | = 144.0                              | Depth of Foot                                | ו) זו -<br>ina (fi | E-VV) L'=<br>⊦\                | = 224.1                  | Length - ft (N-S)             |
|                                          | β                                                                                          | - 5                                  | Angle of load                                | ing (n             | y<br>ation from verti          | ical (deore              | es)                           |
|                                          | FS                                                                                         | = 1.1                                | Factor of Safe                               | ty rec             | quired for q <sub>attown</sub> | able                     | ,                             |
|                                          | Fv                                                                                         | = 72,988                             | k EQ                                         | v =                | 22,856 k                       |                          |                               |
|                                          | EQ <sub>H E-W</sub>                                                                        | = 27,029                             | k + EQ <sub>HN</sub>                         | s =                | 62,040 k =                     | 67,672                   | k for F <sub>H</sub>          |
| $q_{ult} = c N_c s_c d_c i_c + \gamma_s$ | <sub>urch</sub> D <sub>f</sub> N <sub>q</sub> s <sub>q</sub> d <sub>q</sub> i <sub>q</sub> | + 1/2 γ B N                          | $_{\gamma} s_{\gamma} d_{\gamma} i_{\gamma}$ |                    | General Bear<br>based on Wit   | ring Capao<br>nterkorn 8 | city Equation,<br>Fang (1975) |
|                                          | $N_c = (N_q - 1) \cot($                                                                    | (o), but = 5.1                       | 4 for $\phi = 0$                             | ==                 | 5.14                           | Eq 3.6 &                 | Table 3.2                     |
| 1                                        | $N_q = e^{\pi \tan \phi} \tan^2(\pi$                                                       | τ/4 + φ/2)                           |                                              | =                  | 1.00                           | Eq 3.6                   |                               |
|                                          | $N_{\gamma} = 2 (N_q + 1) t_i$                                                             | an ( <b></b> )                       |                                              | =                  | 0.00                           | Eq 3.8                   |                               |
|                                          | $s_{n} = 1 + (B/L)(N_{n})$                                                                 | /N_)                                 |                                              | =                  | 1.13                           | Table 3.2                |                               |
|                                          | $s_q = 1 + (B/L)$ tar                                                                      | ηφ                                   |                                              | =                  | 1.00                           |                          |                               |
|                                          | $s_{\gamma} = 1 - 0.4 (B/L)$                                                               |                                      |                                              | =                  | 0.74                           | •                        |                               |
| For D <sub>1</sub> /B ≤ 1:               | $d_a = 1 + 2 \tan \phi$                                                                    | (1 - sin φ) <sup>2</sup> D           | у∕B                                          | =                  | 1.00                           | Eq 3.26                  |                               |
|                                          | $d_{\gamma} = 1$                                                                           |                                      |                                              | =                  | 1.00                           | Ħ                        |                               |
| For <b><math>\phi</math></b> > 0:        | $\mathbf{d_c} = \mathbf{d_q} - (1 - \mathbf{d_q}) / \mathbf{d_q}$                          | (N <sub>q</sub> tan φ)               |                                              | =                  | N/A                            |                          |                               |
| For $\phi = 0$ :                         | $d_{c} = 1 + 0.4 (D_{f}/E)$                                                                | 3)                                   |                                              | 2                  | 1.01                           | Eq 3.27                  |                               |
| r                                        | n <sub>B</sub> = (2 + B/L) / (                                                             | 1 + B/L)                             |                                              | =                  | 1.62                           | Eq 3.18a                 |                               |
| I                                        | $m_{L} = (2 + L/B) / (2 + L/B)$                                                            | 1 + L/B)                             |                                              | =                  | 1.38                           | Eq 3.18b                 |                               |
| If EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> > 0:              | $\theta_n = \tan^{-1}(EQ_{HE^{-1}})$                                                       | <sub>w</sub> / EQ <sub>H N-S</sub> ) |                                              | =                  | 0.41 rad                       |                          |                               |
|                                          | $m_n = m_L \cos^2 \theta_n +$                                                              | $m_B \sin^2 \! \theta_n$             |                                              | =                  | 1.42                           | Eq 3.18c                 |                               |
| For $\phi = 0$ :                         | : i <sub>c</sub> = 1 - (m F <sub>н</sub> / Е                                               | 3' L' c N <sub>c</sub> )             |                                              | =                  | 0.82                           | Eq 3.16a                 |                               |
|                                          | $i_{n} = \{1 - F_{H} / [(F_{n})]\}$                                                        | , + EQ.) + B'                        | $L' c \cot \phi$                             | =                  | 1.00                           | Eg 3.14a                 |                               |
|                                          | $i_{y} = \{1 - F_{H} / [(F_{y})]\}$                                                        | , + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) + B'           | 'L'c cot φ] } <sup>m+1</sup>                 | =                  | 0.00                           | Eq 3.17a                 |                               |
|                                          |                                                                                            |                                      | N. term                                      |                    | N. term                        | N. term                  |                               |
| Gross                                    | q <sub>ult</sub> = 15,646                                                                  | psf =                                | 15,246                                       | +                  | 400 +                          | 0                        |                               |
|                                          | 9 <sub>a11</sub> = 14,220                                                                  | psf = q <sub>uit</sub>               | /FS                                          |                    |                                |                          |                               |
| q <sub>act</sub>                         | <sub>lual</sub> = 2,970                                                                    | $psf = (F_v$                         | + EQ <sub>v</sub> ) / (B' x I                | _')                |                                |                          |                               |
| FS <sub>ac</sub>                         | <sub>tual</sub> = 5.27                                                                     | $= q_{ult} / q_{ac}$                 | ctual                                        |                    | > 1.1                          | Hence                    | ок                            |
| [geot]j05996\calc\brng_cap               | \can_xfr.xls                                                                               |                                      |                                              |                    |                                |                          |                               |

| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE |      |     |  |  |  |  |
|------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|------|-----|--|--|--|--|
| 05996.02         | G(B)                                                                 | 13-3 | N/A |  |  |  |  |

#### CONCLUSIONS

#### OVERTURNING STABILITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING

The overturning stability of the Canister Transfer Building is analyzed on Pages 8 & 9 using the dynamic loads for the building due to the PSHA 2,000-yr return period earthquake. These loads, listed in Table 1 (SAR Table 2.6-11), were developed based on the dynamic analysis performed in Calculation 05996.02-SC-5 (SWEC, 1999b) and are described in SAR Section 4.7.1.5.3. This calculation demonstrates that the factor of safety against overturning of the Canister transfer Building is > 1.1; therefore, the Canister Transfer Building has an adequate factor of safety against overturning due to dynamic loadings from the design basis ground motion.

#### SLIDING SLIDING STABILITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING

The Canister Transfer Building (CTB) will be founded on clayey soils. The sliding stability of the CTB was evaluated using the loads developed in Calculation 05996.02-SC-5 (SWEC, 1999b). The static strength of the clayey soils at the bottom of the CTB mat was based on the average of two sets of direct shear tests performed on samples of soils obtained from beneath the Canister Transfer Building at the elevation proposed for founding the mat.

The results of the sliding stability analysis are presented in Table 2 of this calculation, and they indicate that for all load combinations examined, the factors of safety were acceptable. The lowest factor of safety was 1.10, which applies for Cases IIIB and IVB, where 100% of the dynamic earthquake forces act in the east-west direction and 40% act in the other two directions. These results assume that only one-half of the passive pressures are available resist sliding and no credit is taken for the fact that the strength of cohesive soils increases as the rate of loading increases (Schimming et al, 1966, Casagrande and Shannon, 1948, and Das, 1993); therefore, they represent a conservative lower-bound value of the sliding stability.

The Canister Transfer Building will be founded on clayey soils that have an adequate amount of cohesive strength to resist sliding due to the dynamic forces from the design basis ground motion. As shown in SAR Figures 2.6-21 through 2.6-23, however, some of the soils underlying the building are cohesionless within the depth zone of about 10 to 20 ft, especially near the southern portion of the building. Analyses were performed to address the possibility that sliding may occur along a deeper slip plane at the clayey soil/sandy soil interface as a result of the earthquake forces.

These analyses included the passive resistance acting on a plane extending from grade down to the top of the cohesionless layer, plus the frictional resistance available along the top of the cohesionless layer. The weight of the clayey soils existing between the top of the cohesionless soils and the bottom of the mat was included in the normal force used to calculate the frictional resistance acting along the top of the cohesionless layer. The factor of safety against sliding along the top of this layer was found to be  $\geq 1.1$  for all of the

|                  | 2125 10                                                              |      |     |  |  |  |
|------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------|------|-----|--|--|--|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | J.O. OR W.O. NO. DIVISION & GROUP CALCULATION NO. OPTIONAL TASK CODE |      |     |  |  |  |
| 05996.02         | G(B)                                                                 | 13-3 | N/A |  |  |  |

dynamic load cases; therefore, there is an adequate factor of safety against sliding along the surface of the cohesionless soils underlying the Canister Transfer Building.

Additional analyses of sliding on cohesionless soils, based on Newmark's method for estimating displacements of dams and embankment due to earthquakes, were performed to define the upper bound of potential movement that might occur due to the earthquake if the mat was founded directly on cohesionless soils. In these analyses it was postulated that the cohesionless soils extend above the depth of about 10 ft and the structure is founded directly on the cohesionless materials. Several conservative assumptions were made in these analyses, and even with this high level of conservatism, the estimated relative displacement of the building ranged from 0.5 inches to 1.2 inches.

Motions of this magnitude, occurring at the depth of the silty sand/sandy silt layer, would likely not even be evident at the ground surface. For the building to slide, a surface of sliding must be established between the horizontal sliding surface in the silty sand/sandy silt layer and through the overlying clayey layer. In the simplified model used to estimate these displacements, the contribution of this surface of sliding through the overlying clayer to the dynamic resistance to sliding motion is ignored, as is the passive resistance that would act on the embedded portion of the building foundation and the block of soil that is postulated to be moving with it. It is likely, moreover, that should such slippage occur within the cohesionless soils underlying the building, it would minimize the level of the accelerations that would be transmitted through the soil and into the structure. In this manner, these cohesionless soils would act as a built-in base-shear isolation system. Any decrease in these accelerations as a result of this would increase the factor of safety against sliding, which would decrease the estimated displacements as well. Further, since there are no important-to-safety systems that would be severed or otherwise impacted by movements of this small amount as a result of the earthquake, such movements do not adversely affect the performance of the CTB.

#### BEARING CAPACITY

#### STATIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING

Table 2.6-9 presents the results of the bearing capacity analyses for the following static load cases. The minimum factor of safety required for static load cases is 3.

Case IA Static using undrained strength parameters ( $\phi = 0^{\circ} \& c = 3.18$  ksf).

Case IB Static using effective-stress strength parameters ( $\phi = 30^{\circ} \& c = 0$ ).

As indicated in this table, the gross allowable bearing pressure for the Canister Transfer Building to obtain a factor of safety of 3.0 against a shear failure from static loads is greater than 6 ksf. However, loading the foundation to this value may result in undesirable settlements. This minimum allowable value was obtained in analyses that conservatively assume  $\phi = 0^{\circ}$  and c = 2.2 ksf, as measured in the UU tests that are reported in Attachment 2 of Appendix 2A of the SAR, to model the end of construction. Using the estimated effective-stress strength of  $\phi = 30^{\circ}$  and c = 0 or the total-stress
### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

PAGE 41

ļ

N/A

|                  |                  |                   | ····               | _ |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---|
|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    |   |
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE |   |

strength of  $\phi = 21.1^{\circ}$  and c = 1.1 ksf, as measured in the consolidated undrained triaxial shear tests performed on samples obtained from the Canister Transfer Building area (Attachment 6 of Appendix 2A of the SAR), results in higher allowable bearing pressures (> 20 ksf).

13-3

### DYNAMIC BEARING CAPACITY OF THE CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING

G(B)

The dynamic bearing capacity was analyzed using the dynamic loads for the building that were developed in Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, (SWEC, 1999b). The development of these dynamic loads is described in SAR Section 4.7.1.5.3. As in the structural analyses discussed in Section 4.7.1.5.3., the seismic loads used in these analyses were combined using 100% of the enveloped zero period accelerations (ZPA) in one direction with 40% of the enveloped ZPA in each of the other two directions.

Table 2.6-10 presents the results of the bearing capacity analyses for the following cases, which include static loads plus dynamic loads due to the earthquake. The minimum factor of safety required for dynamic load cases is 1.1.

| Case II   | 100%N-S direction, 0    | % Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
|-----------|-------------------------|----------------------------|----------------|
| Case IIIA | 40% N-S direction, -100 | % Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IIIB | 40% N-S direction, -40  | % Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
| Case IIIC | 100%N-S direction, -40  | % Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IVA  | 40% N-S direction, 100  | % Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |
| Case IVB  | 40% N-S direction, 40   | % Vertical direction, 100% | E-W direction. |
| Case IVC  | 100%N-S direction, 40   | % Vertical direction, 40%  | E-W direction. |

Table 2.6-10 indicates the minimum factor of safety against a dynamic bearing capacity failure was obtained for Load Case IIIB, the load combination of full static with 40% of the earthquake loading acting in the N-S direction, 40% acting in the vertical direction, tending to unload the mat, and 100% acting in the E-W horizontal direction. This load case resulted in an actual soil bearing pressure of 3.31 kips per square foot (ksf), compared with an ultimate bearing capacity of ~9 ksf. The resulting factor of safety against a bearing capacity failure for this load case is ~3, which is much greater than 1.1, the minimum allowable factor of safety for seismic loading cases. In these analyses, no credit was taken for the fact that strength of cohesive soil increases as the rate of loading increases. Therefore, the Canister Transfer Building has an adequate factor of safety against a dynamic bearing capacity failure.

5010.65

05996.02

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

### 5010.65

|                  | CALCULATION IDEN | TIFICATION NUMBER |                    | 2405 49 |
|------------------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------|---------|
| J.O. OR W.O. NO. | DIVISION & GROUP | CALCULATION NO.   | OPTIONAL TASK CODE | PAGE 42 |
| 05996.02         | G(B)             | 13-3              | N/A                |         |

### REFERENCES

ASCE 4-86, Seismic Analysis of Safety-Related Nuclear Structures and Commentary on Standard for Seismic Analysis of Safety-Related Nuclear Structures, American Society of Civil Engineers, 1986.

Casagrande, A. and W.L. Shannon, 1948. "Strength of Soils under Dynamic Loads," Transactions, ASCE, Vol. 74, No.4, April, pp. 591-608.

ConeTec, 1999, Cone penetration testing report, Private Fuel Storage Facility, prepared for Stone and Webster Engineering Corp., Denver, CO, 2 volumes.

Das, B. M., 1993, Principles of Soil Dynamics, PWS-Kent, Boston, MA, 570 pp.

Lambe, T.W., and R.V. Whitman, 1969, <u>Soil Mechanics</u>, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., N.Y., 553 pp.

Newmark, N.M., 1965. Fifth Rankine Lecture: "Effects of Earthquakes on Dams and Embankments". Geotechnique, Institution of Civil Engineers, London. pp. 139-60.

Schimming, B.B., H.J. Haas, and H.C. Saxe, 1966. Study and Dynamic and Static Envelopes. Journal of Soil Mechanics and Foundation Division, ASCE Vol. 92, No. SM2 (March), pp. 105-24.

SWEC, 1999a. Development of Soil Impedance Functions for Canister Transfer Building. Calculation No. 05996.02-SC-04, Revision 1, Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation.

SWEC, 1999b. Seismic Analysis of Canister Transfer Building. Calculation No. 05996.02-SC-05, Revision 1, Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation.

SWEC, 2000, Calculation No. 05996.02- G(B)-4, Revision 5, Stability Analyses of Storage Pad, Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation.

Vesic, A. S., 1973, "Analysis of Ultimate Loads on Shallow Foundations," *Journal of the Soil Mechanics and Foundations Division*, ASCE, Vol 99, No. SM1, pp 45-73.

Winterkorn, H. F., and Fang, H., 1975, <u>Foundation Engineering Handbook</u>, Van Nostrand Reinhold Co., New York, NY.

|            | ·   |                         |             |                        |       |                    |        | N-S<br>Shear X     | UPLIFT          | E-W<br>SHEAR Z  | <b>Elit</b> dese | € 3£5     |
|------------|-----|-------------------------|-------------|------------------------|-------|--------------------|--------|--------------------|-----------------|-----------------|------------------|-----------|
| JOINT      | EL. | MASS X                  | MASS Y      | MASS Z                 | ÂX    | Ay                 | Az     | F <sub>HX</sub>    | F <sub>%D</sub> | F <sub>HE</sub> | Max              | Maz       |
| 0.04111    | ft  | is-sec <sup>2</sup> ift | k-sec²/ft : | 1-sec <sup>2</sup> /ft | g     | g                  | g      | ĸ                  | k               | k               | ŕt-k             | ft-k      |
| 1          | 95  | 1257.0                  | 1257.0      | 1257.0                 | 0.805 | 0.720              | 6.789  | 32,593             | 29,142          | S1,*28          | 155,828          | 152,913   |
| 2          | 130 | 493,7                   | 490.7       | 490.7                  | C.864 | <sup>:</sup> 0.764 | C.834  | 15,652             | 12,872          | 13,179          | ÷61,2⁻8          | 477,808   |
| э.         | 170 | 299.2                   | 259.2       | • 157.0                | C.939 | C.829              | 0.966  | <del>9</del> ,047  | 7,987           | 4,684           | 366,264          | 676,491   |
| 4          | 190 | 219.B                   | 166.3       | 219.8                  | C.955 | 0.639              | 1.067  | 6,759              | 4,509           | 7,552           | 717,417          | 642,112   |
| ō          | 190 | 0.0                     | 52.9        | 0.0                    | 0.000 | 2.013              | C.000  | 0                  | 3,429           | ŋ               | 0                | 0         |
| - <u>Б</u> | 170 | Q.D                     | 0:0         | :42,2                  | 0.000 | 0.000              | 2.966  | . 0                | 0               | 10,834          | 812.515          | . 0       |
|            |     |                         |             |                        |       |                    | TOTAL  | <del>6</del> 2,040 | 57,139          | 67,572          | 2,513,041        | 1,961,325 |
|            |     |                         |             |                        |       | y                  | VEIGHT |                    | 72,988          |                 |                  |           |

## Table 1 Foundation Loadings for the Canister Transfer Building

Based on sliding and upfill forces from p S7 of Calc 05996.02-SC-5, Rev 1, which are applicable for "High: Moduli received from Geomatrix Calc 05996.02-G(PO18)-2, Rev 0.

gent on SOSPS01\05996\calc\0(E)\13-3\table\_1 xis

SIGNL & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER CALCULATION SHEET PAGE

AND NA

J.O. OR W.O. NO. 05996.02

DIVISION & CHODI

GALCULATION NO 13-3

**OPTIONAL** 

TASK CODE

43

NA

(B)

|                      |                                   |                                   |                                   | N-S                                | Vert                                | E-W                                | Static              | E                         | arthquak                              | e                         | 0.0<br>0    |
|----------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------------------------|---------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|-------------|
| Joint                | MASS X<br>k-sec <sup>2</sup> / ft | MASS Y<br>k-sec <sup>2</sup> / ft | MASS Z<br>k-sec <sup>2</sup> / ft | a <sub>x</sub><br>g                | a <sub>y</sub><br>g                 |                                    | F <sub>v</sub><br>k | Shear <sub>N-S</sub><br>k | F <sub>v</sub><br>k                   | Shear <sub>E-W</sub><br>k | 2 NO.       |
| 1                    | 1,257.0                           | 1,257.0                           | 1,257.0                           | 0.805                              | 0.720                               | 0.769                              | 40,475              | 32,583                    | 29,142                                | 31,126                    | Ū           |
| 2                    | 490.7                             | 490.7                             | 490.7                             | 0.864                              | 0.764                               | 0.834                              | 15,801              | 13,652                    | 12,072                                | 13,178                    | SIAI        |
| 3                    | 299.2                             | 299.2                             | 157.0                             | 0.939                              | 0.829                               | 0.966                              | 9,634               | 9,047                     | 7,987                                 | 4,884                     | ର ଜ         |
| 4                    | 219.8                             | 166.9                             | 219.8                             | 0.955                              | 0.839                               | 1.067                              | 5,374               | 6,759                     | 4,509                                 | 7,552                     | 9 (U)<br>10 |
| 5                    | 0.0                               | 52.9                              | 0.0                               | 0.000                              | 2.013                               | 0.000                              | 1,703               | 0                         | 3,429                                 | 0                         | AOU         |
| 6                    | 0.0                               | 0.0                               | 142.2                             | 0.000                              | 0.000                               | 2.366                              | 0                   | 0                         | 0                                     | 10,834                    |             |
| CT                   | B Mat Din                         | nensions:                         | B =                               | 165                                | ft                                  | Totals =                           | 72,988              | 62,040                    | 57,139                                | 67,572                    | ٤           |
|                      |                                   |                                   | L =                               | 265                                | ft                                  | 4                                  |                     | Resisting                 | Driving                               | - le anno                 |             |
|                      | For $\phi =$                      | 0.0                               | degrees                           | c =                                | 1.80                                | ksf                                | N (k)               | T (k)                     | V (k)                                 | FS                        | 13-3        |
|                      |                                   | ША                                | F <sub>v(Static)</sub><br>72,988  | 40% F <sub>H(NS)</sub><br>24,816   | 100% F <sub>v(Eqk)</sub><br>-57,139 | 40% F <sub>h(ew)</sub><br>27,029   | 15,849              | 79,169                    | 36,693                                | 2.16                      | ON NO.      |
| Ear<br>Verti         | thquake<br>cal Forces             | ШВ                                | F <sub>v(Static)</sub><br>72,988  | 40% F <sub>H(NS)</sub><br>24,816   | 40% F <sub>v(Eqk)</sub><br>-22,855  | 100% F <sub>II(EW)</sub><br>67,572 | 50,132              | 79,169                    | 71,985                                | 1.10                      | OPT         |
| AU                   |                                   | шс                                | F <sub>v(Static)</sub><br>72,988  | 100% F <sub>11(NS)</sub><br>62,040 | 40% F <sub>v(Eqk)</sub><br>-22,855  | 40% F <sub>h(EW)</sub><br>27,029   | 50,132              | 79,169                    | 67,672                                | 1.17                      | IONAL J     |
|                      | //##******                        | IVA                               | F <sub>v(Static)</sub><br>72,988  | 40% F <sub>HINS)</sub><br>24,816   | 100% F <sub>v(Eqk)</sub><br>57,139  | 40% F <sub>h(EW)</sub><br>27,029   | 130,126             | 79,169                    | 36,693                                | 2.16                      | ASK CO      |
| Ear<br>Verti<br>Acti | thquake<br>cal Forces             | IVB                               | F <sub>v(Static)</sub><br>72,988  | 40% F <sub>II(NS)</sub><br>24,816  | 40% F <sub>v(Eqk)</sub><br>22,855   | 100% F <sub>h(EW)</sub><br>67,572  | 95,843              | 79,169                    | 71,985                                | 1.10                      | Ďm<br>m     |
| ~~~~                 |                                   |                                   | F <sub>v(Static)</sub>            | 100% F <sub>H(NS)</sub>            | 40% F <sub>v(Eqk)</sub>             | 40% F <sub>H(EW)</sub>             |                     | • • • • • • • • • •       | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |                           | Ţ           |

.

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

# **TABLE 2.6-9** SUMMARY - ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF CANISTER TRANSFER BUILDING **Based on Static Loads**

| Casa                                 | F.     | FO          | FO  | <b>∑M</b>      | 5M   | β <sub>B</sub>             | β <sub>L</sub>             | GR                      | DSS                           | •                    | •   | EF       | FECTI    | /E                     |                      |
|--------------------------------------|--------|-------------|-----|----------------|------|----------------------------|----------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------|-----|----------|----------|------------------------|----------------------|
| Case                                 | k iv   | k ⊑warn N-S | k k | ∠⊪en-s<br>ft-k | ft-k | EQ <sub>H E-W</sub><br>dea | EQ <sub>H N-S</sub><br>dea | q <sub>ult</sub><br>ksf | <b>q<sub>all</sub></b><br>ksf | <del>с</del> в<br>ft | ft  | B'<br>ft | L'<br>ft | <b>Q</b> àctuai<br>ksf | FS <sub>actual</sub> |
| IA - Static<br>Undrained<br>Strength | 72,988 | 0           | 0   | 0              | 0    | 0.0                        | 0.0                        | 18.95                   | 6.31                          | 0.0                  | 0.0 | 165.0    | 265.0    | 1.67                   | 11.35                |
| IB - Static<br>Effective<br>Strength | 72,988 | 0           | 0   | 0              | 0    | 0.0                        | 0.0                        | 135.00                  | 45.00                         | 0.0                  | 0.0 | 165.0    | 265.0    | 1.67                   | 80.88                |

 $F_v = Vertical load (Static + EQ_v)$ 

 $e_B = \Sigma M_{QNS} / F_V$ 

 $B' = B \cdot 2 e_B$ 

 $q_{actual} = F_V / (B' \times L')$ 

 $EQ_{H} = Earthquake: Horizontal force. F_{H} = EQ_{HE-W} \text{ or } EQ_{HN-S}$ 

 $\beta_B = \tan^{-1} \left[ \left( E Q_{HEW} \right) / F_V \right] = Angle of load inclination from vertical (deg) as f(width).$ 

 $\beta_L = \tan^{-1} [(EQ_{HN-S}) / F_V] = Angle of load inclination from vertical (deg) as f(length).$ 

 $e_L = \Sigma M_{\Theta E \cdot W} / F_V$ 

L' = L • 2 e<sub>L</sub>

- **3,180** Undrained strength (psf) &  $\phi = 0$ . C ≖
- Effective stress friction angle (deg), c = 0. 30.0
- Footing width (ft) B = 165

- 265 Footing length (ft)
- 5.0 Depth of footing (ft)  $D_i =$
- Unit weight of soil (pcf) 90 γ≍
- 80 Unit weight of surcharge (pcf) Ysurch =
- FS = 3 Factor of safety for static loads.

[geot]\05996\caic\brng\_cap\can\_xfr.xis Table 2.6-9

5010.65 CALCULATION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER CALCULATION SHEET

· ,

<u>د</u>

OR W.O.

NO.

DIVISION & GROUP

CALCULATION NO.

OPTIONAL TASK CODE

PAGE

8

NA

13-3

G(B)

05996.02

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

|           | 0F 46                             |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  |         |                |          |                  |                   |                          |                      |                     |                        | ्। •ह.९ २ प्रधाः                        | 12.1X_235/    | ຕະເປັນຊາ,ະ   | 160 <i>18966</i> 304 | ່ງ:ະຊີ         |   |
|-----------|-----------------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------|------------------|---------|----------------|----------|------------------|-------------------|--------------------------|----------------------|---------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------------------|---------------|--------------|----------------------|----------------|---|
|           | PA                                |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  |         |                |          |                  |                   |                          |                      |                     | -st                    | seo oimeny:                             | noi vietas    | sto notae P  | -'1                  | = S <u>-</u> : |   |
| . <u></u> | 1                                 |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  |         |                |          |                  |                   | la <sup>-</sup>          | × £) / *=            | e <sup>pere</sup> b |                        | ende (oaj                               | r cf surd:    | iciew tin J  | 29                   | = .kus         |   |
|           | 1000                              |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  |         |                |          | ~ez-1            | F. =              |                          | 892•€                | = £                 |                        | ;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;; | ; ios to tr   | igew in J    | 35                   | = J.           |   |
|           | SK -                              |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  |         |                | 4 E^     | was WZ           | = 6               | <b>'</b> н               | / <sup>sta</sup> kii | = <sup>ç</sup> 8    |                        |                                         | (၃) စီးဖွင့်စ | ) ic rited   | 0'5                  | = 1 <b>1</b>   |   |
|           | NA<br>NA                          |                                                                                                                                                                  | iua jy sa  | (Ĉep) je         | ojiev m | on reile       | ultri c  | eci ic ei        | £uv = ( •         | ∃/¦≋яно                  | 3) <sup>1</sup> rx   | = <b>`</b> ქ        |                        |                                         | uca, (H;      | el gritcofi  | 592                  | = T            |   |
|           | VNO                               |                                                                                                                                                                  | oin¦* 23 { | (ĉep) je:        | xhavi m | cri noda       | nioni ou | sci ito elg      | 8u¥ ={∧_          | 17( <del>~3</del> 45     | a)] <sub>e</sub> rz  | 3 <sub>6</sub> . =  |                        |                                         | ង្ក ចុះ       | w Eulicof    | <u>991</u>           | = 8            |   |
|           | CPT                               |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  | \$KH    | 03-c ~         | • EQ4    | = <sup>2</sup>   | no' lehoo         | shcH :ə4s                | ราวปกระ              | = '03               |                        |                                         | (Dep) ejőt    | ne noitcir A | 00                   | =0             |   |
| _         |                                   |                                                                                                                                                                  |            |                  |         |                |          | :                | 4 <b>DE + a</b> ) | radi) beci               | l IsoineV            | = ^±                |                        | (jsc)                                   | rttgnerra t   | oanie brij   | 08'-'E               | = 0            |   |
| I ISI MI  | ັ<br>NC<br>ກ                      |                                                                                                                                                                  | 5.27       | 1673             | इड्ट 1  | 0'701          | \$.CS    | 90.              | 14.22             | 89.81                    | 35'ê                 | 2.61                | 300 <sup>°</sup> 196'1 | 812.600,1                               | 65C.72        | 62.043       | 118'95               | <i>Б</i> .С    |   |
| IN NO     | 13-0<br>13-0                      |                                                                                                                                                                  | 80*\$      | 3.42             | S.9.5   | 9311           | 28       | 2.93             | 07.21             | 99.51                    | 9'7L                 | 32.2                | 069°432                | 2'e19'041                               | 7/5'/9        | 61843        | <b>**</b> 9'35       | 8121           |   |
| -IC:A LI  | CALC                              |                                                                                                                                                                  | 00'5       | 51° E            | 525.3   | 9'61-1         | 0.e      | £1               | t9'91             | 13.71                    | 8'C1                 | 211                 | 764,530                | 812,300,1                               | 620,72        | 54 819       | 130,-27              | ¥.5I           |   |
| IIN 40    | <u>م</u>                          |                                                                                                                                                                  | 57.9       | 51.5             | 0.88r   | 1548           | 1'60     | 1 03             | 21.EI             | 14'43                    | 1.12                 | 6.85                | 575°196'1              | 812,900,1                               | 670'1Z        | 640,238      | 20°32S               | шс             | 1 |
| II NOI    | Ģ П Q U                           |                                                                                                                                                                  | 300        | 18.6             | 7.EES   | 2.128          | 8.ōt     | 1 09             | t0'6              | 99.6                     | 5.62                 | 789                 | 164`930                | 150,813,941                             | 572,78        | 54819        | 281°,02              | EIII           |   |
| :01.41    | 4 NC<br>G(B)                      |                                                                                                                                                                  | 3720       | 5:50             | C.681   | S.8C           | S'67     | <del>7</del> '89 | 56'L              | 9£.0                     | t'£9                 | 9'6G                | 1669'932               | 812,300,1                               | 620,7S        | 51812        | 619'9:               | ¥Щ             |   |
| CALC      | ואואום                            |                                                                                                                                                                  | 90°E       | 69°E             | E.113   | . <b>1.</b> 96 | 6.85     | 545              | 86'E              | 99.31                    | \$°C7                | 6.SÞ                | 385,188,1              | 170'919'2                               | 715,18        | C40.23       | 25'668               | п              |   |
|           |                                   |                                                                                                                                                                  | RINER CL   | JS> .<br>Ieri>sg | #       | - Ц<br>. сі.   | 14       | L L              | S  <br>  715      | S: <br> J <sup>n</sup> b | 6ac<br>≅ni∹na        | Cep<br>₩≑tena       | શ્ર-પ્ર                | ¥-¥                                     | R             | × .          | ¥                    |                | 1 |
|           | ç                                 |                                                                                                                                                                  |            | 3                | LLDE    | <br>           | Ъ        | ۻ                | SSC               | CHC<br>CHC               | ਹ <u>ੋ</u> 1 ਜੂ      | ٩ų                  | ZW <sup>26-N</sup>     | SH5MII                                  | 80° °         | EQH HS       | . '±                 | ອຂຍິງ          | : |
|           | J.U. <u>0Н W.U. N</u><br>06896.02 | TABLE 2.6-10<br>SUMMARY - ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF CASK STORAGE PADS<br>sed on Dynamic Loads Due to Design Basis Ground Motion: PSHA 2,000-yr Return Period |            |                  |         |                |          |                  |                   |                          |                      |                     | 9258                   | <u>, e z zaza,</u>                      | 3             |              |                      |                |   |

•

-

STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

18-3107

### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

### CALCULATION SHEET



5010.65

# STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

### 5010.65

### CALCULATION SHEET

ł



Note: From Calculation 05996.02-SC-5, Rev 1.





### CALCULATION SHEET



### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET



### STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION

### CALCULATION SHEET



| - > ><br>> > > | J.O. OR<br>059 |            |           |            | FT          | ~10 ] | ITHIN             | LS W       | R SOI                              | i<br>IS FO               | BLE E<br>BSUL          | TAI<br>ST R                 | AL TE                    | RIAXI          | of ti        | MARY ( | SUM   |             |        |
|----------------|----------------|------------|-----------|------------|-------------|-------|-------------------|------------|------------------------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------|--------------------------|----------------|--------------|--------|-------|-------------|--------|
|                | 96.02          | 1          | Date      | Туре       | ε,          | 8     | C.                | те<br>•,   | HE SI<br>ïi                        | AT T                     | USC                    | INTS                        | BERG (                   | IF GR          | (<br>₩       | Bltr   | Depth | Sample      | Boring |
| 2              |                |            | Nov 99    | <u>دی</u>  | - 71<br>:.7 | 2.03  | <u>к</u> ы<br>Ŭ.Ĵ | 2.15       | 53.9                               | 79.3                     | MCH                    | 32.7                        | 33.4                     | - LL<br>       | 47.1         | 4459.9 | 5.9   | D-2C        | B-1    |
|                |                |            | Nov 99    | CD         | 6.0         | 2.21  | :.0               | 2.67       | 46.3                               | 70.6                     | MEH                    | \$9.7                       | 40.9                     | 90.6           | 52.9         | 4454.5 | 5.3   | D-2B        | B-1    |
| CAL            |                |            | Jar. 97   | <u>ت</u> ی | 4.D         | 2.16  | :3                | 1.53       | 67.:                               | E5.5                     | C.                     | i 17.8                      | 24.7                     | 42.5           | 27.4         | 4462.1 | 10.4  | V-9D        | B-4    |
|                | G( Por         |            | Jar. 97   | ເມ         | 11.0        | 2.39  | :3                | 1.93       | 57.9                               | 78.5                     | C.                     | 5. E-                       | ບ-20 ຢ                   | Sæ             | 35.6         | 4453.4 | 1:.1  | V-2D        | C-2    |
| AIC            | B) a           | 1          | June '99  | C.J        | 5.0         | 2.84  | J.7               | 1.73       | 62.1                               | \$\$                     | СН                     | <u>م</u> يد<br>م            | ee (1-30                 | S              | 47.9         | 4463.7 | B.7   | U-3D        | CTB-1  |
| NIU            |                | 1          | June '93  | сл         | 6,0         | 3.11  | 1.7               | 1.81       | 63.4                               | 67.7                     | сн                     | С <sup>2</sup>              | ce (C-2)                 | s              | 45.2         | 4465.5 | 9.5   | <b>D-2D</b> | CTB-4  |
|                | ļ              | ] ·        | June '99  | CIJ        | 7.0         | 2.70  | 1.7               | 2.02       | 56.2                               | <b>85.</b> 7             | сн                     |                             |                          |                | 52.7         | 4467.9 | 8.3   | D-3D        | CTB-6  |
| Fe             | 3              |            | Nov '98   | с'n        | 8.0         | 3.60  | 1.7               | 1.20       | 77.3                               | 100.6                    | CL                     | 19.8                        | 22.5                     | 41.3           | <b>3</b> 0.1 | 4468.4 | 5.7   | U-1B        | CTB-N  |
| TIO            | ်ဦ             |            | Jurse '99 | cu         | 13.0        | 2.43  | 1.7               | 2.76       | 45.1                               | 74.6                     | МН                     | 4 <sup>2</sup>              | œ U-2.                   | ·S             | 65.4         | 4466.4 | 7.7   | U-28        | CTB-N  |
| NNU            | 125            | ]          | Juræ '93  | ເມ         | 7.0         | 2.73  | 1.7               | 1.98       | 56.7                               | 86.3                     | СК                     | 30.3                        | 30.9                     | £:.1           | 52.2         | 4463.E | 10.5  | V-3D        | CTB-N  |
| MBE            | ,              |            | Nov '98   | сu         | :2.0        | 2.05  | 1.7               | 2.78       | 4 <b>9.9</b>                       | 78.0                     | мн                     | 25.3                        | 40.9                     | <b>£</b> 6.2   | 73.6         | 44ES.7 | 5.9   | U-1B        | CTB-S  |
|                | 5              |            | June '93  | cu         | 5.0         | 2.40  | 1.7               | 1,92       | 58.2                               | 90.0                     | СК                     | 29.0                        | 26.9                     | 57.9           | 54.6         | 4466.L | 8.4   | D-2D        | CTB-S  |
|                |                |            | Ma.: '99  | CU         | :5.0        | 3.26  | 2.:               | 2.22       | 52.8                               | 76.7                     | КН                     | 25.1                        | 34.7                     | 59.8           | 45.2         | 4453.3 | 6.5   | D-2D        | B-1    |
|                | PTIQ           |            | Mar 193   | cu         | 3.0         | 3.55  | 2.1               | 1.50       | e.7ê                               | 90.6                     | HM                     | 27.2                        | 25.2                     | 52.4           | \$3.5        | 44E3.C | 5.2   | U-1B        | Б-З    |
|                | NAL.           |            | Mar '99   | CU         | :2.0        | 3.03  | 2.:               | 2.43       | 49.J                               | 74.5                     | мн                     | 29.0                        | 41.3                     | 70.3           | 50.5         | 4458.2 | 6.3   | U-10        | C-2    |
|                | TASK COOF      |            |           |            |             |       |                   |            | dix 24.<br>dix 24.                 | Аррев:<br>Аррев:         | ci sar<br>cí sar       | merst 2<br>merst ô          | Allach<br>Allach         | i<br>2         | NCTES        | i      |       |             |        |
|                |                | <br> <br>4 | Ma: 93    | СШ         | :2.0        | 3.03  | 2.:               | 2.43<br>*. | 49.3<br>dix 2A<br>dix 2A<br>dix 2A | 74.8<br>Арреол<br>Арреол | MH<br>ci sar<br>cí sar | 29.0<br>nierst 2<br>merst ô | 41.3<br>Ailach<br>Ailach | 70.3<br>)<br>2 | 50.5         | 4458.2 | 6.3   | U-1D        |        |



CALC 05996,02-668>-13-3



## STONE & WEBSTER ENGINEERING CORPORATION CALCULATION SHEET

-

|                                              | 10.0R W.0.NO.                            | DIVISION                                      | CALCULATI                             | ON IDENTIFIC                                                                                     | ATION NU                      | MBER                                                                                          | CODE       | PAGE 36                                  |
|----------------------------------------------|------------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|------------|------------------------------------------|
| ~ [                                          | 05996.02                                 | G                                             | <u>B)</u>                             | 05-2                                                                                             | •                             |                                                                                               |            |                                          |
| 1<br>2<br>3<br>4<br>5<br>6                   | #                                        | Q                                             |                                       |                                                                                                  | ŞEŞ                           |                                                                                               | 4.0        | P A4                                     |
| 7<br>8<br>9<br>10<br>11<br>12<br>13          | 1 Depth of ~10                           | LORRESPONDS -<br>LAL STRESSES                 | surding mat<br>elow casic<br>adds     | RAINED SHEAR                                                                                     | DRUTY ANALY                   | <ul> <li>Pad Area</li> <li>OCTB Area</li> </ul>                                               | 0          | CHMENT A<br>05996.02-GU                  |
| 14<br>15<br>16<br>17<br>18<br>19<br>10<br>21 | e 11<br>for Soils Within<br>7 THE SUTE   | - () = 2.1 KSF<br>FINAL VERTIC<br>~ 5 FT BELD | TRANSFER<br>4 ~ 2.5 FT B<br>STORAGE P | - IN SITU UND                                                                                    | STRENGTH F<br>BEARING CA      | 24<br>24<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2<br>2 | 3.         | e, σ <sub>e</sub> - ksf<br>Ат тА<br>САИС |
| 22<br>23<br>24<br>25<br>26<br>27<br>28       | Figur<br>al Test Results<br>D SvRFACE An | GASE G PADS                                   |                                       |                                                                                                  | ~16                           |                                                                                               | 2.0        | Confining Pressur                        |
| 29<br>30<br>31<br>32<br>33<br>34             | ary of Triaxi                            | L94KSF AT<br>CASK STORAG                      | SF AT BASE<br>TRANSFER                |                                                                                                  | ده داد <sup>ر</sup><br>۵ - ۱۵ | ,  <br>,                                                                                      | 1.0        | 15/2000                                  |
| 35<br>36<br>37<br>38<br>39<br>40             | Sumn                                     | ~, <mark>v</mark><br>9                        | CLANISTER<br>CANISTER<br>BULDIA       |                                                                                                  | B                             |                                                                                               |            | lab∖triax-1.xls on 6/                    |
| 41<br>- 42<br>43<br>44<br>45                 | -<br>-                                   |                                               |                                       | o<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S<br>S | 0<br>N                        | 0.1                                                                                           | 0:0<br>0.0 | lgeot]\05996\                            |



76-0.qqA



I

Private Fuel Storage Facility

PP 5-21-1 Attachment 2 Page 1 of 2

## QA CATEGORY I CALCULATION CHECKLIST

| Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13<br>Revision No. 3                                                                                                   | Project No<br>Job Book File Loc | . 0599)<br>ation ( | 6.02<br>Q2.9                        |
|------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------|-------------------------------------|
|                                                                                                                                                      | Yes                             | <u>No</u>          | <u>N/A</u>                          |
| Method                                                                                                                                               |                                 |                    |                                     |
| Identify the method used to verify the "Method" of the calculation                                                                                   |                                 |                    |                                     |
| <ul> <li>By design review</li> <li>Compare the Method with another calculation</li> <li>Alternate calculation</li> </ul>                             | <u> </u>                        |                    | $\overline{\underline{\checkmark}}$ |
| If the compare method was used, is the statement identifying the other calculation identified in this calculation?                                   |                                 |                    | $\checkmark$                        |
| If an alternate calculation was used for a QA Category I calculation, is it included with the calculation?                                           |                                 | <u></u>            | <u> </u>                            |
| Is the calculation method acceptable?                                                                                                                | $\checkmark$                    |                    |                                     |
| Assumptions                                                                                                                                          |                                 |                    |                                     |
| Affirmative answers to the following questions are required:                                                                                         |                                 |                    |                                     |
| <ul> <li>Are all assumptions uniquely identified as assumptions and<br/>adequately described?</li> </ul>                                             | $\checkmark$                    | <u> </u>           |                                     |
| Are all assumptions reasonable?                                                                                                                      | $\checkmark$                    |                    | <u> </u>                            |
| <ul> <li>Are all assumptions that require confirmation at a later date<br/>specifically identified as assumptions that must be confirmed?</li> </ul> | 2 🖌                             |                    |                                     |
| For Revisions to the Calculation                                                                                                                     |                                 |                    |                                     |
| Are changes clearly identified?                                                                                                                      | $\checkmark$                    |                    |                                     |
| • For QA Category I calculations, is a reason for the revision give                                                                                  | ven? <u>√</u>                   |                    |                                     |
| <ul> <li>Does the calculation identify the calculation, including revision<br/>when applicable, which is superseded?</li> </ul>                      | ), <u> </u>                     |                    |                                     |

Private Fuel Storage Facility

PP 5-21-1 Attachment 2 Page 2 of 2

### QA CATEGORY I CALCULATION CHECKLIST

Calculation No. 05996.02-G(B)-13 Revision No. 3 Project No. 05996.02 Job Book File Location Q2.9

|   |                                                                                                                                | <u>Yes</u>   | <u>No</u> | <u>N/A</u>               |
|---|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------|-----------|--------------------------|
| • | Are affected pages identified with the new calculation number or revision number?                                              | $\checkmark$ |           |                          |
| ٠ | When applicable, is an alternate calculation included as part of the calculation?                                              |              |           | $\underline{\checkmark}$ |
| • | When applicable, is a statement identifying the calculation to which the method was compared included as part of the revision? |              |           | V                        |
|   |                                                                                                                                |              |           |                          |

Thomas Y. Chang Printed Name

thomas 4 6-19-2000 Date Signature

# **Exhibit** A

# Attachment 3



Holtec Center, 555 Lincoln Drive West, Marlton, NJ 08053 Telephone (856) 797- 0900 Fax (856) 797 - 0909

# MULTI CASK RESPONSE AT PFS ISFSI FROM 2000-YR SEISMIC EVENT (REV. 2)

FOR

PFS

Holtec Report No: HI-2012640

Holtec Project No: 70651

**Report Class: SAFETY RELATED** 

COMPANY PRIVATE This document is prophetary and the property of Holies International and its Client it is up to be defourd method connection with the performance of work by Holies International on its designated subcompletized as a Reproduction publication or representation, in whole of its part, for any other purpose beauty furly other than the Client is expressly forbidder.

# HOLTEC INTERNATIONAL

### DOCUMENT ISSUANCE AND REVISION STATUS<sup>1</sup>

DOCUMENT NAME: MULTI-CASK RESPONSE AT PSF ISFSI FROM 2000-YR SEISMIC EVENT (REV. 2)

| DOCUN                    | AENT NO.:<br>CT NO.: | HI-2012<br>70651     | 640    | CATEO       | GORY: []         | GENERIC<br>PROJECT S | PECIFIC |
|--------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|--------|-------------|------------------|----------------------|---------|
| Rev.<br>No. <sup>2</sup> | Date<br>Approved     | Author's<br>Initials | VIR#   | Rev.<br>No. | Date<br>Approved | Author's<br>Initials | VIR #   |
| 0                        | 3/29/01              | CWB                  | 308110 |             |                  |                      |         |
|                          |                      |                      |        |             |                  |                      |         |

# 4.0 ASSUMPTIONS AND MODELING OF THE CASK / PAD SIMULATION

. 1

The assumptions employed in the modeling of the cask/pad dynamic system and the details of the equation development are identical to those employed in the previous analyses and are not repeated here. A recent technical paper contains similar information regarding methodology, acceptance criteria, and modeling of the HI-STAR 100 (metal cask) Storage System [5].

6

# **Exhibit B**

### EXHIBIT B

# ACI 230.1R-90

(Reapproved 1997)

Harry C. Roof

Dennis W. Super

James M. Winford

Anwar E. Z. Wissa

# State-of-the-Art Report on Soil Cement

### reported by ACI Committee 230

Wayne S. Adaska, Chairman

Ara Arman Robert T. Barclay Theresa J. Casias David A. Crocker Richard L. De Graffenreid John R. Hess Robert H. Kuhlman Paul E. Mueller

Soil cement is a densely compacted mixture of portland cement, soil/ aggregate, and water. Used primarily as a base material for pavements, soil cement is also being used for slope protection, lowpermeability liners, foundation stabilization, and other applications. This report contains information on applications, material properties, mix proportioning, construction, and quality-control inspection and testing procedures for soil cement. This report's intent is to provide basic information on soil-cement technology with emphasis on current practice regarding design, testing, and construction.

Keywords: aggregates; base courses; central mixing plant; compacting; construction; fine aggregates; foundations; linlags; mixing; mix proportioning; moisture content; pavements; portland cements; properties: slope protection; soil cement; solls; soil stabilization; soil tests; stabilization; tests; vibration.

### CONTENTS

#### Chapter 1-Introduction

- 1.1-Scope
  - 1.2-Definitions

### Chapter 2—Applications

- 2.1-General
- 2.2-Pavements
- 2.3-Slope protection
- 2.4-Liners
- 2.5-Foundation stabilization
- 2.6-Miscellaneous applications

### Chapter 3— Materials

- 3.1-Soil
- 3.2-Cement
- 3.3-Admixtures
- 3.4-Water

### Chapler 4—Properties

- 4.1-General
- 4.2-Density
- 4.3-Compressive strength

ACI Committee Reports, Guides, Standard Practices, and Commentaries are intended for guidance in designing, planning, executing, or inspecting construction and in preparing specifications. References to these documents shall not be made in the Project Documents. If items found in these documents are desired to be a part of the Project Documents, they should be phrased in mandatory language and incorporated into the Project Documents.

4.4-Flexural strength

- 4.5-Permeability
- 4.6-Shrinkage
- 4.7-Layer coefficients and structural members

### Chapter 5—Mix proportioning

- 5.1-General
- 5.2-Propertioning criteria
- 5.3-Special considerations

### Chapter 6—Construction

- 6.1-General
- 6.2-Materials handling and mixing
- 6.3-Compaction
- 6.4-Finishing
- 6.5-Joints
- 6.6-Curing and protection

### Chapter 7-Quality-control testing and inspection

- 7.1-General
- 7.2-Pulverization (mixed in place)
- 7.3-Cement-content control
- 7.4-Moisture content
- 7.5-Mixing
- 7.6-Compaction
- 7.7-Lift thickness and surface tolerance

### Chapter 8—References

8.1-Specified references 8.2-Cited references

### 1-INTRODUCTION

### 1.1-Scope

This state-of-the-art report contains information on applications, materials, properties, mix proportioning, design, construction, and quality-control inspection and

ACI Materials Journal, V. 87, No. 4, July-August 1990. Pertinent discussion of the full report will be published in the March-April 1991 ACI Materials Journal if received by Nov. 1, 1990. All rights received, including rights of reproduction and use in any form or by any means, including the making of copies by any photo process, or by any electronic or mechanical device, printed, written, or oral, or recording for sound or visual reproduction for use in any knowledge or retireal system or device, unless permission in writing is obtained from the copyright proprietors.

### SOIL CEMENT



Fig. 4.1-Typical moisture-density curve

Table 4.1 — Ranges of unconfined compressive strengths of soil-cement<sup>33</sup>

| Soil type                                                                                                    | Soaked compressive<br>strength,* (psi) |          |
|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------|----------|
|                                                                                                              | 7-day                                  | 28-day   |
| Sandy and gravelly soils:<br>AASHTO groups A-1, A-2, A-3<br>Unified groups GW, GC, GP,<br>GM, SW, SC, SP, SM | 300-600                                | 400-1000 |
| Silty soils:<br>AASHTO groups A-4 and A-5<br>Unified groups ML and CL                                        | 250-500                                | 300-900  |
| Clayey soils:<br>AASHTO groups A-6 and A-7<br>Unified groups MH and CH                                       | 200-400                                | 250-600  |

\*Specimens moist-cured 7 or 28 days, then soaked in water prior to strength lesting.

### 4.3—Compressive strength

Unconfined compressive strength  $f'_c$  is the most widely referenced property of soil cement and is usually measured according to ASTM D 1633. It indicates the degree of reaction of the soil-cement-water mixture and the rate of hardening. Compressive strength serves as a criterion for determining minimum cement requirements for proportioning soil cement. Because strength is directly related to density, this property is affected in the same manner as density by degree of compaction and water content.

Typical ranges of 7- and 28-day unconfined compressive strengths for soaked, soil-cement specimens are given in Table 4.1. Soaking specimens prior to testing is recommended since most soil-cement structures may become permanently or intermittently saturated during their service life and exhibit lower strength under saturated conditions. These data are grouped under broad textural soil groups and include the range of soil types normally used in soil-cement construction. The range of values given are representative for a majority of soils



Fig. 4.2—Relationship between cement content and unconfined compressive strength for soil-cement mixtures

normally used in the United States in soil-cement construction. Fig. 4.2 shows that a linear relationship can be used to approximate the relationship between compressive strength and cement content, for cement contents up to 15 percent and a curing period of 28 days.

Curing time influences strength gain differently depending on the type of soil. As shown in Fig. 4.3, the strength increase is greater for granular soil cementthan for fine-grained soil cement.

# 4.4—Flexural (tensile) strength (modulus of rupture)

Flexural-beam tests (ASTM D 1635), direct-tension tests, and split-tension tests have all been used to evaluate flexural strength. Flexural strength is about onefifth to one-third of the unconfined compressive strength. Data for some soils are shown in Fig. 4.4. The ratio of flexural to compressive strength is higher in low-strength mixtures (up to  $1/3 f_c^2$ ) than in highstrength mixtures (down to less than  $1/5 f_c^2$ ). A good approximation for the flexural strength R is<sup>34</sup>

$$R = 0.51 (f_{c}')^{0.10}$$

where

R = flexural strength, psi

 $f_c' =$  unconfined compressive strength, psi

230.1R-9